
AGENDA 

Joint Academic Standards & Assessments and 
Public Awareness Subcommittee Meeting 

Monday, May 15, 2023 
10:00 a.m. 

Room 433, Blatt Building 

I. Welcome.................................................................................... Dr. Patti Tate

II. Approval of Joint ASA\PA Subcommittee Minutes
for March 20, 2023 ..................................................................... Dr. Patti Tate 

III. Action Items:
US History & Constitution End-of-Course
Evaluation, Spring 2022 .......................................... Dr. Christine DiStefano 

Professor, Educational Psychology & Research 
Educational Studies, UofSC 

Report on the Educational Credit for Exceptional 
Needs Children (ECENC) Program, 2023 ............................. Dr. Jenny May 

Director, Evaluation 

Report on the Educational Performance of 
Military-Connected Students in SC, 2023 .................................... Dana Yow 

IV. For Information:
Modified In-Year Reporting for High School
Achievement Tests ....................................................... Dr. Matthew Lavery 

Director, Research 

V. Adjournment

Academic Standards and Assessments Public Awareness 
Barbara Hairfield, Chair 
Rep. Terry Alexander 

Dr. Patti Tate, Chair 
Rep. Bill Hager 
Barbara Hairfield 
Sidney Locke 
Sen. Dwight Loftis 
Neil Robinson 
Sen. Ross Turner 

April Allen 

CHAIR 

Brian Newsome 

VICE CHAIR 

Terry Alexander 

Melanie Barton 

Russell Booker 

Neal Collins 

Bob Couch 

Bill Hager 

Barbara B. Hairfield 

Kevin L. Johnson 

Sidney Locke 

Dwight Loftis 

Neil C. Robinson, Jr. 

Patti J. Tate 

C. Ross Turner, III 

Ellen Weaver 

Dana Yow 
INTERIM 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR



SOUTH CAROLINA EDUCATION OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE 

Joint Academic Standards and Assessments and Public Awareness 
Subcommittee 

Minutes of the Meeting 

March 20, 2023 

 

Members Present (in-person or remote): Dr. Patti Tate, Barbara Hairfield, Neil 
Robinson, Sen. Dwight Loftis, Sen. Ross Turner, Rep. Bill Hager 

EOC Staff Present: Dana Yow, Gabrielle Fulton, Dr. Matthew Lavery, Dr. Rainey Knight, 
Dr. Jenny May, Hope Johnson-Jones, Riley Dixon 

 

Dr. Tate called the meeting to order and welcomed Rep. Bill Hager, appointed by 

Shannon Ericson to the position formerly held by Rep. Raye Felder. Mr. Robinson moved 
to approve the minutes from the previous meeting held on January 23. Ms. Hairfield 

seconded, with members unanimously voting to approve the minutes as they stood. Next, 

Dr. Tate welcomed Dr. Jenny May to present the EOC’s annual report on State-funded 
full-day 4K for 2021-22 and 2022-23. 

Dr. May noted Proviso 1.55 which extended the report deadline to March first, allowing 

for the inclusion of more recent data than previously able to be reported. Dr. May 

highlighted changes from the 2022 school year to the 2023 school year, such as a shift 
in eligibility from the district level to the school level. Additionally, students in any school 

district may now participate in CERDEP pending available space and funding. Since the 
2019-20 school year, the number of four-year-olds in poverty has decreased. Funding 

has increased per student to $5100, allowing for districts to incur fewer infrastructure-

related costs. Regarding pupils in poverty, of those who access CERDEP 41% 
demonstrated readiness compared to 27% of non-CERDEP students.  

This report is the first to provide KRA scores for the cohort reported for CERDEP and to 

include Head Start data. Dr. May presented some of the report’s key findings. While 

poverty has decreased, the number of children served by CERDEP has increased. The 
State’s investment in 4K has increased. Non-CERDEP pupils in poverty were less likely 



to Demonstrate Readiness on the KRA than CERDEP students in the 2022-23 school 

year. The full report can be found on the EOC website and in the meeting packet. Mr. 
Robinson noted that some districts experienced an increase in the percentage of pupils 

in poverty but not an increase in program access and asked how this can be improved. 
Dr. May stated that First Steps and the SC Department of Education work closely locally 

to recruit families and that solutions are best determined at the district-level. Mr. Robinson 

asked if there are any statewide solutions. Dr. May noted that at the state level, the 
Palmetto PreK portal and First 5 sites are available, but that it requires district effort to 

market these to their local community. Sen. Turner asked what barriers exist. Dr. May 
noted that it is difficult to look at barriers because if a student did not access the services, 

they are not in our data pool. However, EOC staff will examine this further. Dr. Tate 
thanked Dr. May. 

Dr. Lavery presented an introduction to the EOC’s upcoming education dashboard. The 
dashboard will utilize an existing Tableau server purchased by the SC Department of 

Administration that is currently underutilized. Ms. Fulton presented an overview of 

upcoming topics to be featured in the dashboard, such as Kindergarten Readiness, SC 
READY performance, and National Student Clearinghouse information. Ms. Fulton 
presented a brief demonstration of the current proof of concept.  

Dana Yow presented the EOC’s annual report covering the EOC’s work from March 1, 

2022 to February 28, 2023. Highlights included work towards an education data 
dashboard, the 2022 school report card results, and new recommendations to the 

education accountability system. The full annual report can be viewed on the EOC’s 
website. 

Dr. Tate thanked EOC staff. Ms. Yow provided the subcommittee with a brief update on 
the EOC annual retreat to be held in August in Charleston. With that, the meeting 
adjourned. 

 



EDUCATION OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE 
 

Subcommittee: Academic Standards and Assessment  
 

Date:  May 15, 2023 
 
ACTION ITEM 
U.S. History and the Constitution End-of-Course Assessment Evaluation 
 
PURPOSE/AUTHORITY 
SECTION 59-18-320. Review of field test; general administration of test; accommodations for 
students with disabilities; adoption of new standards. 

(A) After the first statewide field test of the assessment program in each of the four academic 
areas, and after the field tests of the end of course assessments of high school credit 
courses, the Education Oversight Committee, established in Section 59-6-10, will review 
the state assessment program and the course assessments for alignment with the state 
standards, level of difficulty and validity, and for the ability to differentiate levels of 
achievement, and will make recommendations for needed changes, if any. The review will 
be provided to the State Board of Education, the State Department of Education, the 
Governor, the Senate Education Committee, and the House Education and Public Works 
Committee as soon as feasible after the field tests. The Department of Education will then 
report to the Education Oversight Committee no later than one month after receiving the 
reports on the changes made to the assessments to comply with the recommendations. 

 
 
CRITICAL FACTS 
 
 
 
TIMELINE/REVIEW PROCESS 
February 15, 2023    EOC enters contracts with Dr. Christine DiStefano to evaluate the USHC 

field test assessment. Final report due in May 2023.  
 
ECONOMIC IMPACT FOR EOC 
The cost of the MOA with Dr. DiStefano was $9,000.  
 
 Fund/Source:    

ACTION REQUEST 
  For approval       For information 

 
ACTION TAKEN 

 
  Approved         Amended 

 
  Not Approved        Action deferred (explain) 



1 | P a g e  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Report provided to the Education Oversight Committee 
 

Dr.  Christine DiStefano 

May 2023 

      
 

 
End of Course Examination Program   

 

Evaluation of US History and Constitution 
Spring 2022 Test Data  

 
 
 
 

 



EOCEP: USHC Peer Review  
Page | 2  

 

End of Course Examination Program  
Technical Evaluation of Spring 2022 Test Data   

US History and Constitution  
 

Table of Contents 
 

Section 1: Statewide System of Standards and Assessment     3 
1.1   Description of the South Carolina End of Course Examination Program  3     
1.2   The End-of-Course Program and the USHC EOCEP Assessment   4 
1.3   EOCEP Population and USHC Examinees      5 
1.4   Summary: Statewide System of Standards and Assessment   6 

   
Section 2: Assessment Systems Operations for the USHC EOCEP   7   
      2.1   USHC Assessment: Test Design and Test Development     7 

2.2.  USHC Assessment: Item Development       10 
2.3   USHC Assessment: Test Administration      12 
2.4   Summary: Assessment Systems Operations for the USHC EOCEP  13  
 

Section 3: Technical Quality – Validity        15 
3.1   Overall Validity, Including Validity Based on Content    15 
3.2   Validity Based on Cognitive Processes      17 
3.3   Validity Based on Internal Structure       18 
3.4   Validity Based on Relations to Other Variables     24 
3.5   Summary: Technical Quality – Validity       26 
  

Section 4: Technical Quality - Other        27 
4.1.  Reliability           27 
4.2.  Fairness and Accessibility         28 
4.3.  Full Performance Continuum        30 
4.4.  Scoring           32 
4.5.  Multiple Versions of An Assessment       33 
4.6.  Summary: Technical Quality - Other       34 
    

Section 5: Inclusion of Students        36 
5.1.  Including Students with Disabilities        36 
5.2.  Procedures for Including English Language Learners     36 
5.3.  Customized Materials and Formats       37 
5.4   Summary: Inclusion of Students        37 

  
Section 6: Achievement Standards and Reporting      38 

6.1.  Standard Setting for the USHC EOCEP      38 
6.2.  Reporting          40 
6.3   Summary: Achievement Standards and Reporting      41  

 
Summary and Recommendations        42 
 
Reference List          44 
 
 



EOCEP: USHC Peer Review  
Page | 3  

 

   
Section 1 

 
Statewide System of Standards and Assessment 

 
1.1 South Carolina’s End of Course Examination Program  

 
As part of South Carolina’s Accountability Program, students attending public schools take 

standardized assessments to gauge student progress and school performance. The End-of-
Course Examination Program (EOCEP) is a statewide assessment program for high school 
students after completion of “gateway” courses in essential subject areas.  The gateway courses 
were determined by South Carolina’s State Board of Education and currently include the following 
courses: Algebra 1, Intermediate Algebra, Biology 1, English 1, English 2, and United States 
History and the Constitution (https://ed.sc.gov/tests/high/eocep/ ).  

 
Scores from the EOCEP are used in a variety of ways, such as contributing to students’ 

overall course grade, providing information reported on school report cards, and to provide 
accountability evidence to meet state and federal requirements. As listed in the South Carolina 
State Board of Education Regulation 43-262, the purposes and uses of the EOCEP tests are 
stated:  

A. The examinations shall encourage instruction in the specific academic standards 
for the courses, encourage student achievement, and document the level of 
students’ mastery of the academic standards. 
 

B. The examinations shall serve as indicators of program, school, and school district 
effectiveness in the manner prescribed by the Education Oversight Committee in 
accordance with the provisions of the Education Accountability Act of 1998 (EAA). 

 
C. The examinations shall be weighted 20 percent in the determination of students’ 

final grades in the gateway courses. 
 

1.1a. Review of the USHC End of Course Examination. As part of the requirements for 
receiving a high school diploma in South Carolina, students are required to pass a high school 
credit course in United States history. The United States History and Constitution (USHC) course 
and the related end-of-course test satisfy this requirement.  In 2019, the South Carolina State 
Board of Education adopted the South Carolina Social Studies College- and Career-Ready 
Standards and the USHC EOCEP was revised to align to the new state standards.  The USHC 
test administered during the 2021–2022 school year was based on the revised standards. Per the 
South Carolina Code of Laws, Section 59-18-320 notes the requirement of a technical review of 
an instrument prior to statewide adoption (https://www.scstatehouse.gov/code/title59.php). Given 
the change in USHC standards and creation of a new assessment, a technical review of the 
USHC EOCEP was conducted.     
 
 The Education Oversight Committee supported the current study as part of the 
responsibilities stated in the Education Accountability Act.  This report evaluates the testing 
procedures, test construction process, and psychometric information to ensure that the EOCEP 
US History and Constitution produces reliable and valid information for use to evaluate student 
progress, school performance, and federal accountability. Review of the USHC EOCEP 

https://ed.sc.gov/tests/high/eocep/
https://www.scstatehouse.gov/code/title59.php


EOCEP: USHC Peer Review  
Page | 4  

 

information was conducted according to best practices educational measurement, as detailed by 
the Standards for Educational and Psychological Testing (Standards; AERA, APA, NCME, 2014).   
 
 This report is structured to provide information across multiple areas aligned with the U.S. 
Department of Education’s Assessment Peer Review Guidelines  
(https://www2.ed.gov/admins/lead/account/saa/assessmentpeerreview.pdf). The objective is to 
conduct a review of the testing processes (e.g., test development, administration, scoring, 
reporting, etc.) related to the USHC assessment to ensure the quality of the instrument for 
operational administration as part of the South Carolina’s end-of-course testing program. Data 
sources for the peer evaluation were provided by the South Carolina Department of Education 
(SCDE), the test contractor, Data Recognition Corporation (DRC), archival documents retrieved 
from the SCDE website (e.g., test blueprints, testing schedules, USHC revised standards, etc.) 
or from DRC/SCDE associates, and meetings/discussions with DRC and SCDE personnel. 
Datasets were provided by DRC, which included information about individual items and related 
psychometric indices (e.g., difficulty estimates, etc.). All parameters were calculated by the test 
contractor; no additional estimation of item or test parameters was conducted.  
 
This report examines selected critical elements stated in Peer Review Guidelines; however, not 
all critical elements are necessary for the USHC evaluation.  The EOCEP 2021-22 Technical 
Report provided by DRC includes a detailed alignment to specific Standards considered with the 
USHC assessment (DRC, 2022a). To focus discussion and attention on the review of the testing 
situation and evaluation of the Spring 2022 USHC data, individual Standards are not noted as 
these are included in the EOCEP Technical Report.  
 
 The dataset analyzed for this report is from the Spring 2022 administration of the USHC 
assessment as part of the EOCEP program. The USHC test administered during the 2021–2022 
school year was a newly developed instrument, constructed in response to the state’s adoption 
of revised US History and the Constitution Standards in 2019.  As the instrument was new, the 
state’s requirement to use the USHC scores in course grade calculations was waived and the test 
scores and item information examined here did not have any effect upon a student’s course grade.  
Further, while most students have returned to in-person schooling, it is recognized that lingering 
effects of the COVID-19 health pandemic may have affected the scores. In light of these caveats, 
the USHC assessment results provide preliminary information concerning the appropriateness of 
the instrument to measure the standards currently in place across South Carolina. The results 
should be interpreted in the context of circumstances related to the COVID-19 pandemic, 
including school closures, nonstandard instruction delivery modes in the 2021–2022 school year, 
potential diminished opportunity to learn for students, and other unknown effects of the pandemic 
on teachers, students and their families.   
 
  
1.2 The End-of-Course Program and the USHC EOCEP Assessment  
  
 The EOCEP USHC assessment is a required element by all South Carolina public-school 
students taking the US History and Constitution course as part of a credit bearing requirement to 
earn a high school diploma. The SCDE website provides information about the EOCEP. 
for stakeholders to learn about the state’s end of course examination program. For example, the 
website states test items are aligned to the South Carolina Academic Standards within each 
content area and the test items assess the stated content knowledge and skills.  End-of-course 
examinations gateway subjects are offered three times a year (Fall/Winter, Spring, Summer) and 
tests may be taken in electronic or paper format.   
 

https://www2.ed.gov/admins/lead/account/saa/assessmentpeerreview.pdf


EOCEP: USHC Peer Review  
Page | 5  

 

Each test included in the EOCEP has a section to describe the test. Information regarding 
the USHC examination is provided in multiple areas of the SCDE website including the EOCEP 
link under the Testing and Assessment Tab  (https://ed.sc.gov/tests/high/eocep/) and the Social 
Studies Instructional area of the SCDE website (https://ed.sc.gov/instruction/standards-
learning/social-studies/). USHC blueprint information and standards covered by the examination 
are easily accessible.  There is a separate information section for students and parents; while not 
directly related to test design, this information is helpful for stakeholders’ understanding of the 
broader EOCEP. Translated documents for parents (e.g., assessment brochures, sample 
individual student reports) are provided in English, Large Print (English) and 10 additional 
languages.  
 
 
1.3. EOCEP Population and USHC Examinees  
  

All public middle school, high school, alternative school, virtual school, and adult education 
students enrolled in courses in which the academic standards corresponding to the EOCEP 
subjects are taught, regardless of course name or number, must take the appropriate end-of-
course test. The population of students eligible for the EOCEP includes most high schoolers in 
South Carolina, including students with an Individual Education Plans (IEP) or 504 plans who are 
able to take the test with appropriate accommodations and supports (e.g., large print, Braille, read 
aloud administration, Sign Language Administration). This includes students as required by the 
Individuals with Disabilities Education Improvement Act (IDEA) and by Title 1 as noted by the 
Elementary and Secondary Education Act (ESSA).  
  
 In addition, the state testing policy includes suspended students, home school students who 
are registered through the district or local school board, homebound students, and home-based 
students as part of the EOCEP population. Also included are English as a Second 
Language/English Learning (ESL/EL) students, charter school students (including virtual charter 
schools), and students who are incarcerated. The 2021-22 EOCEP Technical Report (DRC, 
2022a) defines these groups as well as Special Groups of students including: Adult Education 
Students with Disabilities; Home School Students, Foreign Exchange Students, among others, 
which may be included in the EOCEP population of examinees.  The population of EOCEP test 
takers does not include students who meet eligibility criteria for alternate assessments as 
determined by their IEP team. In addition, the course does not apply for students who are enrolled 
in a non-diploma course. 
  
 As the EOCEP does include students that can take the test with approved accommodations 
that are part of a student’s IEP or 504 plan, the SCDE website details the definition of an 
accommodations and the purpose of such measures relative to test taking practices.  
Accommodation details are easily found under the Tests section of the SCDE website, within the 
EOCEP block of information (https://ed.sc.gov/tests/assessment-information/testing-
swd/accommodations-and-customized-forms/).    
 
 The Technical Report provided by DRC details demographic characteristics of students who 
participated in any of the USHC EOCEP administrations during the 2021-22 academic year 
(Fall/Winter 2021, Spring 2022, and Summer 2022).  As stated in the Technical Report, 53,055 
students participated in the USHC assessments during this time period.  Across the three 
examinations, the USHC population of test takers was roughly equally split by gender (49% male, 
50% female), with students of White (50%), African American/Black (29%) or Hispanic (11%) 
made up the three most prominent racial/ethnic groups.  Roughly 90% of the USHC sample were 
proficient in English (English Speaker II).  Of the USHC 2021-22 population tested, roughly 8.5% 

https://ed.sc.gov/tests/high/eocep/
https://ed.sc.gov/instruction/standards-learning/social-studies/
https://ed.sc.gov/instruction/standards-learning/social-studies/
https://ed.sc.gov/tests/assessment-information/testing-swd/accommodations-and-customized-forms/
https://ed.sc.gov/tests/assessment-information/testing-swd/accommodations-and-customized-forms/


EOCEP: USHC Peer Review  
Page | 6  

 

were on an Individualized Education Plan; 18% Gifted Learners (academically, artistically, or 
both), and 3% of examinees had a 504 educational plan.   

 
Spring 2022 database information was used to estimate an average of 33,739 students 

taking the spring assessment (using information from across forms and USHC items responses).  
The Spring 2022 administration captured the majority of the USHC population, encompassing 
roughly 63.4% of the USHC test takers reported in the 2021-22 EOCEP Technical Report.  Data 
from the Spring 2022 database will be used for analyses and investigation of item parameters.  

 
1.4. Summary: Statewide System of Standards and Assessment 

 
The SCDE website provides information describing South Carolina’s EOCEP. Information 

is clearly detailed for educators and other stakeholders.  Relevant information about the purposes 
of the testing program, uses of the information, and areas tested with the EOCEP is easily 
accessible. Detailed information is presented on the SCDE website regarding the purpose of the 
test and uses of USHC results. The information is provided in multiple places within the SCDE 
website, allowing stakeholders to come across the same information from different search 
avenues. Information regarding the purpose of the USHC, information to be covered, and other 
information (e.g., sample items, data reviews of results from past USHC administrations, etc.) are 
readily and easily accessible on the SCDE website. 

 
The database provided from DRC included responses from over 33,000 students who took 

the USHC end of course assessment in Spring 2022. The large number of students involved with 
the spring SHC test administration is acceptable to produce stable psychometric index estimates 
for use in the peer evaluation. 
 
 
  



EOCEP: USHC Peer Review 
Page | 7 

Section 2 

Assessment Systems Operations 
Related to the USHC EOCEP   

This section provides a review of the USHC examination to align with current 
recommendations for best practices of test development and test construction (e.g., Bandalos, 
2018; Green, 2009; Mertler, 2016). The test specifications, test blueprint, test administration 
manual, and item development procedures are examined. Proper test development procedures 
support use of USHC results to assess student knowledge and provide accountability evidence. 

Test specifications typically contain two components: a test description and a test 
blueprint. The test description specifies aspects of the test such as the test purpose, the target 
examinee population, and the overall test length. The test blueprint provides a listing of the major 
content areas and cognitive levels intended to be included on each test form. Testing 
administration procedures are reviewed to ensure alignment with best practices. This section was 
informed by the SCDE document “United States History and the Constitution Standards and 
Assessment Crosswalk” conducted in March 2023 to show how the USHC examination was 
updated to align with the 2019 South Carolina Social Studies College- and Career-Ready 
Standards, SCDE website documentation, and datasets information provided from DRC. A 
detailed evaluation is provided after each the review and discussion of each component; the 
summary section provides an overall reflection of the elements in Section 2. 

2.1.  USHC Assessment: Test Design and Test Development 

The test design and test development components are essential to the validity process 
On the SCDE website (https://ed.sc.gov/tests/high/eocep/), the Tests area  provides additional 
information about all EOCEP tests, a description of the purpose of the testing program, how 
scores are used in calculation of student grades and how EOCEP scores are used as part of 
federal accountability requirements. Additional important information such as: testing window 
dates, performance level descriptors, and data reviews of past test administrations are noted.  

Each test in the EOCEP has a separate section. For the USHC assessment, links are 
displayed allowing educators and stakeholders easy access to standards and the test blueprint. 
Additional information includes a data review discussing results from past USHC assessments, 
including general observations of student skills and suggested instructional strategies to 
accommodate potential areas of lower performance. When preparing students, teachers can 
easily link to the revised Social Studies standards (https://ed.sc.gov/instruction/standards-
learning/social-studies/) for more detail about the content areas, indicators, instructional 
resources and activity ideas.  

2.1a. Test Blueprint. The Test Blueprint provides an overall description of the USHC 
administration and construction. The test description is included as a bulleted list and includes 
pertinent information of test length, projected time needed to take the assessment, test 
administration, and scoring information (Note: current example: https://ed.sc.gov/tests/tests-
files/eocep-files/ushc-test-blueprint-2022-23/). Information in the tables and bulleted list is simple, 

https://ed.sc.gov/tests/high/eocep/
https://ed.sc.gov/instruction/standards-learning/social-studies/
https://ed.sc.gov/instruction/standards-learning/social-studies/
https://ed.sc.gov/tests/tests-files/eocep-files/ushc-test-blueprint-2022-23/
https://ed.sc.gov/tests/tests-files/eocep-files/ushc-test-blueprint-2022-23/


EOCEP: USHC Peer Review 
Page | 8 

easy to read, and focuses the reader’s attention on the most important aspects of the USHC test 
(e.g., number of items total and per area, item difficulty levels, item formats).  

Test Blueprint: Coverage of Standards. The revised EOCEP USHC assessment 
measures five main content areas (standards) with six indicators per content area (30 indicators 
total). This is a reduction from the previous version of the USHC (Previous: 8 standards and 47 
indicators). The reduction allowed the revised USHC assessment to focus on a more conceptual 
understanding of history, while allowing more opportunities for analysis and inquiry skills. All six 
areas are stated to have roughly equal weight to the overall test, with between 10 and 12 items 
per standard. The blueprint states that the USHC assessment consists of 55 total items. Table 1 
provides a summary of the test blueprint information by test reporting/content area as included on 
the USHC EOCEP.   

Table 1.  EOCEP US History and Constitution: Test Blueprint 
Reporting Category 

(Key Concepts) 
Number of 
Indicators  

Number of Items per 
Reporting Category 

Percentage of 
Assessment 

Standard 1: Foundations of American 
Republicanism 

6 10-12 18-22%

Standard 2: Expansion and Union 6 10-12 18-22%

Standard 3: Capitalism and Reform 6 10-12 18-22%

Standard 4: Modernism and 
Interventionism 

6 10-12 18-22%

Standard 5: Legacy of the Cold War 6 10-12 18-22%

Evaluation: Test Blueprint.  Examination of the Spring 2022 USHC test data showed 
that the number of items per standard aligned with the Blueprint. All six indicators were assessed 
from each standard (i.e., 100% of the standard was represented on the test). Across the five 
reporting categories (i.e., Standards), each area was equally weighted, accounting for 20% of the 
55-item test. The blueprint information is well suited to inform stakeholders of what is expected
on the EOCEP USHC assessment.

2.1b. Depth of Knowledge. The EOCEP USHC uses the Depth of Knowledge (DOK) 
classification system to categorize items into cognitive complexity levels.  The DOK categorizes 
items into one of four categories, where higher numbers indicate higher levels of complexity, with 
levels defined as: 

Level 1. Recall and Reproduction: Tasks at this level require recall of facts or rote 
application of simple procedures. The task does not require any cognitive effort beyond 
remembering. 
Level 2. Skills and Concepts: This level requires some decision making. Tasks which 
include more than one mental step (e.g., comparing, predicting, organizing) are included. 
Level 3. Strategic Thinking: Tasks at this level use planning skills and higher order 
thinking skills to solve more abstract tasks. Tasks with more than one correct answer or 
justifying a position are examples. 
Level 4. Extended Thinking:  At the most complex cognitive level, these tasks require 
synthesis of information from multiple sources or transfer of knowledge from one domain 
to another.  



EOCEP: USHC Peer Review  
Page | 9  

 

It is not typical for standardized tests to include items at DOK Level 4; however, the USHC 
assessment should have a mix of items across Levels 1 through 3. The test may be considered 
a “potentially high stakes” test as a sizable part of a student’s grade (20%) is linked to the EOCEP 
test score and for some students, passing the US History and Constitution course may be 
dependent upon the end-of-course exam score.  Test construction recommendations suggest that 
the test includes varied skills, including a mix of easier DOK (Level 1) and more complex DOK 
(Level 3) levels. The test blueprint should describe the total number of items to be included in 
each content area as well as the total number of items at each DOK level. This information assists 
teachers and students target time and content allocations for test preparation activities.  As stated 
on the test blueprint, it is estimated that between 0% - 15% of the USHC test will be DOK Level 
1 items, between 55% - 75% of items at Level 2, and between 25% and 45% at Level 3.  

  
In addition, the revised 2019 Social Studies standards associate indicators with one of six 

skill levels based on disciplinary skills aligned to DOK levels. The redesign of the standards and 
integration of skill levels was conducted to encourage inquiry, higher order thinking skills, and 
meaningful learning of Social Studies content needed for college, career, and civic readiness. 
These changes inherently increased the rigor of the standards by requiring students to use the 
identified historical thinking skills to make broader connections between historical events and 
developments. The six skill levels are presented in Table 2. 
 
Table 2. Skill Levels Associated with the 2019 Social Studies College- and Career-
Readiness Standards 
Skill Level Definition  

 
Comparison Generate comparisons based on common or differing characteristics or 

contexts. 
 

Causation 
 

Analyze multiple causes and effects, to include distinguishing long-term 
and short-term examples. 
 

Periodization Organize a historical narrative into time periods using units of time (e.g., 
decades, half-centuries, centuries).  
 

Context Describe historical developments using specific references to time, place, 
and broader circumstances. 
 

Continuities and 
Changes 

Recognize patterns of historical continuities and changes and identify 
turning points in history. 
 

Evidence Identify source, and utilize different forms of evidence, including primary 
and secondary sources, used in an inquiry-based study of history. 

 
 
 Evaluation: Blueprint DOK. From the blueprint review of DOK levels, the test will be 

more heavily weighted at DOK Level 2 (Skills and Concepts), with between 55% and 75% of the 
items at this complexity level.   Including most of the USHC items Level 2 is appropriate, given 
the purpose of the end of course examination.  In addition, having the fewest percentage of items 
at DOK Level 1 is acceptable, as this positions the USHC assessment at (approximately) a 
medium to medium-hard level of complexity, with most items beyond basic recall of information.  



EOCEP: USHC Peer Review  
Page | 10  

 

This “hardness” level is appropriate to assess a student’s comprehension of material presented 
after participation with US History and Constitution course content.   
 
2.2 USHC Assessment: Item Development 

 
This section discusses the item development. Items for the USHC EOCEP assessment 

were constructed to assess the content knowledge and skills described in the 2019 Social Studies 
standards revision. Information reported in this section on the development of items comes from 
SCDE website documentation, the 2021-22 EOCEP Technical Report (DRC, 2022a), and 
discussions with SCDE and DRC personnel.    
 

2.2a. Item Formats. A variety of item formats may be used on the EOCEP assessments. 
The majority of items are typically (closed response) test questions which require selection of the 
correct answer(s) to achieve full credit. Multiple choice, or Selected Response, is the most 
commonly encountered item format on standardized tests. This format largely consists of an item 
stem and options for the respondent to select the correct response(s) from a set of alternatives, 
or distractor choices.  According to best practices for test construction (Green, 2009), the 
distractor options should be plausible responses and help to distinguish among examinees with 
varying levels of knowledge. Closed response questions can be machine scored, allowing many 
examinees to be tested in an efficient manner (Green, 2009). Typically, Selected Response items 
ask respondents to select the correct response from four possible alternatives, three of which are 
distractors and one correct (keyed) alternative.  

 
Other objective response items per session may be present. Multiple Selection items 

prompt students to select a number of correct answers (e.g., “Choose two answers…”). The multi-
select items may have 5 or 6 options to select from. In order to receive credit for a correct 
response, students must select all of the correct answer choices. Evidence Based items are two-
part items. Students read a piece of text or passage and choose the best answer from the answer 
choices. Students will then be asked to support their response with evidence from the text—for 
example, to select multiple evidence statements, place multiple dates or steps in correct 
sequence, etc. In order to receive a correct response, students must answer both parts of the 
item correctly. Technology Enhanced items (for online test takers) ask students to interact with 
an item by using technology to provide their response, such as “drag and drop” where elements 
are moved into different positions, highlighting text, or clicking on images. (If needed, comparable 
selected response items are used as a replacement for the technology enhanced items on 
paper/pencil test administrations).   
 

The SCDE website, EOCEP tab, provides online training tools for teachers and students 
interested in practicing specifically with online test-taking and/or technology enhanced items  
(https://wbte.drcedirect.com/SC/portals/sc).  Teachers may also use released items to help 
students practice with types of items and DOK levels to be encountered on the USHC 
assessment. 
 

2.2b. Item Pool Construction.  A large pool of items was constructed for the USHC forms, 
where items were vetted by multiple committees. As noted in the 2021-22 EOCEP Technical 
Report (DRC, 2022a) “Newly developed items were reviewed by committees of South Carolina 
educators for content area and bias and sensitivity issues; items approved by these committees 
and the SCDE were field-tested among South Carolina students. Items demonstrating satisfactory 

https://wbte.drcedirect.com/SC/portals/sc


EOCEP: USHC Peer Review  
Page | 11  

 

performance on field tests became eligible for inclusion in operational forms during the 
subsequent administration” (p.22).   
 

For EOCEP assessments, all items in the item pool were evaluated by item development 
committees using the following criteria: 

 Content alignment— match of items to a standard and indicator to ensure 
alignment, 

 Rigor-level alignment—evaluation of cognitive complexity and appropriateness to 
the level of rigor required, 

 Technical design—item is current and accurate and stem, stimuli, distractors, and 
answer options are clear and concise, appropriate for the grade level, and 
considerate of students with special needs, 

 Universal design—item provides for an accessible assessment for all students, 
focusing on language demand, format/complexity, and graphics/visuals, and 

 Fairness in testing—item generates valid test scores for all groups of test takers 
through avoiding bias in test items and/or content area and avoiding language that 
unduly distracts students or disrupts their performance. 

 
Activities for reviewing newly constructed USHC items were conducted by DRC in 

collaborating with SCDE staff, Content Specialists, and Bias and Sensitivity review committees. 
The members of the review committees provided feedback for each item, and committee 
facilitators recorded the committee decisions.  Items accepted for use on the EOCEP 
assessments constituted the pools of items from which subsequent test forms for future Spring 
administrations may be created. As stated in the 2021-2022 EOCEP Technical Report, a total of 
160 items were developed for the USHC item pool (DRC, 2022a). The number of items by item 
format is summarized in Table 3. 
 
Table 3.  Item Formats, USHC Item Pool  

Item Format Number of Items Percentage of Item Pool 
 

Multiple Choice   140 88% 
 

Evidence Based Selected Response  5 3% 
 

Multiple Selection 9 6% 
 

Technology Enhanced 6 4% 
 

Total  160 
 

 

Note: Percentages may not total 100% due to rounding  
 

Evaluation: USHC Item Formats and Item Pool.  In summary, The SCDE website 
describes the item formats which students may encounter and provides support for teachers to 
practice these skills with students.  The variety of formats helps to ensure that students are being 
assessed with best practices. The USHC item pool includes a majority of multiple-choice type 
items (roughly 85%), which is not unusual for standardized tests and the test blueprint notes that 
a variety of item formats may be encountered. Materials are provided on the SCDE website for 
teachers and students to practice with released items and with the online test taking platform. 

 



EOCEP: USHC Peer Review  
Page | 12  

 

Materials detailing construction of the EOCEP US History and Constitution item pool are 
described in the Technical Report provided by DRC.  Items for the USHC have undergone an 
extensive review by multiple committees to ensure they are appropriate for all learners, at the 
appropriate level of rigor, and aligned with the content. The item pool developed by South Carolina 
educators is sufficiently large to construct a variety of USHC EOCEP alternative forms, while 
examining field test and other statistics to ensure psychometric quality of the content. 
 

2.2c. USHC Form Construction. For test security, more than one USHC form is 
constructed; however, specific guidelines need to be followed to ensure forms are equivalent in 
content and rigor, psychometric quality of items and coverage of the standards. The 2021-22 
EOCEP Technical Report (DRC, 2022a) describes in detail the procedures used to construct 
forms for the USHC testing and the criteria used to evaluate items and item content.  Forms were 
created for each testing window as well as paper- and custom forms.  The majority of USHC 
students take the end-of-course assessment at the Spring testing using an online platform (DRC 
INSIGHT). These forms included eight field test items (total of 63 test items); other forms included 
55 items. Regardless of form or testing window, 55 items are scored for the USHC EOCEP.   

 
The 20-forms available for Spring testing allow rotation of forms within and across time 

points, enhancing test security. While same items were used across forms, the items were placed 
in similar, but different positions across forms (e.g., an item with position between 50 to 54 across 
the 20 different test forms).   As common scored items were used across the forms, the DOK and 
psychometric levels of the forms are equivalent. 

 
Evaluation: USHC Form Construction. Forms created for the USHC EOCEP were 

thoughtfully constructed according to best practices, with reviews and examination by numerous 
committee members of educators, SCDE, and DRC personnel. Each step was detailed in the 
Technical Report to provide a clear understanding of what procedures were followed. A total of 
20 different forms were created for the USHC EOCEP Spring testing opportunities, each with 63 
items.  The 55-scored items comprise 87% of a given form and field test items only 13%. The 
relatively low percentage of field test items is sufficient to collect information about item 
performance without overly burdening or distracting students. The form creation process, number 
of forms created, and varied item placement across forms provides an opportunity for evaluation 
of new (field test) items and enhances test security. 

  
2.3 USHC Assessment: Test Administration Procedures   

 
As part of the state-wide standardized testing program, the EOCEP USHC assessment 

follows state and district regulations related to testing procedures such as: adherence to test 
security, regulations for distribution of materials, confidentiality mandates, and reporting of test 
violations.  As with other standardized tests administered in South Carolina, District Test 
Coordinators and School Test Coordinators oversee test security and appropriate testing 
practices for the USHC assessment. This analysis includes a review of test administration 
procedures, instructions provided for those administering the assessment, instructions provided 
for students, accommodations, and test security procedures.   

 
As part of the EOCEP, the USHC assessment is largely delivered online through the test 

contractor’s online platform, DRC INSIGHT. This platform is responsible for delivering the 
assessment, storing responses, scoring the test, and providing test reports to students, districts, 
and schools. Paper-and-pencil test administrations are available if required as part of a student’s 
educational plan due to disability.  Tests may be administered to examinees during the academic 



EOCEP: USHC Peer Review 
Page | 13 

year’s testing windows. The testing windows  for all tests are prominently displayed on the SCDE 
website  under the Assessment tab (https://ed.sc.gov/tests/assessment-information/).  Detailed 
instructions for test administration are stated for district test coordinators and school test 
coordinators in a detailed Test Administration Manual (TAM). The TAM is easy to find on the 
SCDE website, EOCEP tab (e.g., https://ed.sc.gov/tests/tests-files/eocep-files/spring-2023-tam/). 

Instructions for students are read aloud by the Test Administrator. The instructions follow 
a script, helping to ensure fidelity of test administration as all students in the state will receive the 
same instruction. Instructions are short, direct sentences with clear, easy to understand language. 
The TAM includes a section on appropriate accommodations for students and documentation 
regarding how approval for use of accommodations is determined.   

Evaluation: USHC Test Administration Procedures.  The TAM clearly describes testing 
instructions, including a listing of steps to be taken before testing, during testing, and after testing. 
Test security procedures are clearly detailed in the TAM and the TAM Appendix includes the 
confidentiality forms to be completed by school/district testing personnel.  Links to report test 
violations are included in the TAM and on the SCDE website. The SCDE website provides easy 
to find information about test security regulations that must be followed during testing 
(https://ed.sc.gov/tests/assessment-information/test-security).The test administration procedures 
are clear and complete. The document provides clear instructions for district/school testing 
personnel to follow. In addition, the TAM provides advice on scenarios which may arise (e.g., 
student getting sick during testing, disruptive students, suspected cheating) and 
recommendations for handling the situation.   

As part of the EOCEP program, the USHC testing adheres to the same procedures as 
other standardized test administrations. Standardized information as detailed above (i.e., use of 
TAM, test coordinators, etc.) helps to ensure that all USHC test takers receive the same 
procedures and conditions, regardless of test format or test window in which the USHC is taken. 
These administration procedures provide clear directives to deliver the USHC end of course 
assessment properly and with fidelity.  Clear, objective information that is followed by all 
district/school testing personnel helps to ensure uniform testing procedures are delivered to all 
USHC examinees across the state. Easily accessible information helps ensure that all testing 
coordinators are well-informed, have appropriate training, and follow relevant security 
procedures. Access to uniform testing procedures can help ensure validity associated with the 
EOCEP and USHC scores for use with accountability and decision making. 

2.4 Summary:  Assessment Systems Operations Related to the 
USHC EOCEP   

The assessment systems operations section evaluates the procedures used to develop and 
administer an assessment such as the test specifications, test blueprint, item development 
procedures and administration procedures.  The SCDE provides clear, easy to understand test 
specifications prominently on their website; the test specifications are provided as a bulleted list, 
along with the test blueprint. The USHC EOCEP test blueprint includes a listing of the content 
areas and cognitive levels to expect; these levels are aligned with the data analyzed from the 
Spring 2022 USHC test administration. Other information, such as sample items, past data 
reviews, and suggestions for teaching/activities are readily available. The materials help students 
and teachers understand what is to be included and how to prepare for the assessment. Test 
administration procedures are clearly documented and defined for testing administrators in the 
TAM.  The detailed instructions support the standardization procedures; uniform directions and 

https://ed.sc.gov/tests/assessment-information/
https://ed.sc.gov/tests/tests-files/eocep-files/spring-2023-tam/
https://ed.sc.gov/tests/assessment-information/test-security


EOCEP: USHC Peer Review  
Page | 14  

 

common materials are provided for all test takers across the state and across time points. In 
summary, the assessment operation procedures for the USHC EOCEP examination align with 
current recommendations for best practices of test development, construction and administration 
(e.g., Bandalos, 2018; Green, 2009; Mertler, 2016). 
  

 
  



EOCEP: USHC Peer Review  
Page | 15  

 

 Section 3 
 

Technical Quality – Validity  
  

 
As stated in the Standards, validity is as defined the degree to which evidence and theory 

support the interpretations of test scores their intended uses. “Validity is, therefore, the most 
fundamental consideration in developing tests and evaluating tests” (AERA, APA, & NCME, 2014, 
p. 11).  Test score validation is the process by which the interpretations associated with test 
scores hold meaning, providing trustworthy information for decision-making events. With the 
EOCEP, these events may include representing an examinee’s level of USHC knowledge, 
evaluating school performance, or comparing relative performance across districts.  Validity is an 
ongoing process, including all aspects of the testing process including design, content area 
specifications, item development, psychometric quality, scoring, and inferences made from the 
results.  

 
Section 3 investigates the technical quality associated with the USHC EOCEP 

examination including evaluation of content, cognitive processes, internal structure, relations to 
other variables, and an assessment of overall validity. Information for this section comes from 
evaluation of SCDE documents and Spring 2022 USHC EOCEP database provided by DRC.   

 
3.1 Overall Validity, Including Validity Based on Content  

 
Content validity entails careful assessment of the items and domains included on an 

examination (Bandalos, 2018). The information helps to ensure that the material included on the 
test is representative of the target domain (i.e., USHC course content).  Careful specification of 
content and review of the items representing the target domain is needed to ensure that the 
information obtained from administering the USHC is relevant (i.e., construct-irrelevant variance 
minimized), with the full range of the construct(s) measured (i.e., construct underrepresentation 
minimized). As noted in the EOCEP Technical Report (DRC, 2022a), the attention paid to the 
USHC test development process and the involvement of South Carolina educators contributes to 
the validity of the assessment.  As an initial content review, alignment of the end of course test 
content was compared with the USHC Standards to review the accuracy of the included test 
content to the guidance provided on the test blueprint materials.    

 
 3.1a. Domain Alignment to Test Blueprint. Item alignment to USHC test blueprint was 
conducted by reviewing the standard descriptions from the Spring 2022 examination and 
matching these to the stated USHC Domain. Item descriptors appeared aligned with content 
areas; no mismatch between descriptor and domain was noted. Items statistics were reviewed to 
determine that the number of items stated, percentage of items to the total test, and standards 
included were in line with the guidance reported in the test blueprint.  
 
 All USHC categories were in line with information reported in the test blueprint in terms of 
domain coverage and percent of total test. Each reporting area assessed all six indicators 
included in the area (100% coverage).  In addition, the number of items on an assessment 
matched the number stated on the blueprint. Each Reporting Category contained 11 items, in 
accordance with the number stated in the test blueprint. Each of the five categories category 
contributed an equal amount of weight to the overall USHC examination, each contributing 20% 



EOCEP: USHC Peer Review  
Page | 16  

 

of the total test content. Each indicator was given one or two items, 11 items per each standard. 
Table 4 summarizes domain coverage of the USHC examination.   
 
Table 4.  EOCEP US History and Constitution: Domain Coverage   

Reporting Category 
(Key Concepts) 

Number 
of 

Indicators   

Percent of 
Domain 

Coverage  

Number 
of Items 

From 
Blueprint 

Number of 
Items per 
Reporting 
Category  

Percentage 
of 

Assessment 

Standard 1:Foundations 
of American 
Republicanism 

6 100% 10-12 11 20% 

Standard 2: Expansion 
and Union 

6 100% 10-12 11 20% 

Standard 3: Capitalism 
and Reform 

6 100% 10-12 11 20% 

Standard 4: Modernism 
and Interventionism 

6 
  

100% 10-12 11 20% 

Standard 5: Legacy of 
the Cold War 

6 100% 10-12 11 20% 

  
 3.1b. Item Formats Included on the USHC Examination. Item formats were examined for 
the different forms administered in Spring 2022.  While there are 55 scored items, Spring testing 
with the USHC examination included 63 items for the “typical” testing scenario (e.g., online), 
where 55 items were operational and eight additional (unscored) items were used to collect field 
test data.  Other forms (e.g., paper/pencil, “emergency” forms for security compromises, etc.) 
include 55 items. The test blueprint notes that a variety of item formats may be used. Table 5 
examines item formats from the USHC Spring 2022 EOCEP.    
 
 The majority of items included on the USHC examination were multiple choice format 
questions, comprising 94% of the spring assessments, for both typical and “other” forms. 
Depending on the time of year that the test was taken, between 4% and 6% of the items were 
technology enhanced.  Evidence based selected response, multiple selection, and drag-and-drop 
items were included under the Technology Enhanced heading. The percentage of the different 
item formats percentages made up between 2% and 5% of a USHC test; for test security, the 
percentage of items for various form administrations is not broken down further.   
 
Table 5. Item Formats Included on USHC Forms 

Item Format Other USHC 
Forms 

Percentage of 
Assessment 

Typical USHC 
Forms 

 

Percentage of 
Assessment 

Multiple Choice   
 

53 96% 59 94% 

Technology 
Enhanced   

2 4% 4 6% 

Total 
  

55 100% 63 100% 

 
 Best practices of test construction state that the correct answer for items should be varied 
across options (e.g., all keyed responses are not A) and should not follow a pattern (e.g., A, B, C, 
A, B, C, etc.) (Green, 2008).  To ensure that best practices of test construction were followed, the 



EOCEP: USHC Peer Review  
Page | 17  

 

correct keyed response for the USHC EOCEP items was investigated for the set of 55-operational 
items used in Spring 2022. For the 55-items, items were varied with each letter (e.g., A) being the 
correct option an equal number of times (less the technology enhanced items). For test security, 
the number of items by response is not revealed, but best practices of test construction were 
followed in construction of the USHC correct responses.   
 
 Evaluation: USHC Domain and Item Format Alignment to Test Blueprint. In sum, 
USHC items align with the Key Reporting Areas noted in the Test Blueprint. The number of items 
by standard was in concordance with the percentage of items to be expected by content domain. 
Each Key Reporting area was given equal weighting to the overall assessment. The correct 
answer was also equally distributed across response options (e.g., A) and varied for the keyed 
response. The test blueprint notes that different item formats may be encountered on the USHC 
end-of-course examination. While the majority of the test is multiple choice, other item types were 
present; the percentages reflect the percentages in the available item pool for the USHC EOCEP 
assessment.  
 
3.2 Validity Based on Cognitive Processes 
  
 As noted from the USHC Standards and Assessment Crosswalk (SCDE, 2023) which 
outlines the similarities/differences between the 2011 and 2019 South Carolina Social Studies 
standards and assessment, the changes made to the revised standards allowed greater 
opportunities for deeper analysis and inquiry. These changes increased the rigor of the standards 
by requiring students to use the six noted historical thinking skills to make broader connections 
between historical events and developments.  
 
 3.2a. USHC Historical Skills and DOK Levels.   The historical thinking skills 
included in the 2019 revised standards ask students to interact with social studies content to 
make comparisons, analyze evidence, or determine patterns of continuity and change. To 
examine the cognitive processes included on the USHC EOCEP assessment, items from the 
Spring 2022 test were examined by skill level. As shown in Table 6, the USHC EOCEP 
assessment includes all six skill areas, with roughly equal weight given to each area. The 
number of items per area ranged between 8 to 10 items, accounting for between 15% to 18% 
of the USHC test.   

 
Table 6. Historical Skill Areas Included on the USHC EOCEP, Spring 2022 
Skill Area Number 

of items 
Percent 

Comparison  9 16% 
Causation 10 18% 
Periodization 9 16% 
Context 8 15% 
Continuities and Changes 10 18% 
Evidence 9 16% 
Total 55   

Note: Percentages may not total 100% due to rounding 
 

The revised Social Studies standards and deeper cognitive levels demonstrated with the 
historical skills resulted in increased cognitive complexity of USHC test items. The testing 
blueprint noted this shift, stating between 0% - 15% of the USHC test items would be at the lowest 
DOK Level (Level 1), between 55% - 75% at Level 2, and between 25% and 45% of items at at 



EOCEP: USHC Peer Review  
Page | 18  

 

the highest DOK level.  As noted in the USHC Standards and Assessment Crosswalk (SCDE, 
2023), no DOK table was included with the 2011 USHC Test blueprint.  Table 7 reports the DOK 
Levels of the items on the Spring 2022 USHC EOCEP assessment. The majority of the items are 
at higher DOK levels. There are only 4% of the items at the lowest level; 96% are at DOK Level 
2 and Level 3 combined.  The majority of USHC items are at DOK Level 2 (75% of items).  
 
Table 7. Depth of Knowledge Levels, Spring 2022 USHC EOCEP Assessment 

DOK Level Number 
of items 

Percentage of  
Assessment 

1 2 4% 
2 41 75% 
3 12 22% 
Total 55  

 Note: Percentages may not total 100% due to rounding 
 
 

Evaluation: USHC Historical Skills and DOK Levels. Overall, the USHC assessment 
test is more rigorous than the past assessment, which is aligned with the more challenging Social 
Studies standards adopted in 2019.  The assessment includes all six historical areas, devoting 
roughly equal attention to each area.  The skill levels for the items are at higher levels (DOK 2 
and 3), challenging students to use skills. This is also noted with the USHC Standards and 
Alignment Crosswalk document (2023), which showed 2011 Social Studies standards and the 
related USHC EOCEP assessment included more skills at lower cognitive levels. The SCDE 
website includes materials for stakeholders to become familiar with the types of test questions at 
different DOK levels, so examinees gain experience with the types of questions posed and 
responses expected. 
 
3.3 Validity Based on Internal Structure 

 
Validity evidence of a measure’s internal structure involves examination of how well test 

items function to measure the construct of interest.  If the items function acceptably as observable 
representations of the construct, then the evidence supports using scores from the instrument. 
Analyses used to support validity focus on the individual items using data from the target 
population to investigate characteristics of individual items and their relation to the total construct. 
This section examines item analysis information for the Spring 2022 USHC EOCEP administration 
database provided by DRC and the 2021-22 EOCEP Technical Report (DRC, 2022a). Item 
statistics were calculated using Classical Test Theory techniques and modern test theory 
techniques under the Rasch measurement model. All item parameters and statistics were 
calculated by DRC. Summaries of item statistics (e.g., mean difficulty values, standard deviations) 
were computed; no additional psychometric analyses were performed.  

 
3.3a. CTT Based Item Analysis. Two Classical Test Theory (CTT) indices were included 

in the dataset: item difficulty and adjusted point-biserial correlation values.  CTT-based item 
difficulty (p) is defined as the proportion of students out of the total number of examinees 
answering an item correctly. Higher p values indicate easier items (i.e., a greater number of 
students selected the correct answer) and low p-values indicate more difficult items.  Items which 
are too difficult (or, conversely, too easy) do not differentiate between low performing and high 
performing students. A difficulty value of p = .5 provides the highest level of differentiation 
(Bandalos, 2018).   

 



EOCEP: USHC Peer Review  
Page | 19  

 

The adjusted point biserial correlation (or item-total test correlation) is a measure of 
association, illustrating how well an item discriminates between high performing and low 
performing examinees. Values are calculated as the correlation between an item’s score 
(correct/incorrect) and the total score, with the item in question removed from the total test score. 
The normal range of point biserial scores for items is –1 to +1, with higher values indicating that 
the item discriminates well between high and low performing students (Bandalos, 2018).  Values 
of the point biserial may be positive, meaning that the item is discriminating appropriately. 
Negative values indicate that the item is not discriminating as intended, illustrating the tendency 
for higher ability students to select an incorrect answer and more of lower ability students to select 
the correct answer. Values that are close to zero or negative may indicate a flawed item. A value 
of zero means that there is no discrimination between high and low ability test takers.  A high 
point-biserial coefficient means that students selecting the correct response are students with 
higher total scores and students selecting incorrect responses to an item tend to have lower total 
scores. In genera adjusted point biserial correlation, values should be at a moderate to higher 
correlation value (e.g., roughly .3 to .5) (Bandalos, 2018). In general, items should not have a low 
discrimination value (e.g., < .20), as this indicates that the item cannot differentiate between 
examinees with high and low ability.  The 2021-22 EOCEP Technical Report states recommended 
psychometric guidelines for including items on a test form (DRC, 2022a). This includes a p-value 
between 0.30 and 0.85 and an adjusted point-biserial correlation greater than 0.20. 

 
Evaluation: CTT Difficulty. The average CTT-base difficulty value across the 55-items 

administered in Spring 2022 was p = .53 (standard deviation = .12), meaning, on average, 
students answered 53% of the EOCEP USHC Spring 2022 items correctly.  This is at a moderate 
difficulty level, with the p-value very close to the value which maximizes differentiation among 
examinees. Figure 1 provides a histogram of difficulty values. USHC items yielded a minimum 
difficulty of p= .31 (i.e., 31% of examinees answering the item correctly) to a maximum of p = .76 
(i.e., 76% of examinees answering the items correctly).  As shown in the figure, the set of Spring 
2022 EOCEP USHC items included a mixture of “harder” and “easier” items. 

 
Item difficulty values were reviewed to determine the number of USHC items that were 

challenging for students, where p <.50.  There were 44% items on the assessment with p-values 
below .50, seen as more challenging items for students (24 of 55 items). Slightly more than half, 
56%, of items that were easier, noted at or above a CTT-based difficulty level of p ≥.50 (31 of 55 
items). The USHC assessment is roughly balanced in terms of item difficulty.   
 



EOCEP: USHC Peer Review  
Page | 20  

 

 
Figure 1.  EOCEP USHC CTT-based Difficulty Values, Spring 2022 

 
 
CTT difficulty values were examined across item format; however, there are relatively few 

technology-enhanced items on the Spring 2022 USHC EOCEP administration. Descriptive 
statistics are provided in Table 8. Technology-enhanced items reported a lower average p-value, 
showing that these items as a set were more difficult than the multiple-choice items, but with much 
larger fluctuation across the set. Overall, the different item formats were roughly equal in terms of 
average difficulty.   

    
Table 8.  Descriptive Statistics for USHC Spring 2022 Difficulty Values, By Item Format 

 
Item Format N Mean 

Standard 
Deviation Minimum Maximum 

Multiple Choice 52 .53 .12 .31 .76 
Technology Enhanced 3 .47 .22 .31 .73 

   
Over the set of 55 EOCEP USHC items administered in Spring 2022, the item difficulty 

values appear to be acceptable, given the purpose of the test.  Average values generally report 
a test of moderate difficulty, with many of the items approximating the midpoint, p=.50, level of 
difficulty.    

 
 
Evaluation: CTT Discrimination.  Across the 55-items USHC administered in Spring 

2022, the average discrimination value was 0.38, illustrating that the set of test items are 
discriminating acceptably between examinees of different ability levels. Generally, USHC 
examinees with lower total test scores chose incorrect responses and higher ability students 
chose correct responses. Adjusted point biserial correlation values ranged from .17 to .54; 
however, most USHC EOCEP item discrimination values are between .35 and .45.  The one item 
with a discrimination of .17 reported a moderate p-value (.52), but one of the item distractors 
reported a (low) positive value, highlighting some inconsistencies in examinee responses. 

 



EOCEP: USHC Peer Review  
Page | 21  

 

 
Figure 2.  Distribution of USHC EOCEP Discrimination Values, Spring 2022  

 
 
 Considering item formats, mean adjusted point biserial values for the technology 
enhanced items were roughly equivalent to those for multiple choice items. Again, it is cautioned 
when interpreting values as few Technology Enhanced items included on any one USHC EOCEP 
form.  
 
 
Table 9.  Descriptive Statistics for USHC Spring 2022 Discrimination Values, By Item 
Format 

 
Item Format 

 
Number Mean 

Standard 
Deviation Minimum Maximum 

Multiple Choice 52 .38 .09 .17 .54 
Technology Enhanced 3 .39 .06 .34 .45 

 
In summary, the USHC items are adequately discriminating between students with higher 

and lower skill levels overall and by item format. The discrimination levels are appropriate for the 
purpose of the assessment and values are in line with other state-wide examinations.     

 
3.3b. Omit Rates and Distractor Analysis.  A distractor analysis for selected response 

questions is an extension of item analysis. Here, we are no longer interested in how test takers 
select the correct answer, but how the distractors function to draw an examinee away from the 
correct answer. This is an important component to distinguish between examinees at varying 
levels of the latent domain. Distractors that are not effective are virtually useless and may provide 
a greater probability to select the correct answer by guessing.   

 
Discrimination indices are calculated to determine if the distractor is selected by enough 

candidates for it to be an attractive alternative. Each distractor has a unique item discrimination 
adjusted point-biserial value used to analyze functioning and (if needed) to alert test developers 
that a distractor may need refined to increase effectiveness. However, instead of expecting a 



EOCEP: USHC Peer Review  
Page | 22  

 

positive, high point-biserial value, a negative correlation is of interest to illustrate students with 
lower ability select the option instead of the correct answer.  Distractors which may be partially 
correct or appeal to higher ability students can be identified.   

 
The omit rate discusses the number of USHC examinees who skipped an item and were 

examined to see if there were items which were “skipped” by many examinees. The 2021-22 
EOCEP Technical Report states that an omit rate five percent or lower (omit ≤ 5%) is used to 
select items for a form.  Items which are skipped by many examinees may be problematic or 
confusing.  
  
  Evaluation: Omit Rates and Distractor Analysis.  The omission rate for USHC items 
was not a concern as omitted counts were low across all 55 items included with the Spring 2022 
administration. The average omission rate was .002% of USHC test examinees, well below DRC’s 
stated criterion.   
  

A distractor analysis was conducted for the Spring 2022 USHC multiple choice items.  Item 
options were examined to see if the three incorrect options yielded negative discrimination, 
accompanied by a positive discrimination value for the correct option.  Every one of the Spring 
2022 USHC multiple choice items reported three negative point-biserial correlations for each of 
the incorrect options and a positive point-biserial correlation for the correct option. This 
information illustrates that the incorrect options were generally selected by USHC EOCEP 
examinees with lower ability levels, and the correct option was selected by generally selected 
examinees with higher ability levels. The USHC items and distractors are functioning according 
to recommendations from best practices of test construction. 

 
3.3c. Rasch item fit statistics: Difficulty Values and Item Fit. DRC uses the Rasch 

measurement model to provide the US History and Constitution item parameter estimates. The 
Rasch model is a general name for a family of modern test theory models which compute the 
probability that an examinee will respond favorably to an item, given characteristics of the item.  
Characteristics are defined as the amount of the latent construct an individual possesses (i.e., 
ability in Rasch terminology) and the hardness of the item (i.e., item difficulty). The Rasch model 
produces scores for each person and each item on a common, interval-level scale (i.e., logit) 
scale.  These common scores are called measures, and the process of putting both ability and 
item difficulty parameters on the same scale is termed calibration.   

 
The Rasch measurement model relates person and item characteristics to the probability 

of choosing a correct response. This model-based approach is popular in the psychometrics field 
when dealing with standardized tests and is used to estimate item parameters, provide an 
estimate of the examinee’s ability (which is then transformed from the raw scale to a scaled test 
score) and to investigate the psychometric properties of items and the test (Baker, 2001).  

 
Rasch item parameters provide a model-based estimate of item difficulty. For 

dichotomously scored (i.e., objective response) items, difficulty is the location on the latent ability 
(termed Theta) variable where an examinee has a 50% chance of answering the item correctly. 
A characteristic of the Rasch model is that all items are thought to have the same item 
discrimination, but varying levels of item difficulty. The difficulty parameter is defined as the point 
on the ability scale (i.e., location on the latent scale, Theta) at which the probability of providing a 
correct response to an item is .5 (or 50%). Difficulty values are typically within the range –3 < = 
difficulty < = +3. (Baker, 2001; Smith & Smith, 2004).  Item difficulty parameters can be interpreted 
relative to ability level. As stated in Baker (2001, p. 34-35) “an item whose difficulty is –1 function 



EOCEP: USHC Peer Review  
Page | 23  

 

better among lower ability examinees while an item with a difficulty value of +1 does best to 
distinguish between examinees functioning at higher ability levels.”  

 
Infit and Outfit are Rasch-based fit statistics which may be used to assess USHC items fit 

to the Rasch model. The fit measures are obtained through the calibration process.  These values 
are useful to examine for USHC items, as items which do not fit the Rasch model (i.e., misfitting 
items) do not produce trustworthy parameter estimates. As stated in the Winsteps user’s manual 
(Linacre, 2006, http://www.winsteps.com/winman/diagnosingmisfit.htm): 

Outfit measures are more sensitive to unexpected observations by persons on items that 
are relatively very easy or very hard for them (and vice-versa).  Infit measures are more 
sensitive to unexpected patterns of observations by persons on items that are roughly 
targeted on them (and vice-versa). 

 
Infit and outfit values can be reported as unstandardized values, standardized values, or 

mean square values; however, generally mean square values are recommended for interpretation 
(Linacre, 2006). Expected values for the mean squares should approximate 1.0. Values greater 
than 1.0 (underfit) indicate unmodeled noise or other sources of variance in the data and may 
degrade measurement. Mean square values less than 1.0 (overfit) indicate that the model predicts 
the data too well and may cause summary statistics to report inflated values. The 2021-22 EOCEP 
Technical Report (DRC, 2022a) notes that the Infit and Outfit mean square values for all items on 
the USHC should be within the acceptable range of 0.7 to 1.3. Items which fall outside of targeted 
bounds are flagged for review by DRC psychometric staff.  

 
Evaluation: Rasch Based Difficulty Indices.  Difficulty (i.e., location) values for the 

Spring 2022 USHC EOCEP objective response items (multiple choice and technology enhanced) 
were evaluated. For the set of USHC items, the mean Rasch difficulty value was .05, meaning 
the set of items was targeted at the average on the latent ability distribution.  As shown in Figure 
3, the difficulty values cover a smaller range of ability levels within ± 1.5, ranging from a minimum 
ability value of -1.37 to a maximum value of 1.45. The majority of items on the EOCEP USHC are 
within a range of ± 0.5, showing that the test items are largely targeted to an average level of 
ability and are not overly difficult for the set of examinees.  

 
Figure 3.  Rasch Difficulty Measures Estimates, USHC EOCEP Spring 2022  

http://www.winsteps.com/winman/diagnosingmisfit.htm


EOCEP: USHC Peer Review  
Page | 24  

 

Examining the distribution of Rasch-based difficulty estimates by half standard deviations, 
roughly 50% of the USHC Spring 2022 EOCEP assessment is targeted to a difficulty level 
between -0.5 to +0.5.  There are four items on the test (roughly 7%) targeted to examinees above 
an ability estimate of 1.0.  This means that the majority of test items are appropriate for students 
with lower to slightly above average ability in USHC.  Table 10 provides a frequency chart, in 
categories of width 0.5, of item location (difficulty) values for the set of 55 objective response 
items on the Spring 2022 USHC assessment. 
 
   
Table 10. Frequency Table of Rasch-Based Difficulty Estimates, Spring 2022 USHC 
EOCEP Items 

Item Location Frequency Percent Cumulative Percent 
-1.5 to -1.0  2 3.6 3.6 
-1.0 to -0.5 11 20.0 23.6 
-0.5 to 0.0 12 21.8 45.5 
0.0 to 0.5 15 27.3 72.7 
0.5 to 1.0  11 20.0 92.7 
1.0 to 1.5 4 7.3 100.0 

Note:  Categories for the frequency table are inclusive of the lower bound. 
   
   

Evaluation: Rasch Based Fit Indices. Table 11 provides the descriptive summary of the 
Rasch Infit and Outfit measures for items on the Spring 2022 data. All items included on the USHC 
EOCEP Spring 22 administration yielded average Infit and Outfit values close to the expected 
value of 1.  All item values were within recommended bounds for the Infit statistic, even for the 
minimum and maximum values. One item demonstrated an Outfit value of 1.60, just slightly 
outside of the recommended cutoff.  Examination of this item shows that it is one of the hardest 
on the USHC Spring 2022 assessment (p = .325, Rasch ability measure = 1.45). All other Outfit 
values were within the recommended bounds set by DRC.  The information indicates that the 
Rasch model provides an acceptable fit to items included on the EOCEP USHC Spring 2022 
assessment. 
 
Table 11. Average Standardized Rasch Fit Indices, USHC EOCEP Assessment Spring 2022  

Rasch Fit 
Index N Mean 

Standard 
 Deviation Minimum Maximum 

Infit 55 1.01 .10 .84 1.33 
Outfit 55 1.02 .16 .76 1.60 

 
 
3.4 Validity based on relations to other variables. 

 
To support validity associated with the USHC EOCEP test score inferences, the test 

scores should associate in meaningful and expected ways to other variables (Bandalos, 2018). 
Different constructs measuring different areas may be related, but should not be too highly related 
to each other, to show that the constructs are distinct (i.e., divergent validity). The relationship 
between the scores from tests measuring different constructs can be assessed through evaluation 



EOCEP: USHC Peer Review  
Page | 25  

 

of correlations among observed scores.  Evaluation of correlation values among measures of 
different constructs (i.e., other EOCEP scores) provides divergent validity evidence. 
 

3.4a Intercorrelations with EOCEP scales.  Correlations between USHC EOCEP test 
scores and other EOCEP content area scores were examined to provide evidence of external 
validity. Intercorrelations between the USHC EOCEP scores and other content areas were 
obtained from the 2021-22 EOCEP Technical Report (DRC, 2022a). Correlation values were 
computed using the combined population of EOCEP examinees, across Fall/Winter, Spring, and 
Summer administrations.  Scores needed to be present on both examinations; therefore, the 
number of examinees included in the calculation varies from roughly 1,300 to just over 4,073 pairs 
of end-of-course examination scores.    

 
Table 12 reports inter-correlations among content areas for examinees taking the USHC 

along with another EOCEP assessment during the 2021-22 academic year. For the available set 
of examinees, the correlation coefficients were in a moderate to high range, showing a 
relationship among scores for a given examinee across content areas.  However, correlation 
values are not excessively high (e.g., .90 or greater), suggesting that the EOCEP assessments 
are measuring different content areas. As noted in the 2021-22 EOCEP Technical Report, 
EOCEP test scores do share a substantial amount of variance, suggesting that a similar trait may 
be measured for examinees, such as general ability (e.g., students scoring high on the USHC 
tended to score similarly in other EOCEP areas) (DRC, 2022a). Overall, the values are sufficient 
to suggest divergent validity of USHC content with other tested areas.  
 
Table 12. Correlations Between USHC and EOCEP Scores, 2021-22 Academic Year 

Algebra 1 
(N=1,326) 

Biology 1 
(N = 4,073) 

English 2 
(N = 3,729) 

0.54 0.74 0.74 
 

3.4b. Consequential Validity.  As test scores are used to make judgements about 
students’ level of content knowledge, a comprehensive view of validity includes an assessment 
about the consequences (intended and unintended) related to the uses of the test scores. When 
evaluating validity evidence, the current viewpoint suggests that test users and test developers 
consider consequential validity (AERA, APA, & NCME, 2014; Messick, 1989). However, unlike 
other indicators of validity, consequential validity has less to do with data analysis and more to do 
with making inferences that scores are appropriately interpreted and used. 

 
To address the intended consequences of the USHC assessment, the purposes of the 

assessments must be clearly specified, helping to ensure that the uses of the USHC scores are 
aligned with the intent of the end of course testing program.  From the SCDE website, the intended 
purposes for USHC scores are clearly stated, showing how the scores should be used and the 
potential impact on various groups of stakeholders.  

 
Table 13. Uses of USHC EOCEP Results, by Users 

User Uses of USHC EOCEP Results 
Students USHC scores contribute to the requirement of passing a high school credit 

course in United States history (20% of course grade). Passing this gateway 
course is required to receive a South Carolina high school diploma.  

Schools and 
Districts 

USHC results are used in the calculation of middle school and high school 
Absolute Ratings and Growth Ratings. 



EOCEP: USHC Peer Review  
Page | 26  

 

 In addition, information regarding how to interpret 2021-22 USHC EOCEP scores are 
provided on the SCDE website. The SCDE provides a very detailed EOCEP User’s Guide 
(https://ed.sc.gov/tests/tests-files/eocep-files/2021-2022-score-report-users-guide/), which 
explains all components included on Individual, School, and District reports.  Sample Individual 
Score reports are provided for stakeholders  (e.g., parents, students, teachers) to review    
(https://ed.sc.gov/tests/tests-files/eocep-files/2021-2022-sample-individual-student-report-
english/) prior to receiving actual reports. For educators interested in additional information, 
professional development opportunities are provided for stakeholders to learn specifically about 
the USHC EOCEP assessment, including how to view, interpret, and use assessment data  
(https://ed.sc.gov/instruction/standards-learning/social-studies/professional-learning-
opportunities/).  

To reduce unintended consequences as well as improper use of scores, score reports include a 
caveat: 

• Consider how conditions for learning, disrupted by the pandemic, may have impacted 
student performance. As a reminder, a single score does not provide a complete or precise 
measure of student achievement. When interpreting results, please take into consideration 
other measures of achievement.    

In summary, the information included on the SCDE website is easily accessible and helps to 
support that the USHC EOCEP scores are appropriately interpreted.   

3.5 Summary: Technical Quality – Validity  
 
 Validity is an essential characteristic of a testing program and is necessary to support the 
meaning and interpretation of scores. The USHC EOCEP provided validity evidence in multiple 
areas.  EOCEP USHC test items, blueprint alignment, and adherence to best practices of item 
construction appear sound. The Test Blueprint accurately represented the percentage of items to 
be expected by content domain, historical thinking skills, and DOK levels. The USHC assessment 
includes 100% domain coverage of each of the five standards, with an equal number of items 
(i.e., percentage of the assessment associated with each standard). 
  
 Investigation of psychometric descriptive information showed that the USHC EOCEP was 
moderately difficult (average p = .53), targeted at an average examinee ability level (average 
ability (theta) measure = .05), and able to discriminate between higher and lower ability 
examinees (average adjusted point-biserial correlation = .38). Distractors for the multiple-choice 
items are functioning as intended to discriminate among students with different levels of USHC 
content knowledge. Practically every USHC item on the Spring 2022 administration met 
psychometric criteria to demonstrate good fit using both classical and modern test theory 
methodology. One USHC item yielded a Rasch-based Outfit estimate of 1.60, and another item 
with a lower discrimination (.17) were the only two items out of the 55 USHC items with values 
slightly outside of recommended bounds. The USHC assessment illustrates acceptable divergent 
validity with other EOCEP forms. The SCDE website provides a wealth of information and 
materials to help stakeholders understand how to use and interpret USHC EOCEP scores, thus 
promoting consequential validity. 
  
 Finally, information regarding testing procedures in the TAM is clear, illustrating detailed 
instructions for conducting the USHC EOCEP assessment from start to finish.  In summary, 
evidence of validity supported by many activities USHC EOCEP Spring 2022 assessment is 
thoughtfully constructed and psychometrically sound.  
 

https://ed.sc.gov/tests/tests-files/eocep-files/2021-2022-score-report-users-guide/
https://ed.sc.gov/tests/tests-files/eocep-files/2021-2022-sample-individual-student-report-english/
https://ed.sc.gov/tests/tests-files/eocep-files/2021-2022-sample-individual-student-report-english/
https://ed.sc.gov/instruction/standards-learning/social-studies/professional-learning-opportunities/
https://ed.sc.gov/instruction/standards-learning/social-studies/professional-learning-opportunities/


EOCEP: USHC Peer Review  
Page | 27  

 

Section 4 
 

Technical Quality – Other    
 

The U.S. Peer Review Critical Elements require review of additional technical aspects 
which support the use of test scores, including examination of reliability evidence, fairness and 
accessibility evidence, and investigation of the full performance continuum, scoring, and use of 
multiple forms. This section provides a review of the critical element areas in the Technical Quality 
– Other category as related to the USHC EOCEP assessment. Information for this section comes 
from evaluation the of Spring 2022 USHC test database, the 2021-22 EOCEP Technical Report 
(DRC, 2022a) and the USHC EOCEP Standard Setting Report (DRC, 2022b).  

   
 

4.1. Reliability 
 

Reliability is defined as the degree to which similar results would be obtained if the testing 
was repeated (Bandalos, 2018). In other words, reliability provides a measure of the consistency 
of test scores if the test were re-administered under similar conditions. A reliability estimate 
provides a measure of the amount of test variance that can be attributed to true score differences; 
the remaining variance is considered to be due to measurement error. Therefore, lowering 
measurement error can contribute to greater accuracy, or higher reliability.    

 
There are different forms of reliability and estimates may be calculated with modern or 

classical test theory methods. The EOCEP Technical Report (DRC, 2022a) describes a variety of 
methods that were used to estimate reliability and error of the Spring 2022 USHC assessment, 
using both classical and modern techniques. In this section, the classical indices of the reliability 
of raw scores and standard error of measurement (SEM) classical indices are discussed. Values 
discussed here were taken from the EOCEP Technical Report (DRC, 2022a); however, the 
technical manual describes additional procedures and supports.   

 
4.1a. Classical Test Theory Reliability Estimates. As the USHC EOCEP is given to one 

group of examinees at one point in time on one occasion, an internal consistency estimate is 
appropriate.  Under the CTT framework, internal consistency provides an estimate of how 
consistently examinees perform across the set of test items under a single test administration. 
DRC estimated internal consistency reliability using Cronbach’s alpha. Estimates can range from 
0 to 1, with higher levels representing greater levels of consistency. For higher stakes 
assessments, Cronbach’s alpha estimates at or above 0.85 are desirable (Bandalos, 2018).   The 
standard error of measurement (SEM) is often estimated along with reliability to provide a 
measure of precision. The values of SEM are a function of the amount of measurement error in 
the testing situation (i.e., 1 – reliability), as well as the amount of variability in the (observed) test 
scores. Smaller SEM values indicate more accurate estimation of an examinee’s ability in the raw 
score metric of the test.  

 
Evaluation: Classical Test Theory Reliability Estimates. USHC EOCEP estimates of 

Cronbach’s alpha and SEM were computed for the Fall/Winter 2021 and Spring 2022 test online 
administrations. Values for both alpha and SEM were estimated for the entire group of test takers 
and subgroups of students by gender, race, students with disabilities, and English Learners. Using 
a .85 alpha value as a cutoff, all but one was above .85. The majority of reliability estimates were 
between .90 - .91 for the USHC and by groups. In the Spring 2022 administration, the alpha value 



EOCEP: USHC Peer Review  
Page | 28  

 

estimated for the English Language Learners subgroup was under the stated cutoff, but at a value 
of .83, was very close to the boundary.   

 
Standard error of measurement values were at roughly the same level for both USHC 

administrations (Fall/Winter and Spring) and across the subgroup reported. SEM values were 
within a narrow range, from 3.15 to 3.38. The close proximity of SEM values shows that the USHC 
scores have roughly the same level of precision across all groupings. The values are low (roughly 
3 points out of 55), demonstrating accuracy (i.e., low levels of little measurement error) associated 
with USHC scores.    
 
4.2.  Fairness and Accessibility 

 
Fairness and accessibility in testing imply that all eligible students are provided with a 

fair test and provided an equal opportunity to participate in assessment. Typically, tests are 
investigated to ensure that the measure performs similarly for different groups of test takers, 
despite differences in personal characteristics. Examinees may be grouped according to 
personal characteristics (e.g. gender) to ensure that the USHC does not give any one group 
an unfair advantage. Here, fairness is examined using differential item functioning (DIF), which 
is discussed in general terms; interested readers can refer to item response theory textbooks for 
more technical information about calculating DIF indices (e.g., Baker, 2001).  Accessibility refers 
to providing an equitable opportunity to participate in the assessment process. This may refer 
to areas such as accommodations, number of assessment periods, and standardized 
procedures. Both areas are discussed in this section.  

 
4.2a. Accessibility.  Many actions related to accessibility have been discussed as part 

of the test development and design process. The design of the test using accessibility supports 
(i.e., universal design principals, standardization and testing administration processes, custom 
forms, allowing accommodations, etc.) have been discussed earlier as part of Section 1 
(Statewide System of Standards & Assessment) and Section 2 (Assessment Systems 
Operations). For example, reviews of item content for bias and alignment, use of a test 
blueprint, clear definitions of standards, and uniform procedures help to ensure that all USHC 
examinees have the same access to and experience with the test as part of the EOCEP 
assessment. All students with documented disabilities with IEPs or 504 Plans must have 
necessary accommodations documented (e.g., extra time) prior to the time of testing.  As noted 
in Section 1, information regarding test accommodations is clearly defined as part of South 
Carolina’s statewide system of assessment. 

 
Evaluation: Accessibility The testing windows are clearly stated on the SCDE website 

(https://ed.sc.gov/tests/tests-files/assessment-information/2021-22-assessment-schedule/), 
allowing students multiple time points to take the assessment.  Students have access to the 
assessment during any semester of the academic year when the US History and Constitution 
course is taken. Teachers and school test coordinators have access to the Testing Windows and 
test schedule, as these are posted on the SCDE website prior to the start of an academic year to 
assist with planning and preparation activities. Multiple time points for taking the assessment and 
testing windows posted well in advance may be considered accessibility measures, as these allow 
access for students to progress to their degree objectives and take the USHC EOCEP 
assessment in a timely manner.  

 
4.2b. Differential Item Functioning. A DIF study examines the actual test performance 

of examinees in different demographic groups for examinees at the same ability level. If 

https://ed.sc.gov/tests/tests-files/assessment-information/2021-22-assessment-schedule/


EOCEP: USHC Peer Review  
Page | 29  

 

examinees with the same ability, but from different groups perform differently, a characteristic 
about the question could be unfairly disadvantaging one group, causing a difference to appear. 
With a DIF analysis, focal and reference subgroups within a category are compared, where 
examinees typically considered as disadvantaged are categorized as the focal group (e.g., 
female, African Americans), and the advantaged examinees are categorized as the reference 
group (males, Caucasian students). 

 
There are multiple tests and indices for DIF reported in the EOCEP Technical Report 

(DRC, 2022a); however the Mantel-Hanzel test is reported here as it was the index included for 
review in the Spring 2022 USHC database. This index is a  standard in the psychometric industry 
for examining DIF (see https://www.winsteps.com/winman/mantel_and_mantel-haenszel_dif.htm 
for more information about how the statistic is calculated in WINSTEPS). As is typical in test 
construction, questions are classified into three categories: A, B, or C, which are termed the 
Educational Testing Service standards. These categories are defined as:   

• Category A contains the questions with little or no difference between the two matched 
groups. DIF is negligible.   

• Category B contains questions with small to moderate differences, and  
• Category C contains the questions with the greatest differences (i.e., moderate to large 

DIF).    
 
DIF analyses typically include a + or – sign to denote how DIF is exhibited. A positive sign 

(e.g., C+, B+) illustrates the presence of DIF favors the focal group (disadvantages reference 
group) where a negative sign (e.g., C-, B-) gives advantage to the reference group (disadvantages 
the focal group).  In other words, positive DIF values mean that the item is more difficult for 
members of the reference group than for those examinees in the focal group, for examinees with 
the same level of ability. An assessment will ideally be comprised of category A items if the test 
pool is sufficient. Category B questions may be used, with preference for items with smaller DIF 
values (all other aspects, including content coverage, etc. equal). Items exhibiting category C 
level DIF should not be used, if possible.   

 
Evaluation: Differential Item Functioning.  For the USHC, DIF was investigated for the 

55 items included in the Spring 2022 administration using following demographic groups. The 
reference group and focal groups are taken from the EOCEP Technical Report (DRC, 2022a). 

• Gender: Two groups are included. The focal group is females; the reference group is 
males. 

• Race/Ethnicity: Six groups are included. The focal groups are students whose 
race/ethnicity is reported as Black, Hispanic, Two or More races, Asian/Pacific Islander, 
American Indian, or Other; the reference group is students whose race/ethnicity is 
reported as White. 

• Disability Status: Two groups are included. The focal group is students identified with a 
disability; the reference group is all others.  

• English Proficiency Status: Two groups are included. The focal group is students 
identified as multilingual or LEP learners; the reference group is all others.  
 
The Technical Report noted that a minimum number of cases was set for both the focal 

group (n = 200) and the reference group (400) to ensure sufficient power to detect differences 
among groups.  A total of seven focal-reference group tests were conducted by: a) Race/ethnic 
(groups of Black, Hispanic, Two or More races, Asian/Pacific Islander vs. White), b) Gender, c) 
English Language Learners, and d) Disability status.  DIF tests among the remaining groups were 
not computed due to low sample sizes.   

https://www.winsteps.com/winman/mantel_and_mantel-haenszel_dif.htm


EOCEP: USHC Peer Review  
Page | 30  

 

The 55 items from the Spring 2022 testing were investigated for DIF across groups. For 
the set of 385 DIF tests (55 USHC items x 7 DIF pairs) no items demonstrated C level DIF and 
only two items demonstrated B level (moderate DIF).  Both DIF tests showing moderate DIF on 
the USHC were found in comparison of students with limited English proficiency and English 
proficient examinees. Table 15 provides a summary of the DIF tests. Roughly 99.5% of the DIF 
tests conducted demonstrated negligible DIF. Considering item format type, no DIF was observed 
for the three constructed response items; any DIF identified was constrained to multiple choice 
items. In summary, USHC EOCEP items did not demonstrate excessive levels of DIF for the 
Spring 2022 items reviewed, with most items showing little DIF.   

 
Table 15.  DIF Investigations USHC Test Items, Spring 2022 

DIF Classification Frequency Percent Cumulative Percent 
A- 85 22.1 22.1 
A+ 298 77.4 99.5 
B- 1 0.3 0.3 
B+ 1 0.3 0.3 

 385 100.0 100.0 
Note: Percentages may not total 100% due to rounding  
 

 
4.3 Full Performance Continuum  

 
To judge impact, the assessment should be able to categorize students into different ability 

levels along the performance continuum, where scores report amount of USHC content 
knowledge examinees possess. These performance levels can be used for a variety of purposes, 
including accountability reporting. DRC and SCDE personnel held a workshop in June 2022 to 
recommend performance standards for the revised USHC EOCEP assessment (DRC, 2022). The 
summer workshop involved 14 educators and stakeholders from across South Carolina. The 
purpose of the meeting was to develop cut scores to divide students into four achievement levels: 
Does Not Meet Expectations, Minimally Meets Expectations, Meets Expectations, and Exceeds 
Expectations. Data evaluated in this section was taken directly from the SC EOCEP USHC 2022 
Standard Setting Technical Report (DRC, 2022b) provided by DRC. The performance level 
descriptors and grade associated grade level(s) are reported in Table 16.  
 

The performance levels are related to a student’s ability, which is estimated by the Rasch 
person measure. Considering that the population of examinee’s ability scores represent a normal 
distribution, this distribution is centered at 0, with lower (negative numbers) representing lower 
than average ability, positive numbers representing higher ability. The larger the number, the 
higher (or lower) the ability estimate. Using the Rasch-calibrated estimates, these raw scores (on 
the Theta metric) may be transformed and categorized for accountability reporting. As the ability 
score is used to create a student’s EOCEP USHC different cut scores produce different letter 
grades. Impact data illustrates the effect of using the “cuts” to determine the percentage of   
EOCEP examinees that would receive a given letter grade. The discussions outlined in the 
Standard Setting Technical Report (DRC, 2022b) detail the procedures used to arrive at the final 
cut scores. 

   
  



EOCEP: USHC Peer Review  
Page | 31  

 

Table 16. Description of USHC EOCEP Performance Level Descriptors, Summer 2022 
PLD Description of USHC EOCEP Performance Level Descriptor 

(PLD) 
Grade 
Level(s) 

Does Not 
Meet 
Expectations 

The student Does Not Meet Expectations as defined by the course 
content standards. The student needs substantial academic 
support to be prepared for and to be on track for college and career 
readiness. 

 
F 

Minimally 
Meets 
Expectations 

The student Minimally Meets Expectations as defined by the 
course content standards. The student needs additional 
academic support to be on track for college and career readiness 

D 

Meets 
Expectations 

The student Meets Expectations as defined by the course content 
standards. The student is on track for college and career 
readiness.  

C & B 

Exceeds 
Expectations 

The student Exceeds Expectations as defined by the course 
content standards. The student is well prepared for college and 
career readiness. 

A 

 
 
Evaluation: Full Performance Continuum.   Detailed information about the cut-score 

process used (i.e., Bookmark Procedure), materials evaluated (e.g., Ordered Item booklets), and 
other information (e.g., discussion rounds, workshop evaluations, etc.) are provided in the 
Standard Setting Technical Report (DRC, 2022b).   The process resulted in four cut scores 
needed divide the latent (USHC) ability distribution into letter grades.  Using information from 
discussions over three rounds of the Bookmarking procedure, educators constructed cut-scores 
for the ability distribution of USHC EOCEP examinees.  As five “grades” are needed (A, B, C, D, 
F), four cut-points (i.e., cut-scores) in the ability distribution were required.   

 
Table 17 provides the cut-score estimates.  Ability estimates range from negative infinity 

to positive infinity, thus no minimum for a grade of “F” is needed. As expected, the higher the 
performance level, the higher the students’ estimated ability.  Ability estimates were lower than 
average (i.e., ability = 0) only for the lowest performance levels (F and D). Ability estimates higher 
than average are needed for B and A “grades”, with a grade of C close to the average level ability 
of 0. Overall, the USHC EOCEP ability estimates appear to be acceptable to distinguish between 
USHC examinees at different ability levels.   
 
 
Table 17.  Cut Scores on the Ability Scale Associated Grade, USHC Spring 2022  

USHC EOCEP Ability Distribution Cut-Scores 
F/D D/C C/B B/A 

-0.1584 0.2286  0.8355 1.3325 
Note: cut-scores based on the (unstandardized) Rasch Person-measure metric 

 
 
To examine impact, the percentage of USHC examinees falling into the Meets + Exceeds 

level (i.e., grade of C or higher) was examined. Table 18 provides the percentages of USHC 
EOCEP examinees in each category. While test scores fall along the performance continuum, 
only 40% of USHC examinees reached the Meet + Exceed level; roughly 60% of examinees at a 
D or an F level.  As the USHC EOCEP Spring 2022 test scores were not included with a student’s 
end-of-course grade, some students may not have expended as much effort with the testing 
situation as they would have done if the test score contributed 20% to the final course grade.  

 



EOCEP: USHC Peer Review  
Page | 32  

 

Table 18. Impact Data for South Carolina USHC EOCEP, Spring 2022 
PLD Does 

not 
Meet 

Minimally  Meets Exceeds Meets + 
Exceeds 

 

Letter 
Grade 

F D C B A Percentage 
C or Higher 

 

Percentage 40.6% 18.8% 18.4% 19.0% 15.0% 40.7%  
 

After review by the SCDE and approval by the Superintendent of Education, the final cut 
scores providing the percentage of students per category were recommended for use by the 
SCDE starting with the 2022-23 administration of the USHC examination. These cut scores 
appear to be appropriate for distinguishing among USHC examinees. However, re-examination 
may be useful once the USHC EOCEP assessment is included as part of the overall course grade. 

 
 

4.4 Scoring 
 
 The Rasch measurement model is used to estimate an examinee’s placement on the 
ability continuum; however, these values may not be easily interpreted by stakeholders. For 
example, negative ability values and/or values that appear small may be misinterpreted. To 
produce EOCEP scores which were more meaningful to stakeholders, the ability estimates are 
transformed to scale scores. The scale was chosen so that it was not tied to a particular 
assessment and allowed comparison across tests within the state’s EOCEP. 

 
The score metric used in the EOCEP was determined by the SCDE. To facilitate 

interpretation, the range of scale scores was set to have a minimum score of 0 and maximum 
score of 100. Additionally, the scale is constructed so that each standard letter grade of A, B, C, 
D, and F corresponds to the South Carolina grading scale with scale score values of 90, 80, 70, 
60, and 50 for letter grades of A through F, respectively.  

 
In addition to the total test score, students receive information on their performance in 

each EOCEP Reporting Category.  For the USHC, these are the five Social Studies standards 
identified on the USHC test blueprint as Key Reporting Areas.  An examinee’s performance level 
is reported for each area in terms of Low, Middle, or High performance; these levels are based 
on an examinee’s performance on the subset of items that assess the standard.  

 
4.4 Evaluation: Scoring. The scoring metric used for EOCEP scale scores ranging from 

0 to 100 aligns well with “traditional” expectations of testing.   Documentation regarding the USHC 
assessment clearly states how the scale scores should be interpreted using the performance level 
descriptors, letter scores, and numerical scores (https://ed.sc.gov/tests/tests-files/eocep-files/pld-
user-guide-ushc/ ).  The information is presented in a clear and easy to understand format: 

• Does Not Meet corresponds to a scale score in the range of 0-59 (F).  
• Minimally Meets corresponds to a scale score in the range of 60-69 (D).  
• Meets correspond to a scale score in the range of 70-89 (B/C).  
• Exceeds corresponds to a scale score in the range of 90-100 (A)  

 
An example of how to interpret student performance in the Key Reporting areas is 

provided. In sum, the scoring information presented in the Standard Setting Technical Report 
(DRC, 2022b) is clear for stakeholders to understand the relationship between the Rasch scores, 
how these are transformed to scale scores, and the meaning of the scores in multiple forms.  

https://ed.sc.gov/tests/tests-files/eocep-files/pld-user-guide-ushc/
https://ed.sc.gov/tests/tests-files/eocep-files/pld-user-guide-ushc/


EOCEP: USHC Peer Review  
Page | 33  

 

 
The EOCEP Technical Report (DRC, 2022a) provides a summary of the total test scale 

scores across the three administrations of the USHC examination held during the 2021-22 
academic year.  The distribution of USHC scores in scaled format is shown in Table 19. As shown, 
these align with other information presented earlier, showing an average score of 65 (Minimally 
Meets/D range) and a distribution of USHC scale scores skewed toward the lower end of the 
score distribution.  
 
 
Table 19. Distribution of Scale Scores, USHC EOCEP 2021-22 academic year 

    Percentile 

 
Examinees Mean 

Scale Score 
Std. Deviation 
Scale Score 10th 25th 50th 75th 

 
99th 
 

USHC 53,055 65.08 19.67 40 50 63 81 100 
 
 

Overall, the information regarding the scoring was acceptable for the USHC EOCEP. The 
ability level raw scores are thoughtfully transformed to align with stakeholders’ expectations and 
information relating scaled scores to performance level descriptors is useful for interpretation of 
skills. The letter grades and numerical scores are helpful to understand examinee performance 
with a scale aligned to the South Carolina grading scale. The USHC scoring information is found 
to be reasonable for the EOCEP assessments and administrations. Scoring information converts 
students’ scores to multiple formats, including scaled scores, letter scores, PLDs, and Reporting 
Area categorizations. These different formats are useful for a variety of purposes and may be 
interpreted by many different stakeholder groups.   
 
 
4.5 Multiple versions of an assessment 

 
To adhere to test security directives, multiple forms of the USHC EOCEP are administered 

during a testing situation. As noted earlier, DRC uses the Rasch measurement model to calibrate 
ability and item difficulty parameters on the same scale is termed calibration. Use of the Rasch 
model for calibration has many advantages, when assumptions behind the method are met. 
These include aspects such as: mapping persons and items onto the same scale, one-to-one 
mapping of raw number correct scores to Rasch estimates of ability, the ability to handle missing 
items, and availability of diagnostic statistics to evaluate the model and data fit (Bond & Fox, 2007; 
Wright & Stone, 1979). The Rasch model is often used for large scale standardized test programs, 
such as the EOCEP.  

 
 After Rasch calibration, scores on the different USHC forms can be linked and equated.  

Linking and equating are related, but different, processes. Equating is the process of adjusting 
scores on forms so forms can be used interchangeably (Kolen & Brennan, 2004). Linking is the 
mechanism that establishes the comparability between tests.  All equated scores can be placed 
on one scale.  

 
Beyond test security, providing multiple versions of an assessment provides an 

opportunity for field testing new items. For the 2021-2022 administrations of the USHC 
examination, field test items were added to the Spring 2022 assessments. Multiple forms of the 



EOCEP: USHC Peer Review  
Page | 34  

 

USHC were administered in Spring 2022, with additional field test items of many different item 
formats (e.g., multiple choice, drag-and-drop, etc.) tested.   

 
Evaluation: Multiple Assessment Forms. The EOCEP Technical Report (DRC, 2022a) 

provides a detailed check of assumptions underlying the Rasch model. Examination of item 
parameters for Infit, Outfit, Dimensionality (to ensure that one primary dimension is assessed), 
and Local Independence using an analysis of residual correlations (to ensure that no remaining 
variance is left to explain after extracting the primary dimension) are detailed. Checks on 
assumptions are necessary to provide assurance that the Rasch model fits the USHC 
data/persons acceptably and that information generated from the Rasch model is trustworthy for 
interpretation and use in decision-making.  

 
After providing evidence that the underlying assumptions of the Rasch model were met, 

the EOCEP Technical Report (DRC, 2022a) details the multiple steps used for linking and 
equating across EOCEP test forms using a smaller set of linking items. The EOCEP equating 
design used a network of loops (Wright & Stone, 1979) to connect multiple forms through sets of 
common items.  This design allows for verification of link coherence, meaning that the linking 
parameter used provides stable estimates. Steps to conduct the equating procedures are 
presented in a series of 12 statements which outline the decision-making process and provide 
specific guidance if steps in the process are not met (e.g., determine robust Z statistics if needed). 
The steps in the equating process are broken into small pieces, providing clear instructions in the 
EOCEP Technical Report (DRC, 2022a) to show stakeholders how the test equating procedures 
are conducted by DRC. Concerning the USHC, the EOCEP Technical Report (DRC, 2022a) notes 
that standard setting was to be conducted after the Spring 2022 administration and that later 
administrations of the USHC will conduct post-equating checks to ensure adequacy of the 
process.  

 
The USHC EOCEP Spring 2022 assessment included 20 different forms each with 63 

items (total of 1,260 items administered). From these forms eight field test items were included 
along with the 55 operational USHC items.  Of the 1,260 USHC items administered across the 
different forms seen by examinees, the majority of items (used with 1,180 items or roughly 94% 
of items administered). Technology enhanced formats accounted for a smaller amount of the total 
at 80 items (roughly 6% of USHC items administered). Technology-enhanced formats included 
46 Drag and Drop (DRD) items (3.7% of total items across forms), 29 Multiple Selection (MS) 
items (2.3% of total items across forms), and five Evidence Based Selected Response (EBSR) 
items (0.4% of total items across forms). Figure 4 provides a breakdown of all the items 
administered across the 20 different USHC forms used in Spring 2022. It is noted that 55 items 
across the forms are duplicated (1,110 items); however, further breakdowns were not conducted 
to help promote test security. 

 
 

4.6 Summary: Technical Quality -Other 
 

 Other technical aspects provide additional evidence to support the usefulness and 
meaningfulness of test scores. The information provided in this section showed that the USHC 
EOCEP Spring 2022 assessment provides consistent scores with an acceptable level of 
accuracy. Accessibility and fairness are apparent through many different sources of evidence, 
such as universal design procedures for constructing items, bias and sensitivity reviews of 
content, availability of custom formats and accommodations.  There is minimal differential item 



EOCEP: USHC Peer Review  
Page | 35  

 

functioning present between subgroups, with only two items exhibiting moderate DIF. These two 
items relate to English Language learner and native English speaker differences.  Item wording  
 
   

 
Figure 4. Item Formats included on the Spring 2022 Multiple forms, by Item Type 
 
 
 
for all components (e.g., stem and distractors) can be examined to ensure that no bias or 
confusing wording is present. Multiple USHC EOCEP test forms were provided in Spring 2022 to 
adhere to test security, where most items utilize a multiple-choice format. 

 
The Standard Setting Technical Report (DRC, 2022b) provides detailed information 

regarding the workshops used to construct cut-points for performance levels. The cut-points relate 
in a meaningful way to the letter grades. While USHC examinees fall along the performance 
continuum, a majority of the Spring 2022 USHC EOCEP students did not meet or only minimally 
met USHC standards. This may be due to the Spring 2022 test not contributing to the overall 
grade with the first administration of the new USHC EOCEP examination. The Standard Setting 
Technical Report clearly details the decision-making steps and processes conducted during the 
standard setting process. Overall, the information provides additional technical support to 
enhance validity associated with the USHC scores.   
 
  

1180
Multiple Choice

46
Drag & Drop

5
Evidence Based 29

Multiple Selection

MC DRD EBSR MS



EOCEP: USHC Peer Review  
Page | 36  

 

Section 5 
 

Inclusion of all students 
 

As detailed earlier, all students, including those with a current IEP or 504 Accommodation 
Plan, enrolled in the U.S. History and the Constitution course must participate in the USHC 
EOCEP. The EOCEP Technical Report (DRC, 2022a) detailed many different groups of students 
that participated in the 2021-22 academic year’s three assessment periods (Fall/Winter, Spring, 
or Summer administrations). Over 53,000 students took the assessment, encompassing a diverse 
assortment of students from a wide variety of ethnic/racial groups, IEP status, gifted learner 
status, 504 plans, and level of English proficiency.   

 
Previous sections of the report have detailed many efforts put forth by the SCDE and DRC 

to include all students in the EOCEP testing.  Careful attention was used when constructing the 
USCH, where test developers were attentive to aspects of inclusion throughout the processes of 
test design, test construction and item writing.  In addition, after administration of the USHC, data 
were reviewed by DRC and the SCDE to examine items for differential item functioning and lack 
of fit to the Rasch model.  These activities help to construct a USHC EOCEP assessment that is 
inclusive of all students.  In this section a few additional inclusion activities are detailed.  Data for 
these analyses came from archival sources posted on the SCDE website and the EOCEP 
Technical Report provided by DRC (2022a).  

 
5.1 Including Students with Disabilities   

 
Students who are not able to participate in the same manner as other students or with 

accommodations, may be eligible for the alternative assessment.  IEP teams are provided 
guidance regarding student eligibility for the EOCEP (https://ed.sc.gov/tests/assessment-
information/testing-swd/). The information available on the SCDE website details procedures for 
testing students with IEPs including allowable accommodations, training information for test 
administrators, information regarding testing materials, and access to a frequently asked 
questions page. The South Carolina Accessibility Support Document is also provided on the 
SCDE website (https://ed.sc.gov/tests/tests-files/students-with-disabilities/accessibility-support-
document/) to assist educators when testing students with disabilities. 

  
 
5.2. Procedures for Including English Language Learners 
 
   As with other EOCEP assessments, the USHC assessment is not available in languages 
other than English. While the test must be taken in English, appropriate accommodations for 
English Language Learners are available, where a student’s need and eligibility for testing 
accommodations is based on multiple sources of evidence (e.g., English fluency level, teacher 
judgment, other accommodations used in the classroom). The SCDE website provides 
documentation for stakeholders to examine the means for determining student eligibility for 
accommodations and guidance on selection of appropriate accommodations for English 
Language Learners, including guidance on oral administration  (https://ed.sc.gov/policy/federal-
education-programs/esea-title-iii/).  

 
 

https://ed.sc.gov/tests/assessment-information/testing-swd/
https://ed.sc.gov/tests/assessment-information/testing-swd/
https://ed.sc.gov/tests/tests-files/students-with-disabilities/accessibility-support-document/
https://ed.sc.gov/tests/tests-files/students-with-disabilities/accessibility-support-document/
https://ed.sc.gov/policy/federal-education-programs/esea-title-iii/
https://ed.sc.gov/policy/federal-education-programs/esea-title-iii/


EOCEP: USHC Peer Review  
Page | 37  

 

5.3. Customized Materials and Formats   
 

To be inclusive to all students, the EOCEP assessments are available in a variety of 
materials formats. These include customized materials, such as Braille and Large Print materials. 
Accommodations recommended by a student’s IEP or 504 plan are also available during testing. 
As noted in the EOCEP Technical Report (DRC, 2022a), a variety of accommodations were used 
by USHC students over the 2021-22 academic year testing timepoints. Information from the 
EOCEP Technical Report detailing the Customized Materials and Accommodations used with the 
USHC EOCEP during the 2021-22 testings is detailed in Table 19.  
 
Table 19. Customized Formats and Accommodations Used, 2021-22 USHC EOCEP 
Administrations (N = 53,055)  

Custom Format N Percentage Accommodations N Percentage 
Braille 1 0.00 Setting 1,411 2.66 
Sign Language signed 
administration 

7 0.01 
Timing 

106 0.20 

Large print 8 0.02 Scheduling 16 0.03 
Oral administration 1,342 2.53 Response Options 5 0.01 
   Presentation 32 0.06 
   Supplemental 

Materials 
16 0.03 

Note: Number of test forms for Accommodations estimated from percentage reported in the 2021-2022 Technical 
Report. 
 
 Evaluation: Inclusion of All Students.  Considering the areas described above in 5.1, 
5.2, and 5.3, the USHC EOCEP strives to include all eligible students in the assessment process. 
Information presented on the SCDE website is easy to find and clearly states information needed 
to assist educators and IEP team members identify which students are eligible for the testing and 
what accommodations are allowed.  Custom formats and accommodations provided by DRC were 
used during the 2021-22 academic year, showing that these methods are needed by some USHC 
EOCEP test takers for inclusion in the testing program.  
 
 
5.4 Summary: Inclusion of Students 
 

The procedures used to create the USHC EOCEP and documentation to assist educators 
with understanding accommodations and student eligibility for the assessment are thoughtfully 
constructed. The process was designed to be sensitive to and recognize all students’ needs and 
be inclusive of all students with the USHC EOCEP assessment. 
  



EOCEP: USHC Peer Review  
Page | 38  

 

Section 6 
 

Achievement Standards and Reporting 
 

  
Standard setting is the process used to construct cutoff scores for an assessment (Cizeck 

& Bunch, 2006). For the USHC EOCEP, standard setting refers to the process to develop the 
scores aligned with the performance level descriptors (PLDs) which categorize students into 
ordered groups according to the amount of content knowledge possessed.  This section reviews 
the standard setting procedures used to develop the cut-scores for the USHC EOCEP. Some 
information regarding standard setting was presented earlier in the discussion of impact (Section 
4).  Data for this section come from the SC USHC EOCEP 2022 Standard Setting Technical 
Report provided by DRC (2022b).    
  
6.1. Standard Setting for the USHC EOCEP 
 

Given the 2019 adoption of revised Social Studies standards and the subsequent revision 
of the USHC EOCEP assessment, new cut scores were needed to categorize examinees 
according to their amount of content knowledge.  DRC and the SCDE collaborated on the USHC 
standard setting process. In June 2022, a two-day Standard Setting workshop was held; 
attendees included educators from around the state, DRC personnel, and SCDE staff. Fourteen 
teachers from across South Carolina participated in the workshop.  

 
 As stated in the Standard Setting Technical Report (DRC, 2022b), the objective for the 

workshop was to use the revised USHC materials and create cut-scores which would categorize 
examinees into performance levels aligned with the Profile of the South Carolina graduate.  These 
performance levels descriptors are based on the amount of USHC content knowledge possessed 
by an examinee; the PLDs are stated below:  
 

• Does Not Meet Expectations. The student Does Not Meet Expectations as defined by the 
course content standards. The student needs substantial academic support to be 
prepared for and to be on track for college and career readiness.  

• Minimally Meets Expectations. The student Minimally Meets Expectations as defined by 
the course content standards. The student needs additional academic support to be on 
track for college and career readiness.  

• Meets Expectations. The student Meets Expectations as defined by the course content 
standards. The student is on track for college and career readiness.  

• Exceeds Expectations. The student Exceeds Expectations as defined by the course 
content standards. The student is well prepared for college and career readiness.  

 
 
The Bookmark Procedure (Lewis, Mitzel, & Green, 1996) was used to conduct the 

Standard Setting.  To create cut-points, workshop participants became familiarized with the USHC 
standards, the PLDs, and the skills that students with a certain level of competency should 
demonstrate at each performance level. Using an ordered item booklet (i.e., book of USHC test 
items ordered by item difficulty), participants placed a “bookmark” at the place that separated 



EOCEP: USHC Peer Review  
Page | 39  

 

students with different levels of competency according to the PLDs.  Cut scores are created on 
the ability scale provided by the Rasch model; these cut points have an associated level of 
precision (i.e., standard error or measurement) associated with the ability value. As detailed in 
Section 3, under the Rasch measurement model, items are targeted to various levels on the ability 
scale, with some items more (or less) difficult for students at different ability levels. The probability 
of a correct response on an item can be plotted as a function of the ability of persons (e.g., item 
characteristic curve) given the item parameters. The first derivative of an item characteristics 
curve produces an item information curve. Item information curves peak at the item difficulty 
value, with less information provided by the item for those ability levels farther from the item 
difficulty value. For example, a very difficult item will provide little information for examinees with 
low ability because the item is already too hard and most examinees with low ability will get the 
item incorrect.  

 
Item information functions may be summed across all the test to provide a measure of test 

information. Like item information, test information function shows which ability levels the test is 
targeted toward. The inverse of the test information function is known as the conditional standard 
error of measurement (CSEM). Like SEM, the CSEM value provides an estimate of the amount 
of measurement error. However, CSEM estimates can vary along the ability continuum, as some 
ability levels may be estimated with more precision (i.e. more information) than others. CSEM 
values are lower (i.e., more precision) when more information is present.  

 
After the “bookmark” was placed, participants discussed the procedures and decisions 

leading to the cut-score placement. Three rounds of bookmarking were conducted; after each 
round, DRC staff used Spring 2022 USCH data to present impact findings and CSEMs for 
discussion. The SCDE also considered results of other assessments and policy implications 
before editing the final cut scores. Information from the discussions and data were used to adjust 
cut-points, as needed. The final cut scores created at the June 2022 Standard Setting workshop 
are noted in Table 20.  

  
Table 20.  PLD Cut Scores and CSEM Values, USHC EOCEP June 2022  
 Minimally Meets Meets Exceeds 
Ability 0.011 0.451 1.333 
CSEM 0.282 0.286 0.328 

 
 
  The standards set by the June 2022 committee were also transformed to the “letter” 

grades associated with the South Carolina letter grading scale. Table 21 provides the cuts in the 
theta distribution as noted in the DRC (2022b) Standard Setting Technical Report.  From the table, 
the A level remained similar to the Exceeds cut score and the C level was similar to the Meets cut 
score noted in Table 20; however, additional detail was added to create a cut on the ability curve 
at the F/D threshold and the C/B threshold.  
 
 
Table 21. USHC EOCEP Letter Grading Scale Cut cores and Impact Data, June 2022 

 Cut Scores Impact Data 
 F/D D/C C/B B/A F D C B A 
Ability -0.1584 0.3386 0.8355 1.3325 40.56 18.78 14.77 10.97 14.62 

 
 

 



EOCEP: USHC Peer Review  
Page | 40  

 

Evaluation: Standard Setting. The USHC EOCEP Standard Setting Technical Report 
provided by DRC (2022b) provides a clear description of the standard setting processes, including 
a description of how to use the Bookmark method, description of CSEMs, and a discussion of the 
processes used by the participants. The Bookmark procedure was used to create cut-scores; this 
method is the most common method used and is widely accepted as representing best practice 
when conducting standard setting procedures. Cut-scores were created carefully, with multiple 
rounds of discussion and investigation of Spring 2022 USHC assessment data to examine the 
effect of the cut-point, investigate precision associated, and allow for fine tuning of the cut score 
placement. The procedures are well-documented and clear to understand the step-by-step 
procedures used by the SCDE and DRC.  
 
 The cut score values created in the standard setting workshop appear to be appropriate 
given the purpose of the USHC EOCEP. Values of the cut scores are not excessively high (nor 
low) on the ability distribution, with the Minimally Meets level set around the average of the ability 
distribution and Meets less than an ability level of 0.5. These levels are acceptable for the purpose 
of the USHC.  The impact data shows the effect of the cut scores with the Spring 2022 USHC 
EOCEP assessment. As noted previously, the large percentage of “F” scores may be due to other 
factors (e.g., test not counting, lag from the pandemic) as well some lower scores appearing as 
the revised standards have also precipitated a change for teachers. In summary, the Standard 
Setting procedures produced acceptable scores to categorize USHC examinees into performance 
levels based on the level of content knowledge displayed. 
 
6.2 Reporting 

 
Score reports communicate the meaning of the test scores to various groups of users 

(e.g., educators, teachers, students and parents).  The data from USHC EOCEP is used for a 
variety of purposes and by a variety of users; each stakeholder group needs to be able to clearly 
understand and interpret the information provided by assessment.  A clear score report is 
essential to relay this information. 

 
In terms of expecting the score reports, the 2022 EOCEP TAM provided a timeline for 

receipt of the EOCEP assessment Score Reports. The Assessment Schedule provides the date 
of delivery of data and paper reports to schools.  Both documents are available on the SCDE 
website.  To assist in interpretation of scores, the SCDE (2021) provides the EOCEP Score Report 
User’s Guide (https://ed.sc.gov/tests/tests-files/eocep-files/2021-2022-score-report-users-guide/) 
which details information included in the various types of reports available for Individual Students, 
School Level, and District Level as well as which are delivered in Paper Reports or Electronic 
Score format.    
  

The reports presented in the User’s Guide include clear, detailed explanations (SCDE, 
2021), providing information to assist with interpreting components of the report such as: 1) Scale 
scores (from 0 to 100), 2) Letter grade and the associated student performance level (with both 
letter and PLDs), and Student Performance on Reporting Areas (categorized as Low, Middle, or 
High, based on the subset of items that assess the standard). Sample reports are provided for 
each score report, with statistics and essential report elements numbered and explained.  Where 
appropriate, descriptive statistics (e.g., Standard Deviation, Mean, Median, and Highest/Lowest 
Scale Score) are defined and an example is included to aid in interpretation.   
 

Evaluation: Achievement Standards and Reporting.  The SCDE website includes 
sufficient information to let USHC test users know when reports will be expected and provides a 
variety of reports to assist users with understanding and interpreting the information. The EOCEP 

https://ed.sc.gov/tests/tests-files/eocep-files/2021-2022-score-report-users-guide/


EOCEP: USHC Peer Review  
Page | 41  

 

2022 Test Administrator’s Manual (SCDE, 2022) details when preliminary scores can be 
expected; however, as the USHC test was not used in course grades, this assessment was not 
included in the 2021-22 Testing Schedule. It is assumed that USHC information will be included 
in the state testing schedule beginning in 2023-34 when the USHC EOCEP assessment is 
included as 20% of a student’s grade.  
  

The sample score reports included in the EOCEP Score Report User’s Guide are very 
detailed and very easy to read and understand. The sample reports show stakeholder groups 
what to expect, definitions, and where to find the important components that are associated with 
the different types of reports generated. The User’s Guide provides clear instructions on how to 
read the reports and where to find relevant information and are even documented with examples 
to help with interpretation of the information in context.  All EOCEP reports templates are clear to 
understand, are colorful and engaging to read, with adequate spacing, and explanations in clear 
language. The User’s Guide (SCDE, 2022) provides the information necessary for stakeholders 
to familiarize themselves with the USHC EOCEP and to understand how read the EOCEP reports 
and to interpret the information.  This information is easy to find and to access from the SCDE 
website.   

 
 

6.3 Summary: Achievement Standards and Reporting 
 
The overall purpose of reporting test results is to communicate information about student 

performance to stakeholders. For the USHC EOCEP assessment, the achievement standards 
were created using a widely used procedure (i.e., Bookmark Procedure) with direction from a set 
of target stakeholders (i.e., South Carolina educators familiar with USHC standards and 
population). The Standard Setting Technical Report (DRC, 2022b) is very clear and easy to read, 
expressing discussions and details from the workshop. The achievement standards (PLDs) 
created make sense given the purpose of the USHC assessment. Final cut-scores from the USHC 
EOCEP will go into practice for the 2023-24 academic year.  It is hoped that a reexamination of 
data will occur when the USHC EOCEP is included as 20% of a student’s classroom grade, that 
the impact data will have fewer ratings at the low end of the PLD/letter grade scale.   

 
The score reports provided on the SCDE website are useful to aid the user in 

understanding the meaning of the test scores. The reports and supplementary information 
developed by DRC are in alignment with best practices of the testing industry. The score reports 
are detailed, informative, yet also easy to read and comprehend.  The information presented 
supports the use of the achievement standards and the score reports to assist test users and 
stakeholders. 
 
 
 
 
  



EOCEP: USHC Peer Review  
Page | 42  

 

Summary and Recommendations 
 
 This report summarized the results from the Spring 2022 operational testing of the South 
Carolina End of Course Educational Program, US History and Constitution examination (EOCEP 
SCDE). The EOCEP US History and Constitution course is a requirement for students seeking a 
high school diploma from South Carolina. The USHC EOCEP test scores serve multiple uses: 
contributing a sizable (20%) part of of a student’s course grade, is used for school report card 
presentations, and for local and federal accountability purposes. This evaluation of the USHC 
EOCEP followed the U.S. Peer Review list of critical elements to review the processes associated 
with the USHC testing situation, from its start with the policy documentation to the score reports 
provided to end users. Overall, the USHC EOCEP is well constructed; any suggestions provided 
below are minor.  Based on the evaluation, the following recommendations are provided. 
  
1. Statewide System of Standards and Assessment 

 
The SCDE website provides detailed information about the EOCEP and the USHC as part 

of this testing program.  Information and resources about the purpose and uses of the testing 
program and the USHC are readily and easily accessible on the SCDE website. 

 
 

2. Assessment Systems Operations Related to the USHC EOCEP   
 
Information regarding the USHC test specifications is clear, easy to understand, and 

easy to access assessment prominently. USHC standards to be assessed, test blueprint, 
domain coverage, and skill levels as well as resources (e.g., sample items, past data reviews, 
and suggestions for teaching/activities) are readily available to assist stakeholders with test 
preparation. The Test Administrator’s Manual provides detailed instructions to support test 
security and standardization.   
 
 
3. Technical Quality – Validity  
 
 The USHC includes test items that are constructed through adherence to industry best 
practices. Items used in the Spring 2022 testing program met psychometric criteria to demonstrate 
good fit using both classical and modern test theory methodology. Consequential validity is 
addressed through providing information and materials to help stakeholders understand how to 
correctly interpret USHC EOCEP scores and how scores may be used.  
 
Recommendation: The two USHC EOCEP items outside of recommended bounds (e.g., 
one item with an Outfit greater than 1.3 and item with a discrimination value under .20) 
may be examined in future administrations. 
 
 
4. Summary: Technical Quality – Other  

 
The USHC EOCEP Spring 2022 assessment provided consistent scores which 

demonstrated acceptable precision. Attention toward accessibility and fairness are apparent 
through many different sources of evidence, such as universal design procedures for constructing 
items, bias and sensitivity reviews of content, availability of custom formats and accommodations, 
and minimal differential item functioning across examinee subgroups.  The standard setting 



EOCEP: USHC Peer Review  
Page | 43  

 

procedures and cut points relate ability scores in a meaningful way to the letter grades and 
performance level descriptors.  

 
 

5. Inclusion of Students 
  

The procedures used to create the USHC EOCEP, customized forms were developed to 
be sensitive to and recognize all students’ needs and be inclusive of all students. Related 
procedures are clearly documented to assist with questions regarding accommodations and 
needs of specific student populations. 
 
 
6. Achievement Standards and Reporting 

 
The achievement standards and related cut-scores created from the standard setting 

workshop are appropriate given the purpose of the USHC EOCEP assessment.  The process 
used to create cut-scores aligned with best-practices and documentation of the process showed 
how the standards were set. Score reports and supplementary information is readily available for 
stakeholders to gain additional information about the different types of score reports and score 
interpretations with materials that are detailed, informative, yet also easy to read and 
comprehend. Impact data from the Spring 2022 assessment showed that 60% of USHC EOCEP 
examinees did not meet or minimally met course standards; however, some of this discrepancy 
may be due to the uniqueness of the testing situation (i.e., new instrument, change to the revised 
standards, waiver of requirement that the USHC scores count 20% of the course grade)  

 
Recommendation: Conduct a reexamination of the ability levels associated with cut-scores 
and impact data when the USHC EOCEP is included as 20% of a student’s course grade.  

 
 
Overall, the EOCEP US History and Constitution Spring 2022 resources evaluated 

showed the test to be appropriate, demonstrates psychometric soundness, and includes a variety 
of validity evidence to support for use of scores for decision-making and accountability purposes.  
Minor recommendations are provided to enhance the performance of the test for use with the 
South Carolina End of Course Examination Program. 

 
 

 
  
  



EOCEP: USHC Peer Review  
Page | 44  

 

Reference List 
 
 
Baker, F. (2001). The Basics of Item Response Theory. ERIC Clearinghouse on Assessment 

and Evaluation, University of Maryland, College Park, MD. 
 
Bandalos, D. L. (2018). Measurement theory and applications for the social sciences. Guilford 

Publications: New York. 
 
Bond, T. G., and Fox, C. M. (2001). Applying the Rasch Model: Fundamental Measurement in 

the Human Sciences. Lawrence Erlbaum Associates: Mahwah, NJ.  
 
Cizek, G.J. & Bunch, M. B. (2006). Standard Setting: A Guide to Establishing and Evaluating 

Performance on Tests.  Sage Publications: Thousand Oaks, CA.  
 
Data Recognition Corporation (2022a). 2021-22 South Carolina End-of-Course Examination 

Program Technical Report.  Retrieved from DRC associates.  
  
Data Recognition Corporation (2022b).  South Carolina United States History and Constitution 

Standard Setting Technical Report. Retrieved from DRC associates.    
 
Green, S. K. (2009). Assessment is essential. McGraw-Hill Higher Education: New York. 
 
 Kolen, M. J., & Brennan, R. L. (2004). Test Equating, Scaling, and Linking: Methods and 

Practices. Springer: New York.  
 
Linacre, J. M. (2006) WINSTEPS: Rasch measurement computer program. Chicago: 

Winsteps.com. Information retrieved from: http://www.winsteps.com. 
 
Mertler, C. A. (2016). Classroom assessment: A practical guide for educators. Routledge: Newy 

York. 
 
Messick, S. (1989). Validity. In R. L. Linn (Ed.), Educational measurement (pp. 13–103). 

Macmillan Publishing Co, Inc; American Council on Education. 
 
Smith, E. V., & Smith, R. M. (2004). Introduction to Rasch measurement: Theory, models and 

applications. JAM press: Maple Grove, MN. 
 
South Carolina Department of Education (2023).  USHC Standards and Assessment Crosswalk. 

Information retrieved from SCDE associates. 
 
Wright, B. D., & Stone, M. H. (1979). Best test design. University of Chicago Press: Chicago, IL. 
 
 

http://www.winsteps.com/


EDUCATION OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE 
 

Date:  May 15, 2023 
 
ACTION ITEM:  
Report on the Educational Credit for Exceptional Needs Children (ECENC) Program, 2023 
 
PURPOSE/AUTHORITY 
Act 247, Section (E)(6) 
 
Annually, the Education Oversight Committee shall issue a report to the General Assembly documenting 
the impact of the Educational Credit for Exceptional Needs Children Program on student achievement. 
In addition, the report must include information on individual schools if at least fifty-one percent of the 
total enrolled students in the private school participated in the Educational Credit for Exceptional Needs 
Children Program in the prior school year. The report must be according to each participating private 
school, and for participating students, in which there are at least thirty participating students who have 
scores for tests administered. If the Education Oversight Committee determines that the thirty 
participating-student cell size may be reduced without disclosing personally identifiable information of a 
participating student, the Education Oversight Committee may reduce the participating-student cell size, 
but the cell size may not be reduced to less than ten participating students. 
 
CRITICAL FACTS 
The report addresses the following: 

• Information on the approval process, participation, and compliance for ECENC schools; and 
• Information about the process for collecting assessment results used to document the impact of 

the ECENC program on student achievement. 

 
TIMELINE/REVIEW PROCESS 
The FY2021-22 Educational Credit for Exceptional Needs Children Program Report was submitted to the ASA 
Subcommittee May 15, 2023 for approval and later submission to the EOC website. 
 
ECONOMIC IMPACT FOR EOC 
There is no economic impact to the EOC producing this report.  
 

ACTION REQUEST 
 

  For approval       For information 
 

ACTION TAKEN 
 

  Approved         Amended 
  Not Approved        Action deferred (explain) 

 





Report on the Educational Credit for Exceptional 
Needs Children (ECENC) Program

May 2023

Prepared by
Dr. Jenny May



2



3

Introduction 
This report is the fifth annual report on the impact of the Educational Credit for Exceptional Needs Children 
(ECENC) program as required by Act 247 of 2018 as amended in 2021. The ECENC program provides grants 
and parental tax credits to students with exceptional needs attending private schools that meet specific eligibility 
requirements for approval by the Education Oversight Committee (EOC). Exceptional SC is a 501 (c) (3) that raises 
and accepts funds and reviews student grant applications for an ECENC grant. This evaluation was prepared using 
information and data from the state fiscal year 2021-22 and utilizes information prepared by the South Carolina 
Department of Revenue (SCDOR) and Exceptional SC. The law also specifically requires the EOC to annually:

Issue a report to the General Assembly documenting the impact of the Educational Credit for 
Exceptional Needs Children Program on student achievement. In addition, the report must include 
information on individual schools if at least 51% of the total enrolled students in the private school 
participated in the Educational Credit for Exceptional Needs Children Program in the prior school 
year. The report must be according to each participating private school and for participating students, 
in which there are at least 30 participating students who have scores for tests administered. If the 
Education Oversight Committee determines that the 30 participating student cell size may be reduced 
without disclosing personally identifiable information of a participating student, the Education Oversight 
Committee may reduce the participating student cell size, but the cell size may not be reduced to less 
than 10 participating students. (Section 12-6-3790 (E) (6) of the SC Code of Laws). 

This report seeks to provide the following about the Educational Credit for Exceptional Needs Children (ECENC) 
program:

1. Information on the approval process, participation, and compliance for ECENC schools;
2. information about the process for collecting assessment results used to document the impact of the ECENC

program on student success; and
3. updates to previous recommendations from the EOC report.

33



Recommendations
Recommendation 1: Offer Summative State Assessments to ECENC Students in Public Schools
South Carolina students in private schools are not currently offered the opportunity to participate in South Caro-
lina State assessments. Examples of these assessments include SCREADY and End of Course (EOC) examinations. 
In the 2020-21 ECENC Report,  a recommendation was made to allow students in private schools to participate 
in these assessments, and while that has not yet come to fruition, offering these examinations to students partic-
ipating in the ECENC program would offer an assessment opportunity to determine ECENC program impact. It 
remains the recommendation of the EOC that ECENC funded students be offered the opportunity to participate 
in state summative assessments. 

Recommendation 2: Monitor Policy and Legislation that Shapes the ECENC program
Several pieces of legislation have been proposed and are moving through committees at the time of this report that 
would impact the governance of the ECENC program. While it remains to be seen what impact these bills will have 
on the future of the program, it is important to monitor and be aware of legislative changes to grant funded schol-
arship opportunities. Appendix G displays bills related to ECENC and their status as of publication of this report. 

A Follow-up to 2021 Recommendation:
The 2020-21 ECENC report recommended that the EOC Advisory Committee for ECENC program review and 
recommendations be reconvened to consider overall program improvement. Part of this effort would include an-
other recommendation from the 2020-21 report to offer informational material to clarify the roles of various orga-
nizations responsible for ECENC administration. It became clear from the evaluation that was completed last year, 
found in Appendix H, that additional information and materials would benefit both ECENC schools and the stu-
dents and families who participate in the program. These informational materials would be the product approved 
by the Advisory Committee. The Advisory Committee was planned to be convened in January 2023; however, after 
substantive legislation that could change the program and function of the ECENC program was introduced, the 
decision was made to wait until the end of the legislative session. This would enable the appropriate people to be 
convened for the current purpose following new legislation.

Next Steps:
As new legislation with potential to impact the ECENC program is considered by the General Assembly, 
the EOC will continue to proceed as any new legislation requires. If the ECENC program remains as it cur-
rently does, the EOC will reconvene the advisory council and work toward development of informational 
materials and present the EOC’s recommendation to offer private schools the opportunity for students to 
participate in state summative assessments for consideration. Questions can be directed to EOC staff. The 
phone number is 803-734-6148 and additional resources can be found at www.eoc.sc.gov. 

4



Process, Participation and Compliance 
Process
The law defines qualifying students and eligible schools. Grants may be awarded to students in an 
amount not exceeding $11,000 or the annual cost of tuition, whichever is less, to a qualifying student 
at an eligible school. A qualifying student receiving a grant may not be charged tuition by an eligible school 
in an amount greater than the student would be charged if the student was not a qualifying student.  

Term Definition per Act 247

Qualifying Student A student who is an exceptional needs child, is a South Carolina resident, and is eligible to 
be enrolled in a South Carolina secondary or elementary public school at the kindergarten 
or later grade for the applicable school year.

Exceptional Needs Child A child who has been evaluated in accordance with this state’s evaluation criteria as set 
forth in S.C. Code Ann. Regs 43-243.1, and determined eligible as a child with a disability 
who needs special education and related services, in accordance with the requirements of 
Section 300.8 of the federal Individuals with Disabilities Education Act. Or a child who has 
been diagnosed within the last three years by a licensed speech-language pathologist, psy-
chiatrist, or medical, mental health, psychoeducational or other comparable licensed health 
care provider as having a neurodevelopmental disorder, a substantial sensory or physical 
impairment such as deaf, blind or orthopedic disability, or some other disability or acute 
or chronic condition that significantly impedes the student’s ability to learn and succeed in 
school without specialized instructional and associated supports and services tailored to 
the child’s unique needs.

The EOC approves and posts a list of eligible schools annually. The eligible schools approved in FY 22 can be 
found in Appendix A. These eligible schools must document that they meet the following criteria:
• Independent school, including those religious in nature, other than public schools, that offer a general educa-

tion to primary or secondary school students;
• does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, or national origin;
• is located in South Carolina;
• has an educational curriculum that includes courses set forth in the state’s diploma requirements, gradua-

tion certificate requirements for special needs children, and where the students attending are administered
national achievement or state standardized tests, or both at progressive grade levels to determine student
progress;

• has school facilities that are subject to applicable federal, state, and local laws;
• is a member in good standing of the Southern Association of Colleges and Schools, the South Carolina Asso-

ciation of Christian Schools, the South Carolina Independent School Association, or Palmetto Association of
Independent Schools; and

• provides a specially designed program or learning resource center to provide needed accommodations based
on the needs of exceptional needs students provides onsite educational services or supports to meet the needs
of exceptional needs students, or is a school specifically existing to meet the needs of only exceptional needs
students with documented disabilities.

An application form to apply to be an ECENC approved school and the current ECENC Manual can be found in 
Appendices B and C respectively. 

5

5



ECENC School Approval Timeline
The following process and timeline were used by the EOC to determine school eligibility in the ECENC Program 
for state fiscal year 2021-22. Each school, new or recurring, was required to comply with the same program stan-
dards and reporting requirements. 

January 2, 2022
• Notification sent by email to schools currently in good standing with the ECENC program in the 2020-2021

school year that the application process is open. The Application to Participate in the ECENC Program for 
2021-22 was made available on the EOC’s website with direct links to the ECENC Manual for the SY 2021-
22, designed to be used as a guide to the application process. All documents must be completed, signed,
attached and returned to EOC staff.

• The completed application of schools meeting the standards and reporting requirements for SY 2020-21 were
published on the EOC’s website, www.eoc.sc.gov.

February 28, 2022:
• The Application to Participate and Document A – Statement of Services was required to be submitted to

EOC staff by February 28, 2022 to be approved for participation in the program for the FY 2021-22.
• EOC Staff called programs that have previously participated to remind them of the legislative due date so

that they may submit required documents and continue to be eligible for the students they serve. This annual
process is not legislatively required; however, it does serve children and families in South Carolina..

• The EOC publishes a list on the website of schools meeting the standards and reporting requirements for
participation in the program for the FY 22.

June 30, 2022:
• Document B – Grants received must be completed, signed, and returned to EOC staff by June 30, 2022. This

document must contain information on the number of students (K-12) who were enrolled in the school in
2021-22 and information on the number and amount of grants received in 2021-22. No personally identifi-
able information of students may be submitted.

September 1, 2022:
• Document C – School level assessment results must be provided directly to the EOC with the name of each

national achievement test administered and the scale scores/percentile rankings/stanines/grade level equiva-
lents for ELA (Reading) and Mathematics. This information must be reported by grade level for classes with
10 or more students of all grades tested and attached by September 1, 2022. No personally identifiable infor-
mation of students or teachers should be included in the submission.

• Document C – Information on staff responsible for the submission of school level assessment results must
be provided to the EOC staff by September 1, 2022. Document C must be completed, signed, and returned at
that time.

November 15, 2022:
• A “copy of compilation, review, or compliance audit of the organization’s financial statements as relating to

the grants received, conducted by a certified public accounting firm” must be received by the EOC no later
than November 15, 2022. No personally identifiable information of students should be submitted.

6



7

School Participation
Schools approved by the EOC to participate in the ECENC program in 2022-23 can be found in each of the five 
Center for Educator Recruitment, Retention and Advancement (CERRA) regions of South Carolina. 

The Upstate, Region 1, has 31 approved schools and serves the most student recipients with 663 ECENC receiv-
ing a total of $2,613,100 in grants, for an average grant amount of $3,941 per student. The Savannah River Basin, 
Region 2, has 7 approved schools and 85 student recipients receiving a total of $223,400. The average student 
grant in Region 2 is $2,628. The Midlands make up CERRA Region 3, where 21 approved schools serve 237 grant 
funded students receiving a total of $1,000,500. The average grant for a student in the Midlands is $4,222. Sixteen 
approved schools are located in CERRA Region 4, the Pee Dee, and serve 44 grant funded students receiving a total 
of $107,100, or an average of $2,434 per student. The Lowcountry makes up CERRA region 5 and has the highest 
number of approved schools. Forty-two schools serve 297 grant funded students with an average grant of $3,080, 
for a total of $914,964. There were 29 approved ECENC schools in the state that did not receive any grants from 
the program across the state. 

7



Participation
For State Fiscal Year 2021-22:
• $4,961,300 Total ECENC scholarship funds
• 1,365 ECENC scholarships distributed according to SC Department of Revenue

1,050 incumbent students
315 new students
333 more students in 2021-22 than 2020-21 according to Exceptional SC

• 114 eligible schools
• 93 schools received ECENC funding

(Source 2021-2022 Study of Educational Credit for Exceptional Needs Children Program completed by the 
South Carolina Department of Revenue January 17,2023. Full report accessible in Appendix D) 

Each ECENC approved school represents one or more of the independent accrediting associations for private 
schools, and were in good standing at the time of approval. The independent accrediting associations accepted by 
the ECENC program include: 

• South Carolina Independent School Association (SCISA) accredits 69 ECENC approved schools.
• Southern Association of Colleges and Schools (SACS) accredits 63 with ECENC approved schools.
• South Carolina Association of Christian Schools (SCACS) accredits 20 ECENC approved schools.
• Palmetto Association of Independent School Accreditation (PAIS) accredits 17 schools.

Table 1 shows the Accrediting Association for ECENC schools by CERRA region for Fiscal Year 2021-2022. Only 
the Pee Dee does not have representation of all four accrediting associations, as they have no PAIS accredited 
schools in the region. Several ECENC schools are members of more than one accrediting association, which is 
why there are more schools listed by accrediting association than the total of ECENC approved schools. 

CERRA Region SCISA SACS SCACS PAIS

Upstate (1) 15 15 9 3

Savannah River (2) 5 4 1 1

Midlands (3) 9 10 6 4

Pee Dee (4) 12 4 3 0

Lowcountry (5) 28 30 1 9

Total 69 63 20 17

Table 1: Accrediting Associations by CERRA Region, Fiscal Year 2021-22

8



Student Participation
A total of 1,365 students participate in the ECENC program, and nearly 73% of the scholarship recipients are from 
households earning $100,000 or more annually.  Approximately 18% of ECENC recipients are from households 
earning $50,000 through $100,000, and 9% are from households earning $50,000 or less annually. This data has 
been collected from the Department of Revenue and the full report published January 2023 can be seen in Appen-
dix D.  The data reported by Exceptional SC represents the original number of scholarships funded. This number is  
larger than the total reported by DOR because 22 students changed schools or moved out of state. These students 
applied and received a scholarship and are counted in Exceptional SC data, yet should not be included in the cal-
culations used in DOR reporting.

Exceptional SC provided data on students rising Kindergarten through grade 12 who applied for and those who 
received an ECENC grant during the 2021-22 school year. Table 2 shows this data and indicates if that number 
is more or less that in the 2020-21 school year. In the 2021-22 school year, 1,387 or 90% of students who applied 
were funded, In contrast, for the 2021-22  school year, 47% of students applying received grants. There were 712 
fewer applicants in the 2021-22 school year than in the previous, and by grade level, a higher percentage of younger 
students were funded than in the year before. 

Table 2: Count of Children by Grade (K-12) who Applied for and Received Grants from Exceptional SC,
School Years 2020-21 and 2021-22

Grade Level Applied for SY 
2021-2022

Funded Students 
SY 2021-2022

Percent of  
Students Funded 

SY 2021-2022

Funded Students 
SY 2020-2021

Percent of  
Students Funded 

SY 2020-2021
Kindergarten – 

5 yr old
63 51 81% 2 3%

First 54 46 85% 9 9%

Second 82 80 98% 18 14%

Third 108 102 94% 77 45%

Fourth 131 122 93% 87 24%

Fifth 120 114 95% 91 44%

Sixth 132 102 77% 111 54%

Seventh 144 119 83% 122 54%

Eighth 151 136 90% 120 59%

Ninth 170 164 96% 108 61%

Tenth 143 119 83% 115 70%

Eleventh 137 124 91% 99 73%

Twelfth 110 108 98% 95 83%

Total 1,545 1,387 90% 1,054 47%

9



1 0

Data on students funded in the 2021-22 year were relatively stable across all grade levels -- between 77% and 98%. 
This is drastically different when you consider the percent funded in the younger grades. In 2020-21, only 3% of 
applicants were funded as compared to 81% in 2021-22. This shift is likely due to some changes in funding oppor-
tunity and policy. For the 2021-22 Fiscal Year, there was an increase in the amount of money from the parental re-
fundable tax credit -- from approximately $2 million to $5 million which increased access. Additionally, the Board 
of Exceptional SC, that determines which students are funded, chose to fund all new and incumbent students at 
comparable amounts, therefore increasing the number of new students who could participate in 2021-22. This 
allowed for an increased number of younger students to participate. 

Student Grants and Funding
Act 247 states that student grants may not exceed eleven 
thousand dollars, or the total amount of tuition, which-
ever is less. The Exceptional SC Board for the 2021-22 
year funded all students who applied for a grant, both 
incumbent or new, 24% of the annual tuition, with a cap 
of $9,000, in a one-time payment made in the Spring. 
Families who applied for the parental tax credit, but not 
a grant, could receive $11,000. A family who did apply 
for the grant and a parental tax credit, the maximum 
amount the family could receive was $11,000 total, so 
the grant had to be deducted from the tax credit. While 
$11,000 is the maximum a family could receive, the 
amount given is typically less and determined by the 
Exceptional SC board. In the 2021-22 school year, all in-
cumbent and new students received some form of fund-
ing. Applications in Table 2 reflect both applications for 
grants and those who applied for parental tax credits 
whether or not a grant application was also submitted.

Compliance: Assessments and the Impact 
on Student Success
In evaluating the impact of the ECENC program on 
student achievement and academic growth, there are 
challenges due to a lack of student level data. ECENC 
schools are not required to provide individual student 
test scores for students who received an ECENC grant; 
compliance is monitored by receipt of aggregate scores 
from approved schools and information about what 
assessments are given to all students in the school. All 
approved schools administered assessments and main-
tained compliance; however, there is a lack of student 
level data. This makes it difficult to determine if students 
participating in ECENC have experienced measurable 
improvement as a result of the ECENC program. Ap-
proved schools do offer standardized or criterion refer-
enced assessments as a condition of participation and 
these assessments can be found in Appendix E. Private 

and independent schools that administer national as-
sessments typically select an assessment or assessments 
that measure English and Language Arts (ELA) and 
Math competencies at a minimum. Examples of these 
assessments include Measures of Academic Progress 
(MAP), and the Iowa Test of Basic Skills (ITBS). The 
most commonly used nationally normed assessments 
that ECENC approved schools administered in the 
2021-22 school year include: PSAT, SAT, ACT, MAP 
and the Iowa Assessment which is similar to previous 
years. 

Act 247 requires an evaluation of the ECENC program’s 
impact on student achievement where a majority (51% 
or more) of students enrolled in a school received a 
grant from Exceptional SC. In the previous reporting 
year, there were only three schools. However, in the 
2022-23 school year, there are nine schools meeting 
the reporting criteria. The three schools have remained 
consistent over the past two years. 

Of the nine schools that received ECENC funding for 
more than half of the total student enrollment, three 
were on also on this list in the 2020-21 ECENC report 
published May 2022. Only one of the schools with more 
than 50% of the total enrollment accessing ECENC dol-
lars is not identified on the website as a school specially 
designed to serve students with disabilities and accepts 
students without disabilities as well.  

To protect the privacy of students, when a grade lev-
el had fewer than 10 students, scores were suppressed. 
As a result, more detailed assessment analysis for each 
school with 51% or more of the total enrollment funded 
by ECENC grants is provided as possible within these 
parameters.  School data submitted to the EOC is in-
cluded in Appendix F.

10



Table 3: Schools with Majority of Enrolled Students Accessing ECENC Funds 

School Percentage 
of Students 

Funded through 
ECENC

Total Amount 
per School

Average 
Amount per 

grant

Assessment(s) Used CERRA Region

Assessment Grade

The Chandler 
School

100% $173,400.00 $5,100 Stanford 10 K-8th Upstate
OLSAT 1st-3rd 

5th-7th
PSAT 8th

Hidden 
Treasure 
Christian 
School

77% $217,000.00 $4,931.82 Wood-
cock-Johnson 
IV 

K-12th Upstate

Camperdown 
Academy

71% $797,000.00 $5,860.29 Gates-MacGin-
itie Reading 
Test, GMADE 
Math Assess-
ment

1st-8th Upstate

HOPE 
Academy

62% $88,400.00 $2,600.00 MAP K-12th Upstate

Einstein 
Academy

54% $15,500.00 $2,214.29 MAP K- 12th Upstate

Hope Christian 
Academy

89% $32,000.00 $4,000.00 Wood-
cock-Johnson 
IV

2nd-12th Midlands

Sandhills 
School

63% $425,900.00 $5,834.25 Woodcock 
Johnson IV

1st-8th Midlands

Pre ACT 9th-11th
ACT 12th

Glenforest 
School

52% $139,700.00 $4,656.67 FastBridge 1st-12th Midlands
Brigance K-5th
PSAT 10
ACT, SAT 11th-12th 

Miracle 
Academy 
Preparatory 
School 

68% $66,700.00 $2,900.00 Stanford 10 K-5th Lowcountry
OLSAT 6th-8th 
ACT, Accu-
placer

10th 

SAT 12th 

11



12



Ed
uc

at
io

na
l C

re
di

t f
or

 E
xc

ep
tio

na
l N

ee
ds

 C
hi

ld
re

n’s
 F

un
d 

(E
CE

NC
) -

 A
ct

 24
7 

As
 o

f T
hu

rs
da

y,
 D

ec
em

be
r 1

6,
 2

02
1 

Ea
ch

 sc
ho

ol
 h

as
 c

om
pl

et
ed

 a
n 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
n 

to
 p

ar
tic

ip
at

e 
in

 th
e 

Ed
uc

at
io

na
l C

re
di

t f
or

 E
xc

ep
tio

na
l N

ee
ds

 C
hi

ld
re

n 
(E

CE
N

C)
 p

ro
gr

am
 in

 sc
ho

ol
 y

ea
r 

20
21

-2
2.

 E
ac

h 
sc

ho
ol

 m
ee

ts
 th

e 
pr

og
ra

m
 st

an
da

rd
s o

f A
ct

 2
47

 o
f 2

01
8.

 E
ac

h 
sc

ho
ol

 m
us

t c
om

pl
y 

w
ith

 th
e 

re
po

rt
in

g 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 o

f A
ct

 2
47

 o
f 

20
18

 d
ur

in
g 

sc
ho

ol
 y

ea
r 2

02
1-

22
, a

nd
 fa

ilu
re

 to
 su

bm
it 

th
e 

re
qu

ire
d 

re
po

rt
in

g 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
w

ill
 re

su
lt 

in
 th

e 
sc

ho
ol

’s 
re

m
ov

al
 fr

om
 th

e 
EC

EN
C 

pr
og

ra
m

. 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 A
s o

f T
hu

rs
da

y,
 D

ec
em

be
r 1

6,
 2

02
1 

` 

SC
HO

O
L 

AD
DR

ES
S 

TE
LE

PH
O

N
E 

W
EB

SI
TE

 A
D

DR
ES

S 

Ad
dl

es
to

ne
 H

eb
re

w
 A

ca
de

m
y 

16
39

 W
al

le
nb

er
g 

Bo
ul

ev
ar

d 
Ch

ar
le

st
on

, S
C 

29
40

7 
84

3.
57

1.
11

05
 

ht
tp

:/
/a

dd
le

st
on

e.
or

g/
 

Al
l S

ai
nt

s' 
Ep

isc
op

al
 D

ay
 S

ch
oo

l 
14

25
 C

he
ro

ke
e 

Ro
ad

 
Fl

or
en

ce
, S

C 
29

50
1 

84
3.

66
2.

81
34

 
ht

tp
s:

//
w

w
w

.a
se

ds
.c

om
/ 

An
de

rs
on

 C
hr

ist
ia

n 
Sc

ho
ol

 
39

02
 L

ib
er

ty
 H

ig
hw

ay
 

An
de

rs
on

, S
C 

29
62

1 
86

4.
22

4.
73

09
 

ht
tp

:/
/w

w
w

.a
nd

er
so

nc
hr

ist
ia

n.
co

m
/ 

As
ce

nt
 C

hr
ist

ia
n 

Ac
ad

em
y 

70
1 

M
ai

n 
St

re
et

 
N

.M
yr

tle
 B

ea
ch

, S
C 

29
58

2
84

3.
54

8.
84

74
 

ht
tp

:/
/a

sc
en

te
du

ca
tio

n.
ne

t/
as

ce
nt

-c
hr

ist
ia

n-
ac

ad
em

y/
 

As
hl

ey
 H

al
l 

17
2 

Ru
tle

dg
e 

Av
en

ue
 

Ch
ar

le
st

on
, S

C 
29

40
3 

84
3.

72
2.

40
88

 
ht

tp
:/

/w
w

w
.a

sh
le

yh
al

l.o
rg

/ 

Be
au

fo
rt

 A
ca

de
m

y 
24

0 
Sa

m
s P

oi
nt

 R
oa

d 
Be

au
fo

rt
, S

C 
29

90
7 

84
3-

52
4-

33
93

ht
tp

:/
/w

w
w

.b
ea

uf
or

ta
ca

de
m

y.
or

g/
 

Be
n 

Li
pp

en
 S

ch
oo

l 
74

01
 M

on
tic

el
lo

 R
oa

d 
Co

lu
m

bi
a,

 S
C 

 2
92

03
 

80
3.

78
6.

72
00

 
ht

tp
:/

/w
w

w
.b

en
lip

pe
n.

co
m

/ 

Bi
sh

op
 E

ng
la

nd
 H

ig
h 

Sc
ho

ol
 

36
3 

Se
ve

n 
Fa

rm
s D

riv
e 

Ch
ar

le
st

on
, S

C 
29

49
2 

84
3.

84
9.

95
99

 
ht

tp
:/

/w
w

w
.b

eh
s.

co
m

/ 

Bl
es

se
d 

Sa
cr

am
en

t S
ch

oo
l 

7 
Sa

in
t T

er
es

a 
Dr

iv
e 

Ch
ar

le
st

on
, S

C 
29

40
7-

72
43

 
84

3.
76

6.
21

28
 

ht
tp

s:
//

w
w

w
.s

cb
ss

.o
rg

/  

Bo
b 

Jo
ne

s A
ca

de
m

y 
17

00
 W

ad
e 

Ha
m

pt
on

 
Bo

ul
ev

ar
d 

Gr
ee

nv
ill

e,
 S

C 
 2

96
14

 
86

4.
77

0.
13

95
 

w
w

w
.b

ob
jo

ne
sa

ca
de

m
y.

ne
t 

Ca
lh

ou
n 

Ac
ad

em
y 

81
 A

ca
de

m
y 

Ro
ad

 
St

. M
at

th
ew

s,
 S

C 
29

13
5 

80
3.

87
4.

27
34

 
ht

tp
s:

//
w

w
w

.c
al

ho
un

ac
ad

em
y.

or
g/

 

Ca
lv

ar
y 

Ch
ris

tia
n 

Sc
ho

ol
-G

re
er

 
10

1 
Ca

lv
ar

y 
St

re
et

 
Gr

ee
r, 

SC
  2

96
50

 
86

4.
87

7.
55

55
 

ht
tp

:/
/w

w
w

.c
al

va
ry

ch
ris

tia
ng

re
er

.o
rg

/ 

Ca
m

de
n 

M
ili

ta
ry

 A
ca

de
m

y 
52

0 
Hi

gh
w

ay
 1

 N
or

th
 

Ca
m

de
n,

 S
C 

29
02

0 
80

0.
94

8.
62

91
 

ht
tp

:/
/c

am
de

nm
ili

ta
ry

.c
om

 

Ap
pe

nd
ix

 A

13

http://addlestone.org/
https://www.aseds.com/
http://www.andersonchristian.com/
http://ascenteducation.net/ascent-christian-academy/
http://www.ashleyhall.org/
http://www.beaufortacademy.org/
http://www.benlippen.com/
http://www.behs.com/
https://www.scbss.org/
http://www.bobjonesacademy.net/
https://www.calhounacademy.org/
http://www.calvarychristiangreer.org/
http://camdenmilitary.com/


Ed
uc

at
io

na
l C

re
di

t f
or

 E
xc

ep
tio

na
l N

ee
ds

 C
hi

ld
re

n’s
 F

un
d 

(E
CE

NC
) -

 A
ct

 24
7 

As
 o

f T
hu

rs
da

y,
 D

ec
em

be
r 1

6,
 2

02
1 

Ea
ch

 sc
ho

ol
 h

as
 c

om
pl

et
ed

 a
n 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
n 

to
 p

ar
tic

ip
at

e 
in

 th
e 

Ed
uc

at
io

na
l C

re
di

t f
or

 E
xc

ep
tio

na
l N

ee
ds

 C
hi

ld
re

n 
(E

CE
N

C)
 p

ro
gr

am
 in

 sc
ho

ol
 y

ea
r 

20
21

-2
2.

 E
ac

h 
sc

ho
ol

 m
ee

ts
 th

e 
pr

og
ra

m
 st

an
da

rd
s o

f A
ct

 2
47

 o
f 2

01
8.

 E
ac

h 
sc

ho
ol

 m
us

t c
om

pl
y 

w
ith

 th
e 

re
po

rt
in

g 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 o

f A
ct

 2
47

 o
f 

20
18

 d
ur

in
g 

sc
ho

ol
 y

ea
r 2

02
1-

22
, a

nd
 fa

ilu
re

 to
 su

bm
it 

th
e 

re
qu

ire
d 

re
po

rt
in

g 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
w

ill
 re

su
lt 

in
 th

e 
sc

ho
ol

’s 
re

m
ov

al
 fr

om
 th

e 
EC

EN
C 

pr
og

ra
m

. 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 A
s o

f T
hu

rs
da

y,
 D

ec
em

be
r 1

6,
 2

02
1 

SC
HO

O
L 

AD
DR

ES
S 

TE
LE

PH
O

N
E 

W
EB

SI
TE

 A
D

DR
ES

S 

Ca
m

pe
rd

ow
n 

Ac
ad

em
y 

50
1 

Ho
w

el
l R

oa
d 

Gr
ee

nv
ill

e,
 S

C 
29

61
5 

86
4.

24
4.

88
99

 
ht

tp
:/

/c
am

pe
rd

ow
n.

or
g 

Ca
rd

in
al

 N
ew

m
an

 S
ch

oo
l 

29
45

 A
lp

in
e 

Ro
ad

 
Co

lu
m

bi
a 

SC
 2

92
23

 
80

3.
78

2.
28

14
 

w
w

w
.c

nh
s.

or
g 

Ca
ro

lin
a 

Ch
ris

tia
n 

Ac
ad

em
y 

18
50

 K
er

sh
aw

 C
am

de
n 

Hi
gh

w
ay

 
La

nc
as

te
r, 

SC
 2

97
20

 
80

3.
28

5.
55

65
 

ht
tp

s:
//

ca
ro

lin
ac

hr
ist

ia
n.

or
g/

 

Ch
ab

ad
 Je

w
ish

 A
ca

de
m

y 
28

03
 N

or
th

 O
ak

 S
tr

ee
t 

M
yr

tle
 B

ea
ch

, S
C 

29
57

7 
84

3.
44

8.
00

35
 

ht
tp

:/
/w

w
w

.c
ha

ba
dj

ew
ish

ac
ad

em
y.

or
g/

 

Ch
ar

is 
Ac

ad
em

y 
41

5 
Sa

ng
ar

ee
 P

ar
kw

ay
 

Su
m

m
er

vi
lle

, S
C 

29
48

6 
84

3.
93

4.
75

20
 

ht
tp

:/
/c

ha
ris

ac
ad

em
ys

c.
or

g/
 

Ch
ar

le
st

on
 C

ol
le

gi
at

e 
Sc

ho
ol

 
20

24
 A

ca
de

m
y 

Ro
ad

 
Jo

hn
's 

Is
la

nd
, S

C 
29

45
5 

84
3.

55
9.

55
06

 
ht

tp
s:

//
w

w
w

.c
ha

rle
st

on
co

lle
gi

at
e.

or
g/

 

Ch
ar

le
st

on
 D

ay
 S

ch
oo

l 
15

 A
rc

hd
al

e 
St

re
et

 
Ch

ar
le

st
on

, S
C 

29
40

1 
84

3.
37

7.
03

15
 

ht
tp

:/
/w

w
w

.c
ha

rle
st

on
da

ys
ch

oo
l.o

rg
 

Ch
er

ok
ee

 C
re

ek
 B

oy
s S

ch
oo

l, 
In

c.
 

19
8 

Co
op

er
 R

oa
d 

W
es

tm
in

st
er

, S
C 

29
69

3 
86

4.
64

7.
18

85
 

ht
tp

:/
/c

he
ro

ke
ec

re
ek

.n
et

/ 

Ch
ris

t C
hu

rc
h 

Ep
isc

op
al

 S
ch

oo
l 

24
5 

Ca
va

lie
r D

riv
e 

Gr
ee

nv
ill

e,
 S

C 
29

60
7 

86
4.

33
1.

42
25

 
ht

tp
:/

/w
w

w
.c

ce
s.

or
g 

Ch
ris

t O
ur

 K
in

g-
St

el
la

 M
ar

is 
Ca

th
ol

ic
 

Sc
ho

ol
 

11
83

 R
us

se
ll 

Dr
iv

e 
M

ou
nt

 P
le

as
an

t, 
SC

 2
94

64
 

84
3.

88
4.

47
21

 
ht

tp
:/

/w
w

w
.c

ok
sm

.o
rg

/ 

Cl
ar

en
do

n 
Ha

ll 
Sc

ho
ol

 
11

40
 S

ou
th

 D
uk

e 
St

re
et

 
P.

O
. B

ox
 6

09
 

Su
m

m
er

to
n,

 S
C 

29
14

8 
80

3.
48

5.
35

50
 

ht
tp

s:
//

cl
ar

en
do

nh
al

l.o
rg

/ 

Co
as

ta
l C

hr
ist

ia
n 

Pr
ep

ar
at

or
y 

Sc
ho

ol
 

68
1 

M
cC

an
ts

 D
riv

e 
M

t. 
Pl

ea
sa

nt
, S

C 
29

46
4 

84
3.

88
4.

36
63

 
ht

tp
s:

//
co

as
ta

lc
hr

ist
ia

n.
or

g/
 

Co
lle

to
n 

Pr
ep

ar
at

or
y 

Ac
ad

em
y 

16
5 

Ac
ad

em
y 

Ro
ad

 
P.

O
. B

ox
 1

42
6 

W
al

te
rb

or
o,

 S
C 

29
48

8 
84

3.
53

8.
89

89
 

ht
tp

:/
/w

w
w

.c
ol

le
to

np
re

p.
or

g/
in

de
x.

ht
m

l 

Ap
pe

nd
ix

 A

14

http://camperdown.org/
http://www.cnhs.org/
https://carolinachristian.org/
http://www.chabadjewishacademy.org/
http://charisacademysc.org/
https://www.charlestoncollegiate.org/
http://www.charlestondayschool.org/
http://cherokeecreek.net/
http://www.coksm.org/
https://clarendonhall.org/
https://coastalchristian.org/


Ed
uc

at
io

na
l C

re
di

t f
or

 E
xc

ep
tio

na
l N

ee
ds

 C
hi

ld
re

n’s
 F

un
d 

(E
CE

NC
) -

 A
ct

 24
7 

As
 o

f T
hu

rs
da

y,
 D

ec
em

be
r 1

6,
 2

02
1 

 

Ea
ch

 sc
ho

ol
 h

as
 c

om
pl

et
ed

 a
n 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
n 

to
 p

ar
tic

ip
at

e 
in

 th
e 

Ed
uc

at
io

na
l C

re
di

t f
or

 E
xc

ep
tio

na
l N

ee
ds

 C
hi

ld
re

n 
(E

CE
N

C)
 p

ro
gr

am
 in

 sc
ho

ol
 y

ea
r 

20
21

-2
2.

 E
ac

h 
sc

ho
ol

 m
ee

ts
 th

e 
pr

og
ra

m
 st

an
da

rd
s o

f A
ct

 2
47

 o
f 2

01
8.

 E
ac

h 
sc

ho
ol

 m
us

t c
om

pl
y 

w
ith

 th
e 

re
po

rt
in

g 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 o

f A
ct

 2
47

 o
f 

20
18

 d
ur

in
g 

sc
ho

ol
 y

ea
r 2

02
1-

22
, a

nd
 fa

ilu
re

 to
 su

bm
it 

th
e 

re
qu

ire
d 

re
po

rt
in

g 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
w

ill
 re

su
lt 

in
 th

e 
sc

ho
ol

’s 
re

m
ov

al
 fr

om
 th

e 
EC

EN
C 

pr
og

ra
m

. 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 A
s o

f T
hu

rs
da

y,
 D

ec
em

be
r 1

6,
 2

02
1 

SC
HO

O
L 

 
AD

DR
ES

S 
 

TE
LE

PH
O

N
E 

 
W

EB
SI

TE
 A

D
DR

ES
S 

 

Cr
os

s S
ch

oo
ls 

49
5 

Bu
ck

w
al

te
r P

ar
kw

ay
 

Bl
uf

ft
on

, S
C 

29
91

0 
84

3.
70

6.
20

00
 

ht
tp

s:
//

w
w

w
.c

ro
ss

sc
ho

ol
s.

or
g/

  

Cr
ow

n 
Le

ad
er

sh
ip

 A
ca

de
m

y 
14

55
 W

ak
en

da
w

 R
oa

d 
M

t. 
Pl

ea
sa

nt
, S

C 
 2

94
64

 
84

3.
42

5.
24

14
 

ht
tp

s:
//

w
w

w
.c

ro
w

nl
ea

de
rs

hi
pa

ca
de

m
y.

or
g/

 

Cu
tle

r J
ew

ish
 D

ay
 S

ch
oo

l 
58

27
 A

 N
or

th
 T

re
nh

ol
m

 R
oa

d 
Co

lu
m

bi
a,

 S
C 

 2
92

06
 

80
3.

78
2.

18
31

 
w

w
w

.c
jd

ss
c.

co
m

  

Di
vi

ne
 R

ed
ee

m
er

 C
at

ho
lic

 S
ch

oo
l 

11
04

 F
or

t D
riv

e 
Ha

na
ha

n,
 S

C 
 2

94
06

 
84

3 
55

3 
15

21
 

w
w

w
.d

iv
in

er
ed

ee
m

er
sc

ho
ol

.c
om

  

Ea
sle

y 
Ch

ris
tia

n 
Sc

ho
ol

 
46

1 
Sa

co
 L

ow
el

l R
d.

 
Ea

sle
y,

 S
C 

29
64

0 
86

4-
85

5-
80

00
 

ht
tp

:/
/w

w
w

.e
as

le
yc

hr
ist

ia
ns

ch
oo

l.o
rg

/ 

Ei
ns

te
in

 A
ca

de
m

y 
84

7 
Cl

ev
el

an
d 

St
re

et
 

Gr
ee

nv
ill

e,
 S

C 
29

60
1 

86
4.

26
9.

89
99

 
ht

tp
:/

/w
w

w
.e

in
st

ei
na

ca
de

m
ys

c.
or

g/
 

Fi
rs

t B
ap

tis
t S

ch
oo

l o
f C

ha
rle

st
on

 
48

 M
ee

tin
g 

St
re

et
 

Ch
ar

le
st

on
, S

C 
29

40
1 

84
3.

72
2.

66
46

 
ht

tp
:/

/w
w

w
.fb

sc
ho

ol
.o

rg
/ 

Fi
rs

t P
re

sb
yt

er
ia

n 
Ac

ad
em

y 
 

at
 S

ha
nn

on
 F

or
es

t 
82

9 
Ga

rli
ng

to
n 

Ro
ad

 
Gr

ee
nv

ill
e,

 S
C 

29
61

5 
86

4.
67

8.
51

07
 

ht
tp

:/
/w

w
w

.s
ha

nn
on

fo
re

st
.c

om
/ 

Fi
ve

 O
ak

s A
ca

de
m

y 
11

01
 Jo

ne
sv

ill
e 

Ro
ad

 
Si

m
ps

on
vi

lle
, S

C 
 2

96
81

 
86

4-
22

8-
18

81
 

ht
tp

:/
/w

w
w

.fi
ve

oa
ks

ac
ad

em
y.

co
m

/  

Gl
en

fo
re

st
 S

ch
oo

l 
10

41
 H

ar
bo

r D
riv

e 
W

es
t C

ol
um

bi
a,

 S
C 

 2
91

69
 

80
3.

79
6.

76
22

 
w

w
w

.G
le

nf
or

es
t.o

rg
   

Gr
ac

e 
Ch

ris
tia

n 
Sc

ho
ol

 
41

6 
De

nh
am

 A
ve

. 
W

es
t C

ol
um

bi
a,

 S
C 

 2
91

69
 

80
3.

79
4.

89
96

 
ht

tp
:/

/w
w

w
.g

ra
ce

lio
ns

.c
om

/d
/  

Gr
ee

nv
ill

e 
Cl

as
sic

al
 A

ca
de

m
y 

25
19

 W
oo

dr
uf

f R
oa

d 
Si

m
ps

on
vi

lle
, S

C 
29

68
1 

86
4.

32
9.

98
84

 
ht

tp
s:

//
gr

ee
nv

ill
ec

la
ss

ic
al

.c
om

/  

Ha
m

m
on

d 
Sc

ho
ol

 
85

4 
Ga

lw
ay

 L
an

e 
Co

lu
m

bi
a,

 S
C 

29
20

9 
80

3.
77

6.
02

95
 

ht
tp

:/
/w

w
w

.h
am

m
on

ds
ch

oo
l.o

rg
/H

om
e 

 

Ha
m

pt
on

 P
ar

k 
Ch

ris
tia

n 
Sc

ho
ol

 
87

5 
St

at
e 

Pa
rk

 R
oa

d 
Gr

ee
nv

ill
e,

 S
C 

 2
96

09
 

86
4.

23
3.

05
56

 
ht

tp
:/

/w
w

w
.h

pc
so

nl
in

e.
or

g/
hp

cs
  

Ap
pe

nd
ix

 A

15

https://www.crossschools.org/
http://www.cjdssc.com/
http://www.divineredeemerschool.com/
http://www.easleychristianschool.org/
http://www.fiveoaksacademy.com/
http://www.glenforest.org/
http://www.gracelions.com/d/
https://greenvilleclassical.com/
http://www.hammondschool.org/Home
http://www.hpcsonline.org/hpcs


Ed
uc

at
io

na
l C

re
di

t f
or

 E
xc

ep
tio

na
l N

ee
ds

 C
hi

ld
re

n’s
 F

un
d 

(E
CE

NC
) -

 A
ct

 24
7 

As
 o

f T
hu

rs
da

y,
 D

ec
em

be
r 1

6,
 2

02
1 

 

Ea
ch

 sc
ho

ol
 h

as
 c

om
pl

et
ed

 a
n 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
n 

to
 p

ar
tic

ip
at

e 
in

 th
e 

Ed
uc

at
io

na
l C

re
di

t f
or

 E
xc

ep
tio

na
l N

ee
ds

 C
hi

ld
re

n 
(E

CE
N

C)
 p

ro
gr

am
 in

 sc
ho

ol
 y

ea
r 

20
21

-2
2.

 E
ac

h 
sc

ho
ol

 m
ee

ts
 th

e 
pr

og
ra

m
 st

an
da

rd
s o

f A
ct

 2
47

 o
f 2

01
8.

 E
ac

h 
sc

ho
ol

 m
us

t c
om

pl
y 

w
ith

 th
e 

re
po

rt
in

g 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 o

f A
ct

 2
47

 o
f 

20
18

 d
ur

in
g 

sc
ho

ol
 y

ea
r 2

02
1-

22
, a

nd
 fa

ilu
re

 to
 su

bm
it 

th
e 

re
qu

ire
d 

re
po

rt
in

g 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
w

ill
 re

su
lt 

in
 th

e 
sc

ho
ol

’s 
re

m
ov

al
 fr

om
 th

e 
EC

EN
C 

pr
og

ra
m

. 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 A
s o

f T
hu

rs
da

y,
 D

ec
em

be
r 1

6,
 2

02
1 

SC
HO

O
L 

 
AD

DR
ES

S 
 

TE
LE

PH
O

N
E 

 
W

EB
SI

TE
 A

D
DR

ES
S 

 

Ha
rv

es
t C

om
m

un
ity

 S
ch

oo
l 

PO
 B

ox
 2

1 
(1

0 
So

ut
h 

Du
ke

s S
tr

ee
t)

 
Su

m
m

er
to

n,
 S

C 
29

14
8 

80
3.

57
4.

10
04

 
ht

tp
:/

/w
w

w
.h

ar
ve

st
co

m
m

un
ity

sc
ho

ol
.o

rg
/ 

Ha
w

th
or

ne
 C

hr
ist

ia
n 

Ac
ad

em
y 

PO
 B

ox
 8

01
 

79
0 

Ha
w

th
or

ne
 R

oa
d 

Ch
es

te
r, 

SC
 2

97
06

 
80

3.
37

7.
82

35
 

ht
tp

s:
//

w
w

w
.e

nr
ol

la
th

ca
.o

rg
/ 

He
at

hw
oo

d 
Ha

ll 
Ep

isc
op

al
 S

ch
oo

l 
30

00
 S

ou
th

 B
el

tli
ne

 B
lv

d 
Co

lu
m

bi
a,

 S
C 

29
20

1 
80

3-
76

5-
23

09
 

w
w

w
.h

ea
th

w
oo

d.
or

g 
 

Hi
dd

en
 T

re
as

ur
e 

Ch
ris

tia
n 

Sc
ho

ol
 

50
0 

W
es

t L
ee

 R
oa

d 
Ta

yl
or

s,
 S

C 
 2

96
87

 
86

4.
23

5.
68

48
 

w
w

w
.h

id
de

nt
re

as
ur

e.
or

g 
 

Hi
lto

n 
He

ad
 C

hr
ist

ia
n 

Ac
ad

em
y 

55
 G

ar
dn

er
 D

riv
e 

Hi
lto

n 
He

ad
 Is

la
nd

, S
C 

29
92

6 
84

3.
68

1.
28

78
 

ht
tp

:/
/w

w
w

.h
hc

a.
or

g/
  

Hi
lto

n 
He

ad
 P

re
pa

ra
to

ry
 S

ch
oo

l 
8 

Fo
x 

Gr
ap

e 
Ro

ad
 

Hi
lto

n 
He

ad
 Is

la
nd

, S
C 

29
92

8 
84

3.
67

1.
22

86
 

ht
tp

s:
//

w
w

w
.h

hp
re

p.
or

g/
 

Ho
ly

 A
ng

el
s A

ca
de

m
y 

11
 S

ou
th

 M
ag

no
lia

 S
tr

ee
t 

Su
m

te
r, 

SC
 2

91
50

 
80

3.
77

5.
36

32
 

ht
tp

s:
//

w
w

w
.s

as
jrc

c.
or

g/
sc

ho
ol

s/
  

Ho
ly

 T
rin

ity
 C

at
ho

lic
 S

ch
oo

l 
17

60
 L

iv
in

g 
St

on
es

 L
an

e 
Lo

ng
s,

 S
C 

29
56

8-
74

86
 

84
3.

39
0.

41
08

 
ht

tp
:/

/w
w

w
.h

tc
at

ho
lic

sc
ho

ol
m

yr
tle

be
ac

h.
co

m
  

HO
PE

 A
ca

de
m

y 
PM

B 
35

8,
 S

ui
te

 2
10

0 
21

31
 W

oo
dr

uf
f R

oa
d 

Gr
ee

nv
ill

e,
 S

C 
 2

96
07

 
86

4.
67

6.
00

28
 

ht
tp

:/
/w

w
w

.p
ro

je
ct

ho
pe

sc
.o

rg
/  

Ho
pe

 C
hr

ist
ia

n 
Ac

ad
em

y 
54

5 
Al

ex
an

de
r C

irc
le

 
Co

lu
m

bi
a,

 S
C 

 2
92

06
 

80
3.

79
0.

40
28

 
ht

tp
s:

//
w

w
w

.h
ca

to
da

y.
or

g/
  

Ja
m

es
 Is

la
nd

 C
hr

ist
ia

n 
Sc

ho
ol

 
15

 C
ro

ss
cr

ee
k 

Dr
iv

e 
Ch

ar
le

st
on

, S
C 

29
41

2 
84

3.
79

5.
17

62
 

ht
tp

:/
/w

w
w

.ji
cs

.o
rg

/ 

Jo
hn

 P
au

l I
I C

at
ho

lic
 S

ch
oo

l 
42

11
 N

. O
ka

tie
 H

ig
hw

ay
 

Ri
dg

el
an

d,
 S

C 
29

93
6 

84
3.

64
5.

38
38

 
w

w
w

.jo
hn

pa
ul

2s
ch

oo
l.o

rg
  

Lo
w

co
un

tr
y 

Pr
ep

ar
at

or
y 

Sc
ho

ol
 

30
0 

Bl
ue

 S
te

m
 D

riv
e 

Pa
w

le
ys

 Is
la

nd
, S

C 
29

58
5 

84
3.

23
7.

41
47

 
ht

tp
:/

/lo
w

co
un

tr
yp

re
p.

or
g/

  

Ap
pe

nd
ix

 A

16

http://www.heathwood.org/
http://www.hiddentreasure.org/
http://www.hhca.org/
https://www.sasjrcc.org/schools/
http://www.htcatholicschoolmyrtlebeach.com/
http://www.projecthopesc.org/
https://www.hcatoday.org/
http://www.johnpaul2school.org/
http://lowcountryprep.org/


Ed
uc

at
io

na
l C

re
di

t f
or

 E
xc

ep
tio

na
l N

ee
ds

 C
hi

ld
re

n’s
 F

un
d 

(E
CE

NC
) -

 A
ct

 24
7 

As
 o

f T
hu

rs
da

y,
 D

ec
em

be
r 1

6,
 2

02
1 

 

Ea
ch

 sc
ho

ol
 h

as
 c

om
pl

et
ed

 a
n 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
n 

to
 p

ar
tic

ip
at

e 
in

 th
e 

Ed
uc

at
io

na
l C

re
di

t f
or

 E
xc

ep
tio

na
l N

ee
ds

 C
hi

ld
re

n 
(E

CE
N

C)
 p

ro
gr

am
 in

 sc
ho

ol
 y

ea
r 

20
21

-2
2.

 E
ac

h 
sc

ho
ol

 m
ee

ts
 th

e 
pr

og
ra

m
 st

an
da

rd
s o

f A
ct

 2
47

 o
f 2

01
8.

 E
ac

h 
sc

ho
ol

 m
us

t c
om

pl
y 

w
ith

 th
e 

re
po

rt
in

g 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 o

f A
ct

 2
47

 o
f 

20
18

 d
ur

in
g 

sc
ho

ol
 y

ea
r 2

02
1-

22
, a

nd
 fa

ilu
re

 to
 su

bm
it 

th
e 

re
qu

ire
d 

re
po

rt
in

g 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
w

ill
 re

su
lt 

in
 th

e 
sc

ho
ol

’s 
re

m
ov

al
 fr

om
 th

e 
EC

EN
C 

pr
og

ra
m

. 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 A
s o

f T
hu

rs
da

y,
 D

ec
em

be
r 1

6,
 2

02
1 

SC
HO

O
L 

 
AD

DR
ES

S 
 

TE
LE

PH
O

N
E 

 
W

EB
SI

TE
 A

D
DR

ES
S 

 

M
as

on
 P

re
pa

ra
to

ry
 S

ch
oo

l 
56

 H
al

se
y 

Bo
ul

ev
ar

d 
Ch

ar
le

st
on

, S
C 

29
40

1 
84

3.
72

3.
06

64
 

ht
tp

s:
//

w
w

w
.m

as
on

pr
ep

.o
rg

/  

M
ea

d 
Ha

ll 
Ep

isc
op

al
 S

ch
oo

l 
12

9 
Pe

nd
le

to
n 

St
re

et
 

Ai
ke

n,
 S

C 
 2

98
01

 
80

3.
64

4.
11

22
 

ht
tp

:/
/w

w
w

.m
ea

dh
al

lsc
ho

ol
.o

rg
/  

M
ira

cl
e 

Ac
ad

em
y 

Pr
ep

ar
at

or
y 

Sc
ho

ol
 

10
19

 B
et

he
l R

oa
d 

Ru
ss

el
lv

ill
e,

 S
C 

29
47

6 
84

3.
56

7.
46

44
 

ht
tp

:/
/w

w
w

.m
ira

cl
ea

ca
de

m
y.

or
g/

ho
m

e.
ht

m
l  

M
itc

he
ll 

Ro
ad

 C
hr

ist
ia

n 
Ac

ad
em

y 
20

7 
M

itc
he

ll 
Ro

ad
 

Gr
ee

nv
ill

e,
 S

C 
29

61
5 

86
4.

26
8.

22
10

 
ht

tp
:/

/w
w

w
.m

itc
he

llr
oa

dc
hr

is
tia

n.
or

g 
 

M
on

te
ss

or
i S

ch
oo

l o
f A

nd
er

so
n 

28
0 

Sa
m

 M
cG

ee
 R

oa
d 

An
de

rs
on

, S
C 

 2
96

21
 

86
4.

22
6.

53
44

 
ht

tp
:/

/m
sa

sc
.o

rg
/  

N
at

iv
ity

 C
at

ho
lic

 S
ch

oo
l 

11
25

 P
itt

sf
or

d 
Ci

rc
le

 
Ch

ar
le

st
on

, S
C 

29
41

2 
84

3.
79

5.
39

75
 

ht
tp

:/
/w

w
w

.n
at

iv
ity

-s
ch

oo
l.c

om
/  

N
or

th
 W

al
te

rb
or

o 
Ch

ris
tia

n 
Ac

ad
em

y 
21

77
 Je

ffr
ie

s H
w

y.
 

W
al

te
rb

or
o,

 S
C 

29
48

8 
84

3-
53

8-
80

80
 

ht
tp

:/
/n

or
th

w
al

te
rb

or
ob

c.
or

g/
ou

r-
sc

ho
ol

 

N
or

th
sid

e 
Ch

ris
tia

n 
Ac

ad
em

y 
43

47
 S

un
se

t B
ou

le
va

rd
 

Le
xi

ng
to

n,
 S

C 
 2

90
72

 
80

3.
52

0.
56

56
   

   
ht

tp
:/

/n
or

th
sid

ec
hr

ist
ia

na
ca

de
m

y.
or

g/
  

O
ak

br
oo

k 
Pr

ep
ar

at
or

y 
Sc

ho
ol

 
19

0 
Li

nc
ol

n 
Sc

ho
ol

 R
oa

d 
Sp

ar
ta

nb
ur

g,
 S

C 
29

30
1 

86
4.

58
7.

20
60

 
ht

tp
:/

/w
w

w
.o

ak
br

oo
kp

re
p.

or
g/

  

O
co

ne
e 

Ch
ris

tia
n 

Ac
ad

em
y 

15
0 

Hi
s W

ay
 C

irc
le

 
Se

ne
ca

, S
C 

29
67

2 
86

4-
88

2-
69

25
 

ht
tp

:/
/w

w
w

.o
co

ne
ec

hr
ist

ia
n.

or
g/

  

O
ra

ng
eb

ur
g 

Pr
ep

ar
at

or
y 

Sc
ho

ol
s,

 In
c.

 
26

51
 N

or
th

 R
oa

d,
 N

W
 

O
ra

ng
eb

ur
g,

 S
C 

29
11

8 
80

3.
53

4.
79

70
 

ht
tp

:/
/o

ra
ng

eb
ur

gp
re

p.
co

m
/i

nd
ex

.h
tm

l  

O
ur

 L
ad

y 
of

 P
ea

ce
 C

at
ho

lic
 S

ch
oo

l 
85

6 
O

ld
 E

dg
ef

ie
ld

 R
oa

d 
N

 A
ug

us
ta

, S
C 

 2
98

41
 

80
3.

27
9.

83
96

 
ht

tp
:/

/w
w

w
.o

lp
sc

ho
ol

.u
s/

   
 

O
ur

 L
ad

y 
of

 th
e 

Ro
sa

ry
 C

at
ho

lic
 S

ch
oo

l 
2 

Ja
m

es
 D

riv
e 

Gr
ee

nv
ill

e,
 S

C 
29

60
5-

22
09

 
86

4.
27

7.
53

50
 

w
w

w
.o

lrs
ch

oo
l.n

et
  

Pa
lm

et
to

 C
hr

ist
ia

n 
Ac

ad
em

y 
of

 
Gr

ee
nw

oo
d 

(P
CA

G)
 

16
15

 W
oo

dl
aw

n 
Ro

ad
 

Gr
ee

nw
oo

d,
 S

C 
29

64
9 

86
4.

22
3.

03
91

 
ht

tp
:/

/w
w

w
.p

ca
gr

ee
nw

oo
d.

or
g/

  

Pa
lm

et
to

 C
hr

ist
ia

n 
Ac

ad
em

y-
M

t. 
Pl

ea
sa

nt
 

36
1 

Eg
yp

t R
oa

d 
M

t. 
Pl

ea
sa

nt
, S

C 
29

46
4 

84
3-

88
1-

99
67

 
w

w
w

.p
al

m
et

to
ch

ris
tia

na
ca

de
m

y.
or

g 
 

Ap
pe

nd
ix

 A

17

https://www.masonprep.org/
http://www.meadhallschool.org/
http://www.miracleacademy.org/home.html
http://www.mitchellroadchristian.org/
http://msasc.org/
http://www.nativity-school.com/
http://northsidechristianacademy.org/
http://www.oakbrookprep.org/
http://www.oconeechristian.org/
http://orangeburgprep.com/index.html
http://www.olpschool.us/
http://www.olrschool.net/
http://www.pcagreenwood.org/
http://www.palmettochristianacademy.org/


Ed
uc

at
io

na
l C

re
di

t f
or

 E
xc

ep
tio

na
l N

ee
ds

 C
hi

ld
re

n’s
 F

un
d 

(E
CE

NC
) -

 A
ct

 24
7 

As
 o

f T
hu

rs
da

y,
 D

ec
em

be
r 1

6,
 2

02
1 

 

Ea
ch

 sc
ho

ol
 h

as
 c

om
pl

et
ed

 a
n 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
n 

to
 p

ar
tic

ip
at

e 
in

 th
e 

Ed
uc

at
io

na
l C

re
di

t f
or

 E
xc

ep
tio

na
l N

ee
ds

 C
hi

ld
re

n 
(E

CE
N

C)
 p

ro
gr

am
 in

 sc
ho

ol
 y

ea
r 

20
21

-2
2.

 E
ac

h 
sc

ho
ol

 m
ee

ts
 th

e 
pr

og
ra

m
 st

an
da

rd
s o

f A
ct

 2
47

 o
f 2

01
8.

 E
ac

h 
sc

ho
ol

 m
us

t c
om

pl
y 

w
ith

 th
e 

re
po

rt
in

g 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 o

f A
ct

 2
47

 o
f 

20
18

 d
ur

in
g 

sc
ho

ol
 y

ea
r 2

02
1-

22
, a

nd
 fa

ilu
re

 to
 su

bm
it 

th
e 

re
qu

ire
d 

re
po

rt
in

g 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
w

ill
 re

su
lt 

in
 th

e 
sc

ho
ol

’s 
re

m
ov

al
 fr

om
 th

e 
EC

EN
C 

pr
og

ra
m

. 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 A
s o

f T
hu

rs
da

y,
 D

ec
em

be
r 1

6,
 2

02
1 

SC
HO

O
L 

 
AD

DR
ES

S 
 

TE
LE

PH
O

N
E 

 
W

EB
SI

TE
 A

D
DR

ES
S 

 

Pa
tr

ic
k 

He
nr

y 
Ac

ad
em

y 
87

66
 S

av
an

na
h 

Hw
y.

 
Es

til
l, 

SC
 2

99
18

 
80

3.
62

5.
24

40
 

ht
tp

:/
/w

w
w

.p
at

ric
kh

en
ry

ac
ad

em
y.

or
g/

  

Pe
e 

De
e 

Ac
ad

em
y 

29
03

 E
. H

ig
hw

ay
 7

6 
E 

P.
O

. B
ox

 4
49

 
M

ul
lin

s,
 S

C 
29

57
4 

84
3.

42
3.

17
71

 
ht

tp
:/

/w
w

w
.p

ee
de

ea
ca

de
m

y.
or

g/
  

Po
rt

er
-G

au
d 

Sc
ho

ol
 

30
0 

Al
be

m
ar

le
 R

oa
d 

Ch
ar

le
st

on
, S

C 
29

40
7 

84
3.

55
6.

36
20

 
ht

tp
s:

//
w

w
w

.p
or

te
rg

au
d.

ed
u/

  

Pr
in

ce
 o

f P
ea

ce
 C

at
ho

lic
 S

ch
oo

l 
12

09
 B

ru
sh

y 
Cr

ee
k 

Ro
ad

 
Ta

yl
or

s,
 S

C 
 2

96
87

 
86

4.
33

1.
21

45
 

w
w

w
.p

op
ca

th
ol

ic
sc

ho
ol

.o
rg

  

Pr
ov

id
en

ce
 C

la
ss

ic
al

 S
ch

oo
l o

f R
oc

k 
Hi

ll 
31

8 
N

 Jo
ne

s A
ve

nu
e 

Ro
ck

 H
ill

, S
C 

29
73

0-
38

00
 

80
3.

90
0.

95
82

 
ht

tp
s:

//
w

w
w

.p
ro

vi
de

nc
ec

la
ss

ic
al

ro
ck

hi
ll.

co
m

/  

Ri
dg

e 
Ch

ris
tia

n 
Ac

ad
em

y 
21

68
 R

id
ge

 C
hu

rc
h 

Ro
ad

 
Su

m
m

er
vi

lle
, S

C 
 2

94
83

 
84

3.
87

3.
98

56
 

ht
tp

:/
/r

id
ge

ch
ris

tia
n.

in
fo

/  

Ri
ve

rp
oi

nt
e 

Ch
ris

tia
n 

Ac
ad

em
y 

83
10

 D
or

ch
es

te
r R

oa
d 

N
. C

ha
rle

st
on

, S
C 

 2
94

18
 

84
3.

55
2.

06
24

 
ht

tp
s:

//
riv

er
po

in
te

ch
ris

tia
n.

or
g/

 

Sa
nd

hi
lls

 S
ch

oo
l 

15
00

 H
al

lb
ro

ok
 D

riv
e 

Co
lu

m
bi

a,
 S

C 
29

20
9 

80
3.

69
5.

14
00

 
ht

tp
:/

/w
w

w
.s

an
dh

ill
ss

ch
oo

l.o
rg

  

So
ut

hs
id

e 
Ch

ris
tia

n 
Sc

ho
ol

 
22

11
 W

oo
dr

uf
f R

oa
d 

Si
m

ps
on

vi
lle

, S
C 

29
68

1 
86

4.
23

4.
75

75
 

ht
tp

:/
/w

w
w

.s
ou

th
sid

ec
hr

ist
ia

n.
or

g 
 

Sp
ar

ta
nb

ur
g 

Ch
ris

tia
n 

Ac
ad

em
y 

87
40

 A
sh

ev
ill

e 
Hi

gh
w

ay
 

Sp
ar

ta
nb

ur
g,

 S
C 

29
31

6 
86

4-
57

8-
42

38
 

w
w

w
.s

ca
w

ar
rio

rs
.o

rg
  

Sp
ar

ta
nb

ur
g 

Da
y 

Sc
ho

ol
 

17
01

 S
ky

ly
n 

Dr
iv

e 
Sp

ar
ta

nb
ur

g,
 S

C 
 2

93
07

 
86

4.
58

2.
75

39
 

ht
tp

:/
/w

w
w

.s
pa

rt
an

bu
rg

da
ys

ch
oo

l.o
rg

/  

St
. A

nd
re

w
 C

at
ho

lic
 S

ch
oo

l 
36

01
 N

 K
in

gs
 H

ig
hw

ay
 

M
yr

tle
 B

ea
ch

, S
C 

29
57

7-
29

33
 

84
3.

44
8.

60
62

 
w

w
w

.s
ta

nd
re

w
sc

ho
ol

m
b.

co
m

  

St
. A

nn
e 

Ca
th

ol
ic

 S
ch

oo
l-R

oc
k 

Hi
ll 

16
98

 B
ird

 S
tr

ee
t 

Ro
ck

 H
ill

, S
C 

29
73

0-
38

00
 

80
3.

32
4.

48
14

 
ht

tp
:/

/w
w

w
.s

ta
nn

es
ch

oo
l.c

om
/w

p/
  

St
. A

nt
ho

ny
 C

at
ho

lic
 S

ch
oo

l-F
lo

re
nc

e 
25

36
 W

. H
of

fm
ey

er
 R

oa
d 

Fl
or

en
ce

, S
C 

29
50

1 
84

3.
66

2.
19

10
 

w
w

w
.s

ai
nt

an
th

on
yc

at
ho

lic
.c

om
  

Ap
pe

nd
ix

 A

18

http://www.patrickhenryacademy.org/
http://www.peedeeacademy.org/
https://www.portergaud.edu/
http://www.popcatholicschool.org/
https://www.providenceclassicalrockhill.com/
http://ridgechristian.info/
http://www.sandhillsschool.org/
http://www.southsidechristian.org/
http://www.scawarriors.org/
http://www.spartanburgdayschool.org/
http://www.standrewschoolmb.com/
http://www.stanneschool.com/wp/
http://www.saintanthonycatholic.com/


Ed
uc

at
io

na
l C

re
di

t f
or

 E
xc

ep
tio

na
l N

ee
ds

 C
hi

ld
re

n’s
 F

un
d 

(E
CE

NC
) -

 A
ct

 24
7 

As
 o

f T
hu

rs
da

y,
 D

ec
em

be
r 1

6,
 2

02
1 

 

Ea
ch

 sc
ho

ol
 h

as
 c

om
pl

et
ed

 a
n 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
n 

to
 p

ar
tic

ip
at

e 
in

 th
e 

Ed
uc

at
io

na
l C

re
di

t f
or

 E
xc

ep
tio

na
l N

ee
ds

 C
hi

ld
re

n 
(E

CE
N

C)
 p

ro
gr

am
 in

 sc
ho

ol
 y

ea
r 

20
21

-2
2.

 E
ac

h 
sc

ho
ol

 m
ee

ts
 th

e 
pr

og
ra

m
 st

an
da

rd
s o

f A
ct

 2
47

 o
f 2

01
8.

 E
ac

h 
sc

ho
ol

 m
us

t c
om

pl
y 

w
ith

 th
e 

re
po

rt
in

g 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 o

f A
ct

 2
47

 o
f 

20
18

 d
ur

in
g 

sc
ho

ol
 y

ea
r 2

02
1-

22
, a

nd
 fa

ilu
re

 to
 su

bm
it 

th
e 

re
qu

ire
d 

re
po

rt
in

g 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
w

ill
 re

su
lt 

in
 th

e 
sc

ho
ol

’s 
re

m
ov

al
 fr

om
 th

e 
EC

EN
C 

pr
og

ra
m

. 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 A
s o

f T
hu

rs
da

y,
 D

ec
em

be
r 1

6,
 2

02
1 

SC
HO

O
L 

 
AD

DR
ES

S 
 

TE
LE

PH
O

N
E 

 
W

EB
SI

TE
 A

D
DR

ES
S 

 

St
. A

nt
ho

ny
 o

f P
ad

ua
 C

at
ho

lic
 S

ch
oo

l 
31

1 
Go

w
er

 S
tr

ee
t  

Gr
ee

nv
ill

e,
 S

C 
 2

96
11

 
86

4.
27

1.
01

67
 

w
w

w
.s

ta
nt

ho
ny

gr
ee

nv
ill

es
c.

or
g 

 

St
. E

liz
ab

et
h 

An
n 

Se
to

n 
Ca

th
ol

ic
 H

ig
h 

Sc
ho

ol
 

13
00

 C
ar

ol
in

a 
Fo

re
st

 B
lv

d 
M

yr
tle

 B
ea

ch
, S

C 
29

57
9 

84
3.

90
3.

14
00

 
ht

tp
:/

/w
w

w
.s

et
on

hi
gh

sc
ho

ol
sc

.o
rg

/  

St
. F

ra
nc

is 
by

 th
e 

Se
a 

Ca
th

ol
ic

 S
ch

oo
l 

45
 B

ea
ch

 C
ity

 R
oa

d 
Hi

lto
n 

He
ad

 Is
la

nd
, S

C 
 2

99
26

 
84

3.
68

1.
65

01
 

w
w

w
.s

fc
sh

hi
.c

om
  

St
. G

re
go

ry
 th

e 
Gr

ea
t C

at
ho

lic
 S

ch
oo

l 
32

3 
Fo

rd
in

g 
Is

la
nd

 R
oa

d 
Bl

uf
ft

on
, S

C 
29

90
9-

61
34

 
84

3.
81

5.
99

88
 

w
w

w
.s

gg
.c

c 
 

St
. J

oh
n 

Ca
th

ol
ic

 S
ch

oo
l-C

ha
rle

st
on

 
39

21
 S

t. 
Jo

hn
 A

ve
  

N
. C

ha
rle

st
on

, S
C 

 2
94

05
 

84
3.

74
4.

39
01

 
ht

tp
:/

/s
ai

nt
jo

hn
ca

th
ol

ic
sc

.o
rg

/s
ch

oo
lsi

te
/in

de
x.

ph
p 

 

St
. J

oh
n 

N
eu

m
an

n 
Ca

th
ol

ic
 S

ch
oo

l 
72

1 
Po

lo
 R

oa
d 

Co
lu

m
bi

a,
 S

C 
29

22
3 

80
3.

78
8.

13
67

 
ht

tp
:/

/w
w

w
.s

jn
ca

th
ol

ic
.c

om
   

St
. J

oh
n’

s C
hr

ist
ia

n 
Ac

ad
em

y 
20

4 
W

. M
ai

n 
St

re
et

 
M

on
ck

s C
or

ne
r, 

SC
 2

94
61

 
84

3.
76

1.
85

39
 

ht
tp

:/
/w

w
w

.s
jc

ac
av

al
ie

rs
.c

om
/  

St
. J

os
ep

h 
Ca

th
ol

ic
 S

ch
oo

l-A
nd

er
so

n 
12

00
 C

or
ne

lia
 R

oa
d 

An
de

rs
on

, S
C 

29
62

1-
33

49
 

86
4.

76
0.

16
19

 
ht

tp
:/

/w
w

w
.s

tjo
se

ph
of

an
de

rs
on

.c
om

/  

St
. J

os
ep

h 
Ca

th
ol

ic
 S

ch
oo

l-C
ol

um
bi

a 
37

00
 D

ev
in

e 
St

re
et

 
Co

lu
m

bi
a,

 S
C 

29
20

5-
19

08
 

80
3.

25
4.

67
36

 
ht

tp
:/

/w
w

w
.s

tjo
sd

ev
in

e.
co

m
/  

St
. J

os
ep

h'
s C

at
ho

lic
 S

ch
oo

l-G
re

en
vi

lle
 

10
0 

St
 Jo

se
ph

’s
 D

riv
e 

 
Gr

ee
nv

ill
e,

 S
C 

29
60

7 
86

4.
23

4.
90

09
 

w
w

w
.s

jc
at

ho
lic

sc
ho

ol
.o

rg
  

St
. M

ar
tin

 d
e 

Po
rr

es
 C

at
ho

lic
 S

ch
oo

l 
22

25
 H

am
pt

on
 S

tr
ee

t 
 

Co
lu

m
bi

a,
 S

C 
29

20
4 

80
3.

25
4.

54
77

 
ht

tp
:/

/w
w

w
.s

ai
nt

m
ar

tin
de

po
rr

es
.n

et
/in

de
x.

ht
m

l  
  

St
. M

ar
y 

He
lp

 o
f C

hr
ist

ia
ns

 C
at

ho
lic

 S
ch

oo
l 

11
8 

Yo
rk

 S
tr

ee
t, 

SE
 

 
Ai

ke
n,

 S
C 

29
80

1 
80

3.
64

9.
20

71
 

w
w

w
.s

tm
ar

ys
ch

oo
la

ik
en

.c
om

  

St
. M

ic
ha

el
 C

at
ho

lic
 S

ch
oo

l 
54

2 
Cy

pr
es

s A
ve

nu
e 

M
ur

re
lls

 In
le

t, 
SC

 2
95

76
-8

73
9 

84
3.

65
1.

67
95

 
ht

tp
:/

/w
w

w
.s

ai
nt

m
ic

ha
el

sc
.c

om
  

St
. P

et
er

's 
Ca

th
ol

ic
 S

ch
oo

l-B
ea

uf
or

t 
70

 L
ad

y’
s I

sla
nd

 D
riv

e 
 

Be
au

fo
rt

, S
C 

29
90

7 
84

3.
52

2.
21

63
 

ht
tp

:/
/s

ai
nt

pe
te

rs
.s

ch
oo

l/ 
 

St
. P

et
er

's 
Ca

th
ol

ic
 S

ch
oo

l-C
ol

um
bi

a 
10

35
 H

am
pt

on
 S

tr
ee

t 
 

Co
lu

m
bi

a,
 S

C 
29

20
1 

80
3.

25
2.

82
85

 
ht

tp
:/

/s
tp

et
er

sc
at

ho
lic

sc
ho

ol
.o

rg
/  

Ap
pe

nd
ix

 A

19

http://www.stanthonygreenvillesc.org/
http://www.setonhighschoolsc.org/
http://www.sfcshhi.com/
http://www.sgg.cc/
http://saintjohncatholicsc.org/schoolsite/index.php
http://www.sjncatholic.com/
http://www.sjcacavaliers.com/
http://www.stjosephofanderson.com/
http://www.stjosdevine.com/
http://www.sjcatholicschool.org/
http://www.saintmartindeporres.net/index.html
http://www.stmaryschoolaiken.com/
http://www.saintmichaelsc.com/
http://saintpeters.school/
http://stpeterscatholicschool.org/


Ed
uc

at
io

na
l C

re
di

t f
or

 E
xc

ep
tio

na
l N

ee
ds

 C
hi

ld
re

n’s
 F

un
d 

(E
CE

NC
) -

 A
ct

 24
7 

As
 o

f T
hu

rs
da

y,
 D

ec
em

be
r 1

6,
 2

02
1 

 

Ea
ch

 sc
ho

ol
 h

as
 c

om
pl

et
ed

 a
n 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
n 

to
 p

ar
tic

ip
at

e 
in

 th
e 

Ed
uc

at
io

na
l C

re
di

t f
or

 E
xc

ep
tio

na
l N

ee
ds

 C
hi

ld
re

n 
(E

CE
N

C)
 p

ro
gr

am
 in

 sc
ho

ol
 y

ea
r 

20
21

-2
2.

 E
ac

h 
sc

ho
ol

 m
ee

ts
 th

e 
pr

og
ra

m
 st

an
da

rd
s o

f A
ct

 2
47

 o
f 2

01
8.

 E
ac

h 
sc

ho
ol

 m
us

t c
om

pl
y 

w
ith

 th
e 

re
po

rt
in

g 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 o

f A
ct

 2
47

 o
f 

20
18

 d
ur

in
g 

sc
ho

ol
 y

ea
r 2

02
1-

22
, a

nd
 fa

ilu
re

 to
 su

bm
it 

th
e 

re
qu

ire
d 

re
po

rt
in

g 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
w

ill
 re

su
lt 

in
 th

e 
sc

ho
ol

’s 
re

m
ov

al
 fr

om
 th

e 
EC

EN
C 

pr
og

ra
m

. 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 A
s o

f T
hu

rs
da

y,
 D

ec
em

be
r 1

6,
 2

02
1 

SC
HO

O
L 

 
AD

DR
ES

S 
 

TE
LE

PH
O

N
E 

 
W

EB
SI

TE
 A

D
DR

ES
S 

 

St
ep

 o
f F

ai
th

 C
hr

ist
ia

n 
Ac

ad
em

y 
P.

O
. B

ox
 1

44
9 

 
90

09
 T

ar
bo

ro
 R

d.
  

Ri
dg

el
an

d,
 S

C 
29

93
6 

84
3.

72
6.

61
00

 
ht

tp
:/

/w
w

w
.s

fc
aw

eb
.o

rg
/  

Su
m

m
er

vi
lle

 C
at

ho
lic

 S
ch

oo
l 

22
6 

Bl
ac

k 
O

ak
 B

lv
d 

 
Su

m
m

er
vi

lle
, S

C 
29

48
5-

58
00

 
84

3.
87

3.
93

10
 

w
w

w
.s

um
m

er
vi

lle
ca

th
ol

ic
.o

rg
  

Su
m

te
r C

hr
ist

ia
n 

Sc
ho

ol
 

42
0 

S.
 P

ik
e 

W
es

t 
Su

m
te

r, 
SC

  2
91

50
 

80
3.

77
3.

19
02

 
ht

tp
:/

/w
w

w
.s

um
te

rc
hr

ist
ia

n.
or

g/
  

Th
e 

Ch
an

dl
er

 S
ch

oo
l 

29
00

 A
ug

us
ta

 S
tr

ee
t  

Gr
ee

nv
ill

e,
 S

C 
 2

96
05

 
86

4.
99

1.
84

43
 

w
w

w
.th

ec
ha

nd
le

rs
ch

oo
l.o

rg
  

Th
e 

Ch
ar

le
st

on
 C

at
ho

lic
 S

ch
oo

l 
88

8-
A 

Ki
ng

 S
t 

Ch
ar

le
st

on
, S

C 
29

40
3-

41
81

 
84

3.
57

7.
44

95
 

w
w

w
.c

ha
rle

st
on

ca
th

ol
ic

.c
om

  

Th
e 

Co
m

pl
et

e 
St

ud
en

t 
22

04
 S

ou
th

sid
e 

Bl
vd

 
Po

rt
 R

oy
al

, S
C 

29
93

5 
84

3.
37

9.
01

93
 

ht
tp

s:
//

w
w

w
.th

ec
om

pl
et

es
tu

de
nt

.c
om

/ 

Th
e 

Co
op

er
 S

ch
oo

l 
13

 O
ak

da
le

 P
la

ce
 

Ch
ar

le
st

on
, S

C 
29

40
7 

84
3.

57
3.

10
33

 
ht

tp
:/

/t
he

co
op

er
sc

ho
ol

.o
rg

/ 

Th
e 

Ki
ng

's 
Ac

ad
em

y 
10

15
 S

 E
be

ne
ze

r R
oa

d 
Fl

or
en

ce
, S

C 
29

50
1 

84
3.

66
1.

74
64

 
w

w
w

.tk
af

lo
re

nc
e.

co
m

  

Th
e 

Ti
m

m
er

m
an

 S
ch

oo
l 

22
19

 A
ta

sc
ad

er
o 

Dr
iv

e 
Co

lu
m

bi
a,

 S
C 

29
20

6 
80

3.
78

2.
27

48
 

ht
tp

s:
//

w
w

w
.ti

m
m

er
m

an
sc

ho
ol

.o
rg

/  

Th
om

as
 H

ey
w

ar
d 

Ac
ad

em
y 

17
27

 M
al

ph
ru

s R
oa

d 
Ri

dg
el

an
d,

 S
C 

29
93

6 
84

3.
72

6.
36

73
 

ht
tp

:/
/w

w
w

.th
om

as
he

yw
ar

d.
or

g/
  

Th
om

as
 S

um
te

r A
ca

de
m

y 
56

25
 C

am
de

n 
Hi

gh
w

ay
 

Re
m

be
rt

, S
C 

29
12

8 
80

3.
49

9.
33

78
 

w
w

w
.th

om
as

su
m

te
r.o

rg
  

Tr
id

en
t A

ca
de

m
y 

14
55

 W
ak

en
da

w
 R

oa
d 

M
t. 

Pl
ea

sa
nt

, S
C 

29
46

4 
84

3.
88

4.
70

46
 

ht
tp

:/
/w

w
w

.tr
id

en
ta

ca
de

m
y.

co
m

/ 

Tr
in

ity
 C

hr
ist

ia
n 

Ed
uc

at
io

na
l S

ch
oo

l 
52

4 
M

ar
th

a 
Dr

iv
e 

An
de

rs
on

, S
C 

29
65

4 
86

4.
38

2.
52

48
 

ht
tp

s:
//

ia
m

in
hi

sim
ag

e.
or

g/
tc

es
.h

tm
l 

Vi
ct

or
y 

Bi
bl

e 
Ch

ris
tia

n 
Sc

ho
ol

 
10

24
5 

Br
oa

d 
Ri

ve
r R

oa
d 

Irm
o,

 S
C 

29
06

3 
80

3.
78

1.
69

70
 

ht
tp

:/
/v

ic
to

ry
bi

bl
eb

ap
tis

t.o
rg

/V
ic

to
ry

_B
ib

le
_C

hr
ist

ia
n_

Sc
ho

ol
.h

tm
l 

Ap
pe

nd
ix

 A

20

http://www.sfcaweb.org/
http://www.summervillecatholic.org/
http://www.sumterchristian.org/
http://www.thechandlerschool.org/
http://www.charlestoncatholic.com/
http://www.tkaflorence.com/
https://www.timmermanschool.org/
http://www.thomasheyward.org/
http://www.thomassumter.org/


Ed
uc

at
io

na
l C

re
di

t f
or

 E
xc

ep
tio

na
l N

ee
ds

 C
hi

ld
re

n’s
 F

un
d 

(E
CE

NC
) -

 A
ct

 24
7 

As
 o

f T
hu

rs
da

y,
 D

ec
em

be
r 1

6,
 2

02
1 

 

Ea
ch

 sc
ho

ol
 h

as
 c

om
pl

et
ed

 a
n 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
n 

to
 p

ar
tic

ip
at

e 
in

 th
e 

Ed
uc

at
io

na
l C

re
di

t f
or

 E
xc

ep
tio

na
l N

ee
ds

 C
hi

ld
re

n 
(E

CE
N

C)
 p

ro
gr

am
 in

 sc
ho

ol
 y

ea
r 

20
21

-2
2.

 E
ac

h 
sc

ho
ol

 m
ee

ts
 th

e 
pr

og
ra

m
 st

an
da

rd
s o

f A
ct

 2
47

 o
f 2

01
8.

 E
ac

h 
sc

ho
ol

 m
us

t c
om

pl
y 

w
ith

 th
e 

re
po

rt
in

g 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 o

f A
ct

 2
47

 o
f 

20
18

 d
ur

in
g 

sc
ho

ol
 y

ea
r 2

02
1-

22
, a

nd
 fa

ilu
re

 to
 su

bm
it 

th
e 

re
qu

ire
d 

re
po

rt
in

g 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
w

ill
 re

su
lt 

in
 th

e 
sc

ho
ol

’s 
re

m
ov

al
 fr

om
 th

e 
EC

EN
C 

pr
og

ra
m

. 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 A
s o

f T
hu

rs
da

y,
 D

ec
em

be
r 1

6,
 2

02
1 

SC
HO

O
L 

 
AD

DR
ES

S 
 

TE
LE

PH
O

N
E 

 
W

EB
SI

TE
 A

D
DR

ES
S 

 

W
al

nu
t G

ro
ve

 C
hr

ist
ia

n 
Sc

ho
ol

 
10

36
 M

ax
w

el
l M

ill
 R

oa
d 

Fo
rt

 M
ill

, S
C 

 2
97

08
 

80
3.

83
5.

20
00

 
ht

tp
:/

/w
w

w
.w

al
nu

tg
ro

ve
ch

ris
tia

ns
ch

oo
l.c

om
/  

W
es

tg
at

e 
Ch

ris
tia

n 
Sc

ho
ol

 
19

90
 O

ld
 R

ei
dv

ill
e 

Rd
. 

Sp
ar

ta
nb

ur
g,

 S
C 

29
30

1 
86

4.
57

6.
49

53
 

ht
tp

s:
//

w
w

w
.w

es
tg

at
ec

hr
ist

ia
ns

ch
oo

l.c
om

/  

W
es

tm
in

st
er

 C
at

aw
ba

 C
hr

ist
ia

n 
Sc

ho
ol

 
26

50
 In

di
a 

Ho
ok

 R
oa

d 
Ro

ck
 H

ill
, S

C 
29

73
2 

80
3.

36
6.

41
19

 
ht

tp
:/

/w
cc

s.
or

g 
 

 

Ap
pe

nd
ix

 A

21

http://www.walnutgrovechristianschool.com/
https://www.westgatechristianschool.com/
http://wccs.org/


22



South Carolina Education Oversight Committee (EOC) 

Annual Standards Assurance Form 

School Year: 2022-23 

Application to Participate in 
Educational Credit for Exceptional Needs Children (ECENC) Program 

Please complete the information requested below concerning your independent school.  This information 

will be listed on the South Carolina Education Oversight Committee’s website, https://eoc.sc.gov/.  

Independent School Name: 

Independent School Contact 

Person: 

Independent School Address: 

City, State, Zip Code: 

Independent School Telephone 
Number:   (   ) - 

Independent School Fax Number:   (   ) -
Independent School E-mail 
Address: 

Independent School Website 
Address: 

Please review the standards below that are based on Act 247 of 2018. An “eligible school” is defined as “an independent 
school including those religious in nature, other than a public school, at which the compulsory attendance requirements of 
Section 59-65-10 may be met.” Please indicate whether your school has met or intends to meet each standard to ensure the 
following academic and reporting requirements are met. The South Carolina Education Oversight Committee reserves the 
right to request additional documentation to show the school is in compliance with state law. Failure to meet these 
standards or reporting requirements will result in your school being denied or removed from participation in the program. 

STANDARDS YES NO 

1. Offers a general education to primary or secondary school students.  

2. Does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, or national origin.  

3. Is located in this State.  

4. Has an educational curriculum that includes courses set forth in the
state’s diploma requirements, graduation certificate requirements for

special needs children and where the students attending are
administered national achievement or state standardized tests, or both,

at progressive grade levels to determine student progress.

 

5. Has school facilities that are subject to applicable federal, state, and

local laws.  

6. Is a member in good standing of the Southern Association of Colleges

and Schools, the South Carolina Association of Christian Schools, the
South Carolina Independent Schools Association, or the Palmetto
Association of Independent Schools.

 

7. Provides a specially designed program or learning resource center to
provide needed accommodations based on the needs of exceptional

needs students or provides onsite educational services or supports to
meet the needs of exceptional needs students or is a school specifically

existing to meet the needs of only exceptional needs students with
documented disabilities.

 

Appendix B

23

https://eoc.sc.gov/


REPORTING REQUIREMENTS  YES NO 

1. At the time of your application to participate in the program, your 

school must submit Document A to the EOC and a statement of 
services that documents your school by February 28, 2022:  

(a) provides a specially designed program or learning resource 
to provide needed accommodations based on the needs of 
exceptional needs students; or 

(b) provides onsite educational services or supports to meet the 
needs of exceptional needs students; or 

(c) exists specifically to meet the needs of only exceptional 
needs students with documented disabilities. 

  

2. Your school will submit Document B to the EOC by June 30, 2022 
which documents the number and total dollar amount of grants 
received in the 2021-22 school year from Exceptional SC.  

  

3. Your school will submit directly to the EOC by September 1, 2022 
the school-level assessment results for all grades in the school 

and for each grade with at least (10) students tested. Results 
should be provided for English language arts (reading) and 

mathematics achievement of students in each grade tested in 
school year 2021-22 on Document C.  

  

4. If your school received grants from Exceptional SC in school year 
2021-22, the school would submit to the EOC a copy of a 
compilation, review, or compliance audit of the organization’s 

financial statements relating to the grants received, conducted by 
a certified public accounting firm by November 15, 2022.  

  

 

I assure that all documents submitted to the SC Education Oversight Committee for the purpose 

of applying as an eligible school, as defined by state law, is true, accurate, and complete under 

penalty of perjury in accordance with Section 16-9-10 of the South Carolina Code of Laws. 

Failure to report to the EOC the required data will result in the school being removed from the 

list of approved schools.  

 

Signature:  __________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Date:  ______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Print Name of Signature Above:  _________________________________________________________ 

 

Title:  ______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Email: _____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Return this form to the Education Oversight Committee  

• Phone:  803.734.6148 • E-mail: hjones@eoc.sc.gov • Mail: P.O. Box 11867, Columbia, S.C. 29211  

• Fax:    803.734.6167 

• Physical Location: Edgar A. Brown Building, Suite 502, 1205 Pendleton Street, Columbia, SC 29201 

Appendix B

24

mailto:hjones@eoc.sc.gov


Application Process for School Eligibility 
Educational Credit for Exceptional Needs Children 

Program 
School Year 2022-23 

Appendix C

25



 
 

Appendix C

26



 
 

Table of Contents 
 

Application Process 

Program Standards ....................................................................................4 

Reporting Requirements .............................................................................5 

Definitions ...................................................................................................5 

Timeline ......................................................................................................5 

 

Documentation of Reporting Requirements  
Application to Participate in ECENC Program ............................................8 

Document A – Statement of Services ....................................................... 11 

Document B – Grants Received ............................................................... 13 

Request to Review ................................................................................... 15 

Document C – Assessment Data .............................................................. 17 

Audit Clarification Letter ........................................................................... 19 

Completion of the Application Process to Participate ............................... 19 

 

Appendix 

Act 247 of 2018 as amended May 17, 2021 ............................................. 21 

Contact Information .................................................................................. 28 

  

Appendix C

27



4 
 

Application Process 

Annually by March 1, the Education Oversight Committee (EOC) is required to publish on 
its website a list of schools that desire to participate in the Educational Credit for 
Exceptional Needs Children (ECENC) program and that meet the statutory requirements 
for participation.  

Act 247 of 2018, as amended May 17, 2021, articulates the eligibility and reporting 
requirements that schools must follow in order to participate in the ECENC program. Act 
247 of 2018 is included in the Appendix. Schools that participated in the ECENC program 
in the prior year as well as schools desiring to participate in the ECENC program for the 
first time must meet the same program standards and comply with the same reporting 
requirements.  

 

Program Standards 

The law defines an eligible school as “an independent school including those religious in 
nature, other than a public school, at which the compulsory attendance requirements of 
Section 59-65-10 may be met, that: 

   (a) offers a general education to primary or secondary school students; 

   (b) does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, or national origin; 

   (c) is located in this State; 

   (d) has an educational curriculum that includes courses set forth in the 
state’s diploma requirements, graduation certificate requirements for special 
needs children, and where the students attending are administered national 
achievement or state standardized tests, or both, at progressive grade levels to 
determine student progress; 

   (e) has school facilities that are subject to applicable federal, state, and 
local laws; 

   (f) is a member in good standing of the Southern Association of Colleges 
and Schools, the South Carolina Association of Christian Schools, the South 
Carolina Independent Schools Association, or Palmetto Association of 
Independent Schools; and 

   (g) provides a specially designed program or learning resource center to 
provide needed accommodations based on the needs of exceptional needs 
students or provides onsite educational services or supports to meet the needs 
of exceptional needs students, or is a school specifically existing to meet the 
needs of only exceptional needs students with documented disabilities.” (Section 
12-6-3790(A)(1))  

Appendix C

28



5 
 

Reporting Requirements  

By law, schools that participate in the ECENC must report the following information to the 
EOC. This information will be posted online at the EOC’s website at www.eoc.sc.gov: 

   “(a) the number and total amount of grants received in the preceding school 
year; 

   (b) student test scores, by category, on national achievement or state 
standardized tests, or both, for all grades tested and administered by the school 
receiving or entitled to receive scholarship grants pursuant to this section in the 
previous school year. The school also shall provide individual student test scores on 
national achievement or state standardized tests, or both, for any student in grades 
one through twelve who received a grant from the program during the prior school 
year. The information must be used to provide program level reports to determine 
whether students participating in the program have experienced measurable 
improvement. Students with disabilities for whom standardized testing is not 
appropriate are exempt from this requirement; 

   (c) a copy of a compilation, review, or compliance audit of the organization’s 
financial statements as relating to the grants received, conducted by a certified public 
accounting firm; and 

   (d) a certification by the independent school that it meets the definition of an 
eligible school as that term is defined in subsection (A)(1) and that the report is true, 
accurate, and complete under penalty of perjury in accordance with Section 16-9-10.” 
(Section 12-6-3790(E)(1)) 

 

Definitions 

The EOC uses the state fiscal year, July 1 through June 30 as the definition of a school 
year. For example, schools applying to participate in the ECENC program for the 2022-
23 school year are schools that will participate in the program between July 1, 2022 and 
June 30, 2023. In such case, the previous school year is defined as school year 2021-22, 
which began on July 1, 2021 and concluded June 30, 2022.  

 

Timeline 

Following is the timeline by which schools desiring to participate in the ECENC program 
must submit an application and appropriate reporting requirements. It is the responsibility 
of the schools to meet the reporting requirements. While the EOC will make every effort 
to communicate with schools, changes in administration and personnel at the school level 
occur. It is the responsibility of schools participating in the ECENC program to 
notify the EOC either in writing or by email of changes in the names or contact 
information for persons responsible for submitting all required documentation to 
the EOC. 

Appendix C

29

http://www.eoc.sc.gov/


6 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

On or before  
February 1 

Applications for participation in the ECENC program for the 
subsequent school year begin. 
 
The EOC will notify by email each school currently participating 
in the ECENC program that the application process is open. All 
current school contacts on file at the EOC are notified. The EOC 
will provide a document that each school must complete and 
submit to the EOC that guarantees that the school meets the 
standards and that the school will comply with all reporting 
requirements.   
 
The application must include a statement of services 
(Document A) at the time of application to be considered for 
participation in the ECENC program by February 28, 2022. 
 
For schools that are operated and governed under one 
organization, like the Catholic Diocese of Charleston, the EOC 
will accept one application for all schools as long as the 
governing body provides a list of the school names, addresses, 
telephone numbers, and, if available, website address of each 
school. 
 

Application to Participate in ECENC Program 
Document A 

 
 

On or before  
March 1 

The EOC will publish on its website a list of schools meeting the 
standards and reporting requirements for participation in the 
ECENC program. The list will include: the school’s name, 
addresses, telephone numbers, and, if available, website 
address. 

 
On or before  

June 30  
 

A school approved to participate in the program must submit to 
the EOC information on grants received from Exceptional SC in 
the prior school year: 
 

Document B – Grants Received 
 
Failure of a school to provide Document B and the 
corresponding information will result in the school’s removal 
from the program. The EOC will notify the school by email of the 
removal. Schools wishing to remain in the program will be 
required to complete a “Request for Review Form” prior to 
submission of required material. The EOC will also notify 
Exceptional SC and the South Carolina Department of Revenue 
of the Reinstatement of a school. 

Appendix C

30



7 
 

On or before 
September 1 

A school approved to participate in the program must submit 
directly to the EOC by September 1, school-level assessment 
results from the prior school year for all grades in the school 
and for each grade with at least (10) students tested. Results 
should be provided for English language arts (reading) and 
mathematics achievement of students in each grade tested in 
school year 2021-22: 
 

Document C – School-Level Assessment Data 
 
Failure of a school to provide Document C and the 
corresponding information will result in the school’s removal 
from the program. The EOC will notify the school by email of the 
removal. Schools wishing to remain in the program will be 
required to complete a “Request for Review Form” prior to 
submission of required material. The EOC will also notify 
Exceptional SC and the Department of Revenue of the 
Reinstatement of a school. 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

On or before 
November 15 

A school that is approved to participate in the program in the 
current school year, that participated in the program in the prior 
school year, and that received grants from Exceptional SC in the 
prior school year must submit to the EOC a copy of a 
compilation, review, or compliance audit of the organization’s 
financial statements as relating to the grants received, 
conducted by a certified public accounting firm. 
 

Audit Clarification Letter 
 
Failure of a school to provide a copy of a compilation, review, or 
compliance audit, conducted by a certified public accounting 
firm will result in the school’s removal from the program The 
EOC will notify the school by email of the removal. Schools 
wishing to remain in the program will be required to complete a 
“Request for Review Form” prior to submission of required 
material. The EOC will also notify Exceptional SC and the 
Department of Revenue of the Reinstatement of a school. 

 

NOTE: For schools that are operated and governed under one organization, like the 
Catholic Diocese of Charleston, the EOC will accept one application for all schools as 
long as the governing body provides a list of the school names, addresses, telephone 
numbers, and, if available, website address of each school. In addition, the EOC will 
accept all information required by Documents A, B and C and the compilation, review or 
compliance audit for schools that are operated and governed under one organization, like 
the Catholic Diocese of Charleston, in one document to facilitate reporting.  

Appendix C

31



8 
 

Documentation of Reporting Requirements  
 

The following is additional information concerning the documents that must be submitted 
by schools participating in the ECENC program. The information is organized by the 
actual document.  

Failure to provide to comply with the reporting requirements will result in the school being 
removed from the list of eligible schools. Schools wishing to remain in the program will be 
required to complete a “Request for Review Form” prior to submission of required 
material. The school, Exceptional SC, and the South Carolina Department of Revenue 
will be notified of the school’s participation in and removal from the program. Exceptional 
SC is the entity that awards grants for eligible students attending approved schools. The 
South Carolina Department of Revenue is the entity responsible for administering the 
Parental Refundable Tax Credit for an eligible exceptional needs child who attends an 
approved school. 

 

Application to Participate in ECENC Program 
The application to participate in the ECENC Program is the initial document that a school 
choosing to participate in the ECENC program must complete. By March 1, the EOC will 
publish on its website a list of schools that successfully complete this document. This 
document requires schools to indicate whether the school meets each program standard 
and whether the school intends to submit the appropriate documents for reporting 
requirements. The EOC reserves the right to request additional documentation to show 
the school is in compliance with state law. 
 
Participation in the ECENC program does not guarantee that eligible students attending 
eligible schools will receive grants from Exceptional SC. Decisions on grants are made 
by Exceptional SC and will likely be impacted by the date when a school completes its 
initial application to participate in the ECENC Program. Schools are highly encouraged to 
meet all published deadlines.

Appendix C

32



9 
 

South Carolina Education Oversight Committee (EOC) 

Annual Standards Assurance Form 

 

School Year: 2022-23 

 

Application to Participate in 
Educational Credit for Exceptional Needs Children (ECENC) Program 

 

Please complete the information requested below concerning your independent school.  This information 

will be listed on the South Carolina Education Oversight Committee’s website, https://eoc.sc.gov/.  
 

Independent School Name:  

Independent School Contact 

Person: 
 

Independent School Address:  

City, State, Zip Code:  

Independent School Telephone 
Number:   (        ) -  

Independent School Fax Number:   (        ) - 

Independent School E-mail 
Address: 

 

Independent School Website 
Address: 

 

 

Please review the standards below that are based on Act 247 of 2018. An “eligible school” is defined as “an independent 
school including those religious in nature, other than a public school, at which the compulsory attendance requirements of 
Section 59-65-10 may be met.” Please indicate whether your school has met or intends to meet each standard to ensure the 
following academic and reporting requirements are met. The South Carolina Education Oversight Committee reserves the 
right to request additional documentation to show the school is in compliance with state law. Failure to meet these 
standards or reporting requirements will result in your school being denied or removed from participation in the program. 
 

STANDARDS YES NO 

1.  Offers a general education to primary or secondary school students.   
2.  Does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, or national origin.   

3.  Is located in this State.    
4.  Has an educational curriculum that includes courses set forth in the 
state’s diploma requirements, graduation certificate requirements for 

special needs children and where the students attending are 
administered national achievement or state standardized tests, or both, 

at progressive grade levels to determine student progress. 

  

5.  Has school facilities that are subject to applicable federal, state, and 

local laws.   
6.  Is a member in good standing of the Southern Association of Colleges 

and Schools, the South Carolina Association of Christian Schools, the 
South Carolina Independent Schools Association, or the Palmetto 
Association of Independent Schools. 

  

7.  Provides a specially designed program or learning resource center to 
provide needed accommodations based on the needs of exceptional 

needs students or provides onsite educational services or supports to 
meet the needs of exceptional needs students or is a school specifically 

existing to meet the needs of only exceptional needs students with 
documented disabilities.  

  

Appendix C

33

https://eoc.sc.gov/


10 
 

REPORTING REQUIREMENTS  YES NO 

1. At the time of your application to participate in the program, your 

school must submit Document A to the EOC and a statement of 
services that documents your school by February 28, 2022:  

(a) provides a specially designed program or learning resource 
to provide needed accommodations based on the needs of 
exceptional needs students; or 

(b) provides onsite educational services or supports to meet the 
needs of exceptional needs students; or 

(c) exists specifically to meet the needs of only exceptional 
needs students with documented disabilities. 

  

2. Your school will submit Document B to the EOC by June 30, 2022 
which documents the number and total dollar amount of grants 
received in the 2021-22 school year from Exceptional SC.  

  

3. Your school will submit directly to the EOC by September 1, 2022 
the school-level assessment results for all grades in the school 

and for each grade with at least (10) students tested. Results 
should be provided for English language arts (reading) and 

mathematics achievement of students in each grade tested in 
school year 2021-22 on Document C.  

  

4. If your school received grants from Exceptional SC in school year 
2021-22, the school would submit to the EOC a copy of a 
compilation, review, or compliance audit of the organization’s 

financial statements relating to the grants received, conducted by 
a certified public accounting firm by November 15, 2022.  

  

 

I assure that all documents submitted to the SC Education Oversight Committee for the purpose 

of applying as an eligible school, as defined by state law, is true, accurate, and complete under 

penalty of perjury in accordance with Section 16-9-10 of the South Carolina Code of Laws. 

Failure to report to the EOC the required data will result in the school being removed from the 

list of approved schools.  

 

Signature:  __________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Date:  ______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Print Name of Signature Above:  _________________________________________________________ 

 

Title:  ______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Email: _____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Return this form to the Education Oversight Committee  

• Phone:  803.734.6148 • E-mail: hjones@eoc.sc.gov • Mail: P.O. Box 11867, Columbia, S.C. 29211  

• Fax:    803.734.6167 

• Physical Location: Edgar A. Brown Building, Suite 502, 1205 Pendleton Street, Columbia, SC 29201

Appendix C

34

mailto:hjones@eoc.sc.gov


11 
 

Document A – Statement of Services 
Each school must provide a statement of services that documents how the school: 
 

(a) provides a specially designed program or learning resource to provide 
needed accommodations based on the needs of exceptional needs 
students; or 

(b) provides onsite educational services or supports to meet the needs of 
exceptional needs students; or 

(c) exists specifically to meet the needs of only exceptional needs students with 
documented disabilities. 

 
The statement of services must accompany the application to be considered for 
participation in the ECENC program.  
 
Schools can review applications from prior years on the EOC website (www.eoc.sc.gov) 
to see examples of what services are provided. The purpose of this document is to 
substantiate that the school does serve the needs of exceptional needs children/students. 
 
Please do not provide any Individualized Education Programs (IEPs), 504 plans, or any 
student-level information to the EOC. It is a violation of federal and state laws, and such 
information will be properly disposed of to maintain the privacy of students. 
  
  

Appendix C

35

http://www.eoc.sc.gov/


12 
 

Document A 
Statement of Services 

 
Educational Credit for Exceptional Needs Children (ECENC) Program 

2022-23 
 

 
 

Independent School Name: _____________________________ 
 

An independent school participating in the Educational Credit for Exceptional 
Needs Children is required to submit a Statement of Services that documents 

that the school at the time of your application to participate in the 
program: 

 

 
(a) provides a specially designed program or learning resource to 

provide needed accommodations based on the needs of 
exceptional needs students; or 

(b) provides onsite educational services or supports to meet the 
needs of exceptional needs students; or 

(c) exists specifically to meet the needs of only exceptional needs 
students with documented disabilities. 

 
Please sign below and attach a statement of services. 

 

 

Signature: ______________________________________________________________________ 

 

Date: ___________________________________________________________________ 

 

Print Name of Signature Above: ______________________________________________ 

 

Title:  __________________________________________________________________ 

 

Email: __________________________________________________________________ 

 
 

Appendix C

36



13 
 

Document B – Grants Received  
The first question asks how many students in kindergarten through grade 12 were 
enrolled in your school in the prior school year. This information is used to compare the 
school’s enrollment with the number of students who received grants from Exceptional 
SC. The EOC needs this information to determine which schools have at least 51 percent 
of the total enrolled students participating in the ECENC program. (Section 12-6-3790(E)(6)) 

Each school must also report the number and total dollar amount of grants received by 
the school in the prior school year from Exceptional SC. The total number of grants is 
defined as the number of individual children/students who received a grant from 
Exceptional SC in the prior school year even if the school received more than one grant 
or check for a specific child/student.  

If no grants for any student were received by the school in the prior year from Exceptional 
SC, please indicate “0” grants received and “$0” in total amount of grants received. All 
schools, including schools that did not participate in the program in the prior school year, 
must complete this document. 
 
Neither the EOC or its staff can answer any questions about the number and 
amount of grants received or questions about the status of grant applications. All 
questions regarding the grant process should be directed to Exceptional SC.  
 
Please do not send any information to the EOC that lists the names of students 
who received grants. Submission of such personally identifiable information 
violates state and federal privacy laws.

Appendix C

37



14 
 

Document B 
Grants Received 

 
Educational Credit for Exceptional Needs Children (ECENC) Program 

2022-23 
 

 
Independent School Name: _____________________________ 

 
An independent school participating in the ECENC Program is required to 

submit the following information by June 30: 

 

How many students in kindergarten through grade 12 were 

enrolled in your school in the prior school year? _______________ 

 

What is the total number of grants and total amount of grants 

received in the prior school year from Exceptional SC? Please complete 

the following chart and sign below.  

 
If no grants for any qualifying student were received from Exceptional SC in 

the prior school year, please indicate with “0” grants received and “$0” in 
total amount of grants received from Exceptional SC. 

 

Total Number of Grants 
Received 

Total Amount of Grants 
Received 

# $ 
 

Total number of grants is the number of individual children/students who 
received a grant even if the school received more than one grant for a 

specific child/student.  

 

 

Signature: ______________________________________________________________________ 

 

Date: ___________________________________________________________________ 

 

Print Name of Signature Above: ______________________________________________ 

 

Title:  __________________________________________________________________ 

 

Email: __________________________________________________________________

Appendix C

38



15 
 

If your school has failed to make the Educational Credits for Exceptional Children (ECENC) Program Standards 
as stated or Reporting Requirements by stated deadlines and has been removed or terminated from 
participation, please fill out this form and include corrections, attachments and/or letters to become eligible 
for reinstatement. 

Request for Review 
To be completed by a school administrator or program manager. Use black ink if completing by hand. 

General Information 
1. Person making request: 

 
2. School name: 

 
3. School address: 
 

 

4. School phone number: 
 

Change reason 
 School clerical error or delay*  Other 

See attached letter of justification/explanations 
Change requested: Requested effective date:  
 
 
 
 
If School error, explain in detail: 
 
 
 
 
 
Certification 
*Clerical errors made by the school administrator or program manager and delays in making stated deadlines of such 
documents shall not invalidate the statutory responsibility of the Education Oversight Committee (EOC) to remove or 
terminate the school from the ECENC Program. Upon notification of any such error or delay, the school has 10 working 
days to make the adjustment and/or submit required documents. Terminations or removals are processed immediately, 
and all related entities will be notified. 
 
If this request is denied, the school administrator or project manager must notify the EOC by copy of the form of your 
right to ask for a review by writing to the EOC within 30 days of notice of this decision. 
Signature of person completing form: 
 
 

Position 
& Email: 

Date: 

 Completed Document attached  Supporting documentation attached 
For EOC use only 
 Approved Effective date: 
 Denied Reason for denial: 

 
Mail completed form to: SC Education Oversight Committee  ATTN: ECENC Program  Edgar A. Brown Building, Suite 502  1205 Pendleton Street  
Columbia, SC 29201  Fax: 803.734.6167  Email: hjones@eoc.sc.gov   Questions: 803.734.2714 

Appendix C

39

mailto:hjones@eoc.sc.gov


16 
 

Appendix C

40



17 
 

Document C – Assessment Data 
All schools must provide school-level assessment data by September 1 that will be 
reported and documented online.  
 
Schools are asked to report which national assessments are administered at each 
grade level in English language arts (ELA)/reading and mathematics. If a school 
chooses to add other content areas, they may. At a minimum, the EOC needs to know 
which ELA/reading and mathematics assessments are administered. 
 
To maintain student privacy, the EOC is requesting schools report overall student results 
for all grades tested in the school and for each grade with at least 10 students tested. 
If each grade tested in the school had less than 10 students in the 2021-22 school year, 
a statement of that fact should be put on school letterhead and signed by a 
program/school administrator.  
 
Information should be provided for English language arts (reading) and mathematics 
achievement of students in the grade. Examples of national achievement tests include: 
TerraNova,Stanford 10, Iowa Test of Basic Skills, etc. For grades 9-12, the school may 
provide average PSAT, SAT, ACT, or other scores as appropriate. For schools that 
specifically exist to meet the needs of only exceptional needs students with documented 
disabilities, the EOC will work with the schools to provide information (including formative 
assessments, portfolios, etc.) that document the students’ academic and social 
development. 
 
Document C also asks for the name of at least one individual or employee of the 
school who will provide the School-Level Assessment Results administered on 
national achievement tests during the prior school year.  

Appendix C

41



18 
 

Document C 
Assessment Data 

 

Educational Credit for Exceptional Needs Children (ECENC) Program 
 

2022-23 
 

Independent School Name: _____________________________ 
 

A school applying for participation in the ECENC Program must provide directly to the 

EOC by September 1 the following: 

School-level Assessment Results 

In the chart below, please list the NAME of each national achievement 

test that was administered and the grade in which the test is 

administered for the prior school year.  Examples include: TerraNova, 
Stanford 10, Iowa Test of Basic Skills, MAP, PSAT, SAT, ACT, etc.  

For schools that specifically exist to meet the needs of only exceptional needs 

students with documented disabilities, please document how the school documents 

students’ academic and social development.  

Grade 
English language arts 

(Reading) 
Mathematics Other 

    

    

    

    

    

 
For each national assessment listed above and for each grade with at 

least 10 students tested, please attach the results from the prior 
school year.  The manual provides a template for schools to use in reporting the 

achievement level in mean scale scores, national percentile rankings, stanines, etc. 

 

The individual submitting school-level assessment information must 
sign below. 

 
Signature: ______________________________________________________________________ 

 

Date: ___________________________________________________________________ 

 

Print Name of Signature Above: ______________________________________________ 

 

Title:  __________________________________________________________________ 

 

Email: __________________________________________________________________ 

Appendix C

42



19 
 

Audit Clarification Letter 
State law requires that an independent school’s application to the Educational Credit for 
Exceptional Needs Children (ECENC) program include “a copy of a compilation, review, 
or compliance audit of the organization’s financial statements as relating to the grants 
received, conducted by a certified public accounting firm.” The term compliance audit 
refers to a determination of whether the school in the prior fiscal year complied with the 
requirements of the Educational Credit for Exceptional Needs Children Program.  
 
Annually, the EOC produces an audit clarification letter that a certified public accounting 
firm can use to determine a school’s compliance with the ECENC program by 
November 15, 2022. 
 

 

Completion of the Application Process for SY2022-23 
In an agreement with the SC Department of Revenue (DOR), the EOC will supply the 
names of schools in good standing with the ECENC Program to identify parents/taxpayers 
qualified for the Parental Refundable Tax Credit for Tax Year 2022. No school will be 
added/reinstated for the 2022-23 school year after the EOC’s submission to DOR. This 
completion of the Application Process allows the EOC to compile the annual report that 
is required by Act 247 to be issued to the General Assembly. The ECENC Program 
Application Process for SY2023-24 will begin in January 2023.  

Appendix C

43



20 
 

 

 

 

 

January 10, 2022:  

To Whom It May Concern: 

State law requires that an independent school’s application to the Educational Credit for 
Exceptional Needs Children (ECENC) program include “a copy of a compilation, review, or 
compliance audit of the organization’s financial statements as relating to the grants received, 
conducted by a certified public accounting firm.” 

  

The term compliance audit refers to a determination of whether the school in the prior fiscal year 
complied with the requirements of the Educational Credit for Exceptional Needs Children 
Program. The certified public accounting firm confirms in writing by November 15, 2022 that: 

 

• the independent school can document and verify that all grants received under the 
Educational Credit for Exceptional Needs Children Program in 2021-22 were for eligible 
children enrolled in the school; 

• the independent school can document the total amount of each grant per child from 
Exceptional SC;  

• the independent school can document that no grant exceeded $11,000 during school year 
2021-22;  

• the independent school returned a prorated amount of the grant to Exceptional SC if any 
student withdrew during the school year; and 

• the total amount of each grant was used for tuition which is defined as “the total amount 
of money charged for the cost of a qualifying student to attend an independent school 
including, but not limited to, fees for attending the school and school-related 
transportation." 

Sincerely, 

C. Matthew Ferguson, Esq. 
Executive Director 

Appendix C

44



21 
 

Appendix 
Act 247 of 2018 as Amended May 17, 2021  

Educational Credit for Exceptional Needs Children’s Fund 

SECTION 1. Article 25, Chapter 6, Title 12 of the 1976 Code is amended by adding: 
 
 “Section 12-6-3790. (A) As used in this section: 
 
(1) "Eligible school" means an independent school including those religious in nature, other than 
a public school, at which the compulsory attendance requirements of Section 59-65-10 may be 
met, that: 
 
(a) offers a general education to primary or secondary school students; 
 
(b) does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, or national origin; 
 
(c) is located in this State; 
 
(d) has an educational curriculum that includes courses set forth in the state's diploma 
requirements, graduation certificate requirements for special needs children, and where the 
students attending are administered national achievement or state standardized tests, or both, at 
progressive grade levels to determine student progress; 
 
(e) has school facilities that are subject to applicable federal, state, and local laws; 
 
(f) is a member in good standing of the Southern Association of Colleges and Schools, the South 
Carolina Association of Christian Schools, the South Carolina Independent Schools Association, 
or Palmetto Association of Independent Schools; and 
 
(g) provides a specially designed program or learning resource center to provide needed 
accommodations based on the needs of exceptional needs students or provides onsite 
educational services or supports to meet the needs of exceptional needs students, or is a school 
specifically existing to meet the needs of only exceptional needs students with documented 
disabilities. 
 
(2) "Exceptional needs child" means a child: 
 
(a) who has been evaluated in accordance with this state's evaluation criteria, as set forth in S.C. 
Code Ann. Regs. 43-243.1, and determined eligible as a child with a disability who needs special 
education and related services, in accordance with the requirements of Section 300.8 of the 
federal Individuals with Disabilities Education Act; or 
 
(b) who has been diagnosed within the last three years by a licensed speech-language 
pathologist, psychiatrist, or medical, mental health, psychoeducational, or other comparable 
licensed health care provider as having a neurodevelopmental disorder, a substantial sensory or 
physical impairment such as deaf, blind, or orthopedic disability, or some other disability or acute 
or chronic condition that significantly impedes the student's ability to learn and succeed in school 
without specialized instructional and associated supports and services tailored to the child's 
unique needs. 

Appendix C

45



22 
 

(3) "Independent school" means a school, other than a public school, at which the compulsory 
attendance requirements of Section 59-65-10 may be met and that does not discriminate based 
on the grounds of race, color, religion, or national origin. 
 
(4) "Parent" means the natural or adoptive parent or legal guardian of a child. 
 
(5) "Qualifying student" means a student who is an exceptional needs child, a South Carolina 
resident, and who is eligible to be enrolled in a South Carolina secondary or elementary public 
school at the kindergarten or later year level for the applicable school year. 
 
(6) "Resident public school district" means the public school district in which a student resides, or 
in the case of dependents of active military personnel, the public school district which the student 
may attend. 
 
(7) "Transportation" means transportation to and from school only. 
 
(8) "Tuition" means the total amount of money charged for the cost of a qualifying student to 
attend an independent school including, but not limited to, fees for attending the school, textbook 
fees, and school-related transportation. 
 
(B)(1) There is created the "Educational Credit for Exceptional Needs Children's Fund" that is 
separate and distinct from the state general fund. The fund must be organized as a public charity 
as defined by the Internal Revenue Code under Section 509(a)(1) through (4) and consist only of 
contributions made to the fund. The fund may not receive an appropriation of public funds. The 
fund must receive and hold all contributions intended for it as well as all earnings until disbursed 
as provided in this section. Monies received in the fund must be used to provide scholarships to 
exceptional needs children attending eligible schools. 
 
(2) The amounts on deposit in the fund do not constitute public funds and are not the property of 
the State. Amounts on deposit in the fund may not be commingled with public funds, and the State 
does not have a claim to or interest in the amounts on deposit. Agreements or contracts entered 
into by or on behalf of the fund do not constitute a debt or obligation of the State. 
 
(3) The public charity disbursing contributions made to the fund is governed by five directors, two 
appointed by the Chairman of the House Ways and Means Committee, two appointed by the 
Chairman of the Senate Finance Committee, and one appointed by the Governor. The directors 
of the public charity shall designate an executive director of the public charity. 
 
(4) The public charity directors shall administer the public charity including, but not limited to, the 
keeping of records, the management of accounts, and disbursement of the grants awarded 
pursuant to this section. The public charity may expend up to five percent of the fund for 
administration and related costs. The public charity may not expend public funds to administer 
the program. Information contained in or produced from a tax return, document, or magnetically 
or electronically stored data utilized by the Department of Revenue or the public charity in the 
exercise of its duties as provided in this section must remain confidential and is exempt from 
disclosure pursuant to the Freedom of Information Act. Personally identifiable information, as 
described in the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act and individual health records, or the 
medical or wellness needs of children applying for or receiving grants must remain confidential 
and is not subject to disclosure pursuant to the Freedom of Information Act. 
 

Appendix C

46



23 
 

(5) By January fifteenth of each year, the public charity shall report to the Chairman of the Senate 
Finance Committee, the Chairman of the House Ways and Means Committee, and the Governor: 
 
(a) the number and total amount of grants issued to eligible schools in each year; 
 
(b) the identity of the school and the amount of the grant for each grant issued to an eligible school 
in each year; 
 
(c) an itemized and detailed explanation of fees or other revenues obtained from or on behalf of 
an eligible school; 
 
(d) a copy of a compilation, review, or audit of the fund's financial statements, conducted by a 
certified public accounting firm; and 
 
(e) the criteria and eligibility requirements for scholarship awards. 
 
(C)(1) Grants may be awarded in an amount not exceeding eleven thousand dollars or the total 
annual cost of tuition, whichever is less, to a qualifying student at an eligible school. A qualifying 
student receiving a grant may not be charged tuition by an eligible school in an amount greater 
than the student would be charged if the student was not a qualifying student. 
 
(2) Before awarding a grant, the public charity shall receive written documentation from the 
qualifying student's parent or guardian documenting that the qualifying student is an exceptional 
needs child. Upon approving the application, the public charity shall issue a check to the eligible 
school in the name of the qualifying student within either thirty days upon approval of the 
application or thirty days of the start of the school's semester. 
 
(3) If a qualifying student leaves or withdraws from the school for any reason before the end of 
the semester or school year and does not reenroll within thirty days, then the eligible school shall 
return a prorated amount of the grant to the public charity based on the number of days the 
qualifying student was enrolled in the school during the semester or school year within sixty days 
of the qualifying student's departure. 
 
(4) The public charity may not award grants only for the benefit of one school. 
 
(5) The department or the public charity may not release personally identifiable information 
pertaining to students or donors or use information collected about donors, students, or schools 
for financial gain. 
 
(6) The public charity shall develop a process to prioritize the awarding of grants to eligible 
incumbent grant recipients at eligible schools. 
 
(D)(1)(a) Tax credits authorized by subsection (H)(1) and subsection (I) annually may not exceed 
cumulatively a total of twelve million dollars for contributions to the Educational Credit for 
Exceptional Needs Children's Fund, unless an increased limit is authorized in the annual general 
appropriations act. However, the fund may carry forward up to five million dollars of donations into 
the next year to provide credits in the next year. This carryforward amount does not in any way 
increase the cumulative tax credit amount set forth in this item for any one year. 
 
(b) Tax credits authorized pursuant to subsection (H)(2) annually may not exceed cumulatively a 
total of two million dollars for tuition payments made on behalf of qualifying students, unless an 

Appendix C

47



24 
 

increased limit is authorized in the annual general appropriations act. However, if less than the 
maximum cumulative total of tax credits allowed pursuant to subitem (a) are authorized, then, the 
maximum cumulative total of tax credits allowed pursuant to this subitem may be increased by up 
to three million dollars, but the cumulative total of all tax credits authorized pursuant to this section 
may not be increased as a result. 
 
(c) If the department determines that the total of the credits claimed by all taxpayers exceeds 
either limit amount as contained in subitems (a) or (b), it shall allow credits only up to those 
amounts on a first come, first-served basis. 
 
(2)(a) The department shall establish an application process to determine the amount of credit 
available to be claimed. The receipt of the application by the department determines priority for 
the credit. The credit must be claimed on the return for the tax year that the contribution is made. 
 
(b) A taxpayer may not claim more than seventy-five percent of his total tax liability for the year in 
contribution toward the tax credit authorized by subsection (H)(1) or subsection (I). This credit is 
nonrefundable. Any unused credit may be carried forward three tax years after the tax year in 
which the qualified contribution is first eligible to be claimed. 
 
(c) If a taxpayer deducts the amount of the contribution on his federal return and claims the credit 
allowed by subsection (H)(1) or subsection (I), then he must add back the amount of the deduction 
for purposes of South Carolina income taxes. 
 
(d) The department shall prescribe the form and manner of proof required to obtain the credit 
authorized by subsection (H)(1) or subsection (I). The department also shall develop a method of 
informing taxpayers if the credit limit is met any time during the tax year. 
 
(e) A taxpayer only may claim a credit pursuant to subsection (H)(1) and subsection (I) for 
contributions made during the tax year. 
 
(3) A corporation or entity entitled to a credit under subsection (H)(1) and subsection (I) may not 
convey, assign, or transfer the credit authorized by this section to another entity unless all of the 
assets of the entity are conveyed, assigned, or transferred in the same transaction. 
 
(E)(1) By March first of each year, an independent school who participated in the program in the 
previous year and who desires to participate in the program in the current year shall reapply to 
the Education Oversight Committee. The independent school shall certify to the Education 
Oversight Committee that it continues to meet all program requirements and shall provide to the 
committee student test score data from the previous school year by June thirtieth. If student test 
score data is not submitted by June thirtieth, then the Education Oversight Committee shall 
remove the school from the program. An independent school desiring to participate in the program 
for the first time also shall apply by March first of each year. The Education Oversight Committee 
shall consult with the Southern Association of Colleges and Schools, the South Carolina 
Association of Christian Schools, the South Carolina Independent Schools Association, the 
Palmetto Association of Independent Schools, or the Diocese of Charleston to verify that the 
school is still a member in good standing and that the school continues to serve exceptional needs 
children. An independent school who did not participate in the program in the previous year but 
desires to participate in the program in the current year shall apply to the Education Oversight 
Committee. The Education Oversight Committee shall develop an application to be completed by 
the independent schools which must contain at least: 
 

Appendix C

48



25 
 

(a) the number and total amount of grants received in the preceding school year; 
 
(b) student test scores, by category, on national achievement or state standardized tests, or both, 
for all grades tested and administered by the school receiving or entitled to receive scholarship 
grants pursuant to this section in the previous school year; 
 
(c) a copy of a compilation, review, or compliance audit of the organization's financial statements 
as relating to the grants received, conducted by a certified public accounting firm; and 
 
(d) a certification by the independent school that it meets the definition of an eligible school as 
that term is defined in subsection (A)(1) and that the report is true, accurate, and complete under 
penalty of perjury in accordance with Section 16-9-10. 
 
(2)(a) The Education Oversight Committee may waive the March first deadline contained in 
subsection (E) upon good cause shown by an independent school. 
 
(b) The Education Oversight Committee may waive some or all of the curriculum requirements 
contained in subsection (A)(1)(d) following consultation with the advisory committee. 
 
(3)(a) By March first of each year the Education Oversight Committee shall publish on its website 
a comprehensive list of independent schools certified as eligible institutions. The list must include 
for each eligible institution: 
 
(i) the institution's name, addresses, telephone numbers, and, if available, website addresses; 
and 
 
(ii) the score reports and compliance audits received by the committee pursuant to subsection 
(E)(1)(b) and (c). 
 
(b) The Education Oversight Committee shall summarize or redact the score reports identified in 
subitem (a)(ii) if necessary to prevent the disclosure of personally identifiable information. 
 
(4) An independent school that does not apply for certification pursuant to this subsection may 
not be included on the list of eligible schools and contributions to that school may not be allowed 
for purposes of the tax credits permitted by this section. 
 
(5) An independent school that is denied certification pursuant to this section may seek review by 
filing a request for a contested case hearing with the Administrative Law Court in accordance with 
the court's rules of procedure. 
 
(6) Annually, the Education Oversight Committee shall issue a report to the General Assembly 
documenting the impact of the Educational Credit for Exceptional Needs Children Program on 
student achievement. In addition, the report must include information on individual schools if at 
least fifty-one percent of the total enrolled students in the private school participated in the 
Educational Credit for Exceptional Needs Children Program in the prior school year. The report 
must be according to each participating private school, and for participating students, in which 
there are at least thirty participating students who have scores for tests administered. If the 
Education Oversight Committee determines that the thirty participating-student cell size may be 
reduced without disclosing personally identifiable information of a participating student, the 
Education Oversight Committee may reduce the participating-student cell size, but the cell size 
may not be reduced to less than ten participating students. 

Appendix C

49



26 
 

(F)(1) The Education Oversight Committee shall establish an advisory committee made up of not 
more than nine members, including parents, and representatives of independent schools and 
independent school associations. 
 
(2) The advisory committee shall: 
 
(a) consult with the Education Oversight Committee concerning requests for exemptions from 
curriculum requirements; and 
 
(b) provide recommendations on other matters requested by the Education Oversight Committee. 
 
(G) Except as otherwise provided, the Department of Education, the Education Oversight 
Committee, and the Department of Revenue, or any other state agency may not regulate the 
educational program of an independent school that accepts students receiving scholarship grants 
pursuant to this section. 
 
(H)(1) A taxpayer is entitled to a tax credit against income taxes imposed pursuant to this chapter 
for the amount of cash and the monetary value of any publicly traded securities the taxpayer 
contributes to the Educational Credit for Exceptional Needs Children's Fund up to the limits 
contained in subsection (D)(1)(a) if: 
 
(a) the contribution is used to provide grants for tuition to exceptional needs children enrolled in 
eligible schools who qualify for these grants under the provisions of this section; and 
 
(b) the taxpayer does not designate a specific child or school as the beneficiary of the contribution. 
 
(2)(a) A taxpayer is entitled to a refundable tax credit against income taxes imposed pursuant to 
this chapter for the amount of cash and the monetary value of any publicly traded securities, not 
exceeding eleven thousand dollars for each child, for tuition payments to an eligible school for an 
exceptional needs child within his custody or care who would be eligible for a grant pursuant to 
this section up to the limits contained in subsection (D)(1)(b). 
 
(b) If a child within the care and custody of a taxpayer claiming a tax credit pursuant to this item 
also receives a grant from the Educational Credit for Exceptional Needs Children's Fund, then the 
taxpayer only may claim a credit equal to the difference of eleven thousand dollars or the cost of 
tuition, whichever is lower, and the amount of the grant. 
 
(c) A child within the care and custody of a taxpayer claiming a tax credit pursuant to this item 
may not be charged tuition by an eligible school in an amount greater than the student would be 
charged if the student was not a qualifying student. 
 
(I) A taxpayer is entitled to a tax credit against income taxes imposed pursuant to Chapter 11, 
Title 12 for the amount of cash and the monetary value of any publicly traded securities the 
taxpayer contributes to the Educational Credit for Exceptional Needs Children's Fund up to the 
limits contained in subsection (D)(1)(a) if: 
 
(1) the contribution is used to provide grants for tuition to exceptional needs children enrolled in 
eligible schools who qualify for these grants under the provisions of this section; and 
 
(2) the taxpayer does not designate a specific child or school as the beneficiary of the contribution. 
 

Appendix C

50



27 
 

(J)(1) The department shall conduct a comprehensive study of the Exceptional Needs Tax Credit 
program. The study must examine the following: 
 
(a) the allocation of scholarship funds and tax credits among students, including the effect of 
funding limitations on the addition of new participants; the demographic and socio-economic data 
of the participants and their families, including the distribution of scholarship funds by income 
ranges, to be determined by the department, of scholarship recipients, and their legal guardians, 
as applicable; and the geographical distribution of the participants. In reporting the information 
required by this subitem, the department shall protect and may not display any personally 
identifiable information of scholarship recipients, their families or legal guardians, or taxpayers; 
 
(b) the distribution of scholarship funds among all eligible schools; and 
 
(c) any other aspect of the program that the department determines would be relevant and useful 
in making future policy decisions in regard to the program and its continued existence or 
expansion. 
 
(2) The department shall submit a report of its study to the General Assembly no later than 
January fifteenth of each year. 
 
HISTORY: 2018 Act No. 247 (H.4077), Section 1, eff May 18, 2018; 2021 Act No. 79 (H.3899), 
Sections 1 to 4, eff May 17, 2021. 
 
Code Commissioner's Note 
 
At the direction of the Code Commissioner, the amendments to (D)(1) made by 2021 Act No. 79, 
Sections 2.A and 4, were read together. 
 
Editor's Note 
 
2018 Act No. 247, Section 2, provides as follows: 
 
"SECTION 2. This act takes effect upon approval of the Governor and applies to income tax years 
beginning after 2017. All tax credits earned as a result of a contribution made to the Educational 
Credit for the Exceptional Needs Children's Fund in 2018 apply to the cumulative total of twelve 
million dollars regardless of when in 2018 the contribution is made. All tax credits earned as a 
result of a tuition payment made by a taxpayer to an eligible school for an exceptional needs child 
within his custody or care in 2018 apply to the cumulative total of two million dollars regardless of 
when in 2018 the payment is made. All necessary reports and forms must be submitted as soon 
as practicable upon the enactment of this act." 
 
Effect of Amendment 
 
2021 Act No. 79, Section 1, in (B), in (3), in the second sentence, deleted ", along with the director 
of the department," following "public charity", in (4), in the first sentence, substituted "The public 
charity directors shall administer" for "In concert with the public charity directors, the department 
shall administer", in the second sentence, substituted "five percent" for "two percent", and in the 
third sentence, substituted "The public charity" for "The department and the public charity", and 
in (5), substituted "public charity" for "department". 
 
2021 Act No. 79, Section 2.A, in (D)(1)(a), added the second and third sentences. 

Appendix C

51



28 
 

2021 Act No. 79, Section 2.B, in (D)(2)(b), in the first sentence, substituted "seventy-five percent" 
for "sixty percent", and added the third sentence. 
 
2021 Act No. 79, Section 3, in (E)(1)(b), deleted the second, third, and fourth sentences, which 
related to schools providing individual student test scores on national achievement or state 
standardized tests. 
 
2021 Act No. 79, Section 4, in (D)(1)(b), added the second sentence. 
 
Time effective 
 
SECTION    5.    This act takes effect upon approval by the Governor. 
 
Ratified the 13th day of May, 2021. 
 
Approved the 17th day of May, 2021. 
 
 
 

Contact Information 
 

For questions about the application process by which schools apply to 
participate in the ECENC program, please contact the Education Oversight 
Committee. 

Phone: 803.734.6148 
 
Mail: P.O. Box 11867 

Columbia, S.C. 29211  
 
Fax: 803.734.6167 
 
Physical Location: 

Edgar A. Brown Building, Suite 502 
1205 Pendleton Street 
Columbia, SC 29201 

 
Website: https://eoc.sc.gov/ 

 

For questions about grants awarded to schools on behalf of eligible students 
attending eligible schools, please contact Exceptional SC. 

 

Appendix C

52

https://eoc.sc.gov/


2021-2022 STUDY OF  

EDUCATIONAL CREDIT FOR 

EXCEPTIONAL NEEDS  

CHILDREN PROGRAM 

South Carolina Department of Revenue 
300A Outlet Pointe Blvd | Columbia, SC 29210 | dor.sc.gov 

January 17, 2023 

Appendix D

53



 1 

CONTENTS 

INTRODUCTION 

SCHOLARSHIP FUNDS 

DONOR TAX CREDIT 

PARENTAL TAX CREDIT 

STUDENTS 

SCHOOLS 

GRANTS BY SCHOOL 

DATA BY COUNTY 

CONTACTS 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

11 

12 

 

Appendix D

54



 2 

INTRODUCTION 
This study was prepared in accordance with Act 247 of 2018, as amended in 2021, 

regarding the Educational Credit for Exceptional Needs Children (ECENC) program. The 

data and information contained in this study are from tax year 2021 and fiscal year 2022 

(FY22) and were provided by the South Carolina Department of Revenue (SCDOR), the 

South Carolina Education Oversight Committee (EOC), and Exceptional SC.  

 

The ECENC program was reorganized under a proviso in 2016 to better serve South 

Carolina’s exceptional needs students. The program was codified under Act 247 in 2018 

and was amended in 2021.  

SOUTH CAROLINA DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE 

The SCDOR oversees the tax credit for Exceptional SC donors as well as the 

process for eligible parents to reserve, apply, and receive the Parental 

Refundable Tax Credit.  

 

The SCDOR conducts a study of the ECENC program as prescribed in Act 247 of 

2018, amended in 2021.  

 

 

SOUTH CAROLINA EDUCATION OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE  

The EOC determines the eligibility of schools to participate in the ECENC 

program. Once a school is designated as eligible, it must submit an annual 

compliance audit to maintain eligibility.  

 

 

EXCEPTIONAL SC  

Exceptional SC is a 501(c)(3) that provides scholarship grants to exceptional 

needs students in South Carolina to attend credentialed private schools.  

 

Exceptional SC fundraises, accepts and reviews student grant applications, and 

awards scholarship grants based on a number of criteria. Students who are 

awarded the scholarship must attend a school that the EOC has approved for 

program participation. 

Appendix D

55



 3 

SCHOLARSHIP FUNDS 
To be eligible for a scholarship from Exceptional SC, students must be residents of South 

Carolina, be eligible to attend a public school, complete an application with proof of 

disability (Medical/Professional Form or Educator Eligibility Form), and must attend an 

EOC approved school. Per legislation, scholarships are awarded to incumbents (students 

who have previously participated in the program) first and then to students who are new 

to the program.  

FY22 BOARD MEMBERS 

Mr. Edward Earwood  

Executive Director, South Carolina 

Association of Christian Schools 

Mrs. Betsy Fanning 

Head of School, Trident Academy 

Dr. Spencer Jordan  

Director, South Carolina Independent 

School Association 

Dr. Randy Page 

Chief of Staff, Bob Jones University 

$5,476,184.67 
total tax year 2021 

donations 

1,365 
total scholarship 

recipients (315 new 

and 1,050 incumbent) 

$3,650 
average incumbent 

scholarship grant 

$3,649 
average new student 

scholarship grant 

$4,961,300 
total amount of 

scholarships 

disbursed FY22 

Data provided by Exceptional SC.  

Appendix D

56



 4 

Individuals and corporations who pay South Carolina taxes are eligible to donate to the 

Exceptional SC 501(c)(3) scholarship fund. Donations to Exceptional SC are claimed as 

state tax credits.  

South Carolina 

individuals and/or 

businesses make 

a donation to 

Exceptional SC. 

Donors complete the 

Exceptional SC 

Donation Form, and 

Exceptional SC 

notifies the SCDOR of 

the donation.  

The SCDOR confirms 

the credit amount, 

provided the 

statewide $12 million 

cap has not been met. 

Donors claim the 

credit amount with 

their SC income taxes 

using SC1040TC or 

SC1120TC (code 057).  

For tax year 2021, donors were:  

- Eligible to claim a dollar-for-dollar credit on state income tax liability 

 - or entitled to a tax credit against bank taxes imposed pursuant to Chapter 11, Title 12  

- Limited to a maximum credit claim that is 75% of their one-year tax liability  

- Not allowed to designate a specific student or school as beneficiary  

- Limited by a first come, first served annual statewide cap of $12 million 

$5,476,184.67 

donor credits 

issued 

$23,303 

average gift per 

donor 

235 

total donors 

Data provided by the SCDOR.  

DONOR TAX CREDIT 
Appendix D

57



 5 

PARENTAL TAX CREDIT 
Parents or guardians of exceptional needs students attending eligible schools can apply 

for a refundable tax credit (referred to as Parental Refundable Credit) toward their South 

Carolina income tax bill. Parental Refundable Credits can only be claimed for actual out-of

-pocket spending on tuition, up to $11,000. There is a statewide cap of $2 million, with a 

possibility to be raised to $5 million. Credits are reserved on a first come, first served 

basis. For tax year 2021, the credit cap was $5 million.  

Parents make a tuition 

payment to an eligible 

school for their 

exceptional needs 

student.  

The SCDOR confirms 

the “reservation” of a 

Parental Tax Credit, so 

long as the statewide 

cap has not been met. 

When the parent files 

SC income taxes, the 

Parental Tax Credit 

amount is used to 

complete Form I-361. 

936 

applicants 

564 

recipients 

$8,865 

average credit 

per recipient 

Data provided by the SCDOR.  

$7,842,920  
total tax year 2021 credits applied for 

Parents complete and 

submit Form TC-57A 

online to request the 

credit. Parents should 

retain documentation 

of the child’s eligibility 

for their own records.  

$5 million credits approved 

Appendix D

58



 6 

STUDENTS 
Act 247 calls for reporting demographic and socio-economic data for participants and 

their families, including the distribution of scholarship funds by income ranges. Applicants 

reported the information below.  

PARENTAL TAX CREDIT RECIPIENTS 

Household Income 

Range 

# of 

Recipients 

$0-50,000  20 

$50,001-100,000  87 

$100,001-150,000  119 

$150,001-200,000  77 

$200,001-250,000  49 

$250,001-300,000  60 

$300,001+  122 

Data reported by applicants on credit application—not all applicants responded 

Ages # of Students 

5-10 195 

11-15 273 

16+ 95 

No response 1 

$7,375 
avg. estimated additional 

expenses from caring for 

exceptional needs child 

1 
average number of 

exceptional needs 

children in household 

2 
average number of 

children in 

household 

SCHOLARSHIP RECIPIENTS 

Household Income 

Range 

# of 

Recipients 

$0-50,000  119 

$50,001-100,000  256 

$100,001-150,000  344 

$150,001-200,000  380 

$200,001-250,000  127 

$250,001-300,000  95 

$300,001+  44 

Data reported by applicants on scholarship application—not all applicants responded 

Ages # of Students 

5-10 496 

11-15 564 

16+ 304 

No response 0 

$6,000 
avg. estimated additional 

expenses from caring for 

exceptional needs child 

1 
average number of 

exceptional needs 

children in household 

2.5 
average number of 

children in 

household 

347 male 

217 female 

757 male 

608 female 

Appendix D

59



 7 

Schools apply to the EOC to participate in the ECENC program. A list of eligible schools is 

available on the EOC’s website (eoc.sc.gov). 

SCHOOLS 

114 eligible schools 

93  
schools received 

funding  

27  
counties with at least 

one eligible school 

To receive an Exceptional SC scholarship grant for an exceptional needs student, the school must:  
 Be a private primary or secondary school physically located within South Carolina;  
 Not discriminate on basis of race, color, or national origin in their admission of students;  
 Use a curriculum which includes courses listed in state diploma requirements;  
 Use national or state standardized testing and provide test scores to the EOC;  
 Have physical facilities that meet local, state and/or federal laws;  
 Be a member of SACS, SCACS, Palmetto Association of Independent Schools, and/or SCISA;  
 Complete an annual compliance audit.  

 
Each year, private schools interested in participating in this program must apply for eligibility with the EOC. This 
application process helps protect students and families by ensuring schools meet and continue to meet the 
program eligibility requirements.  
 
To be considered for eligibility, a school must initially provide the EOC with:  

 Information on the school’s eligibility,  
 Assessment score data from the previous school year,  
 The number of grants received in the previous school year,  
 A copy of an audit of the organization’s financial statements relating to the grants received,  
 A Statement of Services with information on the services and/or resources exceptional needs 

students receive and what needs those services are geared toward.  
 
School eligibility for participation occurs during the school year. The information provided by the EOC to the 
SCDOR is based on the fiscal year.  

Data provided by the EOC and Exceptional SC.  

Appendix D

60



 8 

The EOC approved 114 schools to participate in the ECENC program for FY22. The 

following 93 schools received funding from grants issued by Exceptional SC to 

scholarship recipients.  

Data provided by Exceptional SC.  

ELIGIBLE SCHOOL  VALUE OF GRANTS ISSUED NUMBER OF GRANTS 

1. All Saints Episcopal Day School $14,200 <10 

2. Anderson Christian School $18,700 <10 

3. Ascent Christian Academy $5,500 <10 

4. Ashley Hall $31,400 <10 

5. Ben Lippen School $77,400  24 

6. Bishop England High School $148,000 40 

7. Blessed Sacrament School $10,300 <10 

8. Bob Jones Academy $44,000 27 

9. Calvary Christian School—Greer $26,600 13 

10. Camden Military Academy $53,100 <10 

11. Camperdown Academy  $797,000 134 

12. Cardinal Newman School $164,200 47 

13. Charis Academy $11,000 <10 

14. Charleston Collegiate School $38,000 10 

15. Charleston Day School $29,500 <10 

16. Christ Church Episcopal School $393,300 88 

17. Christ Our King-Stella Maris Catholic School $25,500 15 

18. Clarendon Hall School $1,100 <10 

19. Coastal Christian Preparatory School $8,300 <10 

20. Colleton Preparatory Academy $56,700 21 

21. Cross Schools $10,800 <10 

22. Crown Leadership Academy $22,700 12 

23. Divine Redeemer Catholic School $1,300 <10 

24. Easley Christian School $3,400 <10 

25. Einstein Academy $15,500 <10 

26. First Baptist School of Charleston $5,100 <10 

27. First Presbyterian Academy $61,200 19 

28. Five Oaks Academy $2,700 <10 

29. Glenforest School  $139,700 30 

30. Grace Christian School $2,800 <10 

GRANTS BY SCHOOL 
Appendix D

61



 9 

Data provided by Exceptional SC.  

ELIGIBLE SCHOOL  NUMBER OF GRANTS VALUE OF GRANTS ISSUED 

31. Hammond School 13 $60,700 

32. Hampton Park Christian School 11 $19,600 

33. Harvest Community School <10 $1,200 

34. Heathwood Hall Episcopal School 25 $118,700 

35. Hidden Treasure Christian School 46 $230,000 

36. Hilton Head Christian Academy 10 $38,600  

37. Holy Trinity Catholic School <10 $11,200 

38. HOPE Academy 37 $96,200 

39. Hope Christian Academy <10 $36,000 

40. James Island Christian School <10 $4,600 

41. John Paul II Catholic School <10 $26,400 

42. Mason Preparatory School <10 $29,600 

43. Mead Hall Episcopal School <10 $4,300 

44. Miracle Academy Preparatory School 23 $66,700 

45. Mitchell Road Christian Academy 14 $39,700 

46. Montessori School of Anderson <10 $2,500 

47. Montessori School of Florence <10 $4,200 

48. Nativity Catholic School <10 $7,100 

49. Newberry Academy <10 $9,700 

50. North Walterboro Christian Academy <10 $1,600 

51. Northside Christian Academy <10 $12,900 

52. Oakbrook Preparatory School 16 $43,000 

53. Oconee Christian Academy <10 $9,300 

54. Orangeburg Preparatory Schools, Inc.  <10 $6,400 

55. Our Lady of Peace Catholic School 31 $46,500 

56. Our Lady of the Rosary Catholic School 27 $63,400 

57. Palmetto Christian Academy—Mt. Pleasant 19 $47,000 

58. Patrick Henry Academy  13 $14,300 

59. Pee Dee Academy <10 $4,200 

60. Porter-Gaud School <10 $37,500 

61. Prince of Peace Catholic School <10 $3,600 

62. Ridge Christian Academy 11 $20,200 

GRANTS BY SCHOOL 
Appendix D

62



 10 

Data provided by Exceptional SC.  

ELIGIBLE SCHOOL  NUMBER OF GRANTS VALUE OF GRANTS 

63. Sandhills School 74 $431,700 

64. Southside Christian School 78 $244,500 

65. Spartanburg Christian Academy <10 $10,200 

66. Spartanburg Day School 21 $118,500 

67. St. Andrew Catholic School 10 $20,000 

68. St. Anne Catholic School—Rock Hill 14 $27,100 

69. St. Anthony Catholic School—Florence <10 $10,000 

70. St. Anthony of Padua Catholic School  12 $38,400 

71. St. Elizabeth Ann Seton Catholic High School <10 $6,500 

72. St. Francis by the Sea Catholic School <10 $2,800 

73. St. Gregory the Great Catholic School <10 $1,500 

74. St. John Catholic School—Charleston  <10 $37,800 

75. St. John Neumann Catholic School 15 $39,000 

76. St. John’s Christian Academy 13 $19,700 

77. St. Joseph Catholic School—Columbia 11 $18,700 

78. St. Joseph’s Catholic School—Greenville 24 $92,800 

79. St. Mary Help of Christians Catholic School <10 $12,000 

80. St. Peter’s Catholic School—Beaufort <10 $2,000 

81. Step of Faith Christian Academy <10 $1,000 

82. Summerville Catholic School <10 $1,600 

83. Sumter Christian School <10 $2,300 

84. The Chandler School 38 $182,000 

85. The Charleston Catholic School  17 $42,500 

86. The King’s Academy 17 $54,700 

87. The Timmerman School <10 $8,800 

88. Thomas Heyward Academy <10 $13,500 

89. Thomas Sumter Academy <10 $5,600 

90. Trident Academy 28 $199,200 

91. Walnut Grove Christian School <10 $12,000 

92. Westgate Christian School <10 $2,200 

93. Westminster Catawba Christian School 19 $65,300 

GRANTS BY SCHOOL 
Appendix D

63



 11 

The chart below provides the number of eligible schools, Exceptional SC scholarship 

recipients, and Parental Tax Credit recipients by county. For FY22, 19 of South 

Carolina’s 46 counties did not have an eligible school participate in the program.  

Data provided by Exceptional SC (grant recipients), the SCDOR (credit recipients), and the EOC (schools).  

SC County 
# of Grant 

Recipients 

# of Credit 

Recipients 

# of Eligible 

Schools 

Abbeville 0 0 0 

Aiken <10 <10 3 

Allendale 0 0 0 

Anderson <10 15 4 

Bamberg 0 0 0 

Barnwell 0 0 0 

Beaufort 17 13 8 

Berkeley 26 14 5 

Calhoun <10 <10 1 

Charleston 288 67 19 

Cherokee 0 0 0 

Chester <10 0 1 

Chesterfield 0 <10 0 

Clarendon <10 <10 2 

Colleton 21 <10 2 

Darlington 0 <10 0 

Dillon 0 0 0 

Dorchester 20 <10 2 

Edgefield 0 0 0 

Fairfield 0 <10 0 

Florence 27 <10 0 

Georgetown 0 0 1 

Greenville 345 276 18 

SC County 
# of Grant 

Recipients 

# of Credit 

Recipients 

# of Eligible 

Schools 

Greenwood 0 0 1 

Hampton 13 <10 1 

Horry 18 <10 6 

Jasper <10 0 3 

Kershaw 10 <10 1 

Lancaster 0 <10 1 

Laurens 0 0 0 

Lee 0 0 0 

Lexington 124 26 3 

Marion <10 0 1 

Marlboro 0 0 0 

McCormick 0 0 0 

Newberry <10 <10 0 

Oconee <10 <10 2 

Orangeburg <10 0 1 

Pickens <10 10 1 

Richland 271 72 13 

Saluda 0 0 0 

Spartanburg 67 29 4 

Sumter 16 <10 3 

Union 0 0 0 

Williamsburg 0 <10 0 

York 47 <10 4 

DATA BY COUNTY 
Appendix D

64



 12 

CONTACTS 

SOUTH CAROLINA DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE 

Hartley Powell 

Director 

803-898-5040 

Director@dor.sc.gov 

 

Meredith Cleland 

Government Services  

803-898-5402 

Meredith.Cleland@dor.sc.gov 

 

Bonnie Swingle 

803-898-5281 

Bonnie.Swingle@dor.sc.gov 

 

SOUTH CAROLINA EDUCATION OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE 

Matthew Ferguson, Esq. 

Executive Director 

803-734-6148 

mferguson@eoc.sc.gov 

 

EXCEPTIONAL SC 

Edward Earwood 

Chairman of the Board 

843-513-5010 

eearwood@christianeducation.org 

 

Appendix D

65



66



Ap
pe

nd
ix

 E:
 A

ss
es

sm
en

ts
 o

ffe
re

d 
by

 EC
EN

C 
Ap

pr
ov

ed
 Sc

ho
ol

s i
n 

20
21

-2
2 

 

 Sc
ho

ol
 

St
an

fo
rd

 
10

 
2-

8 

Io
w

a 

As
se

ss
m

en
t 

K5
- 1

1 

AC
T 

As
pi

re
 

3-
8 

PS
A 

T 
8/

9 

7-
9 

PS
AT

 
(N

M
SQ

) 
8-

11
 

SA
T 

11
-1

2 
AC

T 
7-

12
 

ER
Bs

 

CT
P 

4 

3-
6 

O
LS

AT
 

1-
8 

M
AP

 

K-
 1

0 

ER
B 9 

W
RA

T-
5 

3-
8 

Co
g 

At
 

8-
12

 
Te

rr
a

N
ov

a 
Ai

m
sw

eb
 

W
oo

dc
oc

k 

Jo
hn

so
n 

IV
 

AP
 

Pr
e 

AC
T 

G
at

es
 

M
ac

G
in

iti
e 

To
w

re
 

Ad
dl

es
to

ne
 

He
br

ew
 

Ac
ad

em
y 


 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

An
de

rs
on

 
Ch

ris
tia

n 
Sc

ho
ol

 
 


 


 

 

 


 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

As
ce

nt
 

Ch
ris

tia
n 

Ac
ad

em
y 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

As
hl

ey
 H

al
l 

 
 


 

 

 

 
 


 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Be
au

fo
rt

 
Ac

ad
em

y 
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Be
n 

Li
pp

en
 

Sc
ho

ol
 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 
 


 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Bi
sh

op
 

En
gl

an
d 

Hi
gh

 Sc
ho

ol
 

 
 

 
 

 


 

 

 
 


 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Bl
es

se
d 

Sa
cr

am
en

t 
Sc

ho
ol

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 
 


 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Bo
b 

Jo
ne

s 
Ac

ad
em

y 
 


 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Ca
lh

ou
n 

Ac
ad

em
y 


 

 
 


 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Ca
m

de
n 

M
ili

ta
ry

 
Ac

ad
em

y 
 

 
 


 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Ca
m

pe
rd

ow
n 

Ac
ad

em
y 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 


 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Ca
rd

in
al

 

Ne
w

m
an

 
Sc

ho
ol

 

 
 

 
 


 


 


 
 

 


 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

67



Ap
pe

nd
ix

 E:
 A

ss
es

sm
en

ts
 o

ffe
re

d 
by

 EC
EN

C 
Ap

pr
ov

ed
 Sc

ho
ol

s i
n 

20
21

-2
2 

 

 Sc
ho

ol
 

St
an

fo
rd

 
10

 
2-

8 

Io
w

a 

As
se

ss
m

en
t 

K5
- 1

1 

AC
T 

As
pi

re
 

3-
8 

PS
A 

T 
8/

9 

7-
9 

PS
AT

 
(N

M
SQ

) 
8-

11
 

SA
T 

11
-1

2 
AC

T 
7-

12
 

ER
Bs

 

CT
P 

4 

3-
6 

O
LS

AT
 

1-
8 

M
AP

 

K-
 1

0 

ER
B 9 

W
RA

T-
5 

3-
8 

Co
g 

At
 

8-
12

 
Te

rr
a

N
ov

a 
Ai

m
sw

eb
 

W
oo

dc
oc

k 

Jo
hn

so
n 

IV
 

AP
 

Pr
e 

AC
T 

G
at

es
 

M
ac

G
in

iti
e 

To
w

re
 

Ca
ro

lin
a 

Ch
ris

tia
n 

Ac
ad

em
y 

 


 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 


 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Ch
ab

ad
 

Je
w

ish
 

Ac
ad

em
y 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 


 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Ch
ar

is 
Ac

ad
em

y 


 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Ch
ar

le
st

on
 

Co
lle

gi
at

e 
Sc

ho
ol

 
 

 
 

 
 


 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Ch
ar

le
st

on
 

Da
y 

Sc
ho

ol
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 


 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Ch
er

ok
ee

 
Cr

ee
k B

oy
s 

Sc
ho

ol
, In

c.
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 


 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Ch
ris

t C
hu

rc
h 

Ep
isc

op
al

 
Sc

ho
ol

 
 

 
 


 

 
 

 


 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Ch
ris

t O
ur

 
Ki

ng
-S

te
lla

 
M

ar
is 

Ca
th

ol
ic

 
Sc

ho
ol

 

 
 

 
 


 


 


 
 

 


 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Cl
ar

en
do

n 
Ha

ll 

Sc
ho

ol
 

 


 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Co
as

ta
l C

hr
ist

ia
n 

Pr
ep

ar
at

or
y 

Sc
ho

ol
 

 


 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Co
lle

to
n 

Pr
ep

ar
at

or
y 

Ac
ad

em
y 

 
 


 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

68



Ap
pe

nd
ix

 E:
 A

ss
es

sm
en

ts
 o

ffe
re

d 
by

 EC
EN

C 
Ap

pr
ov

ed
 Sc

ho
ol

s i
n 

20
21

-2
2 

 

 Sc
ho

ol
 

St
an

fo
rd

 
10

 
2-

8 

Io
w

a 

As
se

ss
m

en
t 

K5
- 1

1 

AC
T 

As
pi

re
 

3-
8 

PS
A 

T 
8/

9 

7-
9 

PS
AT

 
(N

M
SQ

) 
8-

11
 

SA
T 

11
-1

2 
AC

T 
7-

12
 

ER
Bs

 

CT
P 

4 

3-
6 

O
LS

AT
 

1-
8 

M
AP

 

K-
 1

0 

ER
B 9 

W
RA

T-
5 

3-
8 

Co
g 

At
 

8-
12

 
Te

rr
a

N
ov

a 
Ai

m
sw

eb
 

W
oo

dc
oc

k 

Jo
hn

so
n 

IV
 

AP
 

Pr
e 

AC
T 

G
at

es
 

M
ac

G
in

iti
e 

To
w

re
 

Cr
os

s S
ch

oo
ls 


 

 


 

 

 
 

 
 


 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Cr
ow

n 
Le

ad
er

sh
ip

 
Ac

ad
em

y 

 


 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Cu
tle

r 
Je

w
ish

 D
ay

 
Sc

ho
ol

 


 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Di
vi

ne
 

Re
de

em
er

 
Ca

th
ol

ic
 

Sc
ho

ol
 

 
 

 
 


 


 


 
 

 


 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Ea
sle

y 
Ch

ris
tia

n 

Sc
ho

ol
 

 


 
 

 


 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Ei
ns

te
in

 
Ac

ad
em

y 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 


 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Fi
rs

t B
ap

tis
t 

Sc
ho

ol
 o

f 
Ch

ar
le

st
on

 


 

 
 

 


 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Fi
rs

t 
Pr

es
by

te
ria

n 
Ac

ad
em

y a
t 

Sh
an

no
n 

Fo
re

st
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 


 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Fi
ve

 O
ak

s 
Ac

ad
em

y 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 


 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

G
le

nf
or

es
t 

Sc
ho

ol
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 


 
 

 
 

 


 
 

 
 

 
 

G
ra

ce
 

Ch
ris

tia
n 

Sc
ho

ol
 

 


 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

69



Ap
pe

nd
ix

 E:
 A

ss
es

sm
en

ts
 o

ffe
re

d 
by

 EC
EN

C 
Ap

pr
ov

ed
 Sc

ho
ol

s i
n 

20
21

-2
2 

 

 Sc
ho

ol
 

St
an

fo
rd

 
10

 
2-

8 

Io
w

a 

As
se

ss
m

en
t 

K5
- 1

1 

AC
T 

As
pi

re
 

3-
8 

PS
A 

T 
8/

9 

7-
9 

PS
AT

 
(N

M
SQ

) 
8-

11
 

SA
T 

11
-1

2 
AC

T 
7-

12
 

ER
Bs

 

CT
P 

4 

3-
6 

O
LS

AT
 

1-
8 

M
AP

 

K-
 1

0 

ER
B 9 

W
RA

T-
5 

3-
8 

Co
g 

At
 

8-
12

 
Te

rr
a

N
ov

a 
Ai

m
sw

eb
 

W
oo

dc
oc

k 

Jo
hn

so
n 

IV
 

AP
 

Pr
e 

AC
T 

G
at

es
 

M
ac

G
in

iti
e 

To
w

re
 

G
re

en
vi

lle
 

Cl
as

sic
al

 
Ac

ad
em

y 
 


 

 
 


 


 


 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Ha
m

m
on

d 
Sc

ho
ol

 
 

 
 

 


 
 

 


 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Ha
m

pt
on

 
Pa

rk
 

Ch
ris

tia
n 

Sc
ho

ol
 

 


 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 


 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Ha
rv

es
t 

Co
m

m
un

ity
 

Sc
ho

ol
 

 


 
 

 
 

 
 

 


 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Ha
w

th
or

ne
 

Ch
ris

tia
n 

Ac
ad

em
y 

 


 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

He
at

hw
oo

d 
Ha

ll 
Ep

isc
op

al
 

Sc
ho

ol
 

 
 

 
 

 

 


 


 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Hi
dd

en
 

Tr
ea

su
re

 
Ch

ris
tia

n 
Sc

ho
ol

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 


 
 

 
 

 

Hi
lto

n 
He

ad
 

Ch
ris

tia
n 

Ac
ad

em
y 

 


 
 

 


 

 


 
 

 


 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Hi
lto

n 
He

ad
 

Pr
ep

ar
at

or
y 

Sc
ho

ol
 


 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Ho
ly

 Tr
in

ity
 

Ca
th

ol
ic 

Sc
ho

ol
 

 
 

 
 


 


 


 
 

 


 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

70



Ap
pe

nd
ix

 E:
 A

ss
es

sm
en

ts
 o

ffe
re

d 
by

 EC
EN

C 
Ap

pr
ov

ed
 Sc

ho
ol

s i
n 

20
21

-2
2 

 

 Sc
ho

ol
 

St
an

fo
rd

 
10

 
2-

8 

Io
w

a 

As
se

ss
m

en
t 

K5
- 1

1 

AC
T 

As
pi

re
 

3-
8 

PS
A 

T 
8/

9 

7-
9 

PS
AT

 
(N

M
SQ

) 
8-

11
 

SA
T 

11
-1

2 
AC

T 
7-

12
 

ER
Bs

 

CT
P 

4 

3-
6 

O
LS

AT
 

1-
8 

M
AP

 

K-
 1

0 

ER
B 9 

W
RA

T-
5 

3-
8 

Co
g 

At
 

8-
12

 
Te

rr
a

N
ov

a 
Ai

m
sw

eb
 

W
oo

dc
oc

k 

Jo
hn

so
n 

IV
 

AP
 

Pr
e 

AC
T 

G
at

es
 

M
ac

G
in

iti
e 

To
w

re
 

HO
PE

 
Ac

ad
em

y 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 


 

 
 

 
 

 


 
 

 
 

 

Ho
pe

 
Ch

ris
tia

n 
Ac

ad
em

y 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 


 

 
 

 
 

Ja
m

es
 Is

la
nd

 
Ch

ris
tia

n 
Sc

ho
ol

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 


 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Jo
hn

 P
au

l I
I 

Ca
th

ol
ic 

Sc
ho

ol
 

 
 

 
 


 


 


 
 

 


 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

La
ur

en
ce

 
M

an
ni

ng
 

Ac
ad

em
y 


 

 
 

 


 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Lit
tle

 
Le

ar
ne

rs
 

Ac
ad

em
y 

 
 

 
 


 


 


 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 


 
 

 
 

 

Lo
w

co
un

tr
y 

Pr
ep

ar
at

or
y 

Sc
ho

ol
 


 

 
 


 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

M
as

on
 

Pr
ep

ar
at

or
y 

Sc
ho

ol
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 


 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

M
ea

d 
Ha

ll 
Ep

isc
op

al
 

Sc
ho

ol
 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 


 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

M
ira

cle
 

Ac
ad

em
y 

Pr
ep

ar
at

or
y 

Sc
ho

ol
 


 

 
 


 

 
 


 

 


 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

71



Ap
pe

nd
ix

 E:
 A

ss
es

sm
en

ts
 o

ffe
re

d 
by

 EC
EN

C 
Ap

pr
ov

ed
 Sc

ho
ol

s i
n 

20
21

-2
2 

 

 Sc
ho

ol
 

St
an

fo
rd

 
10

 
2-

8 

Io
w

a 

As
se

ss
m

en
t 

K5
- 1

1 

AC
T 

As
pi

re
 

3-
8 

PS
A 

T 
8/

9 

7-
9 

PS
AT

 
(N

M
SQ

) 
8-

11
 

SA
T 

11
-1

2 
AC

T 
7-

12
 

ER
Bs

 

CT
P 

4 

3-
6 

O
LS

AT
 

1-
8 

M
AP

 

K-
 1

0 

ER
B 9 

W
RA

T-
5 

3-
8 

Co
g 

At
 

8-
12

 
Te

rr
a

N
ov

a 
Ai

m
sw

eb
 

W
oo

dc
oc

k 

Jo
hn

so
n 

IV
 

AP
 

Pr
e 

AC
T 

G
at

es
 

M
ac

G
in

iti
e 

To
w

re
 

M
itc

he
ll 

Ro
ad

 
Ch

ris
tia

n 
Ac

ad
em

y 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 


 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

M
on

te
ss

or
i 

Sc
ho

ol
 o

f 
An

de
rs

on
 


 

 
 

 


 

 


 
 

 


 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

N
at

iv
ity

 
Ca

th
ol

ic 
Sc

ho
ol

 

 
 

 
 


 


 


 
 

 


 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

N
or

th
sid

e 
Ch

ris
tia

n 
Ac

ad
em

y 
 

 
 

 


 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 


 
 

 
 

 
 

 

N
or

th
 

W
al

te
rb

or
o 

Ch
ris

tia
n 

Ac
ad

em
y 

 


 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

O
ak

br
oo

k 
Pr

ep
ar

at
or

y 
Sc

ho
ol

 


 
 

 
 


 


 


 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 


 


 
 

 
 

O
co

ne
e 

Ch
ris

tia
n 

Ac
ad

em
y 

 


 
 

 


 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

O
ra

ng
eb

ur
g 

Pr
ep

ar
at

or
y 

Sc
ho

ol
s,

 In
c.

 

 


 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

O
ur

 La
dy

 o
f 

Pe
ac

e 
Ca

th
ol

ic 
Sc

ho
ol

 

 
 

 
 


 


 


 
 

 


 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

72



Ap
pe

nd
ix

 E:
 A

ss
es

sm
en

ts
 o

ffe
re

d 
by

 EC
EN

C 
Ap

pr
ov

ed
 Sc

ho
ol

s i
n 

20
21

-2
2 

 

 Sc
ho

ol
 

St
an

fo
rd

 
10

 
2-

8 

Io
w

a 

As
se

ss
m

en
t 

K5
- 1

1 

AC
T 

As
pi

re
 

3-
8 

PS
A 

T 
8/

9 

7-
9 

PS
AT

 
(N

M
SQ

) 
8-

11
 

SA
T 

11
-1

2 
AC

T 
7-

12
 

ER
Bs

 

CT
P 

4 

3-
6 

O
LS

AT
 

1-
8 

M
AP

 

K-
 1

0 

ER
B 9 

W
RA

T-
5 

3-
8 

Co
g 

At
 

8-
12

 
Te

rr
a

N
ov

a 
Ai

m
sw

eb
 

W
oo

dc
oc

k 

Jo
hn

so
n 

IV
 

AP
 

Pr
e 

AC
T 

G
at

es
 

M
ac

G
in

iti
e 

To
w

re
 

O
ur

 La
dy

 o
f 

th
e 

Ro
sa

ry
 

Ca
th

ol
ic 

Sc
ho

ol
 

 
 

 
 


 


 


 
 

 


 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Pa
lm

et
to

 
Ch

ris
tia

n 
Ac

ad
em

y o
f 

G
re

en
w

oo
d 

(P
CA

G
) 

 
 

 

 


 


 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 


 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Pa
lm

et
to

 
Ch

ris
tia

n 
Ac

ad
em

y-
 

M
t. 

Pl
ea

sa
nt

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 


 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Pa
tr

ick
 

He
nr

y 
Ac

ad
em

y 
 

 
 

 


 

 


 


 


 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 


 
 

 

Pe
e 

De
e 

Ac
ad

em
y 

 
 

 

 


 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Po
rt

er
- G

au
d 

Sc
ho

ol
 

 
 

 
 


 

 
 


 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 


 
 

 

Pr
in

ce
 o

f 
Pe

ac
e 

Ca
th

ol
ic 

Sc
ho

ol
 

 
 

 
 


 


 


 
 

 


 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Pr
ov

id
en

ce
 

Cl
as

sic
al

 
Sc

ho
ol

 o
f 

Ro
ck

 H
ill 

 


 
 

 
 


 


 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Ri
dg

e 
Ch

ris
tia

n 
Ac

ad
em

y 


 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

73



Ap
pe

nd
ix

 E:
 A

ss
es

sm
en

ts
 o

ffe
re

d 
by

 EC
EN

C 
Ap

pr
ov

ed
 Sc

ho
ol

s i
n 

20
21

-2
2 

 

 Sc
ho

ol
 

St
an

fo
rd

 
10

 
2-

8 

Io
w

a 

As
se

ss
m

en
t 

K5
- 1

1 

AC
T 

As
pi

re
 

3-
8 

PS
A 

T 
8/

9 

7-
9 

PS
AT

 
(N

M
SQ

) 
8-

11
 

SA
T 

11
-1

2 
AC

T 
7-

12
 

ER
Bs

 

CT
P 

4 

3-
6 

O
LS

AT
 

1-
8 

M
AP

 

K-
 1

0 

ER
B 9 

W
RA

T-
5 

3-
8 

Co
g 

At
 

8-
12

 
Te

rr
a

N
ov

a 
Ai

m
sw

eb
 

W
oo

dc
oc

k 

Jo
hn

so
n 

IV
 

AP
 

Pr
e 

AC
T 

G
at

es
 

M
ac

G
in

iti
e 

To
w

re
 

Ri
ve

rp
oi

nt
e 

Ch
ris

tia
n 

Ac
ad

em
y 


 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 


 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Sa
nd

hi
lls

 
Sc

ho
ol

 
 

 
 

 
 

 


 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

So
ut

h 
Ai

ke
n 

Ba
pt

ist
 

Ch
ris

tia
n 

Sc
ho

ol
 

 


 
 

 


 

 


 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 


 


 


 
 

 

So
ut

hs
id

e 
Ch

ris
tia

n 
Sc

ho
ol

 

 
 


 

 


 
 

 
 

 


 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Sp
ar

ta
nb

ur
g 

Ch
ris

tia
n 

Ac
ad

em
y 


 

 


 

 


 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Sp
ar

ta
nb

ur
g 

Da
y 

Sc
ho

ol
 

 
 

 

 


 


 

 


 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

St
. A

nd
re

w
 

Ca
th

ol
ic 

Sc
ho

ol
 

 
 

 
 


 


 


 
 

 


 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

St
. A

nn
e 

Ca
th

ol
ic 

Sc
ho

ol
- R

oc
k 

Hi
ll 

 
 

 
 


 


 


 
 

 


 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

St
. A

nt
ho

ny
 

Ca
th

ol
ic 

Sc
ho

ol
- 

Fl
or

en
ce

 

 
 

 
 


 


 


 
 

 


 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

St
. A

nt
ho

ny
 

of
 P

ad
ua

 
Ca

th
ol

ic 
Sc

ho
ol

 

 
 

 
 


 


 


 
 

 


 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

74



Ap
pe

nd
ix

 E:
 A

ss
es

sm
en

ts
 o

ffe
re

d 
by

 EC
EN

C 
Ap

pr
ov

ed
 Sc

ho
ol

s i
n 

20
21

-2
2 

 

 Sc
ho

ol
 

St
an

fo
rd

 
10

 
2-

8 

Io
w

a 

As
se

ss
m

en
t 

K5
- 1

1 

AC
T 

As
pi

re
 

3-
8 

PS
A 

T 
8/

9 

7-
9 

PS
AT

 
(N

M
SQ

) 
8-

11
 

SA
T 

11
-1

2 
AC

T 
7-

12
 

ER
Bs

 

CT
P 

4 

3-
6 

O
LS

AT
 

1-
8 

M
AP

 

K-
 1

0 

ER
B 9 

W
RA

T-
5 

3-
8 

Co
g 

At
 

8-
12

 
Te

rr
a

N
ov

a 
Ai

m
sw

eb
 

W
oo

dc
oc

k 

Jo
hn

so
n 

IV
 

AP
 

Pr
e 

AC
T 

G
at

es
 

M
ac

G
in

iti
e 

To
w

re
 

St
. E

liz
ab

et
h 

An
n 

Se
to

n 
Ca

th
ol

ic 
Hi

gh
 

Sc
ho

ol
 

 
 

 
 


 


 


 
 

 


 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

St
. F

ra
nc

is 
by

 th
e 

Se
a 

Ca
th

ol
ic 

Sc
ho

ol
 

 
 

 
 


 


 


 
 

 


 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

St
. G

re
go

ry
 

th
e 

G
re

at
 

Ca
th

ol
ic 

Sc
ho

ol
 

 
 

 
 


 


 


 
 

 


 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

St
. J

oh
n 

Ca
th

ol
ic 

Sc
ho

ol
- 

Ch
ar

le
st

on
 

 
 

 
 


 


 


 
 

 


 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

St
. J

oh
n 

N
eu

m
an

n 
Ca

th
ol

ic 
Sc

ho
ol

 

 
 

 
 


 


 


 
 

 


 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

St
. J

oh
n’

s 
Ch

ris
tia

n 
Ac

ad
em

y 


 
 

 
 

 

 


 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

St
. J

os
ep

h 
Ca

th
ol

ic 
Sc

ho
ol

- 
An

de
rs

on
 

 
 

 

 


 


 


 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 


 
 

 

St
. J

os
ep

h 
Ca

th
ol

ic 
Sc

ho
ol

- 
Co

lu
m

bi
a 

 
 

 
 


 


 


 
 

 


 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

75



Ap
pe

nd
ix

 E:
 A

ss
es

sm
en

ts
 o

ffe
re

d 
by

 EC
EN

C 
Ap

pr
ov

ed
 Sc

ho
ol

s i
n 

20
21

-2
2 

 

 Sc
ho

ol
 

St
an

fo
rd

 
10

 
2-

8 

Io
w

a 

As
se

ss
m

en
t 

K5
- 1

1 

AC
T 

As
pi

re
 

3-
8 

PS
A 

T 
8/

9 

7-
9 

PS
AT

 
(N

M
SQ

) 
8-

11
 

SA
T 

11
-1

2 
AC

T 
7-

12
 

ER
Bs

 

CT
P 

4 

3-
6 

O
LS

AT
 

1-
8 

M
AP

 

K-
 1

0 

ER
B 9 

W
RA

T-
5 

3-
8 

Co
g 

At
 

8-
12

 
Te

rr
a

N
ov

a 
Ai

m
sw

eb
 

W
oo

dc
oc

k 

Jo
hn

so
n 

IV
 

AP
 

Pr
e 

AC
T 

G
at

es
 

M
ac

G
in

iti
e 

To
w

re
 

St
. J

os
ep

h'
s 

Ca
th

ol
ic 

Sc
ho

ol
- 

G
re

en
vi

lle
 

 
 

 
 


 


 


 
 

 


 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

St
. M

ar
tin

 
de

 P
or

re
s 

Ca
th

ol
ic 

Sc
ho

ol
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

St
. M

ar
y H

el
p 

of
 C

hr
ist

ia
ns

 
Ca

th
ol

ic 
Sc

ho
ol

 

 
 

 
 


 


 


 
 

 


 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

St
. M

ich
ae

l 
Ca

th
ol

ic 
Sc

ho
ol

 
 

 
 

 


 

 


 
 

 


 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

St
. P

et
er

's 
Ca

th
ol

ic 
Sc

ho
ol

- 
Be

au
fo

rt
 

 
 

 
 


 


 


 
 

 


 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

St
. P

et
er

's 
Ca

th
ol

ic 
Sc

ho
ol

- 
Co

lu
m

bi
a 

 
 

 
 


 


 


 
 

 


 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

St
ep

 o
f F

ai
th

 
Ch

ris
tia

n 
Ac

ad
em

y 
 


 

 
 

 

 


 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Su
m

m
er

vi
lle

 
Ca

th
ol

ic 
Sc

ho
ol

 

 
 

 
 


 


 


 
 

 


 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

76



Ap
pe

nd
ix

 E:
 A

ss
es

sm
en

ts
 o

ffe
re

d 
by

 EC
EN

C 
Ap

pr
ov

ed
 Sc

ho
ol

s i
n 

20
21

-2
2 

 

 Sc
ho

ol
 

St
an

fo
rd

 
10

 
2-

8 

Io
w

a 

As
se

ss
m

en
t 

K5
- 1

1 

AC
T 

As
pi

re
 

3-
8 

PS
A 

T 
8/

9 

7-
9 

PS
AT

 
(N

M
SQ

) 
8-

11
 

SA
T 

11
-1

2 
AC

T 
7-

12
 

ER
Bs

 

CT
P 

4 

3-
6 

O
LS

AT
 

1-
8 

M
AP

 

K-
 1

0 

ER
B 9 

W
RA

T-
5 

3-
8 

Co
g 

At
 

8-
12

 
Te

rr
a

N
ov

a 
Ai

m
sw

eb
 

W
oo

dc
oc

k 

Jo
hn

so
n 

IV
 

AP
 

Pr
e 

AC
T 

G
at

es
 

M
ac

G
in

iti
e 

To
w

re
 

Su
m

te
r 

Ch
ris

tia
n 

Sc
ho

ol
 

 


 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Th
e 

Ch
an

dl
er

 
Sc

ho
ol

 


 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 


 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Th
e 

Ch
ar

le
st

on
 

Ca
th

ol
ic 

Sc
ho

ol
 

 
 

 
 


 


 


 
 

 


 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Th
e 

Co
m

pl
et

e 
St

ud
en

t 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Th
e 

Co
op

er
 

Sc
ho

ol
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 


 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Th
e 

Ki
ng

's 
Ac

ad
em

y 
 

 
 

 


 

 


 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Th
e 

Ti
m

m
er

m
an

 
Sc

ho
ol

 


 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Th
e 

Vi
lla

ge
 

Sc
ho

ol
 o

f 
G

af
fn

ey
 


 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Th
om

as
 

He
yw

ar
d 

Ac
ad

em
y 


 

 
 

 


 

 

 
 


 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Th
om

as
 

Su
m

te
r 

Ac
ad

em
y 


 

 
 

 


 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Tr
id

en
t 

Ac
ad

em
y 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 


 
 

 
 

 
 

 


 


 

77



Ap
pe

nd
ix

 E:
 A

ss
es

sm
en

ts
 o

ffe
re

d 
by

 EC
EN

C 
Ap

pr
ov

ed
 Sc

ho
ol

s i
n 

20
21

-2
2 

 

 Sc
ho

ol
 

St
an

fo
rd

 
10

 
2-

8 

Io
w

a 

As
se

ss
m

en
t 

K5
- 1

1 

AC
T 

As
pi

re
 

3-
8 

PS
A 

T 
8/

9 

7-
9 

PS
AT

 
(N

M
SQ

) 
8-

11
 

SA
T 

11
-1

2 
AC

T 
7-

12
 

ER
Bs

 

CT
P 

4 

3-
6 

O
LS

AT
 

1-
8 

M
AP

 

K-
 1

0 

ER
B 9 

W
RA

T-
5 

3-
8 

Co
g 

At
 

8-
12

 
Te

rr
a

N
ov

a 
Ai

m
sw

eb
 

W
oo

dc
oc

k 

Jo
hn

so
n 

IV
 

AP
 

Pr
e 

AC
T 

G
at

es
 

M
ac

G
in

iti
e 

To
w

re
 

Tr
in

ity
 

Ch
ris

tia
n 

Ed
uc

at
io

na
l 

Sc
ho

ol
 


 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Vi
ct

or
y B

ib
le

 
Ch

ris
tia

n 
Sc

ho
ol

 
 


 

 
 


 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

W
al

nu
t 

G
ro

ve
 

Ch
ris

tia
n 

Sc
ho

ol
 

 


 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

W
es

tg
at

e 
Ch

ris
tia

n 
Sc

ho
ol

 
 


 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

W
es

tm
in

st
er

 
Ca

ta
w

ba
 

Ch
ris

tia
n 

Sc
ho

ol
 

 
 

 

 

 

 


 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 78



Appendix F. Assessment for Schools with 51% or More Students Funded by ECENC 

1. Hidden Treasure Christian School uses the Woodcock Johnson IV in Kindergarten through
twelfth grade. This school uses performance-based grade equivalent to report average
assessments on basic reading skills, broad written language and broad mathematics. The Grade
Level Equivalent score reported here refers to how well a student in that grade level would do
on the assessed material. For example, using the table below, we know that students learning
5K material at Hidden Treasure Christian School perform on the 5K assessment of basic reading
skills the way an eighth grade student in the fourth month of school would. On the Broad
Written Language and Broad Mathematics portions of the 5K assessment, students at Hidden
Treasure Christian School perform as well as a student with more than 17.9 years of formal
education, or more than a college degree, would function.

Hidden Treasure Christian School Woodcock Johnson IV Assessment: 
Grade Basic Reading Skills Broad Written 

Language 
Broad Mathematics 

5K 8.4 >17.9 >17.9
1 13 17.2 >17.9
2 9.8 7.3 5 
3 10.9 13 8 
4 5.9 7.3 4.5 
5 >17.9 10.1 5.3 
6 3.4 6.9 9 
7 3 5.1 5.6 
8 6.1 6.9 8.8 
9 9 6.5 5.1 

10 6.8 6.2 8.2 
11 13 10.7 7.8 
12 7.6 7.1 6 

2. The Chandler School reported scores for the 5th grade class, the only grade with more than 10
students. The average score on the Stanford 10 was 37.8 in reading and 24.9 in mathematics,
and on the OLSAT the average score was 44 verbal and 48 non-verbal.

3. Camperdown Academy assesses students in first through eighth grade using the Gates-
MacGinitie Reading Tests and the GMADE for math. The mean score is reported by grade level,
which is the average score of a group of students on an assessment. Additionally, the normal
curve equivalent of the mean score illustrates the percentage of how many students scored
below that average on the normal curve. For example, using the table below we know that the
average reading score of first grade students at Camperdown Academy is 359, and 38 out of a
hundred first graders score lower than this on the Gates-MacGinitie Reading Test.

Camperdown Academy Gates-MacGinitie Reading Test 
Grade Mean Score Normal Curve Equivalent of 

Mean Score 
1 359 38 
2 397 32 

Appendix F

79



3 439 34 
4 494 48 
5 500 41 
6 509 38 
7 543 55 
8 549 56 

  
Camperdown Academy GMADE Math Assessments 

Grade Mean Score Normal Curve Equivalent of 
Mean Score 

1 94 41 
2 95 47 
3 100 50 
4 104 54 
5 98 48 
6 91 40 
7 96 44 
8 95 43 

4. Hope Academy and Einstein Academy both use the MAP assessment to evaluate student 
learning and achievement. The small teacher student ratio results in class sizes smaller than 10 
for all grade levels served for both of these schools. 
 

5. Hope Christian Academy serves children in second through twelfth grade and use the 
Woodcock-Johnson IV to assess student learning and achievement. All grade levels served had 
fewer than 10 students so assessment information is not included to protect student privacy.  

 
6. Sandhills School uses the Woodcock-Johnson IV, the Pre ACT, and the ACT. The twelfth grade 

class taking the ACT had fewer than 10 students as did the first, fourth and sixth grade classes 
taking the Woodcock Johnson IV. The Woodcock Johnson IV standard scores and Grade 
Equivalent have been reported. The standard scores is a raw score that has been converted to 
have a mean and standard deviation so that it can be compared across groups using the same 
numerical scale. The grade equivalent refers to how well a student in a specific grade would do 
on specific material. For example, the average fifth grade student at Sandhills School scored 94 
on letter word identification, which is a grade equivalent 5.3. This means that the average fifth 
grade student at Sandhills performs as a 5th grader in 3rd month of school would on fifth grade 
material.  

 
Sandhills School Fifth Grade Woodcock Johnson IV Assessment: 

5th Grade Standard Score Grade Equivalent 
Letter Word 

Identification 
94 5.3 

Applied Problems 93 5.1 
Spelling 89 4.3 
Passage 

Comprehension 
100 6.1 

Calculation 102 6.1 
Writing Samples 104 7.6 

Appendix F

80



 
Sandhills School Seventh Grade Woodcock Johnson IV Assessment: 

7th Grade Standard Score Grade Equivalent 
Letter Word 

Identification 
99 8.1 

Applied Problems 102 10 
Spelling 90 5.8 
Passage 

Comprehension 
101 8.6 

Calculation 108 11 
Writing Samples 115 15.5 

 
Sandhills School Eighth Grade Woodcock Johnson IV Assessment: 

8th Grade Standard Score Grade Equivalent 
Letter Word 

Identification 
80 5.1 

Applied Problems 92 7.2 
Spelling 81 4.9 
Passage 

Comprehension 
94 8.2 

Calculation 96 7.7 
Writing Samples 109 14.7 

 
The PreACT scores for students in ninth through eleventh grade are 16 for both English and 
Math, with a composite score of 18. The national mean is reported by grade level making a 
comparison difficult, however we do know that in ninth and tenth grade students at Sandhills 
School did as well as or better than the national average on their Composite score using the 
PreACT national norms for comparison.  

7. Glenforest School did not have a grade level with more than 10 students. As such grade level 
scores for students attending these schools are withheld to protect student privacy. Student 
achievement was assessed using the Fastbridge, Brigance, PSAT, SAT, and ACT. 

8. Miracle Academy uses the Stanford 10, OLSAT, Accuplacer, SAT and ACT to assess student 
achievement. Miracle Academy did not have a grade level with more than 10 students, so grade 
level scores are withheld to protect student privacy.  

 

Appendix F

81



82



Appendix G: SC Bills Related to ECENC Program and Status as of April 28, 2023 

Bill Description Impact on ECENC 
program: 

Status as of  
4.28.2023 

S 285 Providing 
Academic Choice in 
Education (PACE) 

A bill to amend the South 
Carolina Code of Laws by 
adding section 12-6-3791 so as 
to allow an income tax credit 
for contributions to a 
scholarship-funding 
organization that provides 
grants for students to attend 
certain independent and home 
schools, to specify the manner 
in which the credit is claimed, 
to specify the process by which 
certain organizations and 
schools become eligible, to 
specify certain information 
which must be made public, 
and to allow the state 
treasurer and department of 
revenue to enforce the 
provisions of the credit; and to 
repeal section 12-6-3790 
relating to the Educational 
Credit for Exceptional Needs 
Children’s fund.  

This would eliminate 
the ECENC program 
as it exists and 
students and families 
currently served in 
the ECENC program 
could be served 
through PACE 
programming.  

Passed the Senate 
and sent to House 
on 3/16;referred 
to Ways and 
Means on 3/28. 

H 3422 Providing 
Academic Choice in 
Education (PACE) 

Referred to House 
Ways and Means 
(1/10/23) S 285 
will be considered 
by House Ways 
and Means. 

S 519 Income Tax 
Credit 

A bill to amend the South 
Carolina Code of Laws so as to 
enact the “Tax credits for 
parental choice in education 
act”, and by adding section 12-
6-3810 so as to provide for an
income tax credit for an
individual who chooses to
educate his child outside of
the public school system.

Parents who 
participate/previously 
participated in the 
ECENC program 
would be eligible for 
an income tax credit 
should the SC Code 
be amended 
according to S 519.  

Introduced and 
referred to the 
Senate Committee 
on Finance 2/9/23. 

S 39 Education 
Scholarship Trust 

A bill to amend the South 
Carolina Code of Laws by 
adding section 59-8-110 to 
define terms and provide a 
timeline and scholarship 
application process guidelines; 
to establish an online 
electronic payment system 
and provide guidelines for if a 
program is terminated before 

Students participating 
in ECENC program are 
not considered an 
“eligible student” in 
this bill, and there is 
not mention of 
eliminating the 
ECENC program.  

11/30/22 referred 
to Committee on 
Education 
1/10/23 read and 
referred to Senate 
Committee on 
Education 
1/31/23 Read a 
second time and 

Appendix G

83

danay
Cross-Out



the end of the semester; to 
limit the number of 
scholarship students for 
specified school years and to 
provide the application  
process and establishment of 
education service providers 
and guidelines for informing 
students and their parents of 
program eligibility and ensure 
equitable treatment and 
personal safety of all 
scholarship students; to 
ensure that the student’s 
resident school district 
provides the parent and 
education service provider 
with records; to establish the 
ESTF review panel and ensure 
that provisions do not restrict 
a school districts ability to 
enact or enforce a district’s 
student transfer policy.  

roll call Ayes 28, 
Nays 15 
2/1/23 Read third 
time and sent to 
House 
2/2/23 Introduced 
and Read first time 
and referred to 
Committee on 
Education and 
Public Works 
4/6/23 Favorable 
report from 
Committee on 
Education and 
Public Works 
4/18/23 requests 
for debate 
4/26/23 Read 
second time Yeas 
79, Nays 35 
4/27/23 Read third 
time and enrolled 
Yeas 74 Nays 36 
Awaiting 
Governor’s 
Signture 
 

 
 

Appendix G

84



E d u c a t i o n a l  C r e d i t  f o r
E x c e p t i o n a l  N e e d s  C h i l d r e n
( E C E N C )  P r o g r a m  r e p o r t :  
F Y  2 0 - 2 1  

DR .  JENNY  MAY  

P R E P A R E D  B Y

ACADEMIC  STANDARDS  &

ASSESSMENTS  SUBCOMMITTEE

MAY  16 ,  2022

P R E S E N T A T I O N  T O

2 0 2 2

M A Y  2 0 2 2

Appendix H

85



Appendix H

86



K E Y  F A C T S  o f  E d u c a t i o n a l  C r e d i t  f o r
E x c e p t i o n a l  N e e d s  C h i l d r e n  ( E C E N C )  P r o g r a m

M A Y   2 0 2 2

E C E N C  P R O G R A M  R E P O R T :  F Y  2 0 2 0 - 2 1

2

Approved  ECENC  Schools125
112 Approved  ECENC  Schools

Rece iv ing  ECENC  Grants

998 ECENC  Student  Grants

$3,218,117 Tota l  ECENC  Grant  Funds

K E Y  F A C T  1 .  E C E N C  A P P R O V E D  S C H O O L S  A R E  L O C A T E D  I N
E A C H  O F  T H E  F I V E  C E N T E R  F O R  E D U C A T O R  R E C R U I T M E N T ,
R E T E N T I O N  A N D  A D V A N C E M E N T  ( C E R R A )  R E G I O N S  O F  S O U T H
C A R O L I N A .  

The Upstate, Region 1, has 33 approved schools and 451 ECENC

student recipients with $1,565,570 in grants received, for an

average grant amount of $3,471. 

The Savannah River Basin, Region 2, has 7 approved schools and

33 student recipients with $48,900 in grants received, for an

average grant amount of $1,482. 

The Midlands, Region 3, has 25 approved schools and 227
student recipients with $761,630 in grants received, for an

average grant amount of $3,355. 

The Pee Dee, Region 4, has 13 approved schools and 32 student

recipients with $199,708 in grants received, for an average grant

amount of $6,241. 

The Lowcountry, Region 5, has 47 approved schools and 255
student recipients with $642,309 in grants received, for an

average grant amount of $2,519. 

Appendix H

87



K E Y  F A C T S

M A Y   2 0 2 2

E C E N C  P R O G R A M  R E P O R T :  F Y  2 0 2 0 - 2 1

3

K E Y  F A C T  2 .  E A C H  E C E N C  A P P R O V E D  S C H O O L  R E P R E S E N T S
O N E  O R  M O R E  O F  T H E  I N D E P E N D E N T  A C C R E D I T I N G
A S S O C I A T I O N S .  

South Carolina Independent School Association (SCISA):

79 ECENC schools

Southern Association of Colleges and Schools (SACS): 

28 ECENC schools

South Carolina Association of Christian Schools (SCACS): 

23 ECENC schools

Palmetto Association of Independent School Accreditation (PAIS): 

16 ECENC schools

K E Y  F A C T  3 .  N E A R L Y  H A L F  ( 4 9 % )  O F  E C E N C  S C H O L A R S H I P   
 R E C I P I E N T S  A R E  F R O M  H O U S E H O L D S  E A R N I N G  $ 1 0 0 , 0 0 0  O R
M O R E  A N N U A L L Y .  S E E  S C D O R  R E P O R T  I N  A P P E N D I X  E

Nearly half (49%) of ECENC Scholarship Recipients are from

households earning $100,000 or more annually; 

Nearly a third (32%) of ECENC recipients are from households

earning between $50,000 - $100,000 annually; and 

Less than a fifth (18%) of ECENC recipients are from households

earning $50,000 or less annually. 

K E Y  F A C T  4 .  A N A L Y S I S  O F  T H E  I M P A C T  O F  E C E N C  P R O G R A M
O N  S T U D E N T  A C H I E V E M E N T  A N D  S T U D E N T  A C A D E M I C
G R O W T H  I S  L I M I T E D  D U E  T O  L A C K  O F  S T U D E N T  L E V E L  D A T A .  

ECENC schools are no longer required to provided individual

student test scores for students who received an ECENC grant

to determine whether students participating in the program

have experienced measurable improvement.  

Appendix H

88



M A Y  2 0 2 2

C O N V E N E  T H E  E O C  A D V I S O R Y
C O M M I T T E E  F O R  E C E N C
P R O G R A M  R E V I E W  A N D
R E C O M M E N D A T I O N S .
Act 247, Section F(2)(b) provides that

the EOC shall establish an advisory

committee for the ECENC program.

This advisory committee has not

convened recently, and the

recommendation is for the advisory

committee to meet and consider

overall program improvement.  

R e c o m m e n d a t i o n s

E C E N C  P R O G R A M  R E P O R T :  F Y  2 0 2 0 - 2 1

4

S O U T H  C A R O L I N A  S T A T E
S U M M A T I V E  A S S E S S M E N T S
S H O U L D  B E  M A D E  A V A I L A B L E
F O R  A D M I N I S T R A T I O N  T O  S O U T H
C A R O L I N A  S T U D E N T S  I N  P R I V A T E
S C H O O L S .  
South Carolina students in private

schools are not currently allowed the

opportunity to participate in South

Carolina state assessments (i.e.,

SCREADY and EOCEP).  

C R E A T E  I N F O R M A T I O N A L
M A T E R I A L  T O  C L A R I F Y  T H E
R O L E S  O F  V A R I O U S
O R G A N I Z A T I O N S  R E S P O N S I B L E
F O R  E C E N C  P R O G R A M
A D M I N I S T R A T I O N .  
ECENC approved schools interviewed

for this report have requested materials

to clarify which organizations (i.e., EOC,

Exceptional SC, and DOR) are

responsible for the various functions

(i.e., school approval, student approval,

grant funding) of the ECENC program

administration. 

Appendix H

89



T h e  E C E N C  
R E P O R T
The  fo l lowing  i s  a  report  f rom  the  South  Caro l ina  Educat ion  Overs ight

Committee  pursuant  to  Act  247  of  2018 .  

A c t  2 4 7 ,  S e c t i o n  ( E ) ( 6 )

A n n u a l l y ,  t h e  E d u c a t i o n  O v e r s i g h t  C o m m i t t e e  s h a l l  i s s u e  a  r e p o r t
t o  t h e  G e n e r a l  A s s e m b l y  d o c u m e n t i n g  t h e  i m p a c t  o f  t h e
E d u c a t i o n a l  C r e d i t  f o r  E x c e p t i o n a l  N e e d s  C h i l d r e n  P r o g r a m  o n
s t u d e n t  a c h i e v e m e n t .  I n  a d d i t i o n ,  t h e  r e p o r t  m u s t  i n c l u d e
i n f o r m a t i o n  o n  i n d i v i d u a l  s c h o o l s  i f  a t  l e a s t  f i f t y - o n e  p e r c e n t  o f
t h e  t o t a l  e n r o l l e d  s t u d e n t s  i n  t h e  p r i v a t e  s c h o o l  p a r t i c i p a t e d  i n
t h e  E d u c a t i o n a l  C r e d i t  f o r  E x c e p t i o n a l  N e e d s  C h i l d r e n  P r o g r a m  i n
t h e  p r i o r  s c h o o l  y e a r .  T h e  r e p o r t  m u s t  b e  a c c o r d i n g  t o  e a c h
p a r t i c i p a t i n g  p r i v a t e  s c h o o l ,  a n d  f o r  p a r t i c i p a t i n g  s t u d e n t s ,  i n
w h i c h  t h e r e  a r e  a t  l e a s t  t h i r t y  p a r t i c i p a t i n g  s t u d e n t s  w h o  h a v e
s c o r e s  f o r  t e s t s  a d m i n i s t e r e d .  I f  t h e  E d u c a t i o n  O v e r s i g h t
C o m m i t t e e  d e t e r m i n e s  t h a t  t h e  t h i r t y  p a r t i c i p a t i n g - s t u d e n t  c e l l
s i z e  m a y  b e  r e d u c e d  w i t h o u t  d i s c l o s i n g  p e r s o n a l l y  i d e n t i f i a b l e
i n f o r m a t i o n  o f  a  p a r t i c i p a t i n g  s t u d e n t ,  t h e  E d u c a t i o n  O v e r s i g h t
C o m m i t t e e  m a y  r e d u c e  t h e  p a r t i c i p a t i n g - s t u d e n t  c e l l  s i z e ,  b u t
t h e  c e l l  s i z e  m a y  n o t  b e  r e d u c e d  t o  l e s s  t h a n  t e n  p a r t i c i p a t i n g
s t u d e n t s .

In format ion  on  the  approva l  process ,  part ic ipat ion ,  and  compl iance

for  ECENC  schools ;  

In format ion  about  the  process  fo r  col lect ing  assessment  resu l t s  used

to  document  the  impact  of  the  ECENC  program  on  s tudent

achievement ;  and   

Qual i tat i ve  in format ion  f rom  ECENC  adminis t rators  f rom  a  sample  of

ECENC  schools .

This  report  seeks  to  prov ide  the  fo l lowing  about  the  Educat iona l  Credi t

for  Except iona l  Needs  Chi ldren  (ECENC ) :  
 

1 .

2 .

3 .

5

Appendix H

90



M A Y  2 0 2 2

E C E N C  P R O G R A M  R E P O R T :  F Y  2 0 2 0 - 2 1

of fers  a  genera l  educat ion  to  pr imary  or  secondary  school

students ;

does  not  discr iminate  on  the  bas is  of  race ,  color ,  or  nat ional

or ig in ;

i s  located  in  th is  State ;

has  an  educat ional  curr iculum  that  inc ludes  courses  set  for th  in

the  state 's  diploma  requi rements ,  graduat ion  cert i f icate

requi rements  for  specia l  needs  chi ldren ,  and  where  the  students

attending  are  administered  nat ional  achievement  or  state

standardized  tests ,  or  both ,  at  progress ive  grade  leve ls  to

determine  student  progress ;

has  school  fac i l i t ies  that  are  subject  to  appl icable  federa l ,  state ,

and  local  laws ;

i s  a  member  in  good  standing  of  the  Southern  Associat ion  of

Col leges  and  Schools ,  the  South  Carol ina  Associat ion  of  Chr is t ian

Schools ,  the  South  Carol ina  Independent  Schools  Associat ion ,  or

Palmetto  Associat ion  of  Independent  Schools ;  and

prov ides  a  specia l ly  des igned  program  or  learn ing  resource  center

to  prov ide  needed  accommodat ions  based  on  the  needs  of

except ional  needs  students  or  prov ides  ons i te  educat ional

serv ices  or  supports  to  meet  the  needs  of  except ional  needs

students ,  or  i s  a  school  speci f ica l ly  exist ing  to  meet  the  needs  of

only  except ional  needs  students  with  documented  disabi l i t ies .

This  report  i s  the  four th  annual  report  on  the  impact  of  the  ECENC

program  as  requi red  by  Act  247  of  2018 .  This  l aw  def ines  qual i f y ing

students  and  el ig ib le  schools  fo r  part ic ipat ion  in  the  ECENC

program .  

A  qual i f y ing  s tudent  means  a  s tudent  who  i s  an  except iona l  needs

chi ld ,  a  South  Caro l ina  res ident ,  and  who  i s  el ig ib le  to  be  enro l led

in  a  South  Caro l ina  secondary  or  elementary  publ ic  school  at  the

k indergar ten  or  l a ter  year  leve l  fo r  the  appl icable  school  year .

Grants  may  be  awarded  in  an  amount  not  exceeding  eleven

thousand  dol la rs  or  the  tota l  annual  cost  of  tu i t ion ,  whichever  i s

less ,  to  a  qual i f y ing  s tudent  at  an  el ig ib le  school .  A  qual i f y ing

student  rece iv ing  a  grant  may  not  be  charged  tu i t ion  by  an  el ig ib le

school  in  an  amount  greater  than  the  s tudent  would  be  charged  i f

the  s tudent  was  not  a  qual i f y ing  s tudent .

An  el ig ib le  school ,  as  approved  by  the  Educat ion  Overs ight

Committee ,  i s  an  independent  school  inc luding  those  re l ig ious  in

nature ,  other  than  a  publ ic  school ,  at  which  the  compulsory

at tendance  requi rements  may  be  met  that :

6

Appendix H

91



M A Y  2 0 2 2

E C E N C  P R O G R A M  R E P O R T :  F Y  2 0 2 0 - 2 1

Not i f icat ion  by  emai l  to  schools  cur rent ly  in  good  s tanding  with

the  ECENC  Program  in  the  2019 -20  school  year  that  the

appl icat ion  process  i s  open .  The  Appl icat ion  to  Part ic ipate  in  the

ECENC  Program  fo r  2020 -21  i s  ava i lab le  on  the  EOC ’s  webs i te  that

wi l l  connect  to  the  ECENC  Manual  fo r  SY2020 -21  that  i s  to  be

used  as  a  guide  to  the  Appl icat ion  Process  and  a l l  Documents

that  must  be  completed ,  s igned ,  attached  and  returned  to  the

EOC .

Publ icat ion  on  the  EOC ’s  webs i te  of  the  completed  appl icat ions

of  schools  meet ing  the  s tandards  and  report ing  requi rements  fo r

SY2019 -20 .

The  Appl icat ion  to  Part ic ipate  and  Document  A  –  Statement  of

Serv ices  must  be  submit ted  to  the  EOC  by  February  28 ,  2021  to  be

approved  fo r  part ic ipat ion  in  the  program  fo r  SY2020 -21 .

The  EOC  wi l l  publ i sh  a  l i s t  on  our  webs i te  of  schools  meet ing  the

standards  and  report ing  requi rements  fo r  part ic ipat ion  in  the

ECENC  program  fo r  SY2020 -21 .

Document  B  –  Grants  Rece ived  must  be  completed ,  s igned  and

returned  to  the  EOC  by  June  30 ,  2021  conta in ing  in format ion  on

the  number  of  s tudents  (K - 12 )  that  were  enro l led  in  the  ent i re

school  in  2020 -21  and  in format ion  on  grants  rece ived  in  2020 -21 .

No  personal l y  ident i f iab le  in format ion  of  s tudents  should  be

submit ted .

ECENC SCHOOL APPROVAL TIMELINE

The  fo l lowing  was  the  process  and  t imel ine  used  by  the  Educat ion

Overs ight  Committee  to  determine  school  e l ig ib i l i t y  in  the  ECENC

Program  fo r  School  Year  2020 -21 .  Each  school ,  new  or  recur r ing ,  was

requi red  to  comply  with  the  same  Program  Standards  and  Report ing

Requi rements .  

 

January  2 ,  2021

1 .

2 .

 

February  28 ,  2021

1 .

2 .

 

June  30 ,  2021

1 .

 

7

Appendix H

92



M A Y  2 0 2 2

E C E N C  P R O G R A M  R E P O R T :  F Y  2 0 2 0 - 2 1

Document  C  –  School -Leve l  Assessment  Resul ts  must  be  prov ided

di rect ly  to  the  EOC  with  the  NAME  of  each  nat iona l  achievement

test  adminis tered  and  the  sca le  scores /percent i le

rank ings /s tan ines /grade  equiva lents  fo r  ELA  (Reading )  and

Mathemat ics .  This  in format ion  must  be  reported  by  grade  l eve l

fo r  c lasses  with  10  or  more  s tudents  of  a l l  grades  tes ted  and

attached  by  September  1 ,  2021 .  No  personal l y  ident i f iab le

in format ion  of  teachers  or  s tudents  should  be  submit ted .

* *D o c u m e n t  C  –  I n d i v i d u a l  S t u d e n t  A s s e s s m e n t  R e s u l t s  m u s t  b e
p r o v i d e d  t o  t h e  S C  R e v e n u e  a n d  F i s c a l  A f f a i r s  O f f i c e  ( R F A )  b y
S e p t e m b e r  1 ,  2 0 2 1 .  S t u d e n t s  w h o  r e c e i v e d  g r a n t s  i n  S Y 2 0 2 0 - 2 1
m u s t  h a v e  t h e i r  i n d i v i d u a l  a s s e s s m e n t  r e s u l t s ,  r e c e i v e d  f r o m  t h e
t e s t i n g  v e n d o r ,  u p l o a d e d  t o  t h e  s e c u r e  p o r t a l  A F T E R  R F A  h a s
e n t e r e d  a  f u l l y  e x e c u t a b l e  M O U  w i t h  t h e  s c h o o l .  T h e  s c h o o l
s h o u l d  c o n t a c t  R F A  t o  s e e  i f  a  5 - y e a r  M O U  w a s  s i g n e d  b e f o r e
s u b m i t t i n g  I n d i v i d u a l  A s s e s s m e n t  R e s u l t s . * *
Document  C  –  In format ion  on  Sta f f  Respons ib le  fo r  the

submiss ion  of  School -Leve l  Assessment  Resul ts  and  Ind iv idua l

Student  Assessment  Resul ts  must  be  prov ided  to  the  EOC  by

September  1 ,  2020 .  Document  C  must  be  completed ,  s igned  and

returned  at  that  t ime .

A  “copy  of  a  compi lat ion ,  rev iew ,  or  compl iance  audi t  of  the

organizat ion ’s  f inanc ia l  s tatements  as  re lat ing  to  the  grants

rece ived ,  conducted  by  a  cer t i f ied  publ ic  account ing  f i rm ”  must

be  rece ived  by  the  EOC  no  l a ter  than  November  15 ,  2021 .  No

personal l y  ident i f iab le  in format ion  of  s tudents  should  be

submit ted .

September  1 ,  2021

1 .

2 .

3 .

November  15 ,  2021

1 .

* *The  requi rement  to  submit  Ind iv idua l  Student  Assessment  resu l t s

was  e l iminated  f rom  the  requi rements  of  Act  247 .  There fore ,  schools

were  not  requi red  to  complete  th i s  port ion  of  the  school  e l ig ib i l i t y

process . * *

8

Appendix H

93



E C E N C  S c h o o l  E L I G I B I L I T Y

M A Y  2 0 2 2
9

E C E N C  P R O G R A M  R E P O R T :  F Y  2 0 2 0 - 2 1

K E Y  F I N D I N G
ECENC approved schools are located in each of the five Center

for Educator Recruitment, Retention, and Advancement

(CERRA) regions of South Carolina. 

K E Y  F I N D I N G
There were 125 eligible ECENC schools serving 998 eligible
ECENC students. 

There  were  125  e l ig ib le  schools  approved  fo r  part ic ipat ion  in  the

ECENC  program  in  2020 -21 .  139  schools  were  approved  fo r  ECENC

part ic ipat ion  in  2019 -20 ,  re f lect ing  a  decl ine  of  14  approved  schools

between  the  years .  

Of  the  125  schools  approved  to  rece ive  ECENC  dol la rs ,  1 12  schools

rece ived  ECENC  grant  funding  between  $700  and  $544 ,335 .

There  were  13  schools  that  did  not  have  any  s tudents  who  rece ived

grants .  In  the  2020 -21  school  year ,  a l l  schools  who  appl ied  to  be  an

approved  school  met  the  cr i te r ia  fo r  approva l .  

Appendix H

94



E C E N C  S c h o o l  E L I G I B I L I T Y

M A Y  2 0 2 2
10

E C E N C  P R O G R A M  R E P O R T :  F Y  2 0 2 0 - 2 1

K E Y  F I N D I N G
Each ECENC Approved Schools represents one or more of the

independent accrediting associations for private schools. 

South  Caro l ina  Independent  School  Assoc iat ion  (SCISA ) :

79  ECENC  schools

Southern  Assoc iat ion  of  Col leges  and  Schools  (SACS ) :  

28  ECENC  schools

South  Caro l ina  Assoc iat ion  of  Chr i s t ian  Schools  (SCACS ) :  

23  ECENC  schools

Pa lmetto  Assoc iat ion  of  Independent  School  Accredi tat ion

(PAIS ) :  

16  ECENC  schools

A l l  of  the  approved  ECENC  schools  were  ver i f ied  as  being  cur rent

members  in  good  s tanding  in  at  l east  one  of  the  pr ivate  school

accredi t ing  organizat ions .  Some  of  the  ECENC  schools  are  in  good

standing  with  more  than  one  of  the  accredi t ing  organizat ions .  

Appendix H

95



E C E N C  S t u d e n t  p a r t i c i p a t i o n  d a t a

M A Y  2 0 2 2
11

E C E N C  P R O G R A M  R E P O R T :  F Y  2 0 2 0 - 2 1

K E Y  F I N D I N G  
Students in all grades, K

through 12th, received

funding through the

ECENC program, with the

highest percentage of

approved students from

each grade level being in

12th grade. 

K E Y  F I N D I N G
Of the 2,257 of students

who applied, 47% or 1,054

received some level of

funding, the average

amount across schools

and age groups being

$3,225.

Except iona l  SC  prov ided  data  on

students  r i s ing  Kindergar ten

through  grade  12  who  appl ied  fo r

and  those  who  rece ived  grants  in

the  2020 -21  school  year .  For  the

2020 -21  school  year ,  2 ,257  s tudents

appl ied  fo r  funding  and  1 ,054 ,  or

approx imate ly  47%,  rece ived  grants .

There  was  a  great  di f fe rence  by

grade  l eve l  between  appl icants  and

funded  s tudents  with  a  range  of  3%

to  87% between  Kindergar ten  and

twel f th  grade .  This  di f fe rence  may

be  expla ined  by  the  fact  that

s tudents  who  have  prev ious ly

rece ived  ECENC  grants  rece ive

pr ior i ty  in  the  award ing  of  grants  in

subsequent  years .  For  the  number

of  appl icat ions ,  approva ls ,  and

percentages  by  grade  l eve l ,  see  the

appendix .  

The  South  Caro l ina  Department  of

Revenue  i s sued  a  report  on  January

15 ,  2022  in  which  they  report

Except iona l  SC  awarded  1 ,054

scholarsh ip  rec ip ients  fo r  the  2020 -

21  school  year ,  most  of  which  went

to  s tudents  who  prev ious ly  rece ived

an  ECENC  scholarsh ip .  

See  Appendix  fo r  fu l l  report  by

South  Caro l ina  Department  of

Revenue .  

Appendix H

96



M A Y  2 0 2 2

E C E N C  P R O G R A M  R E P O R T :  F Y  2 0 2 0 - 2 1

12

E C E N C  S t u d e n t  p a r t i c i p a t i o n  d a t a

Count of Children by Grade (K-12) who Applied for and Received
 Grants from Exceptional SC

Appendix H

97



E C E N C  S t u d e n t  a c h i e v e m e n t  d a t a

M A Y  2 0 2 2

E C E N C  P R O G R A M  R E P O R T :  F Y  2 0 2 0 - 2 1

K E Y  F I N D I N G  
Analysis of impact of

ECENC program on

student achievement and

student growth is limited

by lack of student level

data.

13

R E C O M M E N D A T I O N
South Carolina state

summative assessments

should be made available

for administration to

South Carolina students

in private schools. 

Historically, ECENC funded students’ scores
were submitted as a measurement of
academic growth, and now the school level
assessment data from the previous
academic year is submitted as a
mechanism of compliance with the ECENC
school approval process. This change
provides an additional compliance measure
and changes how the assessment data can
be analyzed to answer the evaluation
questions and meet the requirement to
evaluate the impact of the ECENC
program.

The South Carolina Department of
Education (SCDE) has interpreted the
Education Accountability Act to prohibit
private school students from taking state
summative assessments which include,
but are not limited to, SC READY in grades
3 through 8, and end of course
assessments in Algebra 1, English 2, Biology
and US History and the Constitution.
Instead, private schools have the flexibility
to choose a nationally normed assessment
to measure student performance. 

Schools that administer national assessments typically select an assessment or
assessments that measure reading or English Language Arts (ELA) competencies
and mathematics competencies. Examples of assessments that are used in
elementary and middle school grades are measures of academic progress (MAP)
and the Iowa Test of Basic Skills (ITBS). All schools administered assessments or had
valid reasons for not administering assessments (i.e., COVID-19 school closures,
supply chain issues accessing assessments in time to administer them etc.). 

The most commonly used nationally normed assessments for ECENC approved
private schools in the 2020-21 school year include: PSAT, SAT, ACT, MAP and the
Stanford 10, which is similar to previous years. See appendix for a compendium of
assessments used by approved schools. 

Appendix H

98



M A Y  2 0 2 2
14

E C E N C  P R O G R A M  R E P O R T :  F Y  2 0 2 0 - 2 1

Act  247  requi res  an  eva luat ion  of  the  ECENC  program ’s  impact  on

student  achievement  where  a  major i ty  of  s tudents  enro l led  in  the

school  (51% or  more  of  s tudents )  rece ived  a  grant  f rom  Except iona l

SC .  In  the  2020 -21  school  year ,  three  schools  had  the  major i ty  of

s tudents  access ing  ECENC  funds :  

Because  an  amendment  to  Act  247  e l iminated  access  to  scores  by

indiv idua l  s tudents  funded  through  ECENC  dol la rs ,  progress

ind iv idua l  s tudents  have  made  cannot  be  discerned  f rom  th i s  data .

See  appendix  fo r  school ,  subject  and  grade  l eve l  average  scores  fo r

Reading  and  Math .  

For  more  deta i l s  about  the  assessments  adminis tered  by

Camperdown  Academy ,  Hope  Chr i s t ian  Academy ,  and  The  Chandler

School ,   see  Appendix  B .  

Appendix H

99



E C E N C  S C H O O L  S I T E  V I S I T S

M A Y  2 0 2 2

E C E N C  P R O G R A M  R E P O R T :  F Y  2 0 2 0 - 2 1

15

Schools were invited to participate, and those who agreed to a visit from
EOC staff set a time at the schools’ convenience and were sent evaluation
questions (see Appendix for the invitation and questions).
During the site visit, staff went on a tour of the school and learned about
the school culture, curriculum and special services and accommodations
that students could access, and community partnerships that serve
children and families.
EOC staff asked questions specific to the ECENC program and gathered
information to illustrate the impact of the program. In some cases the
school pulled a panel of leaders to speak to the questions and in some
cases, the head master or principal would speak with staff. The option to
submit written responses to questions was also given, but this year there
were no schools who elected to do so. 

For the first time, a qualitative data collection was included as a part of the
ECENC report. To ensure a representative group was included for qualitative
data collection, the following selection process was developed. Approved and
funded schools in the 2019-20 and 2020-21 school year were ranked by
amount of ECENC grants received, and the top 10 schools were invited to
participate. Approved ECENC schools were then grouped by CERRA region
and accrediting organization to ensure that a complete and accurate
representation could be reported. After this process, any regions or
accrediting organizations that were not represented in the list of top 10
funded schools were identified and a total of 15 schools were invited to
participate and the list was an attempt to accurately represent all approved
ECENC schools. 

The qualitative data collection included several components:
1.

2.

3.

There were six schools of the 15 invited who elected to participate in a site
visit. The ECENC schools that elected to participate were not representative
of the state, and this is an unavoidable limitation of the data given that the
visits were voluntary. The feedback these participants provided offers
actionable steps to expand the impact of the ECENC program. However, a
more diverse sample of school perspective would also be beneficial in future
reports.  

Appendix H

100



M A Y  2 0 2 2

E C E N C  P R O G R A M  R E P O R T :  F Y  2 0 2 0 - 2 1

16

R E C O M M E N D A T I O N
Convene the EOC

advisory committee for

ECENC program

implementation review

and to make

recommendations.

R E C O M M E N D A T I O N
Create information

material to clarify the

roles of various

organizations responsible

for ECENC program

administration. 

Procedures: Calendar, timeline and
ECENC implementation  
Funding of Student Grant
Considerations
Benefits of the ECENC program to
students

Findings from this data collection process
fall into the following themes:

The most common theme gathered from
interviews and site visits was around the
calendar of the ECENC program
administration. School leaders reported
that families who access the ECENC
program must make decisions about
enrollment for the next school year in
February through March. Families are not
informed if their child has received a grant
or the amount until later in March typically
after the obligation period has ended. 

Another clear theme was related to
funding structures for ECENC. School
leaders who participated in the site visits,
recommended that funding and grant
allotment be determined using a metric for
need. The more intensive interventions
needed, the most intensive supports
offered by the school, or the families with
the most financial need ranking highest on
a priority for funded grants. 

The benefits of the ECENC program were
also  described in great detail, with school
leaders reporting that the ECENC grants
allow for increased access to specialized
services. By providing increased access to a
variety of educational settings for students
to access special education services the
ECENC program supports the Individuals
with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA)
requirement of a “continuum of service
delivery environments”. Additionally, the
program provides increased parent choice
around what setting will be most beneficial
for their child.

Appendix H

101



A d d i t i o n a l  I n f o r m a t i o n

E D U C A T I O N A L  C R E D I T  F O R  E X C E P T I O N A L
N E E D S  C H I L D R E N  ( E C E N C )  P R O G R A M  R E P O R T :  
F Y  2 0 - 2 1  

M A Y  2 0 2 2

S O U T H  C A R O L I N A
E D U C A T I O N  O V E R S I G H T  C O M M I T T E E
The SC Education Oversight Committee is an independent,

non-partisan group made up of 18 educators, business

persons, and elected leaders. Created in 1998, the committee

is dedicated to reporting facts, measuring change, and

promoting progress within South Carolina’s education

system.

If you have questions, please contact the

Education Oversight Committee (EOC) staff for

additional information. The phone number is

803.734.6148. Also, please visit the EOC website at

www.eoc.sc.gov for additional resources.

Appendix H

102

http://www.eoc.sc.gov/


Appendix A 
School, Percent of Students Funded by ECENC, Total Amount, Average per Student 

Amount and CERRA Region 

School 
% Funded by 

ECENC Total amount 

Average per 
Student 
Amount 

CERRA 
Region 

Addlestone 
Hebrew Academy 2% $3,200.00 $3,200.00 5 
All Saints' 
Episcopal Day 
School* 0% $0.00 $0.00 4 
Anderson 
Christian School 5% $21,600.00 $2,400.00 1 
Ascent Christian 
Academy 0% $0.00 $0.00 5 

Ashley Hall 1% $26,200.00 $5,240.00 5 
Beaufort 
Academy 0% $0.00 $0.00 5 
Ben Lippen 
School 2% $49,200.00 $2,460.00 3 
Bishop England 
High School 5% $102,000.00 $3,000.00 5 
Blessed 
Sacrament School 2% $5,700.00 $1,425.00 5 
Bob Jones 
Academy 1% $22,200.00 $1,585.71 1 
Calhoun Academy 0% $1,200.00 $1,200.00 2 
Calvary Christian 
School-Greer 11% $21,500.00 $2,150.00 1 
Calvary Christian 
School-Myrtle 
Beach 0% * * 5 
Camden Military 
Academy 2% $22,100.00 $4,420.00 3 
Camperdown 
Academy 59% $544,335.00 $5,498.33 1 
Cardinal Newman 
School 8% $138,500.00 $3,077.78 3 
Carolina Christian 
Academy 0% $0.00 $0.00 3 
Cathedral 
Academy 0% * * 5 
Chabad Jewish 
Academy 0% * * 5 
Charis Academy 0% $0.00 $0.00 5 
Charleston 
Collegiate School 1% $16,309.37 $8,154.69 5 

Appendix H

103



Appendix A 
School, Percent of Students Funded by ECENC, Total Amount, Average per Student 

Amount and CERRA Region 

School 
% Funded by 

ECENC Total amount 

Average per 
Student 
Amount 

CERRA 
Region 

Charleston Day 
School 1% $13,100.00 $4,366.67 5 
Cherokee Creek 
Boys School, Inc. 0% $0.00 $0.00 1 
Christ Church 
Episcopal School 6% $242,100.00 $3,668.18 1 
Christ Our King-
Stella Maris 
Catholic School 2% $18,200.00 $1,400.00 5 
Clarendon Hall 
School 1% $1,600.00 $800.00 4 
Coastal Christian 
Preparatory 
School 8% $7,300.00 $2,433.33 5 
Colleton 
Preparatory 
Academy 6% $44,000.00 $2,200.00 5 
Covenant Classical 
Christian School 0% * * 3 
Cross Schools 2% $12,400.00 $2,066.67 5 
Crown Leadership 
Academy 3% $8,000.00 $1,600.00 5 
Cutler Jewish Day 
School 5% $6,600.00 $2,200.00 3 
Divine Redeemer 
Catholic School 1% $2,500.00 $1,250.00 5 
Easley Christian 
School 1% $1,400.00 $1,400.00 1 
Einstein Academy 8% $7,500.00 $2,500.00 1 
First Baptist 
School of 
Charleston 0% $0.00 $0.00 5 
First Presbyterian 
Academy 5% $5,635.00 $296.58 1 
Five Oaks 
Academy 1% $3,700.00 $1,850.00 1 
Foothills Christian 
School 0% $0.00 $0.00 1 
Francis Hugh 
Wardlaw 
Academy 0% $0.00 $0.00 2 
Glenforest School 46% $81,000.00 $3,521.74 3 

Appendix H

104



Appendix A 
School, Percent of Students Funded by ECENC, Total Amount, Average per Student 

Amount and CERRA Region 

School 
% Funded by 

ECENC Total amount 

Average per 
Student 
Amount 

CERRA 
Region 

Grace Christian 
School 2% $3,900.00 $1,300.00 3 
Greenville 
Classical Academy 0% $0.00 $0.00 1 
Hammond School 2% $46,430.00 $3,316.43 3 
Hampton Park 
Christian School 2% $10,300.00 $1,716.67 1 
Harvest 
Community 
School 1% $1,000.00 $1,000.00 4 
Hawthorne 
Christian 
Academy 1% $700.00 $700.00 3 
Heathwood Hall 
Episcopal School 2% $53,800.00 $3,842.86 3 
Hidden Treasure 
Christian School 38% $98,400.00 $4,100.00 1 
Hilton Head 
Christian 
Academy 2% $31,300.00 $3,130.00 5 
Hilton Head 
Preparatory 
School 1% $10,300.00 $3,433.33 5 
Holy Trinity 
Catholic School 1% $1,700.00 $1,700.00 4 
HOPE Academy 44% $76,500.00 $2,067.57 1 
Hope Christian 
Academy 89% $26,400.00 $3,300.00 3 
James Island 
Christian School 1% $1,700.00 $1,700.00 5 
John Paul II 
Catholic School 3% $19,600.00 $2,800.00 5 
Laurence 
Manning 
Academy 0% * * 4 

Little Learners 
Academy 0% * * 1 

Lowcountry 
Preparatory 
School 0% $0.00 $0.00 4 

Appendix H

105



Appendix A 
School, Percent of Students Funded by ECENC, Total Amount, Average per Student 

Amount and CERRA Region 

School 
% Funded by 

ECENC Total amount 

Average per 
Student 
Amount 

CERRA 
Region 

Mason 
Preparatory 
School 0% $3,400.00 $3,400.00 5 
Mead Hall 
Episcopal School 1% $7,700.00 $1,925.00 2 
Miracle Academy 
Preparatory 
School 35% $45,600.00 $2,400.00 5 
Mitchell Road 
Christian 
Academy 2% $18,300.00 $2,287.50 1 
Montessori School 
of Anderson 2% $2,400.00 $2,400.00 1 
Montessori School 
of Florence 0% $0.00 $0.00 4 
Nativity Catholic 
School 4% $5,300.00 $1,325.00 5 
Newberry 
Academy 0% * * 3 
North Walterboro 
Christian 
Academy 0% $0.00 $0.00 5 
Northside 
Christian 
Academy 0% $0.00 $0.00 3 
Oakbrook 
Preparatory 
School  3% $20,400.00 $1,700.00 1 
Oconee Christian 
Academy 1% $3,000.00 $1,500.00 1 
Orangeburg 
Preparatory 
Schools, Inc. 1% $6,500.00 $1,300.00 2 

Our Lady of Peace 
Catholic School 12% $24,700.00 $1,300.00 2 

Our Lady of the 
Rosary Catholic 
School 6% $16,400.00 $2,050.00 1 

Appendix H

106



Appendix A 
School, Percent of Students Funded by ECENC, Total Amount, Average per Student 

Amount and CERRA Region 

School 
% Funded by 

ECENC Total amount 

Average per 
Student 
Amount 

CERRA 
Region 

Palmetto 
Christian 
Academy of 
Greenwood 
(PCAG) 0% $0.00 $0.00 2 
Palmetto 
Christian 
Academy-Mt. 
Pleasant 2% $21,500.00 $2,150.00 5 
Patrick Henry 
Academy  4% $8,100.00 $900.00 5 
Pee Dee Academy 1% $5,000.00 $1,250.00 4 
Porter-Gaud 
School 0% $20,700.00 $5,175.00 5 
Prince of Peace 
Catholic School 4% $8,400.00 $1,400.00 1 
Providence 
Classical School of 
Rock Hill 0% $0.00 $0.00 3 
Ridge Christian 
Academy 12% $19,200.00 $1,600.00 5 
Riverpointe 
Christian 
Academy 0% $0.00 $0.00 5 
Sandhills School 49% $241,900.00 $4,838.00 3 
South Aiken 
Baptist Christian 
School 0% * * 2 
Southside 
Christian School 5% $180,100.00 $3,274.55 1 
Spartanburg 
Christian 
Academy 0% $0.00 $0.00 1 

Spartanburg Day 
School 3% $48,000.00 $4,000.00 1 
St. Andrew 
Catholic School 7% $19,200.00 $1,600.00 5 
St. Anne Catholic 
School-Rock Hill 2% $21,300.00 $2,366.67 3 

Appendix H

107



Appendix A 
School, Percent of Students Funded by ECENC, Total Amount, Average per Student 

Amount and CERRA Region 

School 
% Funded by 

ECENC Total amount 

Average per 
Student 
Amount 

CERRA 
Region 

St. Anne-St. Jude 
Catholic School-
Sumter  0% * * 4 
St. Anthony 
Catholic School-
Florence 5% $8,500.00 $1,700.00 4 
St. Anthony of 
Padua Catholic 
School 4% $11,000.00 $2,200.00 1 
St. Elizabeth Ann 
Seton Catholic 
High School 3% $2,200.00 $2,200.00 5 
St. Francis by the 
Sea Catholic 
School 1% $2,400.00 $1,200.00 5 
St. Gregory the 
Great Catholic 
School 1% $2,200.00 $1,100.00 5 
St. John Catholic 
School-Charleston 2% $16,800.00 $2,400.00 5 
St. John 
Neumann 
Catholic School 12% $14,100.00 $2,350.00 3 
St. John’s 
Christian 
Academy 2% $8,700.00 $1,242.86 5 
St. Joseph 
Catholic School-
Anderson 0% $0.00 $0.00 1 
St. Joseph 
Catholic School-
Columbia 13% $14,800.00 $1,644.44 3 
St. Joseph's 
Catholic School-
Greenville 3% $63,200.00 $3,160.00 1 

St. Martin de 
Porres Catholic 
School 0% $0.00 $0.00 3 
St. Mary Help of 
Christians 
Catholic School 2% $8,800.00 $2,200.00 2 

Appendix H

108



Appendix A 
School, Percent of Students Funded by ECENC, Total Amount, Average per Student 

Amount and CERRA Region 

School 
% Funded by 

ECENC Total amount 

Average per 
Student 
Amount 

CERRA 
Region 

St. Michael 
Catholic School 0% $0.00 $0.00 5 
St. Peter's Catholic 
School-Beaufort 0% $0.00 $0.00 5 
St. Peter's Catholic 
School-Columbia 0% $0.00 $0.00 3 
Step of Faith 
Christian 
Academy 0% $900.00 $900.00 5 
Summerville 
Catholic School 2% $5,100.00 $1,700.00 5 
Sumter Christian 
School 2% $2,200.00 $1,100.00 4 
Tabernacle 
Christian School 0% * * 1 
The Chandler 
School 57% $139,200.00 $4,350.00 1 
The Charleston 
Catholic School 9% $34,000.00 $2,000.00 5 
The Complete 
Student 0% $0.00 $0.00 5 
The Cooper 
School 0% $0.00 $0.00 5 
The King's 
Academy 5% $176,708.00 $11,780.53 4 
The Timmerman 
School 1% $7,200.00 $1,800.00 3 
The Village School 
of Gaffney 0% $0.00 $0.00 1 
Thomas Heyward 
Academy 4% $10,800.00 $1,200.00 5 
Thomas Sumter 
Academy 1% $3,000.00 $1,500.00 4 
Trident Academy 29% $94,400.00 $5,900.00 5 

Trinity Christian 
Educational 
School 0% $0.00 $0.00 1 
Victory Bible 
Christian School 0% $0.00 $0.00 3 
Walnut Grove 
Christian School 0% * * 3 

Appendix H

109



Appendix A 
School, Percent of Students Funded by ECENC, Total Amount, Average per Student 

Amount and CERRA Region 

School 
% Funded by 

ECENC Total amount 

Average per 
Student 
Amount 

CERRA 
Region 

Westgate 
Christian School 0% $0.00 $0.00 1 
Westminster 
Catawba Christian 
School 4% $33,700.00 $2,592.31 3 
Westside 
Christian 
Academy 0% * * 4 

Statewide 3% $3,218,117.37 $3,224.57 1-5  

Appendix H

110



 

 
Appendix B 

Student Assessment in ECENC Approved Schools with 51% or More Students Funded: 
 

Camperdown Academy Average Student Scores in 2020-21 School Year: 
 
Reading Scores on Gates-MacGinitie 
 

Grade Number of Students Average 
1 14 34.9 
2 20 33.5 
3 29 47.0 
4 20 38.7 
5 23 38.3 
6 23 42.8 
7 23 50.0 
8 21 55.1 

 
Math Scores on GMADE 
 

Grade Number of Students Average 
1 14 90.0 
2 20 92.2 
3 29 112.8 
4 20 99.4 
5 23 92.4 
6 23 99.6 
7 23 96.3 
8 21 97.9 

 
Hope Christian Academy Average Student Scores in 2020-21 School Year: 
 
Scores were not reported due to fewer than 10 students in the school. Suppressing 
this data protects the identity of students and their personal information in 
accordance with state and federal law.  
 
The Chandler School Average Student Scores in 2020-21 School Year:  
 

PSAT Scores in 8th Grade 
Reading Math 

347 362 
 
 
 
 
  

Appendix H

111



 

Appendix C:  
Invitation to Participate in Qualitative Evaluation and Interview Questions 

 
Good morning,  
Act 247 of 2018 establishes the Educational Credit for Exceptional Needs 
Children (ECENC) program, and the Education Oversight Committee (EOC) is 
required to annually issue a report to the General Assembly documenting the 
impact of this program. Historically, this report has been written using student 
test scores, which is an important part of measuring student learning, but 
some measures of quality can be missed using only test scores. This year the 
EOC would like to include information outside the scope of standardized test 
scores to be obtained through visits to the schools eligible for ECENC funds. 
This would allow for a more complete picture of the impact of the ECENC 
program on students and families, and enable us to learn from the expertise of 
teachers and administrators who implement the program. To that end, we’d 
like to schedule a time to visit and tour your school, and talk with teachers 
about their experience. This will add to the General Assembly’s knowledge of 
the impact of the ECENC program, and the report will be written so that 
individuals remain anonymous. I will call this week to set a time that is 
convenient for you so that EOC staff can come tour the school. During this 
scheduling call, we can also discuss further how you’d like conversations with 
teachers to be facilitated and I would be happy to answer any questions or 
address any concerns you may have about this process. Our ideal timeline for 
completed visits and conversations is anytime before April 1, so please consider 
when would be best for you this month and we’ll schedule a time most 
convenient for you.  
 
Warmly, 
                Jenny 
 

Guiding Questions 
1. From your perspective, what are the most important benefits of the 

ECENC program?  
2. Are there any problems implementing the ECENC program that could be 

alleviated at the state level? Please describe them. 
a. Do you have suggestions to improve? 

3. Does your school partner with the community to serve students? If so, 
how?  

4. Do you feel supported in the implementation of the ECENC program in 
your school? 

5. What else should I know, but haven’t asked about the ECENC program 
from your perspective?  

 
 

Appendix H

112



A
p

p
en

d
ix

 D
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
M

at
ri

x 

Sc
h

o
o

l 
St

an
fo

rd
 

1
0

 g
2

-8
 

Io
w

a 
A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
K

5
-1

1
 

A
C

T 
A

sp
ir

eg
3

-
8

 

P
SA

T 
8

/9
 

g7
-9

 

P
SA

T 
(N

M
SQ

)g
 

8
-1

1
 

SA
T 

g1
1

-
1

2
 

A
C

T 
g7

-
1

2
 

ER
B

s 
C

TP
4

 
g 

3
-6

 

O
LS

A
T 

8
 g

 1
-

8
 

M
A

P
 

gK
-

1
0

 
ER

B
 

g 
9

 
W

R
A

T-
5

 g
3

-8
 

C
o

gA
t 

g8
-1

2
 

Te
rr

aN
o

va
 

A
im

sw
eb

 
p

ro
gr

es
s 

m
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g 

W
o

o
d

co
ck

 
Jo

h
n

so
n

 
IV

 
A

P
 

P
re

 
A

C
T 

G
at

es
 

M
ac

G
in

it
ie

 
To

w
re

 

To
ta

l N
u

m
b

er
 

o
f 

Sc
h

o
o

ls
  

2
4

 
3

0
 

6
 

1
7

 
6

2
 

5
4

 
4

8
 

1
1

 
9

 
4

3
 

1
 

2
 

3
 

3
 

1
 

3
 

2
 

4
 

1
 

1
 

A
d

d
le

st
o

n
e 

H
eb

re
w

 
A

ca
d

em
y 

✓
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
A

n
d

er
so

n
 

C
h

ri
st

ia
n

 
Sc

h
o

o
l 

 
✓

 
✓

 
✓

 
✓

 
✓

 
✓

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

A
sc

en
t 

C
h

ri
st

ia
n

 
A

ca
d

em
y 

 
 

 
 

✓
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

A
sh

le
y 

H
al

l 
 

 
✓

 
✓

 
✓

 
 

 
✓

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
B

ea
u

fo
rt

 
A

ca
d

em
y 

✓
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
✓

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

B
en

 L
ip

p
en

 
Sc

h
o

o
l 

 
 

 
 

✓
 

 
✓

 
 

 
✓

 
✓

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

B
is

h
o

p
 

En
gl

an
d

 H
ig

h
 

Sc
h

o
o

l 
 

 
 

 
✓

 
✓

 
✓

 
 

 
✓

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
B

le
ss

ed
 

Sa
cr

am
en

t 
Sc

h
o

o
l 

 
 

 
 

✓
 

 
✓

 
 

 
✓

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
B

o
b

 J
o

n
es

 
A

ca
d

em
y 

 
✓

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
C

al
h

o
u

n
 

A
ca

d
em

y 
✓

 
 

 
✓

 
✓

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

C
al

va
ry

 
C

h
ri

st
ia

n
 

Sc
h

o
o

l-
G

re
er

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
C

al
va

ry
 

C
h

ri
st

ia
n

 
Sc

h
o

o
l-

M
yr

tl
e 

B
ea

ch
 

 
✓

 
 

 
✓

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Appendix H

113



A
p

p
en

d
ix

 D
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
M

at
ri

x 
C

am
d

en
 

M
ili

ta
ry

 
A

ca
d

em
y 

 
 

 
✓

 
 

✓
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Sc
h

o
o

l 
St

an
fo

rd
 

1
0

 g
2

-8
 

Io
w

a 
A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
K

5
-1

1
 

A
C

T 
A

sp
ir

eg
3

-
8

 

P
SA

T 
8

/9
 

g7
-9

 

P
SA

T 
(N

M
SQ

)g
 

8
-1

1
 

SA
T 

g1
1

-
1

2
 

A
C

T 
g7

-
1

2
 

ER
B

s 
C

TP
4

 
g 

3
-6

 

O
LS

A
T 

8
 g

 1
-

8
 

M
A

P
 

gK
-

1
0

 
ER

B
 

g 
9

 
W

R
A

T-
5

 g
3

-8
 

C
o

gA
t 

g8
-1

2
 

Te
rr

aN
o

va
 

A
im

sw
eb

 
p

ro
gr

es
s 

m
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g 

W
o

o
d

co
ck

 
Jo

h
n

so
n

 
IV

 
A

P
 

P
re

 
A

C
T 

G
at

es
 

M
ac

G
in

it
ie

 
To

w
re

 

To
ta

l N
u

m
b

er
 

o
f 

Sc
h

o
o

ls
  

2
4

 
3

0
 

6
 

1
7

 
6

2
 

5
4

 
4

8
 

1
1

 
9

 
4

3
 

1
 

2
 

3
 

3
 

1
 

3
 

2
 

4
 

1
 

1
 

C
am

p
er

d
o

w
n

 
A

ca
d

em
y 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
✓

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
C

ar
d

in
al

 
N

ew
m

an
 

Sc
h

o
o

l 
 

 
 

 
✓

 
✓

 
✓

 
 

 
✓

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
C

ar
o

lin
a 

C
h

ri
st

ia
n

 
A

ca
d

em
y 

 
✓

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
✓

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

C
at

h
ed

ra
l 

A
ca

d
em

y 
 

✓
 

 
 

✓
 

✓
 

✓
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
C

h
ab

ad
 

Je
w

is
h

 
A

ca
d

em
y 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
✓

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
C

h
ar

is
 

A
ca

d
em

y 
✓

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

C
h

ar
le

st
o

n
 

C
o

lle
gi

at
e 

Sc
h

o
o

l 
 

 
 

 
 

✓
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

C
h

ar
le

st
o

n
 

D
ay

 S
ch

o
o

l 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

✓
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

C
h

er
o

ke
e 

C
re

ek
 B

o
ys

 
Sc

h
o

o
l, 

In
c.

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

✓
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

C
h

ri
st

 C
h

u
rc

h
 

Ep
is

co
p

al
 

Sc
h

o
o

l 
 

 
 

✓
 

 
 

 
✓

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
C

h
ri

st
 O

u
r 

K
in

g-
St

el
la

 
M

ar
is

 
C

at
h

o
lic

 
Sc

h
o

o
l 

 
 

 
 

✓
 

✓
 

✓
 

 
 

✓
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

C
la

re
n

d
o

n
 

H
al

l S
ch

o
o

l 
 

✓
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Appendix H

114



A
p

p
en

d
ix

 D
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
M

at
ri

x 
C

o
as

ta
l 

C
h

ri
st

ia
n

 
P

re
p

ar
at

o
ry

 
Sc

h
o

o
l 

 
✓

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Sc
h

o
o

l 
St

an
fo

rd
 

1
0

 g
2

-8
 

Io
w

a 
A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
K

5
-1

1
 

A
C

T 
A

sp
ir

eg
3

-
8

 

P
SA

T 
8

/9
 

g7
-9

 

P
SA

T 
(N

M
SQ

)g
 

8
-1

1
 

SA
T 

g1
1

-
1

2
 

A
C

T 
g7

-
1

2
 

ER
B

s 
C

TP
4

 
g 

3
-6

 

O
LS

A
T 

8
 g

 1
-

8
 

M
A

P
 

gK
-

1
0

 
ER

B
 

g 
9

 
W

R
A

T-
5

 g
3

-8
 

C
o

gA
t 

g8
-1

2
 

Te
rr

aN
o

va
 

A
im

sw
eb

 
p

ro
gr

es
s 

m
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g 

W
o

o
d

co
ck

 
Jo

h
n

so
n

 
IV

 
A

P
 

P
re

 
A

C
T 

G
at

es
 

M
ac

G
in

it
ie

 
To

w
re

 

To
ta

l N
u

m
b

er
 

o
f 

Sc
h

o
o

ls
  

2
4

 
3

0
 

6
 

1
7

 
6

2
 

5
4

 
4

8
 

1
1

 
9

 
4

3
 

1
 

2
 

3
 

3
 

1
 

3
 

2
 

4
 

1
 

1
 

C
o

ve
n

an
t 

C
la

ss
ic

al
 

C
h

ri
st

ia
n

 
Sc

h
o

o
l 

 
 

 
✓

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

C
ro

ss
 S

ch
o

o
ls

 
✓

 
 

✓
 

✓
 

 
 

 
 

✓
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
C

ro
w

n
 

Le
ad

er
sh

ip
 

A
ca

d
em

y 
 

✓
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

C
u

tl
er

 J
ew

is
h

 
D

ay
 S

ch
o

o
l 

✓
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
D

iv
in

e 
R

ed
ee

m
e

r 
C

at
h

o
lic

 
Sc

h
o

o
l 

 
 

 
 

✓
 

✓
 

✓
 

 
 

✓
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Ea
sl

ey
 

C
h

ri
si

ta
n

 
Sc

h
o

o
l 

 
✓

 
 

 
✓

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Ei
n

st
ei

n
 

A
ca

d
em

y 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

✓
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Fi
rs

t 
B

ap
ti

st
 

Sc
h

o
o

l o
f 

C
h

ar
le

st
o

n
 

✓
 

 
 

 
✓

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Fi
rs

t 
P

re
sb

yt
er

ia
n

 
A

ca
d

em
y 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
✓

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Fi

ve
 O

ak
s 

A
ca

d
em

y 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

✓
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Fo
o

th
ill

s 
C

h
ri

st
ia

n
 

Sc
h

o
o

l 
 

✓
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Fr
an

ci
s 

H
u

gh
 

W
ar

d
la

w
 

A
ca

d
em

y 
 

✓
 

 
 

✓
 

✓
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

✓
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Appendix H

115



A
p

p
en

d
ix

 D
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
M

at
ri

x 
G

le
n

fo
re

st
 

Sc
h

o
o

l 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

✓
 

 
 

 
 

✓
 

 
 

 
 

 
G

ra
ce

 
C

h
ri

st
ia

n
 

Sc
h

o
o

l 
 

✓
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Sc
h

o
o

l 
St

an
fo

rd
 

1
0

 g
2

-8
 

Io
w

a 
A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
K

5
-1

1
 

A
C

T 
A

sp
ir

eg
3

-
8

 

P
SA

T 
8

/9
 

g7
-9

 

P
SA

T 
(N

M
SQ

)g
 

8
-1

1
 

SA
T 

g1
1

-
1

2
 

A
C

T 
g7

-
1

2
 

ER
B

s 
C

TP
4

 
g 

3
-6

 

O
LS

A
T 

8
 g

 1
-

8
 

M
A

P
 

gK
-

1
0

 
ER

B
 

g 
9

 
W

R
A

T-
5

 g
3

-8
 

C
o

gA
t 

g8
-1

2
 

Te
rr

aN
o

va
 

A
im

sw
eb

 
p

ro
gr

es
s 

m
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g 

W
o

o
d

co
ck

 
Jo

h
n

so
n

 
IV

 
A

P
 

P
re

 
A

C
T 

G
at

es
 

M
ac

G
in

it
ie

 
To

w
re

 

To
ta

l N
u

m
b

er
 

o
f 

Sc
h

o
o

ls
  

2
4

 
3

0
 

6
 

1
7

 
6

2
 

5
4

 
4

8
 

1
1

 
9

 
4

3
 

1
 

2
 

3
 

3
 

1
 

3
 

2
 

4
 

1
 

1
 

G
re

en
vi

lle
 

C
la

ss
ic

al
 

A
ca

d
em

y 
 

✓
 

 
 

✓
 

✓
 

✓
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
H

am
m

o
n

d
 

Sc
h

o
o

l 
 

 
 

 
✓

 
 

 
✓

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
H

am
p

to
n

 
P

ar
k 

C
h

ri
st

ia
n

 
Sc

h
o

o
l 

 
✓

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
✓

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

H
ar

ve
st

 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
Sc

h
o

o
l 

 
✓

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
✓

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

H
aw

th
o

rn
e 

C
h

ri
st

ia
n

 
A

ca
d

em
y 

 
✓

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
H

ea
th

w
o

o
d

 
H

al
l E

p
is

co
p

al
 

Sc
h

o
o

l 
 

 
 

 
 

✓
 

✓
 

✓
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

H
id

d
en

 
Tr

ea
su

re
 

C
h

ri
st

ia
n

 
Sc

h
o

o
l 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
✓

 
 

 
 

 
H

ilt
o

n
 H

ea
d

 
C

h
ri

st
ia

n
 

A
ca

d
em

y 
 

✓
 

 
 

✓
 

✓
 

✓
 

 
 

✓
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

H
ilt

o
n

 H
ea

d
 

P
re

p
ar

at
o

ry
 

Sc
h

o
o

l 
✓

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

H
o

ly
 T

ri
n

it
y 

C
at

h
o

lic
 

Sc
h

o
o

l 
 

 
 

 
✓

 
✓

 
✓

 
 

 
✓

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
H

O
P

E 
A

ca
d

em
y 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
✓

 
 

 
 

 
 

✓
 

 
 

 
 

Appendix H

116



A
p

p
en

d
ix

 D
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
M

at
ri

x 
H

o
p

e 
C

h
ri

st
ia

n
 

A
ca

d
em

y 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Ja

m
es

 Is
la

n
d

 
C

h
ri

st
ia

n
 

Sc
h

o
o

l 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

✓
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Sc
h

o
o

l 
St

an
fo

rd
 

1
0

 g
2

-8
 

Io
w

a 
A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
K

5
-1

1
 

A
C

T 
A

sp
ir

eg
3

-
8

 

P
SA

T 
8

/9
 

g7
-9

 

P
SA

T 
(N

M
SQ

)g
 

8
-1

1
 

SA
T 

g1
1

-
1

2
 

A
C

T 
g7

-
1

2
 

ER
B

s 
C

TP
4

 
g 

3
-6

 

O
LS

A
T 

8
 g

 1
-

8
 

M
A

P
 

gK
-

1
0

 
ER

B
 

g 
9

 
W

R
A

T-
5

 g
3

-8
 

C
o

gA
t 

g8
-1

2
 

Te
rr

aN
o

va
 

A
im

sw
eb

 
p

ro
gr

es
s 

m
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g 

W
o

o
d

co
ck

 
Jo

h
n

so
n

 
IV

 
A

P
 

P
re

 
A

C
T 

G
at

es
 

M
ac

G
in

it
ie

 
To

w
re

 

To
ta

l N
u

m
b

er
 

o
f 

Sc
h

o
o

ls
  

2
4

 
3

0
 

6
 

1
7

 
6

2
 

5
4

 
4

8
 

1
1

 
9

 
4

3
 

1
 

2
 

3
 

3
 

1
 

3
 

2
 

4
 

1
 

1
 

Jo
h

n
 P

au
l I

I 
C

at
h

o
lic

 
Sc

h
o

o
l 

 
 

 
 

✓
 

✓
 

✓
 

 
 

✓
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

La
u

re
n

ce
 

M
an

n
in

g 
A

ca
d

em
y 

✓
 

 
 

 
✓

 
✓

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Li

tt
le

 
Le

ar
n

er
s 

A
ca

d
em

y 
 

 
 

 
✓

 
✓

 
✓

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
✓

 
 

 
 

 
Lo

w
co

u
n

tr
y 

P
re

p
ar

at
o

ry
 

Sc
h

o
o

l 
✓

 
 

 
✓

 
 

✓
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

M
as

o
n

 
P

re
p

ar
at

o
ry

 
Sc

h
o

o
l 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
✓

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
M

ea
d

 H
al

l 
Ep

is
co

p
al

 
Sc

h
o

o
l 

 
 

 
✓

 
 

 
 

✓
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

M
ir

ac
le

 
A

ca
d

em
y 

P
re

p
ar

at
o

ry
 

Sc
h

o
o

l 
✓

 
 

 
✓

 
 

 
✓

 
 

✓
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
M

it
ch

el
l R

o
ad

 
C

h
ri

st
ia

n
 

A
ca

d
em

y 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

✓
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

M
o

n
te

ss
o

ri
 

Sc
h

o
o

l o
f 

A
n

d
er

so
n

 
✓

 
 

 
 

✓
 

✓
 

✓
 

 
 

✓
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

M
o

n
te

ss
o

ri
 

Sc
h

o
o

l o
f 

Fl
o

re
n

ce
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
✓

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Appendix H

117



A
p

p
en

d
ix

 D
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
M

at
ri

x 
N

at
iv

it
y 

C
at

h
o

lic
 

Sc
h

o
o

l 
 

 
 

 
✓

 
✓

 
✓

 
 

 
✓

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
N

ew
b

er
ry

 
A

ca
d

em
y 

✓
 

 
 

✓
 

✓
 

✓
 

 
 

✓
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Sc
h

o
o

l 
St

an
fo

rd
 

1
0

 g
2

-8
 

Io
w

a 
A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
K

5
-1

1
 

A
C

T 
A

sp
ir

eg
3

-
8

 

P
SA

T 
8

/9
 

g7
-9

 

P
SA

T 
(N

M
SQ

)g
 

8
-1

1
 

SA
T 

g1
1

-
1

2
 

A
C

T 
g7

-
1

2
 

ER
B

s 
C

TP
4

 
g 

3
-6

 

O
LS

A
T 

8
 g

 1
-

8
 

M
A

P
 

gK
-

1
0

 
ER

B
 

g 
9

 
W

R
A

T-
5

 g
3

-8
 

C
o

gA
t 

g8
-1

2
 

Te
rr

aN
o

va
 

A
im

sw
eb

 
p

ro
gr

es
s 

m
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g 

W
o

o
d

co
ck

 
Jo

h
n

so
n

 
IV

 
A

P
 

P
re

 
A

C
T 

G
at

es
 

M
ac

G
in

it
ie

 
To

w
re

 

To
ta

l N
u

m
b

er
 

o
f 

Sc
h

o
o

ls
  

2
4

 
3

0
 

6
 

1
7

 
6

2
 

5
4

 
4

8
 

1
1

 
9

 
4

3
 

1
 

2
 

3
 

3
 

1
 

3
 

2
 

4
 

1
 

1
 

N
o

rt
h

si
d

e 
C

h
ri

st
ia

n
 

A
ca

d
em

y 
 

 
 

 
✓

 
✓

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

✓
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

N
o

rt
h

 
W

al
te

rb
o

ro
 

C
h

ri
st

ia
n

 
A

ca
d

em
y 

 
✓

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
O

ak
b

ro
o

k 
P

re
p

ar
at

o
ry

 
Sc

h
o

o
l  

✓
 

 
 

 
✓

 
✓

 
✓

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
✓

 
✓

 
 

 
 

O
co

n
ee

 
C

h
ri

st
ia

n
 

A
ca

d
em

y 
 

✓
 

 
 

✓
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
O

ra
n

ge
b

u
rg

 
P

re
p

ar
at

o
ry

 
Sc

h
o

o
ls

, I
n

c.
 

 
✓

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
O

u
r 

La
d

y 
o

f 
P

ea
ce

 
C

at
h

o
lic

 
Sc

h
o

o
l 

 
 

 
 

✓
 

✓
 

✓
 

 
 

✓
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

O
u

r 
La

d
y 

o
f 

th
e 

R
o

sa
ry

 
C

at
h

o
lic

 
Sc

h
o

o
l 

 
 

 
 

✓
 

✓
 

✓
 

 
 

✓
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

P
al

m
et

to
 

C
h

ri
st

ia
n

 
A

ca
d

em
y 

o
f 

G
re

en
w

o
o

d
 

(P
C

A
G

) 
 

 
 

✓
 

✓
 

✓
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
✓

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
P

al
m

et
to

 
C

h
ri

st
ia

n
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
✓

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Appendix H

118



A
p

p
en

d
ix

 D
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
M

at
ri

x 
A

ca
d

em
y-

M
t.

 
P

le
as

an
t 

P
at

ri
ck

 H
en

ry
 

A
ca

d
em

y 
 

 
 

 
 

✓
 

✓
 

✓
 

✓
 

✓
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

✓
 

 
 

P
ee

 D
ee

 
A

ca
d

em
y 

 
 

 
✓

 
✓

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Sc
h

o
o

l 
St

an
fo

rd
 

1
0

 g
2

-8
 

Io
w

a 
A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
K

5
-1

1
 

A
C

T 
A

sp
ir

eg
3

-
8

 

P
SA

T 
8

/9
 

g7
-9

 

P
SA

T 
(N

M
SQ

)g
 

8
-1

1
 

SA
T 

g1
1

-
1

2
 

A
C

T 
g7

-
1

2
 

ER
B

s 
C

TP
4

 
g 

3
-6

 

O
LS

A
T 

8
 g

 1
-

8
 

M
A

P
 

gK
-

1
0

 
ER

B
 

g 
9

 
W

R
A

T-
5

 g
3

-8
 

C
o

gA
t 

g8
-1

2
 

Te
rr

aN
o

va
 

A
im

sw
eb

 
p

ro
gr

es
s 

m
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g 

W
o

o
d

co
ck

 
Jo

h
n

so
n

 
IV

 
A

P
 

P
re

 
A

C
T 

G
at

es
 

M
ac

G
in

it
ie

 
To

w
re

 

To
ta

l N
u

m
b

er
 

o
f 

Sc
h

o
o

ls
  

2
4

 
3

0
 

6
 

1
7

 
6

2
 

5
4

 
4

8
 

1
1

 
9

 
4

3
 

1
 

2
 

3
 

3
 

1
 

3
 

2
 

4
 

1
 

1
 

P
o

rt
er

-G
au

d
 

Sc
h

o
o

l 
 

 
 

 
✓

 
 

 
✓

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

✓
 

 
 

P
ri

n
ce

 o
f 

P
ea

ce
 

C
at

h
o

lic
 

Sc
h

o
o

l 
 

 
 

 
✓

 
✓

 
✓

 
 

 
✓

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
P

ro
vi

d
en

ce
 

C
la

ss
ic

al
 

Sc
h

o
o

l o
f 

R
o

ck
 H

ill
 

 
✓

 
 

 
 

✓
 

✓
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
R

id
ge

 
C

h
ri

st
ia

n
 

A
ca

d
em

y 
✓

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

R
iv

er
p

o
in

te
 

C
h

ri
st

ia
n

 
A

ca
d

em
y 

✓
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
✓

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Sa
n

d
h

ill
s 

Sc
h

o
o

l 
 

 
 

 
 

 
✓

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

So
u

th
 A

ik
en

 
B

ap
ti

st
 

C
h

ri
st

ia
n

 
Sc

h
o

o
l 

 
✓

 
 

 
✓

 
✓

 
✓

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
✓

 
✓

 
✓

 
 

 
So

u
th

si
d

e 
C

h
ri

st
ia

n
 

Sc
h

o
o

l 
 

 
✓

 
 

✓
 

 
 

 
 

✓
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Sp
ar

ta
n

b
u

rg
 

C
h

ri
st

ia
n

 
A

ca
d

em
y 

✓
 

 
✓

 
✓

 
✓

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Sp
ar

ta
n

b
u

rg
 

D
ay

 S
ch

o
o

l 
 

 
 

✓
 

✓
 

✓
 

 
✓

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Appendix H

119



A
p

p
en

d
ix

 D
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
M

at
ri

x 
St

. A
n

d
re

w
 

C
at

h
o

lic
 

Sc
h

o
o

l 
 

 
 

 
✓

 
✓

 
✓

 
 

 
✓

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
St

. A
n

n
e 

C
at

h
o

lic
 

Sc
h

o
o

l-
R

o
ck

 
H

ill
 

 
 

 
 

✓
 

✓
 

✓
 

 
 

✓
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Sc
h

o
o

l 
St

an
fo

rd
 

1
0

 g
2

-8
 

Io
w

a 
A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
K

5
-1

1
 

A
C

T 
A

sp
ir

eg
3

-
8

 

P
SA

T 
8

/9
 

g7
-9

 

P
SA

T 
(N

M
SQ

)g
 

8
-1

1
 

SA
T 

g1
1

-
1

2
 

A
C

T 
g7

-
1

2
 

ER
B

s 
C

TP
4

 
g 

3
-6

 

O
LS

A
T 

8
 g

 1
-

8
 

M
A

P
 

gK
-

1
0

 
ER

B
 

g 
9

 
W

R
A

T-
5

 g
3

-8
 

C
o

gA
t 

g8
-1

2
 

Te
rr

aN
o

va
 

A
im

sw
eb

 
p

ro
gr

es
s 

m
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g 

W
o

o
d

co
ck

 
Jo

h
n

so
n

 
IV

 
A

P
 

P
re

 
A

C
T 

G
at

es
 

M
ac

G
in

it
ie

 
To

w
re

 

To
ta

l N
u

m
b

er
 

o
f 

Sc
h

o
o

ls
  

2
4

 
3

0
 

6
 

1
7

 
6

2
 

5
4

 
4

8
 

1
1

 
9

 
4

3
 

1
 

2
 

3
 

3
 

1
 

3
 

2
 

4
 

1
 

1
 

St
. A

n
n

e-
St

. 
Ju

d
e 

C
at

h
o

lic
 

Sc
h

o
o

l-
Su

m
te

r 
 

 
 

 
 

 
✓

 
✓

 
 

 
✓

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
St

. A
n

th
o

n
y 

C
at

h
o

lic
 

Sc
h

o
o

l-
Fl

o
re

n
ce

 
 

 
 

 
✓

 
✓

 
✓

 
 

 
✓

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
St

. A
n

th
o

n
y 

o
f 

P
ad

u
a 

C
at

h
o

lic
 

Sc
h

o
o

l 
 

 
 

 
✓

 
✓

 
✓

 
 

 
✓

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
St

. E
liz

ab
et

h
 

A
n

n
 S

et
o

n
 

C
at

h
o

lic
 H

ig
h

 
Sc

h
o

o
l 

 
 

 
 

✓
 

✓
 

✓
 

 
 

✓
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

St
. F

ra
n

ci
s 

b
y 

th
e 

Se
a 

C
at

h
o

lic
 

Sc
h

o
o

l 
 

 
 

 
✓

 
✓

 
✓

 
 

 
✓

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
St

. G
re

go
ry

 
th

e 
G

re
at

 
C

at
h

o
lic

 
Sc

h
o

o
l 

 
 

 
 

✓
 

✓
 

✓
 

 
 

✓
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

St
. J

o
h

n
 

C
at

h
o

lic
 

Sc
h

o
o

l-
C

h
ar

le
st

o
n

 
 

 
 

 
✓

 
✓

 
✓

 
 

 
✓

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
St

. J
o

h
n

 
N

eu
m

an
n

 
 

 
 

 

  
  

  
 

 
✓

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Appendix H

120



A
p

p
en

d
ix

 D
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
M

at
ri

x 
C

at
h

o
lic

 
Sc

h
o

o
l 

 
✓

 
 
✓

 
 
✓

 

St
. J

o
h

n
’s

 
C

h
ri

st
ia

n
 

A
ca

d
em

y 
✓

 
 

 
 

 
✓

 
✓

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Sc
h

o
o

l 
St

an
fo

rd
 

1
0

 g
2

-8
 

Io
w

a 
A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
K

5
-1

1
 

A
C

T 
A

sp
ir

eg
3

-
8

 

P
SA

T 
8

/9
 

g7
-9

 

P
SA

T 
(N

M
SQ

)g
 

8
-1

1
 

SA
T 

g1
1

-
1

2
 

A
C

T 
g7

-
1

2
 

ER
B

s 
C

TP
4

 
g 

3
-6

 

O
LS

A
T 

8
 g

 1
-

8
 

M
A

P
 

gK
-

1
0

 
ER

B
 

g 
9

 
W

R
A

T-
5

 g
3

-8
 

C
o

gA
t 

g8
-1

2
 

Te
rr

aN
o

va
 

A
im

sw
eb

 
p

ro
gr

es
s 

m
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g 

W
o

o
d

co
ck

 
Jo

h
n

so
n

 
IV

 
A

P
 

P
re

 
A

C
T 

G
at

es
 

M
ac

G
in

it
ie

 
To

w
re

 

To
ta

l N
u

m
b

er
 

o
f 

Sc
h

o
o

ls
  

2
4

 
3

0
 

6
 

1
7

 
6

2
 

5
4

 
4

8
 

1
1

 
9

 
4

3
 

1
 

2
 

3
 

3
 

1
 

3
 

2
 

4
 

1
 

1
 

St
. J

o
se

p
h

 
C

at
h

o
lic

 
Sc

h
o

o
l-

A
n

d
er

so
n

 
 

 
 

✓
 

✓
 

✓
 

✓
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

✓
 

 
 

St
. J

o
se

p
h

 
C

at
h

o
lic

 
Sc

h
o

o
l-

C
o

lu
m

b
ia

 
 

 
 

 
✓

 
✓

 
✓

 
 

 
✓

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
St

. J
o

se
p

h
's

 
C

at
h

o
lic

 
Sc

h
o

o
l-

G
re

en
vi

lle
 

 
 

 
 

✓
 

✓
 

✓
 

 
 

✓
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

St
. M

ar
ti

n
 d

e 
P

o
rr

es
 

C
at

h
o

lic
 

Sc
h

o
o

l 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
St

. M
ar

y 
H

el
p

 
o

f 
C

h
ri

st
ia

n
s 

C
at

h
o

lic
 

Sc
h

o
o

l 
 

 
 

 
✓

 
✓

 
✓

 
 

 
✓

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
St

. M
ic

h
ae

l 
C

at
h

o
lic

 
Sc

h
o

o
l 

 
 

 
 

✓
 

✓
 

✓
 

 
 

✓
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

St
. P

et
er

's
 

C
at

h
o

lic
 

Sc
h

o
o

l-
B

ea
u

fo
rt

 
 

 
 

 
✓

 
✓

 
✓

 
 

 
✓

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
St

. P
et

er
's

 
C

at
h

o
lic

 
Sc

h
o

o
l-

C
o

lu
m

b
ia

 
 

 
 

 
✓

 
✓

 
✓

 
 

 
✓

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Appendix H

121



A
p

p
en

d
ix

 D
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
M

at
ri

x 
St

ep
 o

f 
Fa

it
h

 
C

h
ri

st
ia

n
 

A
ca

d
em

y 
 

✓
 

 
 

 
✓

 
✓

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Su
m

m
er

vi
lle

 
C

at
h

o
lic

 
Sc

h
o

o
l 

 
 

 
 

✓
 

✓
 

✓
 

 
 

✓
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Sc
h

o
o

l 
St

an
fo

rd
 

1
0

 g
2

-8
 

Io
w

a 
A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
K

5
-1

1
 

A
C

T 
A

sp
ir

eg
3

-
8

 

P
SA

T 
8

/9
 

g7
-9

 

P
SA

T 
(N

M
SQ

)g
 

8
-1

1
 

SA
T 

g1
1

-
1

2
 

A
C

T 
g7

-
1

2
 

ER
B

s 
C

TP
4

 
g 

3
-6

 

O
LS

A
T 

8
 g

 1
-

8
 

M
A

P
 

gK
-

1
0

 
ER

B
 

g 
9

 
W

R
A

T-
5

 g
3

-8
 

C
o

gA
t 

g8
-1

2
 

Te
rr

aN
o

va
 

A
im

sw
eb

 
p

ro
gr

es
s 

m
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g 

W
o

o
d

co
ck

 
Jo

h
n

so
n

 
IV

 
A

P
 

P
re

 
A

C
T 

G
at

es
 

M
ac

G
in

it
ie

 
To

w
re

 

To
ta

l N
u

m
b

er
 

o
f 

Sc
h

o
o

ls
  

2
4

 
3

0
 

6
 

1
7

 
6

2
 

5
4

 
4

8
 

1
1

 
9

 
4

3
 

1
 

2
 

3
 

3
 

1
 

3
 

2
 

4
 

1
 

1
 

Ta
b

er
n

ac
le

 
C

h
ri

st
ia

n
 

Sc
h

o
o

l 
 

✓
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Th
e 

C
h

an
d

le
r 

Sc
h

o
o

l 
✓

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

✓
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Th

e 
C

h
ar

le
st

o
n

 
C

at
h

o
lic

 
Sc

h
o

o
l 

 
 

 
 

✓
 

✓
 

✓
 

 
 

✓
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Th
e 

C
o

m
p

le
te

 
St

u
d

en
t 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Th
e 

C
o

o
p

er
 

Sc
h

o
o

l 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

✓
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Th
e 

K
in

g'
s 

A
ca

d
em

y 
 

 
 

 
✓

 
✓

 
✓

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Th
e 

Ti
m

m
er

m
an

 
Sc

h
o

o
l 

✓
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Th

e 
V

ill
ag

e 
Sc

h
o

o
l o

f 
G

af
fn

ey
 

✓
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Th

o
m

as
 

H
ey

w
ar

d
 

A
ca

d
em

y 
✓

 
 

 
 

✓
 

✓
 

 
 

✓
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Th

o
m

as
 

Su
m

te
r 

A
ca

d
em

y 
✓

 
 

 
 

✓
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Tr

id
en

t 
A

ca
d

em
y 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
✓

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
✓

 
✓

 

Appendix H

122



A
p

p
en

d
ix

 D
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
M

at
ri

x 
Tr

in
it

y 
C

h
ri

st
ia

n
 

Ed
u

ca
ti

o
n

al
 

Sc
h

o
o

l 
✓

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

V
ic

to
ry

 B
ib

le
 

C
h

ri
st

ia
n

 
Sc

h
o

o
l 

 
✓

 
 

 
✓

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Sc
h

o
o

l 
St

an
fo

rd
 

1
0

 g
2

-8
 

Io
w

a 
A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
K

5
-1

1
 

A
C

T 
A

sp
ir

eg
3

-
8

 

P
SA

T 
8

/9
 

g7
-9

 

P
SA

T 
(N

M
SQ

)g
 

8
-1

1
 

SA
T 

g1
1

-
1

2
 

A
C

T 
g7

-
1

2
 

ER
B

s 
C

TP
4

 
g 

3
-6

 

O
LS

A
T 

8
 g

 1
-

8
 

M
A

P
 

gK
-

1
0

 
ER

B
 

g 
9

 
W

R
A

T-
5

 g
3

-8
 

C
o

gA
t 

g8
-1

2
 

Te
rr

aN
o

va
 

A
im

sw
eb

 
p

ro
gr

es
s 

m
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g 

W
o

o
d

co
ck

 
Jo

h
n

so
n

 
IV

 
A

P
 

P
re

 
A

C
T 

G
at

es
 

M
ac

G
in

it
ie

 
To

w
re

 

To
ta

l N
u

m
b

er
 

o
f 

Sc
h

o
o

ls
  

2
4

 
3

0
 

6
 

1
7

 
6

2
 

5
4

 
4

8
 

1
1

 
9

 
4

3
 

1
 

2
 

3
 

3
 

1
 

3
 

2
 

4
 

1
 

1
 

W
al

n
u

t 
G

ro
ve

 
C

h
ri

st
ia

n
 

Sc
h

o
o

l 
 

✓
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

W
es

tg
at

e 
C

h
ri

st
ia

n
 

Sc
h

o
o

l 
 

✓
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

W
es

tm
in

st
er

 
C

at
aw

b
a 

C
h

ri
st

ia
n

 
Sc

h
o

o
l 

 
 

 
✓

 
 

✓
 

✓
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
W

es
ts

id
e 

C
h

ri
st

ia
n

 
A

ca
d

em
y 

 
✓

 
 

 
✓

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Appendix H

123



The SC Education Oversight Committee is an independent, non-partisan group made up of 18 
educators, business persons, and elected leaders. Created in 1998, the committee is dedicated to 
reporting facts, measuring change, and promoting progress within South Carolina’s education system. 

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION
If you have questions, please contact the Education Oversight Committee (EOC) staff for
additional information. The phone number is 803.734.6148. Also, please visit the EOC
website at www.eoc.sc.gov for additional resources.

The Education Oversight Committee does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, 
religion, sex, or handicap in its practices relating to employment or establishment and administration of its 
programs and initiatives. Inquiries regarding employment, programs and initiatives of the Committee should 
be directed to the Executive Director 803.734.6148. 

http://www.eoc.sc.gov/


EDUCATION OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE 
 

DATE:  May 15, 2023 
 
COMMITTEE: 
Joint Academic Standards & Assessments and Public Awareness Subcommittees 
 
ACTION ITEM:  
Educational Performance of Military-Connected Children in SC, 2023 Report  
 
PURPOSE/AUTHORITY 
§59-18-100: The Education Oversight Committee, working with the State Board of Education, is 
directed to establish a comprehensive annual report concerning the performance of military-
connected children who attend primary, elementary, middle, and high schools in this State. The 
comprehensive annual report must be in a reader- friendly format, using graphics wherever possible, 
published on the state, district, and school websites, and, upon request, printed by the school 
districts. The annual comprehensive report must address at least attendance, academic 
performance in reading, math, and science, and graduation rates of military- connected children. 
 
CRITICAL FACTS 
The 2023 report provides: 

• Demographics details of military-connected students in SC from School Year 2021-22. 
• An overview of the data collection and reporting at the State level related to military-con-

nected students as well as an update on the federal Impact Aid program. 
• An update on the academic performance and school attendance of military-connected stu-

dents as reported for the most recent school years;  
• Existing structures and support for military- connected students in the State; and 
• Findings and recommendations. 

 
TIMELINE/REVIEW PROCESS 
Annual review 
 
ECONOMIC IMPACT FOR EOC 
No impact 

ACTION REQUEST 
 

  For approval       For information 
 

ACTION TAKEN 
 

  Approved         Amended 
  Not Approved        Action deferred (explain) 



 
EDUCATIONAL PERFORMANCE 

OF MILITARY-CONNECTED STUDENTS 
IN SOUTH CAROLINA

 

2023 REPORT

Prepared By: 
Amber Adgerson, PhD, EOC Data Analyst Intern
 

Prepared For:
Academic Standards & Assessments Subcommittee
Public Awareness Subcommittee

Monday, May 15, 2023



TABLE OF CONTENTS

E O C  |  M I L I T A R Y  C O N N E C T E D  S T U D E N T S  I N  S O U T H  C A R O L I N A

Executive Summary

Acknowledgements

Background

Federal MCS Requirements

State MCS Reporting

DEERS Data

Local Level Reporting

Demographics of MCS

Federal Impact Aid

Academic Performance of MCS

 

 

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

13

16

18

 Findings & Recommendations

Structures & Supports

Executive Summary

Acknowledgements

Background

Project Conclusion

23

24

3

4

5

6

7

Note: At the time of publication, data on the performance of MCS was not finalized for the Advanced Placement (AP)

exams given during the 2021-22 school year. 



This report is the annual assessment of the educational
performance of military-connected students (MCS) in
South Carolina, as required by Act 289, the Military
Family Quality of Life Enhancement Act. The report,
developed by the Education Oversight Committee
(EOC), in collaboration with the State Board of
Education, aims to enhance the quality of life of our
honorable armed forces personnel. 

The report provides insights into the demographics of
military-connected students and the data collection
and reporting process at the state level for the 2021-
2022 school year. The report also includes information
on the academic performance and school attendance
of military-connected students, existing structures, and
support for them in the state and nationally, and
recommendations for policy decisions. Care was taken
to include metrics which juxtapose MCS progress with
non-military connected students (Non-MCS). 

It is recommended that policymakers review the
report's findings and recommendations and work
together to implement effective policies for the
betterment of military families.

E O C  |  M I L I T A R Y  C O N N E C T E D  S T U D E N T S  I N  S O U T H  C A R O L I N A 1

EX
EC

U
TI

VE
 S

U
M

M
A

RY
The South Carolina General Assembly finds that
comprehensive legislation to enhance many
quality of life issues for members of the armed
forces and their families is very appropriate to
demonstrate its appreciation for the sacrifices of
members of the armed forces and their families
and to demonstrate its appreciation for the
enormously positive impact of military installations
on the Palmetto State. (2013-2014 Bill 4859)

https://www.scstatehouse.gov/sess120_2013-2014/bills/4859.htm


Report contributors include:
 

Sandy Claypoole
Director of Military Affairs

South Carolina Department of Veterans'
Affairs

 
Dr. Tremekia K. Priester

Office of Student Intervention Services
SC Department of Education

 
Eric Sherman

Regional Liaison
U.S. Department of Defense 

 

The EOC staff
acknowledges the support

and assistance of many
individuals and

organizations in the
development of this report. 

We are grateful for their
willingness to share and

advocate for military
connected students and

families in South Carolina. 

Acknowledgements

E O C  |  M I L I T A R Y  C O N N E C T E D  S T U D E N T S  I N  S O U T H  C A R O L I N A 2



Background

THIS REPORT

This annual report is produced to fulfill the

requirements of Act 289, also known as the

Military Family Quality of Life Enhancement

Act, which was passed in 2014 by the SC

General Assembly. The Act’s purpose is to

“enhance quality of life issues for members of

the armed forces” (Act 289 Preamble). Part V of

this act mandates that the SC Education

Oversight Committee (EOC) develop a

comprehensive report on the educational

performance of military-connected children.

This report must be published on the state,

district, and school websites, and printed by

school districts upon request. The report

should be reader-friendly and utilize graphics

wherever possible.

This 2023 report contains a variety of

information about military-connected students

in SC from the 2021-2022 school year. It

includes details about their demographics, an

overview of data collection and reporting at the

state level, and an update on the federal

Impact Aid program. Additionally, the report

provides information on the academic

performance and attendance of military-

connected students, as well as the existing

support structures available to them in the

state. Finally, the report includes findings and

recommendations based on the data collected.

Since the 2018-2019 school year, the number of military-
connected students (MCS) increased by...

11.1% 

The attendance rate for MCS for the 2021-2022 school
year was...

93.4%

Since the 2018-2019 school year, the number of MCS with
a parent or guardian is serving in the military on active duty
and is currently deployed has increased by...

10.8% 

E O C  |  M I L I T A R Y  C O N N E C T E D  S T U D E N T S  I N  S O U T H  C A R O L I N A
3



When the Elementary and Secondary Education Act (ESEA) was reauthorized in
late 2015 as the Every Student Succeeds Act (ESSA), military-connected
students were recognized as a district subgroup for reporting purposes. 

Federal Requirements for
Military-Connected Students

Beginning in the 2017-18 school year, local education agencies (LEAs) were required to
identify students with a parent serving on active duty or full-time National Guard duty.
The purpose of collecting this information is to evaluate the specific educational needs and
effectiveness of programs serving military-connected students.

Active duty is federally defined as full-time duty in the active military service of the United
States, which includes full-time training duty, annual training duty, and attendance at a
designated service school. Full-time National Guard duty is defined as training or other
duty performed by a member of the Army National Guard or Air National Guard in their
status as a member of the National Guard, for which they are entitled to pay from or have
waived pay from the United States.

South Carolina already had an established mechanism for collecting military-connected
student information in its Student Information System (SIS), currently PowerSchool, which
includes a dropdown list with eight possible student status options under the "Parent
Military Status" field. However, there is no standard collection and reporting standard for
collecting student military-connected status by state, although all typically collect it via a
survey of parents and guardians. For instance, in Virginia, deployment status is not asked of
parents due to concerns about privacy for military families, especially for those in special
operations communities. South Carolina collects information about deceased and wounded
military personnel to assist families and students who are grieving.

According to data from PowerSchool, the population of military-connected students in
South Carolina public schools is currently estimated at 13,122 students connected to active-
duty personnel in the 2021-2022 school year. That estimate excludes students in the
enrollment file in 3K, 4K, or those students who never physically came to school. However,
the total number of active-duty dependent children reported statewide in the DEERS
system (ages 5-18) in April 2022, regardless of where they were enrolled, was 36,732
highlighting the need for consistent and accurate data collection methods.

E O C  |  M I L I T A R Y  C O N N E C T E D  S T U D E N T S  I N  S O U T H  C A R O L I N A 4



State-Level Identification &
Reporting of MCCS
It is challenging to identify military-connected students because various systems collect and report on these young people. The data from
both national and state-level data sources can vary. For the purposes of identifying MCS for this report in the Student Information system,
all students below are counted except for students whose parent or guardian is serving in the National Guard or Reserves and is not
deployed. On average, the counts of military-connected students continue to increase in South Carolina. Table 1 provides an overview of the
school year counts of military-connected students in South Carolina for the four most recently completed school years. 

 
  Parent Military Status Category

  

 
  MCS School Year Counts 

  (180-Day Enrollment Data)
  

  2018-2019
  

  2019-2020
  

  2020-2021
  

  2021-2022
  

 
  A Parent or Guardian is serving in the military on active duty but is

not deployed.
  

 
  9,314

  

 
  9,672

  

 
  9,540

  

 
  9,465

  

 
  A Parent or Guardian is serving in the National Guard but is not

deployed.
  

 
  2,631

  

 
  3,027

  

 
  3,896

  

 
  3,256

  

 
  A Parent or Guardian is serving in the Reserves but is not deployed.

  

 
  2,075

  

 
  2,308

  

 
  2,276

  

 
  2,257

  

 
  The student’s Parent or Guardian was wounded while on active duty

within the last year.
  

 
  591

  

 
  1,087

  

 
  1,368

  

 
  1,430

  

 
  A Parent or Guardian is serving in the military on active duty and is

currently deployed.
  

 
  1,027

  

 
  1,081

  

 
  1,065

  

 
  1,117

  

 
  A Parent or Guardian is serving in the National Guard and is currently

deployed.
  

 
  506

  

 
  543

  

 
  525

  

 
  502

  

 
  A Parent or Guardian is serving in the Reserves and is currently

deployed.
  

 
  295

  

 
  368

  

 
  369

  

 
  420

  

 
  The student’s Parent or Guardian died while on active duty within the

last year.
  

 
  82

  

 
  151

  

 
  190

  

 
  188

  

 
  Totals   

  
  16,521
  

  18,237
  

  19,229
  

  18,635
  

5

Table 1: Population of Military Connected Students By Status

School Year Counts based on 180-Day Enrollment Data



The overall increase in military-connected students across all military status categories (including
Reserves and National Guard, not deployed) is 12.8%. However, it should be noted that in previous
years' reporting included data from the enrollment file for students who did not arrive in schools.
This year, those students were removed from the reported counts.  The report also shows a modest
increase in the number of military-connected students with parents who served in the Reserves but
are not deployed; the increase is 8.8%.

Of particular note is the substantial increase in the number of military-connected students with
parents or guardians who were affected by active-duty service. For instance, the report indicates a
142.0% increase in military-connected students who reported having a parent or guardian that was
wounded while on active duty within the last year. Furthermore, there was a 129.3% increase in
military-connected students who reported having a parent or guardian that died while on active duty
within the last year. 

Defense Enrollment Eligibility
Reporting System (DEERS)

In addition to the data provided by school districts in Power School, the U.S. Department of Defense
collects information for the number of active-duty dependent children in South Carolina, as well as
the number of SC Guard and Reserve dependent children in their Defense Enrollment Eligibility
Reporting System (DEERS). 

The DEERS database contains information for Uniformed Service members (Active Duty, retired, or
Reserve Component), U.S.-sponsored foreign military, DoD and Uniformed Services civilians, and
their eligible family members, including the patient population serviced through the Military Health
Services System. Active duty and retired members are automatically registered in DEERS, and to be
enrolled in TRICARE, dependents must be registered. DEERS data is accurate and stable, providing
medical portability. The DMDC maintains the database and provides reports up to four times a year to
authorized users. Table 2 includes data from the DEERS database provided by the Department of
Defense and SC Department of Education, covering children ages 5-18, including those in private
schools, DDESS, and alternative environments.

E O C  |  M I L I T A R Y  C O N N E C T E D  S T U D E N T S  I N  S O U T H  C A R O L I N A 6

 
  

Spring 2020 Data
Collection

Spring 2021 Data
Collection

Spring 2022 Data
Collection

Active-Duty Dependent Children in South Carolina
 

  13,034
  

 
  11,716

  
20,141

 
SC Guard/Reserve Dependent Children  

 
9,462

 
9,173

 
16,591

 
TOTAL number of Active-Duty Dependent Children in

South Carolina  

 
22,496

 
20,889  

 
36,732  

Table 2: Active Duty, Guard, and Reserve MCS DEERS Data 



According to current DEERS data, more children (ages 5-18) in South Carolina are dependents of
active-duty military personnel when compared to dependents of SC Guard and Reserve members.
Data collected from the spring of 2022 revealed a roughly 72% increase in active-duty dependent
children in South Carolina. During the same collection period, it was revealed a roughly 81% increase
in SC Guard and Reserve dependent children. So, in total amount of military connected students
South Carolina has increased by roughly 76% from the 2020-2021 school year to the 2021-2022
school year. Appendix A provides more detail about how the South Carolina MCS population
compares to those of other states.

E O C  |  M I L I T A R Y  C O N N E C T E D  S T U D E N T S  I N  S O U T H  C A R O L I N A 7

Local-Level
Reporting of MCS
School districts also gather information on military-connected students through a survey administered
to parents and guardians once a year. This data is entered into a field in the South Carolina Student
Information System (SIS). Currently, Power School is the current SIC which collects the data related to
military-connected students. Roughly a quarter of MCS who enrolled at a public school district or
charter school attended Richland 02 school district during the 2021-2022 school year. Fifty-two
percent of MCS attended either Richland 02, Horry 01, Dorchester 02, and Beaufort school districts. 

Twenty-five SC school districts did not report any military-connected students within the
PowerSchool SIS. Richland One School District only reported three MCS students, despite being very
close to the large military installation of Fort Jackson. Similarly, no students were reported for Jasper
County School District, even though there are three military installations in nearby Beaufort County
School District. 

Table 3 provides the number of MCS arranged alphabetically. School districts reporting no MCS are
not included in the table; 25 school districts reported not having any MCS during the 2021-2022
school year.



E O C  |  M I L I T A R Y  C O N N E C T E D  S T U D E N T S  I N  S O U T H  C A R O L I N A 8

Table 3: Population of Military Connected Students (MCS) By District
(districts reporting 0 MCS are not included in the table)



District Name MCS Count

Richland 2 3,057

Horry 1,599

Dorchester 2 1,367

Beaufort 827

Berkeley 805

Sumter 747

Kershaw 714

Lexington 1 617

Aiken 431

Charleston 363

E O C  |  M I L I T A R Y  C O N N E C T E D  S T U D E N T S  I N  S O U T H  C A R O L I N A 1 1

Table 4 show cases, from greatest to least, the ten South Carolina school districts with the highest numbers of
MCS.

Table 4: SC School Districts With Largest Populations of MCS

2021-2022 School Year Count (180-Day Enrollment Data)



E O C  |  M I L I T A R Y  C O N N E C T E D  S T U D E N T S  I N  S O U T H  C A R O L I N A 1 2

Many of the districts with the highest populations of MCS are near the eight major military
installations and several other supporting facilities across the state (Figure 1). These establishments
currently serve a total of 68,493 Department of Defense personnel, comprising all branches of
service and components (SC Department of Veterans' Affairs - June 2022). Of this figure, 69% are
active-duty members, while the remaining 31% are Reserve Component, which includes Guardsmen
and Reservists. Notably, South Carolina ranks as the 10th state in terms of the highest density of
service members in the country. Additionally, there are 17,579 service members stationed at Fort
Gordon in Georgia, with many of them residing in South Carolina.

Figure 1: Locations of Major Military Installations

Source: SC Department of Veterans' Affairs 



Grade Level Span Count

K-5th grade 6,190

6th-8th grade 3,172

9-12th grade 3,760

Total 13,122

DEMOGRAPHICS OF MCS
The demographics of military connected students in South Carolina are listed below in Tables 5, 6,
and 7. The number of MCS varied by grade-band, and there were more MCS at the Kindergarten
through 5th grade-level band. 

E O C  |  M I L I T A R Y  C O N N E C T E D  S T U D E N T S  I N  S O U T H  C A R O L I N A 1 3

Table 5: Grade-Level Span of Military-Connected Students

2021-2022 School Year Count (180-Day Enrollment Data)



2021-2022 School Year Count (180-Day Enrollment Data)

Concerning the racial make-up of MCS, 47.6% of students identified as White, 27.9% of students
identified as Black or African American, and 13.5% identified as Hispanic or Latino. In general, the
demographic make-up of South Carolina aligned with the racial makeup for South Carolina from the
most recent Census (U.S. Census Bureau, 2022). 

Table 6: Racial Make-Up of Military-Connected Students

E O C  |  M I L I T A R Y  C O N N E C T E D  S T U D E N T S  I N  S O U T H  C A R O L I N A 1 4

Race Count % of MCS

American Indian or Alaska Native 30 0%

Asian 156 1.2%

Black or African American 3,673 27.9%

Hispanic or Latino 1,775 13.5%

Multiple categories reported 1,165 8.9%

Native Hawaiian or Other Pacific
Islander

75 0.5%

White 6,247 47.6%

Total 13,121 100%



Student with a Disability 1,404 (10.7%) 97,504 (12.7%)

Limited English
Proficiency

510 (3.9%) 69,475 (9.0%)

Pupil in Poverty 3,815 (29.1%) 473,204 (61.4%)

Foster Care 47 (0.3%) 3,644 (0.5%)

Homelessness 39 (0.3%) 10,168 (.47%)

Student Characteristics

Gifted and Talented 1,878 (14.3%) 116,910 (15.2%)

MCS Non-MCS

Migrant 10 (0.1%) 569 (0.07%)

E O C  |  M I L I T A R Y  C O N N E C T E D  S T U D E N T S  I N  S O U T H  C A R O L I N A 1 5

2021-2022 School Year Count (180-Day Enrollment Data)

Table 7: Demographics of Military-Connected Students

Other data revealed there were many differences between military connected versus non-military
connected students. Table 7 gives information on a variety of student characteristics collected by
Power School. The data is aggregated by MCS and Non-MCS students. 

In Power School, only roughly 29.1% of MCS are characterized as pupils in poverty whereas 61.4% of
Non-MCS are characterized as pupils in poverty. The trend is similar concerning the other
demographic factors as well. There were 3.9% of MCS with limited English proficiency versus the 9.0%
of Non-MCS students. There were 0.3% MCS in foster care in contrast to the 0.47% of Non-MCS in
foster care. Roughly 0.3% of homeless students were military connected in contrast to the 1.3%
students that were not military connected. Lastly, the same trend held true concerning migrant status.  
Roughly 0.07% of non-MCS and 0.1% of MCS received migrant status during the 2021-2022 school
year. 



E O C  |  M I L I T A R Y  C O N N E C T E D  S T U D E N T S  I N  S O U T H  C A R O L I N A 1 6

Federal Impact Aid for Military-
Connected Students

As mentioned previously, school districts gather information on military-connected students
through a survey administered to parents and guardians once a year. This data is entered into a field
in the Power School system. However, the purpose of collecting this data is separate from the federal
Impact Aid program, which provides funding to school districts that have lost tax revenue due to the
presence of federal activities such as military installations, national parks, and low-rent housing
properties. 

Each school district must apply for Impact Aid annually, and to be eligible for funding, they must
educate at least 400 federal students in average daily attendance or have these students represent at
least 3% of their ADA. Military-connected students are a significant portion of the Impact Aid
program, and many school districts in South Carolina receive funding through this program. Although
data collection for military-connected students requires effort from districts, the funding can
ultimately be beneficial for all students.



LEA Name County Name
Fiscal 
Year 

Payment
(7003)

Sumter School District
Sumter

2022 315,385

Berkeley County School District
Berkeley 162,336

Richland County School District 02
Richland 126,457

Charleston County School District
Charleston 102,813

Aiken County Consolidated 
School District

Aiken 66,469

Beaufort County 
School District

Beaufort 49,965

Dorchester County 
School District 02

Dorchester 26,887

Florence County
 School District 03

Florence 18,997

Kershaw County School District
Kershaw 14,575

Barnwell County Consolidated
School District 

Barnwell 9,903

2022

2022

2022

2022

2022

2022

2022

2022

2022

Table 8 provides an overview of the school districts who received federal impact aid payments in the
2022 fiscal year (as of April 2023). The schools are listed in decreasing order for aid received. 

E O C  |  M I L I T A R Y  C O N N E C T E D  S T U D E N T S  I N  S O U T H  C A R O L I N A 1 7

Table 8: Federal Impact Aid Payments

Source: https://impactaid.ed.gov/report/total-impact-aid-basic-support-payments-detail/



Academic Performance

KRA Performance of Military-Connected Students (MCS) and Non-MCS

This section compares the 2021-2022 school year performance of MCS to Non-MCS in South Carolina across
various measures, including the Kindergarten Readiness Assessment (KRA), SC READY and SC PASS tests,
End-Of-Course Examination Program (EOCEP), Advanced Placement (AP) Examinations, and high school
graduation rates.

The EOC analyzed the performance of kindergarten students who took the Kindergarten Readiness
Assessment (KRA) during the 2021-2022 school year. The KRA measures readiness in Social
Foundations, Language/Literacy, Mathematics, and Physical Well-Being. During the 2021-2022 school
year, MCS demonstrated readiness at a rate of 45%, compared to 36% of Non-MCS students in the
state as shown in Figures 2 and 3.

E O C  |  M I L I T A R Y  C O N N E C T E D  S T U D E N T S  I N  S O U T H  C A R O L I N A 1 8

Figure 2: MCS KRA Performance Figure 3: Non-MCS KRA Performance

2021-2022 School Year Count (180-Day Enrollment Data)



 
  Student

Group
  

 
  n
  

 
  % Does Not

Meet
  

 
  %

Approaches
  

 
  % Meets

  

 
  % Exceeds

  

 
  % Meets or

Exceeds
  

 
  SC READY Mathematics

  

 
  MCS

  
5,725 21.0% 30.1% 25.2% 23.8% 49.0%

 
  Non-MCS

  
339,918

 
 

32.8%
   
  

28.4% 20.0%
 

19.2%
 

38.8%

 
  SC READY English Language Arts (ELA)

  

 
  MCS

  

 
5,727  

  
15.5% 25.2% 30.0%  29.4% 59.3%

 
  Non-MCS

  
339,695 26.1% 27.2% 24.9% 21.8% 46.7%

 
  SC PASS Science

  

 
  MCS

  
1,917 20.7% 20.1% 28.4% 30.8% 59.2%

 
  Non-MCS

  
111,145 33.9% 20.2%

 
  22.8%

  

 
  23.1%

  
45.9%

Spring 2022 SC READY and SC PASS Performance of MCS & Non-MCS
The South Carolina College- and Career-Ready Assessments (SC READY) program is a statewide assessment
designed to measure student performance in English Language Arts (ELA) and mathematics for grades 3-8 as
required by the Education Accountability Act. The South Carolina Palmetto Assessment of State Standards (SCPASS)
is another statewide assessment program that focuses solely on assessing science at specific grade-level. 

For the 2021-2022 school year, MCS were more likely to score Meets or Exceeds in mathematics, English Language
Arts (ELA) and Science. 

E O C  |  M I L I T A R Y  C O N N E C T E D  S T U D E N T S  I N  S O U T H  C A R O L I N A 1 9

Table 9: SC READY and SC PASS Performance, 2021-22 School Year



School
Year

Number of
MCS

Mean
Score

% Passing
(A, B, or

C)

Number of
Non-MCS

Mean
Score 

% Passing
(A, B, or

C)

Algebra I

2021-22 1,057 71.8 53.9% 62,180 68.4 43.0%

English II

2021-22 919 80.0 76.0% 58,088 76.8 66.8%

Biology I

2021-22 926 71.0 52.6% 58,273 66.7% 43.0%

U.S. History and the Constitution

2021-22 805 68.9 46.7% 51,479 65.2% 39.5%

End-of Course Exams (EOCE) Performance of MCS and Non-MCS

MCS, on average, achieved higher scores than their non-MCS peers in science. Specifically, a higher percentage
of MCS students met and exceeded the established standards. Conversely, fewer MCS students scored "Does Not
Meet" when compared to their non-MCS counterparts, indicating that fewer students failed to meet the grade-
level standards in science.

2 0E O C  |  M I L I T A R Y  C O N N E C T E D  S T U D E N T S  I N  S O U T H  C A R O L I N A

This section contains an overview of the End-of-Course Examination Program (EOCEP) performance of MCS
and Non-MCS. This statewide EOCEP measures student performance on end-of-course tests for gateway
courses that are awarded units of credit in English/language arts, mathematics, science, and social studies.

EOCEP examination scores have historically counted for 20 percent of a student's final grade in gateway
courses. Currently, defined gateway courses include Algebra 1, Biology 1, English 2, and United States History
and the Constitution.

Table 10 outlines the performance of military-connected students on end-of-course exams for the 2021-2022
school year. During the school year, military-connected students outperformed all students statewide on
EOCEP exams in Algebra 1, English 2, Biology I, and United States History and the Constitution.

Table 10: EOCEP Performance



2021-22 School Year MCS Non-MCS

Avg. Days Absent 10 days (of 180) 12 days (of 180)

Avg. Days Attended 154 days (of 180) 159 days (of 180)

The SCDE provided information from PowerSchool to compute student attendance rates. The average percent
of school days absent for all districts that reported MCS was 10 days, compared to the statewide average of 11
days for non-MCS in the 2021-2022 school year. On average, MCS attended 154 of 180 days of school whereas
Non-MCS attended 159 of 180 days of school. 

Attendance & Graduation Rates

E O C  |  M I L I T A R Y  C O N N E C T E D  S T U D E N T S  I N  S O U T H  C A R O L I N A 2 2

The data from Power School was also used to calculate the attendance and graduation rate of MCS
and Non-MCS during the 2021-2022 school year. Table 11 below shows the average days absent for
MCS and Non-MCS. On average military connected students were absent fewer days and attended
more school days than Non-MCS. The 180-day enrollment file for the 2021-2022 school year was
used to calculate the metric.

Graduation rates are calculated from the graduation cohort base file for the given school year. The graduation cohort
includes all students whose first year in high school occurred three full years prior to the school year being measured.
Students are only removed from the cohort for reasons of student death, emigration, transfer to prison or juvenile
facility following adjudication, and properly documented transfer out of the state.

Table 11: Attendance Rates

Table 12:  Graduation Rates

School Year MCS Non-MCS

2021-22 94.3% 83.9%

2020-21 91.4% 83.2%

2019-20 90.8% 82.0%

2018-19 86.9% 81.1%



Overall, the report findings demonstrate military connected students typically perform better than
their non-military connected peers in most instances. Even so, there is a need for schools and
educators to recognize the unique challenges faced by military-connected students and provide them
with appropriate support to succeed academically. Schools can benefit from adopting policies that
prioritize the needs of military-connected students and provide them with resources to address them.

Findings &
Recommendations

Growing population01 The population of MCS in South Carolina continues
to grow at a moderate pace year over year. 

Reporting

02 Consistency in reporting to local, state, and federal
institutions vary among institutions in SC concerning
MCS. Effort should be made to capture MCS more
effectively. 

Demographics and Student Characteristics

03 The demographics and student characteristics for MCS
show they are most likely to be in the elementary school
grade band and are  less likely to be impoverished or have
Limited English Language Proficiency.

Attendance & Graduation Rates

04 The attendance rates or MCS were more favorable when
compared to Non-MCS, but only slightly so.  Graduation
rates for MCS continue to improve year over year and
surpass the graduation rates of Non-MCS. 

05

Federal Impact Aid

06 Many school districts with high populations of MCS
receive federal impact aid which benefits both MCS
and Non-MCS students.

Lastly, the figures in Table 1 are a cause for concern as students who have a parent or guardian who
was injured during active duty may face additional emotional and logistical challenges that could
impact their academic performance. Such a traumatic experience can have a profound effect on
students and their families, resulting in a need for additional support to help them cope with the loss
and adjust to their new circumstances. 

We recommend school districts provide access to and information for available structures and
supports which support the holistic needs of military connected students and their families in South
Carolina. 

The last sections of this report provide information on existing structures and support for MCS in the
state. 

Academic Progress
The academic progress of MCS surpassed those of Non-
MCS for most metrics. 

E O C  |  M I L I T A R Y  C O N N E C T E D  S T U D E N T S  I N  S O U T H  C A R O L I N A 2 3



Active-duty members of the uniformed services, including members of the National Guard and
Reserve on active-duty orders (Title 10) 
Members or veterans who are medically discharged or retired for one year 
Members who die on active duty, for a period of one year after death 
Uniformed members of the Commissioned Corps of the National Oceanic and Atmospheric
Administration (NOAA), and United States Public Health Services (USPHS).

All states, including South Carolina, have joined the Interstate Compact regarding Educational
Opportunity for Military Children to ease the transition for students and to ensure that there are no
barriers to educational success imposed on children of military families because of frequent moves
and deployment of their parents. Former Governor Mark Sanford signed the Compact on June 11,
2010, and it became law in South Carolina on July 1, 2010. Students covered are children of the
following: 

Structures & Supports

E O C  |  M I L I T A R Y  C O N N E C T E D  S T U D E N T S  I N  S O U T H  C A R O L I N A 2 4

Military Interstate Compact Commission (MIC3)

SC Purple Star Districts
The Purple Star is a designation for SC districts who meet specific requirements, target training, and
implement programs designed to support the unique situations facing military students and families.
Dorchester School district was added in the last year as the eleventh SC Purple Star District.

Current SC Purple Star Districts

Aiken County Public School District

Anderson 1 School District

Beaufort County School District

Berkeley County School District

Charleston County School District

Dorchester County School District 2

Edgefield County School District

Kershaw County School District

Richland County School District 1

Richland County School District 2

Sumter County School District



School Liaison Officers serve as a primary point of contact for students and their families transitioning to new
communities and schools. They are also a resource for schools and school districts. To view a list of school liaison officers by
branch, go to: https://www.dodea.

 edu/Partnership/schoolLiaisonOfficers.cfm. 

Fort Jackson School Liaisons provide ongoing educational support for military-connected schools. This comprehensive
website provides information about public and private schools, homeschooling, and local school districts. 

https://jackson.armymwr.com/programs/school-liaison-officer

Shaw Air Force Base is home to the 20th Fighter Wing, Headquarters Nine Air Force/United States Central Command of
Air Forces, and several associate units. Shaw’s units are assigned to Air Combat Command, Langley Air Force Base, Virginia.
School Liaison information may be found at the website below: 

https://www.shaw.af.mil/About-Us/Newcomer-Information/

Marine Corps Air Station and the Marine Corps Recruit Depot are in Beaufort. School support information may be
accessed at the website below. 

http://www.mccs-sc.com/mil-fam/slp.shtml

Joint Base Charleston School information may be accessed under the “Charleston Area Schools” link.

https://www.jbcharleston.jb.mil/About-Us/Library/ Newcomers

E O C  |  M I L I T A R Y  C O N N E C T E D  S T U D E N T S  I N  S O U T H  C A R O L I N A 2 5

State Military Installation Supports

Department of Defense Education Activity provides professional development training in a
webinar format for school liaison officers. This information is also helpful for local school districts to
understand the needs of students and how to support them in a comprehensive manner.

 https://www.dodea.edu/

Military Impacted School Association is a national organization of school superintendents. MISA
supports school districts with a high concentration of military children by providing detailed,
comprehensive information regarding impact aid and resources for families and schools.

 http://militaryimpactedschoolsassociation.org/

The Military Child Education Coalition (MCEC) focuses on ensuring quality educational
opportunities for all military children affected by mobility, family separation, and transition. A 501(c)
(3) non-profit, world-wide organization, the MCEC performs research, develops resources, conducts
professional institutes, and conferences, and develops and publishes resources for all.

 constituencies. http://www.militarychild.org/

Additional Resources

https://jackson.armymwr.com/programs/school-liaison-officer
https://www.shaw.af.mil/About-Us/Newcomer-Information/
http://www.mccs-sc.com/mil-fam/slp.shtml
https://www.dodea.edu/
http://militaryimpactedschoolsassociation.org/
http://www.militarychild.org/


Military OneSource is a confidential Department of Defense-funded program providing
comprehensive information on every aspect of military life at no cost to active duty, National Guard,
and reserve members, and their families. Information includes, but is not limited to, deployment,
reunion, relationships, grief, spouse employment and education, parenting, and childhood services. It
is a virtual extension to installation services. The program also provides free resources to schools,
including books and videos with relevant topics that help students cope with divorce and deployment.

 www.militaryonesource.mil 

National Military Family Association (NMFA) a voice for military families advocating on behalf of
service members, their spouses, and their children. According to NMFA’s website, NMFA is the “go to”
source for Administration Officials, Members of Congress, and key decision makers when they want
to understand the issues facing military families. 

https://www.militaryfamily.org/

Pathways Matter establishes the first comprehensive learner-centered education to workforce
continuum for state policy. Beginning in K-12 and extending to and through postsecondary and on to
employment, Pathways Matter, takes the fragmented narrative and structure of state education to
workforce policy efforts and turns it into a comprehensive policy continuum. 

https://pathwaysmatter.org/

EdChoice is a 501(c)(3) nonprofit, nonpartisan organization committed to understanding and
pursuing a K–12 education system that empowers every family to choose the schooling environment
that fits their children’s needs best.

https://www.edchoice.org/school-choice/state/south-carolina/

E O C  |  M I L I T A R Y  C O N N E C T E D  S T U D E N T S  I N  S O U T H  C A R O L I N A 2 6

Students in military connected families who are moving between states need support for a variety of
different reasons. This is especially true for those MCS entering and exiting the K-12 schooling pipeline. To
support the "seamless transition" of MCS, the Office of Student Intervention Services helps student and
their families navigate +/- grading vs. point GPAs, age cutoffs for kindergarten entry, and social
studies/history (and other subject credits) and other  issues which impact the transitions of MCS and
families in South Carolina. The office is beginning to categorize and quantify the issues which are most
common for MCS and their families. These new metrics will assist in the development of targeted MCS
policy recommendations. 

New & Developing Academic Transition Support Metrics

http://www.militaryonesource.mil/
https://pathwaysmatter.org/
https://www.edchoice.org/school-choice/state/south-carolina/


Key for PDF: AF - Air Force; Army; CG - Coast Guard; Mar- Marines; Navy; USPHS - US Public Health Services; NOAA - National Oceanic and
Atmospheric Administration

Appendix A



The SC Education Oversight Committee is an independent, non-partisan group made up of 18 educators, 
businesspersons, and elected leaders. Created in 1998, the committee is dedicated to reporting 

facts, measuring change, and promoting progress within South Carolina’s education system.
 

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION
If you have questions, please contact the Education Oversight Committee (EOC) staff for additional 

information. The phone number is 803.734.6148. Also, please visit the EOC website at www.eoc.sc.gov 
for additional resources.

 
 

The Education Oversight Committee does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national 
origin, religion, sex, or handicap in its practices relating to employment or establishment and 

administration of its programs and initiatives. Inquiries regarding employment, programs and 
initiatives of the Committee should be directed to the Executive Director 803.734.6148.


	Joint Academic Standards & Assessments and
	Public Awareness Subcommittee Meeting
	2023 04 26 USHC (DiStefano - FINAL).pdf
	End of Course Examination Program
	Evaluation of US History and Constitution
	Spring 2022 Test Data
	End of Course Examination Program
	Technical Evaluation of Spring 2022 Test Data
	US History and Constitution
	Section 1: Statewide System of Standards and Assessment     3
	Section 4: Technical Quality - Other        27
	Section 5: Inclusion of Students        36
	Section 6: Achievement Standards and Reporting      38
	Summary and Recommendations        42
	1.1 South Carolina’s End of Course Examination Program
	1.3. EOCEP Population and USHC Examinees
	The Technical Report provided by DRC details demographic characteristics of students who participated in any of the USHC EOCEP administrations during the 2021-22 academic year (Fall/Winter 2021, Spring 2022, and Summer 2022).  As stated in the Techni...
	1.4. Summary: Statewide System of Standards and Assessment
	This section discusses the item development. Items for the USHC EOCEP assessment were constructed to assess the content knowledge and skills described in the 2019 Social Studies standards revision. Information reported in this section on the developme...
	2.2a. Item Formats. A variety of item formats may be used on the EOCEP assessments. The majority of items are typically (closed response) test questions which require selection of the correct answer(s) to achieve full credit. Multiple choice, or Selec...
	Other objective response items per session may be present. Multiple Selection items prompt students to select a number of correct answers (e.g., “Choose two answers…”). The multi-select items may have 5 or 6 options to select from. In order to receive...
	The SCDE website, EOCEP tab, provides online training tools for teachers and students interested in practicing specifically with online test-taking and/or technology enhanced items  (https://wbte.drcedirect.com/SC/portals/sc).  Teachers may also use r...
	2.2b. Item Pool Construction.  A large pool of items was constructed for the USHC forms, where items were vetted by multiple committees. As noted in the 2021-22 EOCEP Technical Report (DRC, 2022a) “Newly developed items were reviewed by committees of ...
	For EOCEP assessments, all items in the item pool were evaluated by item development committees using the following criteria:
	Section 3
	As stated in the Standards, validity is as defined the degree to which evidence and theory support the interpretations of test scores their intended uses. “Validity is, therefore, the most fundamental consideration in developing tests and evaluating t...
	Section 3 investigates the technical quality associated with the USHC EOCEP examination including evaluation of content, cognitive processes, internal structure, relations to other variables, and an assessment of overall validity. Information for this...
	3.1 Overall Validity, Including Validity Based on Content
	Section 4
	Technical Quality – Other

	The U.S. Peer Review Critical Elements require review of additional technical aspects which support the use of test scores, including examination of reliability evidence, fairness and accessibility evidence, and investigation of the full performance c...
	Reliability is defined as the degree to which similar results would be obtained if the testing was repeated (Bandalos, 2018). In other words, reliability provides a measure of the consistency of test scores if the test were re-administered under simil...
	Table 17.  Cut Scores on the Ability Scale Associated Grade, USHC Spring 2022

	Other technical aspects provide additional evidence to support the usefulness and meaningfulness of test scores. The information provided in this section showed that the USHC EOCEP Spring 2022 assessment provides consistent scores with an acceptable ...
	Other technical aspects provide additional evidence to support the usefulness and meaningfulness of test scores. The information provided in this section showed that the USHC EOCEP Spring 2022 assessment provides consistent scores with an acceptable ...
	for all components (e.g., stem and distractors) can be examined to ensure that no bias or confusing wording is present. Multiple USHC EOCEP test forms were provided in Spring 2022 to adhere to test security, where most items utilize a multiple-choice ...
	6.2 Reporting

	1. Statewide System of Standards and Assessment

	ECENC 2023 Report.04242023.pdf
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Appendix H.pdf
	Blank Page

	Back Cover for Reports.pdf
	The Education Oversight Committee does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, religion, sex, or handicap in its practices relating to employment or establishment and administration of its programs and initiatives. Inquiries reg...

	Blank Page




